Board of Trustees
Meeting

February 5, 2018



February 2, 2018

NOTICE OF MEETING
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District will meet at 5:00 p.m.,
Monday, February 5, 2018, in Room 201 of the Thomas S. Sewell District Administration
Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas.

VI.

VII.

VIII.

XI.

XIl.

XII.

BOARD WORKSHOP
AGENDA

Call the Meeting to Order

Roll Call of Board Members

Adjournment to closed or executive session pursuant to Texas Government Code
Section 551.074, and 551.073 of the Texas Open Meetings Act, for the following
purposes:

a. Personnel Matters - For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment,
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or
employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee.

b. Prospective Donation - For the purpose of considering a negotiated contract for a
prospective gift or donation.

Reconvene in Open Meeting

Review Status of BAT/BSN Process and Next Steps
Discuss Federal Financial Aid Appeal and Settlement
Discuss Participation with Construction Collaborative Consortium
Update on Closure of Athletic Programs

Update on Enrollment

Review of Board Bylaws

Review of Calendar

General Discussion of Meeting Items

Adjournment

Additional Closed Session Authority

If, during the course of the meeting covered by this Notice, the Board should

determine that a closed or executive meeting or session of the Board should be held

or is required in relation to any items included in this Notice, then such closed or ,
executive meeting or session as authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas



Government Code (the Open Meetings Act) will be held by the Board at that date,
hour and place given in this Notice or as soon after the commencement of the
meeting covered by the Notice as the Board may conveniently meet in such closed
or executive meeting or session concerning any and all subjects and for any and all
purposes permitted by Sections 551.071, inclusive, of the Open Meetings Act,
including, but not limited to:

Section 551.071 — For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board’s attorney
on any or all subjects or matters authorized by law.

Section 551.072 — For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or
value of real property.

Section 551.073 — For the purpose of considering a negotiated contract for a
prospective gift or donation.

Section 551.074 — For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment,
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or
employee or to hear complaints or charges against a public officer or employee.

Section 551.076 - To consider the deployment, or specific occasions for
implementation, of security personnel or devices.

Section 551.084 — For the purpose of excluding a witness or witnesses from a hearing
during examination of another witness.

Section 551.087— To discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial
information that the Board has received from a business prospect that the Board seeks
or may seek to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the College and
with which the Board is conducting economic development negotiations or to
deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to such business prospect.

Should any final action, final decision, or final vote be required in the opinion of the
Board with regard to any matter considered in such closed or executive meeting or
session, then such final action, final decision, or final vote shall be at either:

A. The open meeting covered by this Notice upon the reconvening of the public
meeting, or

B. At a subsequent public meeting of the Board upon notice thereof, as the Board
shall determine.

Certification as to Posting or Giving of Notice

On this day, February 2, 2018, this notice was posted on a bulletin board located at a
place convenient to the public in the central administrative office of the San Jacinto
Community College District, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, the College’s
website, and is readily accessible to the public upon request.

Brenda Hellyer, Ed.D.



February 2, 2018

NOTICE OF MEETING
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District will meet at 7:00 p.m. on
Monday, February 5, 2018, in Room 104 of the Thomas S. Sewell District Administration
Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas.

VI.

VII.

BOARD MEETING
AGENDA

Call the Meeting to Order

Roll Call of Board Members

Invocation and Pledge to the Flags

Special Announcements, Recognitions, Introductions, and Presentations
Energy Awards Recognitions Bryan Jones

Recognition of the 2017-2018 Excellence Award and Laurel Williamson
Minnie Piper Recipients

Recognition of Tom Arrington Being Named to National Allatia Harris
Junior College Athletic Association Baseball Hall of Fame

Student Success Presentations

See to Succeed Update Van Wigginton
Distance Education Update Niki Whiteside
High School Capture Rate Update George Gonzélez
Graduation Rates and Awards Update George Gonzélez

Communications to the Board of Trustees
Hearing of Such Citizens or Groups of Citizens Desiring to be Heard Before the Board

In accordance with the San Jacinto Community College District Board of Trustees Bylaws,
located on the College’s website, a citizen desiring to appear before the Board of Trustees
shall complete the Application for Hearing before the Board of Trustees and file said
application along with any supporting information concerning the citizen's concern,
complaint or commendation, with the Executive Assistant to the Chancellor, ten (10)
minutes prior to the start of the posted meeting time. The time allotted each citizen or
organization for presentation shall be no more than five (5) minutes. The total time for
hearing of citizens shall be no more than 60 minutes at any one meeting. Presentation of
matters concerning a complaint or charge against a San Jacinto Community College
District employee or officer will be heard in closed session unless the individual who is the

subject of the change or complaint requests a public hearing. 4



VIII.

Informative Reports to the Board
A. San Jacinto College Financial Statements
a. November 2017
b. December 2017
B. San Jacinto College Foundation Financial Statements
a. November 2017
b. December 2017
C. Capital Improvement Program
D. San Jacinto College Building Committee Minutes

ACTION ITEMS

IX.

XI.

XIl.

X1,

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

XVII.

Consideration of Approval of Amendment to the 2017-2018 Budget for Restricted
Revenue and Expenses Relating to Federal and State Grants

Consideration of Approval of Membership in the Construction Careers Collaborative
for Construction of the Central Campus Welcome Center

Consideration of Approval to Grant Utility Easements
Consideration of Approval of Agreements with University of Houston — Downtown
Consideration of Approval of Policy VII.7001.A: Public Relations — Second Reading

Consideration of Approval of Policy VI1.7002.A: Alcohol Usage at Events on College
Property — Second Reading

Consideration of Approval of Policy 111.3008.A: Use of College Owned or Leased
Vehicles — First Reading (Information only)

Consideration of Approval of Policy Rescissions — First Reading (Information Only)

Consideration of Approval of Policy 1V.4003.A: Filing Vacancies — First Reading
(Information Only)

PURCHASING REQUESTS

XVIII.

Consideration of Purchasing Requests

CONSENT AGENDA

XIX.

XX.

Consent Agenda

(Any item placed on the consent agenda shall be removed and taken up as a separate matter,
if so requested by any member of the Board, otherwise all items will be voted on with one
(1) motion.)

A. Approval of the Minutes for the December 11, 2017 Board Workshop and Regular
Board Meeting

Approval of the Budget Transfers

Approval of Personnel Recommendations and Extra Service Agreements
Approval of the Affiliation Agreements

Approval of the Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting

moow

Items for Discussion/Possible Action
(Items removed from the Consent Agenda or items discussed in closed session, will be
considered at this time) 5



XXI.

Adjournment

Closed Session Authority

If, during the course of the meeting covered by this Notice, the Board should determine that
a closed or executive meeting or session of the Board should be held or is required in
relation to any items included in this Notice, then such closed or executive meeting or
session as authorized by Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas Government Code (the Open
Meetings Act) will be held by the Board at that date, hour and place given in this Notice or
as soon after the commencement of the meeting covered by the Notice as the Board may
conveniently meet in such closed or executive meeting or session concerning any and all
subjects and for any and all purposes permitted by Sections 551.071, inclusive, of the Open
Meetings Act, including, but not limited to:

Section 551.071 — For the purpose of a private consultation with the Board’s attorney on any
or all subjects or matters authorized by law.

Section 551.072 - For the purpose of discussing the purchase, exchange, lease or value of
real property.

Section 551.073 — For the purpose of considering a negotiated contract for a prospective gift
or donation.

Section 551.074 — For the purpose of considering the appointment, employment, evaluation,
reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee or to hear
complaints or charges against a public officer or employee.

Section 551.076 — To consider the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of
security personnel or devices.

Section 551.084 — For the purpose of excluding a witness or witnesses from a hearing during
examination of another witness.

Section 551.087- To discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that
the Board has received from a business prospect that the Board seeks or may seek to have
locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the College and with which the Board is
conducting economic development negotiations or to deliberate the offer of a financial or
other incentive to such business prospect.

Should any final action, final decision, or final vote be required in the opinion of the Board
with regard to any matter considered in such closed or executive meeting or session, then
such final action, final decision, or final vote shall be at either:

A. The open meeting covered by this Notice upon the reconvening of the public meeting,
or

B. At a subsequent public meeting of the Board upon notice thereof, as the Board shall
determine.

Certification as to Posting or Giving of Notice

On this day, February 2, 2018, this notice was posted on a bulletin board located at a place
convenient to the public in the central administrative office of the San Jacinto Community College
District, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, the College’s website, and is readily accessible
to the public upon request.

Brenda Hellyer, Ed.D. 6



SJCD Financials
November 2017



SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position

November 30,
Assels 2017 2016
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 64,148 287 § 58,713,608
Accounts receivable - taxes 93,277,538 01,576,708
Accounts receivahle 17,157,136 16,935 930
Deferred charges 969 829 950,358
Inventorics 363,167 443 645
Total current asseis 175,915 957 168,620,249
Noncurrent assels:
Restricted cash and cash equivalens 162.737.813 194,356,323
Capital assets, net 432.236.610 418,580,162
Todal noncurrent assets 594,974,423 612 936 485
Total assets 770,890,380 781,556,714
Deferred oumflows of resources:
Deferred outflow related to pensions 6,924,946 11,560,249
Deferred outflow related (o defeased debt 11,363 490 -
Total deferred cutflows of resources 18,288 445 11,560,249
Liabilitics
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 9,238,134 10,157,184
Accrued habilities 5,450,412 5.546.676
Agcrued compensable absences and deferred compensation 22B2.7RR 2612623
Deeferred revenues 80,736,642 BE.042.290
Total current liabilivies 106,747,976 106,358,773
Moncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability 31,890,143 29942125
Bonds and notes pavahle 480,237,769 485,744,367
Total noncurrent liabilitics 512,127,812 515686492
Total liabilities 618,875 888 622 045,265
Deferred inflows of resources -
Deferred inflow related 1o pensions 3,795.258 4.122 366
Vel assels
Beginning of year 164 328 451 166,444,720
Current vear addition 2,179,228 104,632
Total net position £ 166,507,679 § 166,949,352
1

Subject to Change - Pending Final Audit



San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Three Months Ended November 30, 2017

Consolidated -All Funds
{Mot Including Capital Improvement Program)

% Actual to % of
Actual Adjusted 831/17
Adjusted Budget {25%) Budget 11730016 Actual
REVENUES:
State Appropriations 5 49035178 5 15,811,259 3224 $ 14,746,060 20.88
Local Taxes - Maintenance & Operations 66,740,000 388372 0.58 137817 0.21
Local Taxes - Debt Service 28,583,724 358.267 1.25 176,231 (.66
Credit Tuition 46,384, 109 31,431,840 67.76 30,983,596 6798
Credit Fees 15,210,000 10,376,403 68.22 896,004 65.15
Credit Exemptions & Waivers (5.670,0000) {3.625.72T) 63.95 (3,203,798) 65.77
Bad Debt (1,800,000 {450,000) 25.00 (587.695) 43.60
Continuing Professional Development 5,041,723 1,397,033 21 1,514,900 27.48
Sales & Services 1,869,775 601,822 329 629,129 135.36
Investment Income SO0,000 571,673 114.33 235,955 62.07
Auxiliary Services 3,535,367 1178420 33.33 1,172,981 3547
Grants 59,264,747 22,091,594 37.28 20,874,558 41.15
Local Grants 2,675,632 TE6.008 29.38 1,041,822 51.77
Total 271,370,255 80,917,024 29.82 77,617,560 3000
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 71,269 2809 20,798,887 29.18 20,037,283 26,05
Public Service 5,504 655 1,533,365 27.86 1,236,031 18.84
Academic Suppon 22,507,981 5,915,473 26,28 5159817 27.42
Student Services 15,852,877 1,813,805 24.06 3493159 21.41
Institutional Support B2.730.684 15,697,712 18.97 16,802,140 27.51
Physical Plant 18,130,004 3,776,907 20.83 3617454 21.69
Scholarships and Fellowships 51.780.653 21,639,572 41.79 21,355,400 44.99
Auxiliary Enterprises 4,251,639 1,302,258 30,63 1,363,675 32.50
Depreciation 22,000,000 4.694.240 21.34 4,544 047 2464
Capital Purchases - (434.425) - 196,078) 2.74
Total 204,027 872 T8.737.796 26,78 77,512,928 2948
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:
Transfers In (4,041,220} {166.980) - (270,187) x
Transfers Out 4,041,220 166,950 - 270,187 -
Net Increase ( Decrease) in Net Position 8 (22657617 8 2179228 b 104,632




San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Three Months Ended November 30, 2017

11 Unrestricted Funds

% Actual to % of
Actual Adjusted &3117
Adijusted Budget (25%) Budget 11316 Actual
REVENLUES:
State Appropriations $ 38785178 $ 12,998,006 33.51 $ 12,200,619 3345
Local Taxes - Maintenance & Operations 06, 740,000 388,372 .58 137,817 02l
Credit Tuition 44,569,109 30,120,422 67.58 29,673,929 6H7.63
Credit Fees 15,210,000 10,376,403 68.22 9,896,004 65.15
Credit Exemptions & Waivers (5,670,000) (3,625,727) 6395 (3.203,798) 65.77
Bad Debt (1L B00,000) (450,000} 25.00 {587.695) 43.60
Continuing Professional Development 5,041,723 1,397,033 27.71 1,514,900 2748
Sales & Services 1,869,775 508,822 32.03 591,503 353.62
Investment Income 500,000 154,902 30.98 35,352 10.18
Total 165,245,785 51,958,233 31.44 50,258,631 31.37
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 67.824,176 19413155 28.62 18,764 957 26.80
Public Service 4,894,412 1,360,351 21.79 1,071,705 18.59
Academic Support 14,190,380 4,084,936 28.79 1966379 31.40
Student Services 15,186,162 3,339,532 21.99 3,138,356 07
Institutional Suppor 40,979,341 9,885 748 24.12 10,536,701 28.02
Physical Plant 18,130,004 3,776,907 2083 3,617,454 21.69
Total 161,204,565 41,860,629 25.97 41,095,552 26.19
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:
Transfers In - (#3509 - (850} -
Transfers Out 4,041,220 1 665, 80 - 252,324 -
Met Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 4 - & 9931474 £ 2911605




San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Three Months Ended November 30, 2017

Federal Restricted Funds

% Actual to % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 83117
Budget (25%) Budget 11/30/16 Actual
REVENUES:
Grants $ 54,851,671 5 20949876 38.19 § 20,026,556 42.03
Total 54,851,671 20,949 876 38.19 20,026,556 42.03
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 570,296 104,657 18.35 126,678 32.64
Public Service 264,272 44,746 16.93 56,512 26.93
Academic Suppon 65,979,146 1,500,929 21.51 849,068 20,09
Student Services 236,179 103,218 43.70 59,469 19.98
Institutional Support 967.237 211,534 21.87 229314 19.31
Scholarships and Fellowships 45,834,541 18,984 702 41.42 18,705,515 4522
Total 54 851,671 20,949 876 18,19 20,026,556 42.01
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:
Transfers In =
Transfers Out .
Met Increase (Decrease) in Net Position  § - b £ % -
4 11



State Restricted Funds

San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position

For the Three Months Ended November 30, 2017

% Actual to % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 8/31/17
Budget (25%) Budget 11730016 Actual

REVENUES:
State Paid Benefits £ 10,250,000 2,813,253 27.45 2,545 441 19.78
Grants 4,413,076 1.141,718 25.87 548,002 27.54

Total 14,663,076 3,954,971 26.97 31,393,443 21.27
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 2,793,978 1,243 845 44.52 1,129.975 17.66
Public Service 102,746 87.256 8492 fid 642 15.94
Academic Support 620,657 296,671 47.80 264,026 1483
Student Services 402,596 350,802 87.13 290,286 16.40
Institutional Support 8.478.277 82,080 11.58 917,388 2792
Scholarships and Fellowships 2,264,522 994,317 43,90 727,126 31.43

Total 14,663,076 3,954,971 26.97 3,393 443 21.27
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:
Transfers In - 4 = A E
Transfers Out - - - - -

Total A - = - -
Met Increase (Decrease) in Net Position % - - =

—_— ——
5 12



San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Three Months Ended November 30, 2017

Local Restricted Funds

% Actual 10 % of
Actual Adjusted 83117
Adjusted Budget (25%) Budget 11/30/16 Actual
REVENUES:
Local Grants § 2,675,632 § 786,068 29.38 £ 1,041,822 51.77
Total 2,675,632 786,068 29.38 1,041,822 51.77
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 80.839 36,592 4527 13,977 16.84
Public Service 243,225 41,012 16.86 43,172 23.64
Academic Support 717,798 32,939 4.59 80,344 44.25
Student Services 27.940 4,476 16.02 5,048 20.80
Institutional Support 23 680 2,508 10.59 16,116 2239
Scholarships and Fellowships 1,866,290 704,114 37.73 949,335 56.55
Total 2,959,772 821.641 21.76 1,107,992 49 86
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:
Transfers In (302.004) (42,292) - (78,643) -
Transfers Out - - - 17,863
Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position % 17,864 5 6,719 b (5,390)



San Jacinto Community College District

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position

27 Texas Public Education Grant

REVENUES:
Credit Tuition
Total
EXPENDITURES:
Scholarships and Fellowships
Total
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Met Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

For the Three Months Ended November 30, 2017

% Actual to
Adjusted Actual Adjusted

Budget {25%) Budget 11/530/16
$ 1,815,000 $ 1311418 72.25 $ 1,309,667

1,815,000 1.311 418 T2.25 1,309,667

1,815,000 056,349 52.69 073,424

1,815,000 056,349 52.69 073,424

- $§ 355,009

336243

% of
B31N7

_Actual _

77.06

77.06

46.01

46.01

14



San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Three Months Ended November 30, 2017

28 Private Gifts and Donations

% Actual to % aof
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 831717
Budget (25%) Budget 11/30/16 Actual
REVENUES:
Sales & Service § - $ 3,000 - 5 37626 12.65
Total - 3,000 - 37,626 12.65
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction - 638 - 1,696 -
Student Services - 15,777 - - .
Total - 16,415 - 1.696 -
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:
Transfers In - . - . .
Transfers Out 3 . & . i
MNet Increase (Decrease) in Net Position % 2 % (13415 £ 35930



San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Three Months Ended November 30, 2017

Auxiliary Enterprises

% Actual to % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 83117
Budget {25%) Budget 11/30/16 Actual
REVENUES:
Sales & Services b 45,000 § 17,142 38.09 b 17,929 16.60
Auxiliary Services 3,490,367 1,161,278 3327 1,155,052 3611
Total 3,535,367 1,178,420 3333 1,172,981 3547
EXPENDITURES:
MNon-Instructional Labor B08.850 198,490 24 .54 205,904 28.40
Benefits 190,526 112,632 59.12 112,705 25.46
Supplies 1,392,022 185,995 13.36 211,058 36.77
Travel 255283 107,186 41.99 72,402 13.61
Contracted Services 412,182 68,628 16.65 §9.036 31.55
Scholarships and Fellowships 1,192,226 629,327 52.79 666,064 40.83
Utilities 550 - - 6,506 -
Total 4,251,639 1,302,258 30.63 1,363,675 32.50
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:
Transfers In (716,272) {123,838) - (190,694) -
Transfers Out - - z - N
Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position  § i g 2 g .
9 16



San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Three Months Ended November 30, 2017

95 Retirement of Indebtedness

% Actual to % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 831117
Budget (25%) Budget 11/30/16 Actual
REVENUES
Investment Income ] - g 416,771 - b 200,603 607.76
Local Taxes - Debt Service 28,583,724 358.267 1.25 176,231 0.6
Total 28,583,724 775,038 - 376,834 1.41
EXPENDITURES
Institutional Support 32,282,149 4,615,842 14.30 5,102,621 2696
Toal 32,282,149 4,615,842 14.30 5,102,621 26.90
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:
Transfers In (3,022.044) - - - -
Transfers Out - - - - -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position £ (6T3481) % (3.840,804) § (4.725.787)
& - —
10 17



97 Investment in Plant

EXPENDITURES

Depreciation
Capital Purchases

Total

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

San Jacinto Community College District

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position

For the Three Months Ended November 30, 2017

% Actual 10 % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 831117
Budget {25%) Budpet 11/30/16 Actual
§ 22,000,000 5 4,694,240 21.34 £ 4544047 24.64
- (434.425) - (96.078) a
22,000,000 4,259,815 - 4,447 969 29.79
(22,000,000 § (4,259.815) 5 (4.447969)
11 18



Capital Improvement
Program

12

19



San Jacinto Community Callepe Disirict
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Three Months Ended November 30, 2017

91 Capital Projects

REVENUES:
Investment Income
Toaal
EXPENDITURES:
Bond Programs
Total

Net Increase (Decrease) in MNet Position

Adjusted Actual
Budget {25%) 1130416
5 ]
- 6,933,679 4455 847
- 5,933,679 4,455,897
5 - (6,933,679 5§ (4.455.897)

13

20



< ,

SALVIDOSSY ¥ NDSHILLIVA

LT0T ‘0€ I2qUIDAON
110d3Y] JudUISIAUY A[YIUOIA

1531100
B

OLNIDVI NVS




L1

|dd

o =sEE s P

Ak

“SlUane Jo) sdedald Of LOYS ABJS S10)5aAUl pUR AJUIBSIUN
JO 2INSESW B $193)j34 PUS JIOUS 3YL WI0JE1 XEY U0 AJUIELI30UN pue (sucijane)

Addns Aunsead) (euoiyppe Ag pajedndwod osje 513 ng Suimosd 51 Awouosa ayy
BRI OYM S12ANG [BUOIIELIAIUI PUE JSILWUOP WO umMop ainssasd 51 20ay) pua Joys
Ayl 1y anuiuod o Ajjes sy J0adxa pue UOIIE|UL INOGE PALIAIU0D JoU Aue sIaAng pua
Auo) yeyy sayedpul Surddoup pua Suo) ay) dosp saqes pus Suo) 2yl pue asu s3el pua
HOYs 3yl Iy "uoIssanal |ENUYIA) B 0] Spea] uayo ann plaid (daags ssap) Buiuaniey v

TN AU PRI A USR] ot R e B LY SRuaT] pE NERAG 5 T

LT0T 910z STO0T FIOT ET0T

Japenb Supacaud woay afueys Juadiagd dgo |eay

¥ ¥ 7 H L

‘saoud Jayd )y Jjoy uisiueosd sY00] JAYNEN yIuow 15ed SIY1 SjLIBG WO 1579 Jana
J0 ping Ajddns e Buipodad 51 3nJI5U| [043ad UBILaWY Ay} pue saoud |an) Buiuaybng
pauonsanb Asualy Aflaug jeuoiewaiu) ay) “aunssasd Japun wewal saxud 10

JuBwniie aqipald alow ayl asey o) Jeadde sanop ay) "sieal

57 15ed 3y Jo 07 UBY] SJ0W 10§ 18848) %7 5,Pad AU Buissiu UONBjUL 3403 UM ‘I5IN03
JO TUOIBJUL 34NINY [BUGIYPRE JBGWOD O} MOU SaN1y 318 Jayng Ansnl pue auadid sy
w Bupunow ase saunssaud aaud andue o) symey pad ayl uapjoquwa Aew suied uoie|ul
Jafeaws ay) Funydy-un pue AUIBLIEIUN BU) YIM UBAT TBYI|E SI3WWINSU0T pUE SSaUIsng
wo jredw) pue uopediznue anysed 3yl seaidap Asw 3 "'umop-pasziem sjeod jeuiduo
2] pUB IPELU 2UB S|EAP SB PUE JOO|IN0 JAWNSUeD pue Yismoldd ayy Apprw sayping

[l (sadueyd aued eweqo pue) (|ig xe) paledidjue syl wolj suoiendused ‘UMippe U

38'9 Ayjeay e 1e 5|

puaJl uow-zT 2yl Anf aouis Apeals Apiey uaaq aney Ing 9E°0- YIUOW 1SB| (|2 asayl
‘(saseyaind aujuo) s3|es [Ie]ad 3J05-U0U 5 UDIjUalle awos Suilad puasy Bunsasaul
auQ sajes oine ul dwnl Jig e gy giuow syl — dn Appeals aacw o] anuiuod

S3[es [|B18Y JAWNSUOD 3yl o) umop AjnyEuiueaw Jay) o 1aA SBY 1) pUE S1502 Joge| Jun
moj o asnedaq Aj@ie) yimodd o) Buipuodsas 1,Us| UOIEM] SN 841 Ul UolEw pazaanbs
05| SAEY SEASIAN0 SaFuryd AJuaund |2y o yEnoyle saue) suejd pue auosed

wioJy sem yanw yng paddod uoneyul [dd uoiepu pue yimosd au)| doj uo Juapuadap
§151Y] “uoisanb ayl s UOISSAIES [EJIUYIE] Pl B O} PEI| ||iM SAIND JE|) B JBYIaYM

“ann Fuluayie)y ayl anuiuod pue pua Buo| ay) ul saoud ayy poddns o) puag |jim
uoigeyjul Suiuayeam e pue s|josied WIBL-UOU Ul UDIEIIPOW 3] pue malA sIUL Ayyoay
PaJapISUOd AMOU S YIM0LE 31B1aP0LU WINS U] "UGIIEIS|3338 APERIS ‘SIRISPOLL SIYI

mos WIw Yy sayiy a3es oy Aaassaadde gsnd m ay Alayijun s ) aioyaiay) | ded)
yamosb moj, e ploae oy uoied;anued soge| pue JuUsWsaAUL ssaulsng Loddns (s yonygm
Adjod Auejauow e 1oy amjaalqo sy passaldea sey [|amod CAenigad w Suiels eyd pag
1x3U 3y} 3g o} paulisap sieadde ||amog SWolsf pue paulisag usjas Jeyd Yiuow siy)

‘yied siy) anuijuod o) s§00| ||amod asjuloddy “Apj2inb Jou Ing sajed asied

0] ANUINUOD 0] PR3IU 2M SPIOM 134J0 U] UDIIBNYS 1SNG-LUO0G, B PIOAE pUE 3Juejeq

£ 2)22a42 0} SYUEQ Joy ‘YIUOW SIY) PIIRIS U3 JieyD Se ‘pasu e o3|e Jng sUcIpuos
HNwouodd Sumordwn o} anp s1 1YY Jo yany agdiy saied you) plHos 3yl punode syuegq
[EJ1U32 SE UDIIEZI[ELLIOU 3181 UD PITEX|) SARY SIa%JEW SYUowW maj 1sed sy jo yaniy

S| 9AIND) 3Y3 - 1913R)4 SUL}}190) PIOM U1 S|

22

15



LMz e Lkgar

[ —
L
Wi
¥l
" Fi .

LT o0y LEQE el
| -l -
|
|
(4
Fl

OO0 TrTeLS NN 20

SN ) AN R O
OO gL ooy - L Ll

el

2 G

D OHT

- QoA

oo &

30 G

L T et o = - |

810¢ O] Y007 Sia2WnSU0’) pue SI0]SaAU|

‘pajradxa ag o) aue Aesm 3y} Suoje sdwng yInoyye

uolssaaes andy Aue sa)aq Awouoda 3yl u) Yiduaals 3y "Uo|sSalad ou INg AN
ayy uo Buuaniey Buinunuod adye pinod siosaaul syiy mau aanadas Bunuy
SIEJELL ¥I005 Ayl YIm pue siead [elanas 1sed ayl Joj aded o7 7 eyl snsian
SEE U3aq SBY S TOF U 409 "Uoilejjul [BWIou 3yl Inoyiim ing Jead ||B uaas asey
am Yimoad Juippojd mo)s awes ayl o3 syulod pue anysod S adnind (eano sy)

‘FIOT 29UIS 938J 3530 53 0) Suipunogas 51 uolanposd [BuUlsnpul -
pue ‘Suimold aie s1eys pue spwlad piesoy Buyoo| Ing pamols sey Suisnoy -
‘Buouys sue sajes Juswdinba ssausng -
‘sapenb 158 syl Jano Suodls UG IARY 53|ES OINE -
sAwouoaa ay) ssodae Juyoo

‘woseas Aepijoy ayl ul Juiod (BI04 B ‘ISIN0D JO ‘3Ue 53|85 18]3Y

‘uoiyesuadwod ul asow Fuded aq im Aayl siadojdwa Ag 2120 B 0 SPE3| YIIum
saundy uswhiojdwa Fuosls panuizuos "WOIIBHUL Ul JjNsad AJJENJUSAS pINOD JEY)
sanss| SuApapun awos SUIBLWES 3Jay ] "UOZUIOY 3] UG UOKNR|Jul JO Jeauy) |Bad
OU 51 JNS30 3] 1A31EYM 10 133443 UOZELUY 3Y1 Il (18D ‘UIYap apell Suiseasou
AUl Ul SMOUYS 1 PUR SISWNSU0D o) saseasdul aoud Juoje ssed o) ajgeun

124 se aue sawedwo? JBWNSUOD 3} 404 10U 1ng sTUILIRS 10} peq S| §o0jINo
Y |42 U1 BSEIIIUI U INOYLM ING |dd Ul 2523100 U YIm pue uappiy Juidels
WOHEU YuAy "AWOUDIE S Yl U0 JSIUNdo WIBLWA 0S| S3SSAUISNG ||BLUS JeY)
smoys Aandns (g14M) sassauisng Juapuadapu) Jo UOIRIAP3S |BUGIIEN 15318] 31|

"UOSeas
Aeprjoy syl Suipusds si0wW oJu) ajejSUBRL] pInoys eyl pue Ayjjeam asow Buljaay

SIBLUNSUOT SABY Sanjea awoy Buisy pue 1ay4ew ¥301s ayl u) sydy prodsay dn

XIPUl 22UBPYUOT By) paysnd WIOEd Xl Uo WSIWdo pue wone|ju) mo| ‘sayel
J534aIU| MO| “TeyJew Joge| pood ay| aulDap B 10 YOO|INg 5 133415 ||ep 2udsap
YIUOLW SIY] PAsEIUIUI 2IUAPILUOD JALUNSUCD "WLIOJ3U XBY 10) D UD PISNI0) mou
aJe safa (e pue Y3y sulBwas 30UIpYUod 32423 3Y] JO UolBINp 3y} Jo s53|paeday

‘syuana jenyjod-0ad pue ‘saydesFowap ‘Afojouyaa) u sadueyd snopuawal)
0} paINgLIIe 3q 0} SEY JSe3| 18 SIYY Jo Wos T Ajuo palesaae sey endes sad
409 Yimoud ay) apdsag Funuioddesip 150W a4} J0 U0 S8 UMOp OF 05| ||1M
yng (#5871 *saA) sieak 0o ul 1s28uo] puodas 3yl aq w3 Bupds au yanouyl
SANUILOD 3§l PUB SYIUOLW Q0T PAYIEas MOU SEY (242 JLWOUOIS JUSLINT 3y)

23

16




JAQE 0} SpUN4 pa- — 8N Plai (N4 - S8jey Yluopy jo pug

o€ 1£o1 145 14T 1471 oG oue spun,j pag
— — - %000

— | g:0%0

9I-0] —— + S00'T
LT-Te] ———
Lr-unp + 05T
L1-390

L szooE

A O O @ C .-~

+ 05T

— RO0'%

§ -~ oSl

*1231s SIUB|Eq Y] JO UMOP-PUIM PaJ|0JIU0I PUB MOJS B Yiim sajes Jaydiy o3 Aemuyied [enpesd Jualiind ayl wody 3133 Suneinap ol sieadde pa4 paj- ||amod v
‘parradxa s) a1y Jaquiadag v sdg £0T 03 5dq TET WO JEYD Sy} UD PIADW SBY JB3A OF pue Jeak 7 By} usamiaq poads ay)

“Aunpad
199p 2y} pue wiojal xey 104 suoneodau uo (spiaid Jamol) Jaydiy aue sanseas) -Ayjenb upaso sudiiancs 5Nyl 0 SJo3sanul anup AJulelEIun 3yl pue
UOIIEUI OU 385 S1035aAU) BUO| 3YL AJIUSLIND 2A0LW SIY] PAIENIUII0E sBY SE3JE [ed)l)jod-098 puE JWOoU0I3 Ul AJUIBLI3IUN SNOPUIWaL]} PUE SMO| JOISIY

Wiod) Buiuo] “Uoiejul moj Jo YImosd 1amols 0} asuodsal v suaddey Ajjensn siy] "§00JIN0 JWOUCI0IIEW B4} INCGE PALLIOM BJE SI0JSAAU| UOIIEDIPUI UE
AjlexdAy st aauno Jej Yy "amina ayl jo spua Joys pue uo] 3yl usamiag peasds ayl ul 51004 Jed|d Aan 1) sey aauna (daals ssaf) Bulualle)) e 104 WIBIUOI ay|

S2NUIIU0) Suluajle)d saiey

24

17



9, 0
%

%

%} E?d;‘ %%

=

%

%

%

Ylb09°TL
Wi

YT LLT'ST .}.,..f_.

jueq

%IBITET
s|eod

"'u00s uIWod Spuny Xe3 ay}
10} uejd pue saJuejeq Ysed INPaJ 0} AW 51 Y

‘SjUEq Ayl IpISIN0 I|qejieAe Isoy)
SNSI3A S31BJ YOI Y] MIIABI IsnW duohiana
pue sjisodap mau ul pajsasajuiun ulewsal syueg

'sjood ayj 1saq ||1m Jeak auo puohaq

sajey Jaded [BI243LIWOY O} 559298 UM

asoy} Joj Ajjernadsa ajqe|iene ale sanljeulalje
W3} J0YS PUB aAoW S pad ayl Yyim

dn aAOW 0} 3aNUIIUOD Salel wLa)-Joys AJaa ay |

"SUOIIPUOD 133JeL 3j13ejon 03 Isnipe Ja1laqg ued
oljojuiod payyisiaalp e asnedaq Ajunjew agesane
pa3]|0J3u0d B pue uolledo||e }asse |ewdo

10} o1jojii0d InoA smainas AjJueisuod ygd

25

18

£107 ‘0€ J9GUIAON JO SY

01)0J140d Je.lauan)




Jo
a 5 OB
NECE AP

1

|
o
%

%

%@

Y

%

%

&
o

-

%

SETFS06
Sj00d

800070
jueg

YlB85t6
Wi

‘uoos uIod spuny Xe3 ayj}
104 ueyd pue saduejeq ysed 9INPaJ 0} AW S1 3|

"sjueq ay) apisino a|qejieAe asoy}
SNSIaA $31BJ YOI 2y} MBIASJ SN 3uohiana
pue syusodap mau Ui pajsasajuiun ulewal syueg

‘sjood ay) 15aq |im Jeah auo puolaq

sajey uaded |eiouawwod o} s53328 YIm

asoy} Joj Ajjeidadsa ajqejleae ale saaljeus)je
W3] JOYS pUe aAoWw s, pad ayl yim

dn aaouw 03 anuiuod sales Wial-Joys Aaa ay|

'SUOIJIpUOD Jaylew ajliejon o} isnipe Jaylaq ued
ol|jojiod paijisianip e asnelaq Ajunjew aSesane
pa||043u0d B pue uoljedo||e Jasse |ewydo

10} o1joj110d INOA SMaIABL AjJUBISUOD YRd

26

19

£107 ‘0€ J9GWIAAON JO sY

011041104 puog




§E'L Uap oday
082 [Hd dud) wd

dv
20rs olopod

G-l - FLOSAEQLD “HEQ ury
Pl BLOZE00 :DOMS L3S (patepdn sleg
LIDZIOE/LL-L10Z/1L0fL b poliad Bujuoday

~
N

S22 385 TRiGaps 4 Quy
Ptaceaal) 7 Tal22 P A
“SHey BTSI J0 01e9UeYS a1,

.wm_tm..._‘_rﬁfﬁ__

i W e 75

o
N

“Apog Buiusaot sy o) sunsoRsip ny spinod of anopod sy jo suogeluasasdas suydesd se |jam se "podas uonaesuel e ‘pouad ay) o pus sy 10y Lodas AojuBaU) pAjEIED B Malea0 ABWWNS
JuawabeUewW B apnou) spodas ay ) “sjuaunsansul jo olojuod suogepuno pue sabajog au) uiyim Aagoe pue uogisod ay) jo vogepunogebagod Qunuwod ouRer ues ey jo Apoq Bunuasol auy) wuop
Afiny o Japao Wiy eyl Ag paanbas jou uonewuoul [Buawsddns Jayo osie spodal 8y (9577 9pen) A0 SEXS ] ) 10V JUSWGSSAU| SPUNY TGN B4} Yitvm SOUBRICODE Ul pajiLGns sue sPodas Buimopog 8yl

B  ELMS 0F'S9E'E6 ) 1834 UBLNY

B1E(Q O] JEBA |EIS|H Buipug yiuoy og Jequianop sBuiuses [2jo)

. ; A RARAH fasii it Sjuaunsaall
S66°0 3 ] %00°00L 9.L°6600889Z 9.L'660'988'9E2 9L.'660°988'922

Ore'L L L 99°GE LEEEE 8RO LLE LE'EEE'280LLE FE'BEEIR0LLE SIENIE ASUOR/EI00 JUaLNSaALY

0000 i ! oy U GEY'GGL'E SEGEI'GEL'E SYEEYBELE sunozsy Buasynyoogssed

‘ainb3 gog ey wa g Hjojuod  anjes anjes anfey sjUaISaAL|

WLA o} sheq 2% yoog 1agrew ied

FLBL XL UNsmMy

G61 2ng

JB4OW 'S LOG
SEIEDOSSY § UDSIANEM

L10Z ‘0€ Jequisnop
Aewwng ojjojuod
jyuawabBeuey oljojod
abajjon Aunwiwo ojuider ueg

FILYIINEEY § WOTWILLYL



SEL WA wadiy
02418 Jud) 1S
oy

207's ojoog

9bLBL KL unsny

GEL SUng
JB4ON 'S LOG

IRl - BLOZROVLD Jae0 uny

28

—
N

b 5660 00001 9.'660'988'922 9.'660'988'9ZZ 52 sbelany pue [£10)

b 920 ra:T4 Z698Z'arl v Z6°902'8FL 'Y S |EjoIgng

3 BLO'L SE'EE L0 LBS'BYE'FS LU IBSSrE PE 9 SIAYIEW ABUOPSIO0 JUSWISSAU|

L 000 A SHEEYEEL'E CH'BEYBELG & sjunoaoy BupoaynMoocgssed
Ol|0jH0d pRlepljosun] pung

3 L0l ELLL FRZIBLEL'TOL FRZLLELZ9N (13 |Eiogqng

3 FAINY ELLL PRZLELEL'ZOL PEEIELELZOL oL SIB BN ABUOISIC0 IUSLISEAU|

spung puog pung
Ay o} S9E WLA U0 anjes yoog n__.__ﬂ.} L3 LEERTRE S EATT] adA ] Aunaag
sheg abesaay  abesoay FLETS Ied JO JaquuIn g

SAENOESY § uOsIaley

pund Aq padnoig
L10Z ‘0€ J9qUIBAON
adA] Aq Arewwing
abajjo9 Aunwiwon ojulder ues

FILVIIDEEY § NOR¥ILIVY



S8 ap poday
BEvL - RLOTED LD “BIE] Ny

VL4 ddd) 1
dy
Jars vlisjuod
o
I3\
N

[ et ZEDL FEZLELELZOL FEZLELELTOL FETLRLLLZON afesany pue SIUBLISBAL) [E10L N
I LF0E ZED'E FRZLELEL'ZOL PEELE'LELZOL FEZLELELZOL afiwiany pue Eiolgng
I OF0e SEO'L Or0°L ¥ 0EE 908 ¥ 0EES0E FLOEE 908 GOOE/0ELLO BAMBG 1980 - 0D dIST S0L0L 91 BE0E6EGE
I Op'E G201 oL B9060'BLE'GEL GBI 0B0'BLE'GEL B0ELBLEGEL BLOZIOEHD Spaaddld pucg 9L0E - 409D 4157 SEZ0L BLECHEEGEE
b 0L SEO'L 00’1 S8 FER'006'L S8 PER'096°L FRPEET0BE'L SLOZ/SOVED Spee0ld pucd GLOEZ - 09 dIST FEZOL L LBEBBEE6E
I ore SEOL oL LE'ZE0'098°S LE'Z50098'S LE250°098'G BO0ZIE00E Spae0ld pucH B00Z - 30D dIET FE00L GEEEEEEGE
I OLL'L FE0L oLE ZZ'EOY'GRE'R ZTEOT'SEE'E LT EDVGEE'R PLOZ/BE0 BHABE 1030 I 158A 1583 ZETOL 000208
i OLLE el L AR 2R LT T00'S SRLST P00’ ZRLSSPO0'G SLOZMOOVED SPp@aEd0id PUSE S1 N 15EM, 15ET £EZOL EevioEL 98
I OLEE vG0L oiLL LUEEE L00'E LVEZE 100 LLUEZELO0'Z FLOZIB0G0 Sp2E0id Puod S0 N 158 1583 LEZOL PELO00TL-98
I OLLE wE0L oL oo 0oa (AR FLOZIB0ED FHAES 1030 SD| 1536 1583 G201 PRENNX
I DLE'E yalL DLV 000 00'a 00a ¥ LOZIBOVED SPRR0I PUOg BO S 1SeM SRS #2201 FELKNK
] Lo Lo L'Q LOOZISOREL NG 193] - Wl 001 LLEOPERDL

S)aNIE ABUON/S|00d JUaLI)sanu|
fumey seg S9E 03E ey N A JONIRN anjep Jeg anjep, yoog aleg Janss| # WaLsaAU] dIsnd
o) sfeg Aumey  WLA WLA WBLINT BEEYIN

L10Z ‘0€ 12quisAoN

= pund Ag sjuaw}saau|
OpiRL XL unsmy spund puog - gNO8 pung

GGl =ung
JEJON 'S LOB abajjon Aunwwo ojuider ues

SE|E00ssy § UosIaled

BILYIIOEEY § NOFYALLVL



ST 4 Loday

BEFL - BLOZ/ENILD “BIBE uny

z abed

pung Aq sjuawjysanu|

oljojliod pejepljosuo) - N3O pund

VLl ) 14
d¥
2005 anopiag
o
™
! FPIED  ZSEO TEORT ALY TEORZAYL'YY TEIRZAFL Y afieloay pue sjuaLsasu| (0L
13 BLHO'L S00°L L0V LIRS BYE'FS LIV LIRS BYE'FS LIRS BFE WS abeiony pue [eloqng
L 0s0°L SEQ'E S0E LEOGE0LD'S 15EER'0L0'S LS SE20L0°S LO0ZIOE0 o0 2001 LEEGEEEEE
b 0se'0 SPED 06e°0 A A BEZLL0rE BEZLL0PE LO0ZISEI60 iRy Asuoi - 901 BEOOL SEEGEEE66
I 0LE'D 9820 QLEQ SEPSE DS LT LA RS CEPSZ 2005 LO0Z/VOED 1SR Aauap - Wdr SE00L OZEGSLL0L
L orirl SE0'L oro' L LUESD POF'E LU ESD BOF'E s L0021 0/E0 Bunessdg - 409 IS FEOOL LEEEEEEEE
L oLkl FEO'L [iTHA L2092 069°0p EE 092 068°0p T8 09069 0F YLOZE0MG0 I 153, 1sE3 OEZ0L DLB00ZL 98 O
L oLl PEOL oLk 000 oo o0 FLOZIG0MG0 SO0 15980 1583 LETON OhExy
sjaqel Aauopys|oo JUaljSaaU|
3 - 0000 0000 mm,wau.mmﬁm SH'E60°66L'E SHEE9GEL'E abesaay pue [El0MgNg
1 GHGOE GHGOE'2- GEGOEE- LLOEN0IG0 dwa7) §UBLLNIONN - Pidl £01L01 LOEBSLLOL
k 000 00 00 LLOZI OG0 BUWIGIU| pRUBR0 uepMS LEL0L ERE65LL0L
b O0EEE'0F O0°EEE'0E DO'EEZ 02 LIOZTLOED yseD Aned BH001 £ G66E6E66
L FLLES L FLLEE LS PLLED L9 LVOENLOIG0 puny joufed GRO0L SPEGSLLDL
L 0 LE6'8L 0L 0 LREBVL 0L EO0°LBE'BTLOL LVOZNLOIED Bupresds - Wdl 29008 SEEBGLLO0L
| 000 000 000 LL0ESLOIBO swesbiold |EDpad - Wdl GO00L GEEEGLL0L
I SOZLE'ETE" SOZLE'ETE" GOZLEET6" LR T SJUBWIFSINGSH] ag00L Z900FES0L
! FEGHE LT BEGHE LT BEGOE LT LLDZILOMG0 HSUBLL U - SPUED NPT GHO0L ¥ L BEBEEEEE
1 6 096'E 6 096'E BO99E'E LLOZILOMG0 Gunesad( - EusWY JO yuEg PALOL WEELTLO0BEL
sjunoaoy Buiysaygmoogssed
Aunjepy a1eq S9g 09€ aley an[es 1eYIeN anjep, Jed an(es Yooy aeg Hanss)| # WS disnD
of sheq Amamep WLA WLA AN aseyMng
L10Z '0€ 1equiaAoN



CE ' e Loday

OELI 4ud) 3 Bl - FLOTRONL0 Jeq uny
dv
20Mg oo
—
[32]

OFS9E'E6L o0o'o OFS9E'EGE 800 99°Z99°E9EPIT EFRLLLBEOEZ 06'66E0B0"LLE L4118
BO°Z0F' LS oo GOZOF' LS S80°0 0C"LOE'PLE'DS ZO0°SL5 SRS LU L85 'BYE'YS Egng
LGS0 LE oo'o LS50 LE Le00 0Ll SEOOL PEe O PLZIET 05T ZE'092' 0650t did N3D QEZ0L 01L800Z.L-98
BE'GER L] gEGER oLl 000 QL EOP LEEOF 00o diH NID LEzol QLS
LBZrEL ooo [3:4A o80'0 arde OL9LL L0 L EEETE'LOE'L LUES'FOF'E did N3D FEODE EGOGEGGEE
SLBOLL 00 GL80L'L 2200 0L2'0 9281 L00'G O5SkLL0D'S ST ST E00'S ddy NID SEQOL QZEEGLL0L
ET'GB oo £2'69 BE0D 0SED S0'0va'OrE GLUEPSOYZ BEELLOrE ey N30 BEODL QEEEEEE66
LS'969'01 000 LS '9689'0L 980'0 L50°1 EE'Z0A'9LY'ZL & 0P L' PBE'RL LS 969 010°S ddH N3D ZE001 VEBE06HEE

IO PRIERIOSUCD (pUny
LEEOE'LRE 000 LE'E96' LY 980°0 AE'SSE'6FL'FOL HEDZ 905591 ERZIELELZOL [Eogng N
08 1pS'021 o0 08 LeS'0ztE 2800 oF0 L FESEY ZEEORL 95 SOLBER L 690G BIZBEL il aNo8 SEZ0L BLEEEEEEEE
BSLEE'L 000 B4 18E'L 9e0'0 Ol L EVSEBZEL'E SE'REZ00FE BE WE 006 L didd aMosa FEZOL LI GEBGEEEG
2H LGSy 000 28105 LE0'0 oLt 0Z'Z0¢'000°G EE WS ¥00°S 2R LGS0 duy aMo8 EEZOL EFErO0ZL-98
SE9ED L 000 9€°9E9'L Le00 oL B ZLRLIEE PLETEE0GE ZEEBF SEER deld aMo8 ZETOL FEE000LL-98
LEEZRE 000 LEEZR'L Le0"0 oLL'L EE'B5L000°E PLEZEE0GE LUEZRLOD'E ddd aND8 LETOL FELO00ZL-98
Z8°941 000 £8°881L oLl 0o 05'gi6's2ZL8 o0 duy aMoa GZZ0L PR
FESE (hil] FEGE oLl 000 TLOELLEL L 000 didd aNog BEZ0L FELICAK
vazag 0oo FEEOE 980°0 00l S0°9£0°90E E0E06'00E FL0EE90E dyy aMoa S0L0L 9| BEEBEEEE
FY LGOS 000 ¥V LGOS 4800 0wl GOECE 688’ EFRLO0PEE'S LEESO098'S dudd anNOd Fe00L GEGEEHEGE

spung puog :pung

sBunuey Uy pawey PO aey aeg anjes yoog anjeps yoog anjes Jed adA) pung # Wawlsaau| dISNg
IS paSnlpY  [UoNEZILOWY Isasau) S|yl plags waung Aumey  abesoay Bujuubag Gujpug Aijanzag

bLeL XL
SE1 ang
JBJON 'S

sBunwey jsasopu) pasnipy

‘ulsHy

LOE

SOIERNOSSY § uosiaped

anjep yoog abelaAy uo pjaiA pouad
LLOZ '0€ JaquianoN - L10Z ‘) JaquisAop
pung - pung Aq psyog

sBuiuie] ysaiaguj
abajjon Aunwwon ojulder uesg

FILYIJOESEY § AOFNALLYd



SAN JACINTO

& COLLEGE

Your Goals. Your College.

Quarterly Investment Report
August 31, 2017 — November 30, 2017

32




Ll

Idd A [

QON-LEC I #Mha

TEJlaAD 10) SiBdaid OF JOUS ABLS SI0159AUI pUE AJUIBIIa0UNn
10 SUNSESW B 5103))3J pUd LOYS 3y ] LWI0jal KB ud AJUIBLISIUN pue [suonane)

Mddns Adnseas] |euoippe AQ pajeddwod osje si 3 ing Suimodd 5 Awouods ay)
A3 OYM SI3ANG [BUOIBUISIU] PUE JI53W0P WD) uMop aunssald s1 218yl pua Joys
Y} Y "INUIUOD 0] Aj|Bd 3Y) 1adxs pue UGIIE(jU) INDYE PALIAIU0D 10U 31e Si3hng pua
Huo] jey) sajepu) Suiddosp pua Buo| ay) "doJp 9181 pua Buo| 2y} pUB 351 S3JEI PUS
HOYs 3yl Iy "uISSa0ad [BNUYIS] B O) SPES| uayo aaund plaiA (daags ssa)) Bulualie)) v

| o peamprnpesmennsy 7oE'E O PESIAGY 409D ED

FRAUy DpLOUGI] 0 NSy 5

LT0T a0z 50T iz ETOT

Jayenb Bupadasd wouy afueys Juaniag :4go (eay

M R T M P v e P

vl

saaud Jaydy soy Buisiwouad syoo| Jayuan Yuow jsed Sy} S2LIEG UDIjjIW T5'g JaA0
Jo pling Ajddns e Buiuodal s angisuy| joalad UBILBWY 3y pue saaud jang Buiuaiybi
pauonsanb Asuaiy Afsaug euoneuwsagul ay] aunssaud sapun wiewas saaud o

‘JuBWndle JQIpala aow Syl asey o} Jeadde sanop ay) ‘sieal

57 1sed 2y} Jo 07 uey) suow 1o 1281e) %7 5, P4 a4l Fussiu OB 400 Yim ‘B5Ino
40 TUDIIE|JUI 3UNNY [EUOIIPPE JEQLUOD 0 MOU S331Y 31ed Jayuing Aasnl pue aujadid ay)
ul Bununow ase saunssasd 2o1ed andie o) syMEY pad 3yl uIp|oqUa ABw suled uoneju
Jadeaw ayy ‘Bunydiy-ul pue AJUIELIZOUN 3y 1M USAT "BYI|E SJAWNSUCT pUB S5auIsng
uo pedwi pue uonedioue anysod ayl asealsap Aew 1 ‘umop-pasalem sjeold [euiduo
@Y} puUE BPEW 2JE 5|EIP S8 PUE JOO[IND JIWNsUod pue Yimodd syl Appnuw sayuny

|1 (saFueyD aue] eweqD pue) ||iq xel paiediziue 3y} wodj suoneadwoed ‘uslippe uj

‘%89 Ayyjeay e e s

U@ Jluow-zT ay] "An[ aouis Apeays Ajie) uasg 3ARY ING 94570 YIUOoW 15| ||9y asayL
‘(saseyaund auijuo) S3|ES IB]2) 240]5-UOU 51 UDIIUAYIE awos Suiyiad puasy Bugsasaiu)
augQ ‘sajes oyne ul dwnl Jig e Y guow siyy — dn Ajpeals aAcw o) anuijuod

S3es [lelay CIBWNSUOD Syl 01 umop Ajnjduiuea Ja1)ly o] 184 Sey J pUB S350 JogE| JUn
mo| jo asnesaq Apdle| yimoesd o) Buipuodsal 1,us| UONERU] SN Byl ) uolegul pazaanbs
o%|e aaey seassano sadueys Aauaund @ po yanoylje sasey auejd pue aujjosed

Wwody sem yanw jng paddod uoneyul |dd uopeyuy pue yimodd au)| doy uo Juaspuadap
SISIYL Cuonsanb 3yl $1 oSS [EUYDI] Pl B O] PEI] [[IM 3AIND JBY B IBUIBYM

‘andnd Juiuagie)y 3yl anuiuos pue pua Juo) ay) vl sasud ayl poddns o3 puay |Im
i uoneyul Juiuayeam e pue sj|oJAed WIB-UOU U] UDIIBIBPOLW U] PUB mMala siyl Ayyoey
PRIBPISUOD MOU 51 YIMOUE B1BIAPOW "WNS U] "UOIIEIR]R208 APER]S 'SIRISPOW SIY)

Mo|s YR Yaym sayly aies 1oy ManssaadEe ysnd [pm ay AEyijun si 3 aiojaiay) | cdoag
Yrmoub may, e ploae o uoljedizyed Joge| pue JUSWISAAU| S5aUISNG Joddns [jIm yaym
Azjjod Aejauow e a0y aniaalgo sy passasdya sey [amogd CAdenigad u) Jujuels Jeyd pad
Jau ay) 8q 0] pauljsap sieadde [[amod awosar pue paudisal ua|@a JIeyD Yiuow sy

‘Yied siyl anuuod 0] sy00) [|amogd aayuoddy Apainb Jou 1ng S318 351Ed

0} BNUIIUOD O] paau am SPJOM JAYL0 U], UDIJENYIS JSNG-LUGOY, B PICAE PUE 3IUE|EQ

E 218343 0] SYUBQ 10 YIUoLW SIYL PALELS U334 JIBYD SE ‘PaaU & 05| ING SUCIIPUCD
Jwouoda Junoadw) o anp si 31U 40 yany 1ayBiy S31ed Yau) plaom SUl pUNOIE SYUEG
[EJJUED SE UGIIEZ||BULIOU B1E1 UD PRYEXY SARY S13%JELU SYIUOW M3y 1sed ayl Jo yaniy

S| 9AIND 3y} - 193314 SUL1ID9 PIOM 33 S|

33

26



Fittd= LLEE T Ak Y LENT uw

L DN TrRAL e 51

g a3

bl ]
D0

Fa \ et 0

o S0 Bew

[heainies pooy BURRE]) IS0 PRI RISy

810 0] Y007 SisaWwnsSu0’) pue SI0)SaAU|

e g

‘pajradia aq o) aue Aes ayl Fuoje sdwng ySnoyye

uoIssaIa) ANy} Aue saljaq Awouoda 3y u) Yiduaa)s ayj uo|ssadal ou Jng and
ay} uo Juuaiie)) Suinunuod Padyke pinod siojsaau) sydiy mau anjiadad Sunuy
SIENJELL Y2015 YT YIM pue siead [esanas 15ed Byl Jo) aoed 97 TF AUl SNSIaA
ETE U2aQ SBY LTOT W 0D "UOIBYU [BULIOU 3] IN0YNM NG JB3A |B U33S 3ney
am yianosd Buippod mops awes ay) o) siued pue anysod 5| auniad jesEao ay)

"FTOT 2Iuis 338 3153 531 03 Juipunogas st uonanposd jelIsnpul -
pue ‘Bumosd ale spels pue sywiad presucy Suyoo] Ing pamos sey Juisnoy -
‘Buouys aue sajes Juawdinba ssauisndg -
‘rapenb 15e) syl Jann FUouls U ALY SI|ES OJNE -
‘Awouoda ayy ssosoe Buixoo]

uoseas Aepijoy 3yl ul yuiod (230} B ISIN0D JO ‘218 S3|eS ||B1aY

‘uonesuadwod w asow Juifed aq | Aay) siadopdwa Aq jaijag e 0 SPES| yaym
saundly Juawiojdws Juoys PANUIUOI ‘UOIEU UL JNsas AjENIUaAS PINod B3
sanss FulApIapun oS SUIBWE 3131 "UOZIIOY U U0 UOITEYUI JO JBaIY] [Ead
OU I JNSad 3y} IBASIBYM 10 13343 UOZewWy 3y} J ||eD Nayap aped) Bujsealou
3] Ul SAMOUS J pUB SISWNSUD 0} saseanu) aaud Suoje ssed o) ajqeun

124 se aue sauedwo] “ISWNSUod 3yl Jo) 1ou Ing s3uiuies Jo) peq s §oopno

UYL |40 Ul BSEIUIUI UR INOYLM ING |dd Ul ISEIIIU| UR LM pUB uapply Sulhes
UOIEU YUA "AWIouoDa g 3yl uo J05IWdo uiew@) 05|e Sa55aUISNG ((BwWs 18Y)
SMOYS Aanans (gldn) sessausng Juapuadapu] JO UCBISpaY [BUOIEN J5218] au)

‘unseas

Agpijoy 51y Suipuads 210w oJUl YB|SUBT] PINOYS 1Y) pue Ayljeass aiow Buijaay
SIBLUNSUOT BABY 53N|BA SLWOY JuISL pue JaxJew ¥3015 3yl Ul sysiy paoday -dn
AIPUI BIUIPLLEOD BY] paysnd W0l Xel uo WWdo pue uoieul mo| ‘sales
158431u1 MO ‘J@yJEW Joge| pood 3yY) "IUIIap B 10) YOO|INO 513305 ||Ba andsap
YILEOW 5141 PASEIIU S0USPUCD JSWNSUDT "WI0a) KB J0Y T U0 PasNogy mou
e 53Aa3 ||B pue yHiy SuIBLWE) 30UIPLUOT 31343 3y JO UOLBIND ay) JO ssajpieday

sjuana enpod-0ad pue “syydesdowap ‘Afojouyrzl ul saBueys snopuausall
o} painguUIle aq o] Sey 1583 1. 51yl Jo awog e'T Ajuo paliesane sey eyded sad
da15 Ymoud ayy aydsag Sunuioddesip 150w ay) jo auo se umop oF os|e |Im
Wang “(f581 ‘sah) siead 09T i 35a8u0| puooas ayl 3q | 3 Fuuds Jxeu yEnosy)
SANUIIUOI 1 ) PUB SYIUOLW 00T PAYIead mou Sey 31242 WOU0I3 JUaLIN ayL

34

27



1AQE 0} spUn pa- — 8N PlaiA [In+ - S8jey Yjuow jo pu3

IA0E 1401 145 I8z 141 oLy oweE spun, paq
2 | 000
_
_. %050
_
_
QT-03(] —— - + w007 }
Lr-1epy u
=]
Lr-ung L g081 5
L1-330) i
— Loe00'E g
d
|
.* 0% T
i |
ﬂ woot
S L 905€

"123Ys IJUE|Eq JY] JO UMOD-PUIM PaJ|0JIu0d PUB MOJS B Ylim s3led Jaydiy o1 Aemyled |enpesd Juaiind ayl wody apy| Sunenap o] sieadde paqd paj- ||amogd v
‘paidadya si ayiy Jaqwiadag v 'sdg £0T 01 sdq TET WoJj LEyD SIY) U0 ParoLL S8y Jead Of pue Jeah 7 ay) uaamlaq poauds ay|

“duzo

199p 3y} pue wiojal xXey 104 suoiiellodau uo (spiaid Jamo)) Jaydly aJe saunseal) -Aujenb Jipaso suBiasanos s ayl 03 S103sanul aaup AJUIELIR0UN 3y) pue
UOI3E|jUI OU 835 51035anul Buo| 3y AjJUSLINI 30w SIY] PRIENIUAIZE sey sease [ed)jod-0a8 pue JjWwouoda Ul AJUIBHI3IUN SNOPUaW3I} PUB SMO| 210351y
Wiogj BuWo] “UoIE|Ul MO| JO Yimold Jamols 0} asuodsal ul suaddey Ajjensn siy] “HOOINe JWOUCIZ0IIEW 3Y} INCYE PALLIOM 3IE SI0JSIAUI UOIIEJIPUI UE
AjleaidAy st aauno 3y "aand ayl jo spua Joys pue Buo| syl uaamiag peasds ayl ul 51004 Jea| Auan sy sey anana (daals ssa() Sulualie)y e 10) ulaIUEI ay|

sanu1luo) Sulualle) saiey

35

28



1atnsi adaqio) oy Ag papiacad indut fruomippe Y ‘wodal JusunsaAUT pajepI[osuod sy jo uoneredaid Sy UL PIISISSE SEY SHDIIOSSY P HOSIAND]
“LpuowW o) yiuow woyy spuny 3331102 3y jo sumipuadxs pue 1diasar sy 199y Ajuewnd [jis Ing ‘ejep pannbal st anpe 9qmRy Ul 2SuRyD), 7

Aumew s3eraae paySom — VM [

SADIPOISY B UOSIIDY osic] afapjon ouoef ueg
QDS ‘I0SIADY JUSWISIAU] ‘UOSIONE "L BPULT) $90IAI9G [RIOURUL] Pue SUNUNCODY ‘LOSINOIC “H WEIIIM

7707, Nﬁu«m\\ 3/ ljwu\?) A

%0LZT Ppomad 1oj [ig Linseaa], eq-081 PRIA 93esaay

% L66°0 popiad Jof HUmER 03 PRIA d8eiaay
(SrR'8Ls'1D) & LAO[EA IR Ul dueyn (SMOYfine yeod [pROSDas 0] INP 51 aNjDA [PRTW W 2T03193¢])
Aep | [91e(] pouRg Sutpud 1 NV M Kep | (2ie] pouad Juruuidag 18 WY M
0 $ SSOJ/Ures) pazieaIuf)
3 VA pomad ai 10§ AWI0U] WUAUISIAU]
001'988'92Z $ anfe ey Jurpug SHE'YOr'SrT § anfeA 1jrepy Fuuidag
001'988'92Z $ an[eA oo Suipuy SP6'vOr'8rT § anjep yoog SuuuiSag

Jo se oljoplog

"(3poD wawuIRA0L) seXa, ‘9577 1aidey)) 10 JusunsaAu]
Spun. Jqnd Y pue Jowsi 941 Jo AFazeng pue Lo1jo4 JusumnsaAu] ayl yrm souerfduios ur paredaid st podar Kppayrenb sy,

j1oday JuswaSeue]y A1eunung oijojjao
L10T "0€ 1qUIDAON — LTQT ‘1€ 18080y

woday Jusunssau] Apsweng)
1014151(] 232]]0) OIUIIDf UDS .

36

29



fa
\nw SF S Fb
S W P

&

&

%

% & G

%

&
%,
2 %

[+
2,

Selb09'TL
Wi

WTLLTST T~

jueg

%WIBITET
Sood

‘u00s SuIwod spuny xel ay}
10} uejd pue sajuejeq Ysed 3INPas 03 3wl st 3|

"sjueq ay) apisino a|qe|ieAe asoL}
SNSIaA S2)BJ YDIJ 3y} malnad Jsnw auohiana
pue susodap mau Ui pajsasajuiun ulewal syueg

‘sjood ay3 315aq [|im Jeah auo puoiag

sajey uaded |el2uaWIWOD 0] $53208 YUM

as0y) Joy Ajjeidadsa a|ge|ieAe ale saAljeula)je
W3]} HOYS pue aAoW s,pad ayl yum

dn aAoW 0} anuIUOD Salel Wual-Joys Asaa ay |

"SU0I3IPUOD Jjiew 3)i3ejoA 0} isnipe Ja13aq ued
oljojiiod payisiaalp e asnedaq Ajunjew adesane
paj|0Jlu0d e pue uollelo||e jasse |ewydo

10} o1j0j340d Inok smalaal AjJuelsuod yigd

£10TZ ‘0€ 49qWIAON JO Sy

01]0J110d Je.Jauan

37

30




fo
TR S TR
fa L S ] G
WS S
4 0
_.Oau
)
o A,
&
e Ay
W
§$
- %Ar_
| &P *u00s SuIWod spuny xe} ayy

SRETRS 06
siond

Y900070
Hueg
V18586
W

10} ue|d pue sajuejeq Ysed adnpal o} awy si 3|

"Syjueq ay} apisino ajqejiese asoy}
SNSIaA S3)BJ YD J Y MaIASJ Isnw auohiana
pue sysodap mau ul pajsasajuiun ulewal syueg

'sjood ay3 1saq ||im Jeah auo puokaq

sajey Jaded |eliaWWIOD 0F SS302B YUM

asoy} Joj Ajjeadsa ajqe|ieae aie sanljeuIR)|e
W3] LoYs pue aAow s,pa4 ayl yum

dn 2A0LL 0} 2NUIIUOD S3)eS WI}-1oYs Alan Byl

"SUOI}IPUOI }ayJew a|i3e|joa o0} Isnipe Janiaq ued
oljojy0d payisianip e asnedaq Ajunjew aSelane
pa||0J3u03 e pue uoijedo|je }asse jewiydo

10} oljoj3od Jnok smainaa AjJuelsuod ygd

38

31

£10Z ‘0€ J9qUWISAON JO SY

0110J140d puog




SR A peday
OEL (Lind” Jxd) g

df
20rs vopod

Sirk - BLOZEWL0 980 Uy
FFivL BLOZ/E0/L0 (DOrS 138 (patepdn E18g
LLOZIOE/LL-LLOZ/LOL L pouad Bujpodey

(o]
™

Fanve s = I 4
e bvrprnass 27 waza v g
VesvrIAIIQ. P weim M
SIBYY-{E9SI4HO-IOHBILEYT S0IA,

diez]al |ig ]iﬂﬁ\\.\@mx}tﬂww\va

™
“Apoq Buluseact ey o) unsopSIp I spuosd o) oljopiod By jo suohejuasaudal ydesh se e se ‘Lodel uonaesURN B “pouad Byl Jo pua By Joy Wodad AIojUBALl PEJIEIBD B 'MBIAEA0 AIBWLILLINS

juswabeuew B apniaul spodad ay) Sluswsaaul jo Geued s UoHEpUNG 4 pue s abajos sy wyim Agoe pue uopsod Syl jo uonepURCJEBaI0T AIUNWWOD CIUIDEr UBS ay) o Apog Buiusaod sy wiogu)
Ary o Japeo e Aq pasinbad jou uop Euucul (Ejuswaiddns Jayo osje spodas y) (95ZZ BPOD A0S SEXE L) 10y JUBWISEAL| SPUNL JNqNd 8y ()M SJUEMJOIOR Ul pAIWgNs aue spodal Bumwoyoy auy |

- B eL LY LS or's9EEsL 129, W1ing
ajeq o) Jeaj |E9SI4 Bujpu3 yuop (f JoqueAcy sBujuiey |gjo)
SJUBLUISAAL
Se6"0 b L %00°00L 9/'660°988'9ZZ 91°660'088'922 9. 660'988'92T
0¥l b b BOGE LE'BEE IR0 LLE LE'BBE" IR0 LLE VEEBEOR0 LT SIOIB ABUOISIC0 IUsSanL|
000'g | L ZEP S8'BE9'BEL6 SRGEDEEL'6 G8'GBO'GELG Suneasy Buigseynoogssed
“wnb3 gog Aunew wisa g oflojuod  anjep anjep SNEA SIUBWISaAU|
WLA o) sheg % ¥oog Tan ey ed
L10Z ‘0€ J9qUISAON
) Aewwng oljojuod
9pLL XL 'unsny juswabeueyy oljojuod
SEL aung
IRH0M S LOG mmm___n_u h.u.__.._:EEQU ojulder ueg

SB|RII0SSY ¥ UOSIBNE

FILYVIIOEEY § MEFNALLYL



COEL A MOdE

0218 JHd) 15

dv

20rs Mofiod

UL - FLOZEN0 0 uny

40

33

k S66°0 oo'ooL 9.'660'088'0ZZ 9.'660'988'9Z T4 abiesony pue |ejoL

b Fag0 LZ'8T LA ] ZEOREAYL'¥I 118 [e0Igns

L BLO0°L SEHEE L LS BrE'PS LOTLRSBYE' WS g SIHIEW ABUCHSICD IUBWISaA|

b 0000 ZE'r SH'669'66L G SHE69 6626 6 gunoasy BuneayDmoogssed
01|0jU0 4 PRIER)|OSUOT) (pund

b Lv0k ELML FRZIELELTOL PEEIRLELESE ol lewigng

L il ELLE FRELELELTOL FRELELEL EOL al siEIEy ASUoPE|00 USWISan|

spund puog :pund
Alamey o] S9E WLA I anpep, yoog SN SIUIUERAU] adA] Ajundeg
sheq abesaay  abesony o g }0 JaquInp

pung Aq padnouig
LL0Z '0E JaquianoN
adA] Agq Auewwng
abajjon Ajunwwon ojuider ues

OfLBL WL unsny

GHL aung

A0 S LOG
SEIRRDOSSY § Uosianed

FILVIIOEEY §@ NOFNALIVL



§ €L iep wotey
BE L - BLOZAEQILY “MEQ UMy

VL i ) 14

dy

J0rS ologiod

—
<

13 i a8 ZEO'L PRZIBLELZOL PRZIBLELZIL PRZIBLEL IO sbelany pue sjuawsasu] [B10] M
3 vl ZE0°L FRZLELEL'ZOL FRZLELELZOL FRZLELELZIL afiesany pue |E101QNg

! 0rQ'L GEO'L or0°L FLOECa0E FLOEES0E FLOEE"I0E BOOZICELLD FNMBG 1980 - 40D dIST S0L0L ILBEEGEEGE
L ool SEO'L oFlL G9°069'2LE'GEL GI060°ALE'GEL G DENELEGEL SL0ZN0EPD SpIFN0I pued 9L0Z - 40D JIST SEZOL 2L EEEEE6EE
I orl'i G201 Op0'L SR PER096'L FEPEE'096'L BEPER096 L SLOZISBD Spaadllg pucq SLOE - 409 dIET FEZOL L L BEEEGEGE
L o0l SE0'E OrlL LG ES0098'S LE2G0'098'S LB'ZS0'088S S00Z/2004 EpEadild pucg BOOE - 40D dIBT a0k GEEE660GE
I OkL'E FEOE OLL'L ZLESP'SEE'R ZEEOR'SEE'R LT EOpSRE'E PLOZIG00G0 SANEE 1020 N 1590 158 ZETOL FRI000ZL-98
I OLes PEOL oL SR LGS P00'S ER LG PO0'S 28255 v00°S SLOZ/S0IB0 SpERdtid putg S1 WNIN 15804 1583 EEZ0L CrEFDOTL-98
I oLkl ¥EO'L oLLL LUESE LOD'E LUEZR'L00'Z LLEZE'LOD'E FLOZIE06E0 SpaE00id Pudg S0 WIN 1538 1583 LEZOL FELOO0ZL-98
I OLL'R FE0°L oL 000 000 000 FLOZ/BOIG0 MBS 193] SDI 1S3 1583 G201 FRENNK
| OLL'E 0L 0Lk 00a 0o 000 bLOZ/BONG0 Sp@EI0g puog g0 501 1598 1583 BE20L EL 3N
I Lo Lo o LO0ZISOEL SFNAZG 193] - Wdl FA00L LLE0PEROL

E193IE N ABUO RSO0 JUBLIISBAL]
Auniew |eQq S9E Dot ey anjes 1aiew anjes Jed anjes yoog aleg 12nss| # aunsaal) dISnd
o] sAeq Auamepy  WLA WLA LNy BEEYIN
L1L0Z ‘0€ JaquisAoN

pun4 Aq sjuawysaau|
Spung puog - gNOd9 pung
absjjon AJlunwwon ojuider ueg

GRLEL XL unsny

CEL 8ng

QB0 'S LO6
SEBIDOSSY § UoSIaNEd

B3ILYVIINEEY @ NOINILIVL



ST L e poday

7 abey

L102 '0g Jaquisnon
pung Aq sjuswisaau|

Oljojjiod pajepljosuo) - N3O pund

1L 1™ ) 14 BEFL - BLOZEN L0 (RIB0 Uy
dv
DS oNofued
9

I Fog'0 580 TGOBT'BVL'YY TE9RT'BYL'FD ZTE9RZBYL'YE afigsany PUE SIUDWISAA| [B1DL
i GLHO'L S00°) L0 LES BYE'FS LO°L85'BPE'PS L0 LES BYE'PS abeiaay pue [Eolgng
1 0s0°L SE0L LS50k LG HES0L0'S LG OB'0L0'S 5OEE0L0'S LODZILOVE0 (O naE] ZEOOL LBEGEEGEE
I 0SE'D SFED 0sED S6TLLORE PEELLOvE 86 ZLL0VE LODEMIZIG0 ey Aaucyy - g1 BEQDL DBE6EE666
! OLED 9820 DLED ST YT Z00G SZ'¥SET00'S SEVSEE00'S L0060 ey ASuc - Wl SEO0L NZEESLL0L
L oro'L STk Ol L LEEDS rOr'E LUERE OV E LUESE FOF'E LODZILOVED Bupesadg - 409 4157 FEODL CBEEBEESE
! oLL'E G0 L orLcE 2E'092'065%' O Z2'092'069'0F Z2'092'069'0F FLOZIBOVGO N 1588 1583 QEE0L OLB00ZL-98
L 0LEE a0l oLl 00 000 000 FLOZIENED 5211580 1583 LZE0L QLEXXX

SIEMJEWN ABUOW/S|ID0 JUBLIISBAL]
I 0000 oo S8'669'66L'6 SHBEY'66L'E SH'GEI'GEL'E afiwsany pue [Eloiqng
i CE'G0E'2- GE'e0E"T- SE60E'Z- LLOELVED AWED 5, USUNI0M - WP £0L0L LOERGLL0L
I 00g 0o'o 00'g LLOE OG0 SUODU) PEUBJE(Q JUBPNLS LELoL ESERGLL0L
k OO'EEE0L 00'EEZ 02 DOEEZ'0E LLOZILOVED yses fnag GBOOL £ LEGEE666E
i PLLEE 20 FLULEE LS PLULEE L0~ L10Z/L 0060 pund jjosied SROOL ArEEELL0L
b B0V LRE'ERL DL E0VLBG'SrL 0L £V LBE'BFL DL 108 LNGD Bupesadg - pydr 29001 BEEGGLLOL
b o0'n oo 000 LLOELNED swelbold |Riapad - Wdr 6A001 DEZESLL0L
L GOELEET6 SUZLEETE GUZ L6 26 LL0Z/ NG SIUBUSSINGEIQ 98001 ZO00PEROL
I BE'GOE' LT BE'GOE"LE 9659212 LLOZIOVBD TSURIL W = SPIED HPD G001 PLEEBEEEEE
L BEIGE B6'995°Z 86'995°2 LLOZI0/BD BugesadQ - eauawy jo yueg FELOL YEGLZLO0GEL

sjunoaay Bupyaayamoogssed

Aumey g S9€ 08t ey anjeA IRgEn snjep Jed anjep yoog WEQ sanss|  # uswgsaAU| disna
o] sieq Sunmepy  WLA WLA uaung asdyung

35



S L woday

36

oz LA Judh VU0 - BHOSIENLD BIRD WTy
oy
J0rs ohopiog
(2]
<
ELLPPLLIS 000 ELLPFLLS ¥rzo 96'Z0L'SLLEEE LULERSELERE LE'BGE QB0 LIT el
GLPIOSPL L] GLPLASTE GLZD LLEEL LS99 ST LISIREL LU LB BYE'¥E eqnsg
SOra0s' L 000 GO806°LE 84270 oLt GEZr00LSEL 04522052 Z2092'069'0r dHH L EL] geZoL 0L800ZL-98
QLLEHLS 00D QLLEP' LS 0&L0 Okl LGP ESD L2 FEGaLLEE DY oo'a i NID LEZOL OLEXX
IOLIR'E L] I LERE BSE0 oro'L GEPLEOLEL SOEZ9LE LUESR'POP'E dHd N3D FEOOL EEE6EE666
OOESEE ooQ OUESE'E L1900 QLz'0 L1BEB'000'S SPSRLL00S SEPSET00'S ddH NID GEOOL OZEGSLL0L
£6'60T 0og £6'60T L8070 05e'0 G650 S0 E08"0rE SEELLONE diy N30 BEQDL DEEEEEGEE
vELET'6Y 0oo YELGE'EY 9820 LS0°E 9R'GEL'CEZ'GL LG'BOE PG 02 L5 969'0L0'S dHH NID ZEDDE | GEGEBG6E
oljojU0d PAIERIOEUOT) tpUny
¥SECE'SEN 000 FoEER'SEN §520 BL'6LO'EEL L0 SE'65L'E6Z6EIL FPETIELELTIL [Ewgng
FLFPSGOE 00D FLPYPES9E BSEQ ord'L 0Oage'09%'ZrL 287008 05F vl GO'0BY'BLE'BEL did anog SEEOL 1 GEE0E6EG
Z96EL'L oo Z'GEL'S agz0 oo £ L90'GE0'E 9Z'661'66L'E 98680961 duH aNOd YEEDL L LGEGEEEEE
GLOLEEL oo'e SLOLEEL 2420 OLL'E E9'8PE'000'G PES0E PO0'S CH LS5 00’ diH aNGa £EE0L EFZP002L-98
orea0's o000 D eg0'e QLZ'0 DLk LZ195'6G26' D2'GEZ'05E 22 E9F'SHE"Y dHy aNoa ZEZOL PER000ZL-08
SLSLT'T 000 GLGIZ'E SLZ'0 OLE'L L' SE6'9EE DLGEZ'OSE LLESE MO0'E duy aONO8 LEEDL FoLO00EL-08
GL'FREDL 0o GL'rPE0L 0610 oLL'L LO0LS IFF'S 08'SS9'ZLL'S 050 dHH aNOE BZE0L FREXXX
DEQEE'E o0 0Z'0EZ'Z 06L°0 OLLL ETZSL'ELL'L B&'GRO IGLL 0o'0 dyH aMoa g2201L PELXXKK
LLBEL o0o LVBEL LSEQ okl L 09'069' 182 EL'BS1PES PLOEE S0E ddy aNC8 20101 DL GEEGEG66
B%'S9Z'51 oo 65'592'51 9520 Ol b L8 L0Z'ECE'S LLORSEL0'D LB'ZS0'088S dHH aMod Fe00L BEEGEEEEE
GO0 000 GO0 ae0°0 LrEgl FLoby o duid MO8 P00l LiZ0rEsnL
Spun4 puog pung
sbujuiey [TETEVERTY paweg poliag awey apeg anjes Hoog anjEp yoog anep ey adf) pung # IWaWysaAu| dISND
s pasnipy  uenEnUoWY IS siyy piags, wauny Lumew  abesday BuyuuBag Buipug Knosag

shujueg ysaa) pusnipy

aFlgs W1 ‘unsmy
CEL ayng
JE4OW 'S LOB

SB|ED0SSY § UoSIsfe

anjep joog abeiany uo plaij polad
LL0Z '0€ Jaquianop - LL0Z ‘) Jequeldeg

puny - pung Aq pauog

sBuijuieg ysaisju|

abajjon Aunwiwon ojulder ueg

FILYIJEEEY § NOBYILAYd



SE'L ap Lodiy
VPRRTRE R R T

ZZi L1 - BLDTAE0/ L0 B0 UM

DOM'S Doy
J

PEZLELELEOL L LPELEL L EFBEL GRS L1 ¥ LPEEGE'OL SHB5LBI6'EIL PG EER GEP

PEELELEL'TOL L LPE LEL L EVFEBLGRG AL ¥ LPE'EBEDL GRGGLEZE'69L PSECEGER Spung puog :pund JJo4 S|Ej0L Qng

BYOEY'ZLEGEL GLOLEZEE S LEPEY LGS’ BLPFESOE SR00R05F vl BLvPSSIE i OrdL BO060'RLE'GEL B LBEEE6666
G 06 FLE'BEL GLOLL2ET S LEPS LG5S BLPYS'GeE FEO0R 0SF FiL BLPFSSHE SL0Z0ZIv0 anca aLdis1 SEZOL
BRFER096) BEPOE'REE' L 00°0F0"arE’L ZOCEL 92'661'66L'C ZHSELL | oFoL 8% vEE 006" | £ L BERGGEGE
FEPEE096) BEVOE'BER 1 00'0v0'apE'L ZOEELL 9Z'6BL'GBL'E BHSELL S102/90/80 anNod GLdIS YEZOL
ZELSEFO0'S 25 L PEELE'ED 2O LLO'ER PEG08'F00'S SLOLEEL i1 oLl LSS PO0S ZFEPO0ZL-08
ZELGEF00'S 25 LrE PERLEEE 20 LLO'EZ FESOEF00'S SLOLEEL GLOZ/30B0 anog SLANMI EEEOL
EZEOF'SeT'E TG LET'SEL'R EE'GRL'E SO TIVELL'S 0452205 006208 i1 oLt ZTESPSHEE PERO00ZL-08
ZZEOF'SRE'E TG LETSEL'E EESEL'E CHITVEELR 04'522°052 006308 b LOZIBOME0 anog SOWNMI ZEZ0L
LLE2E 1002 L LES LELL ESEZE'Y PEOZE'SEL L 04°5EZ052 SLGLET il oLt FUEZELO0'E FEL0002L-08
LLE2E 100 L LBGIGLL ES'tIa'r 6 OZAGEL L 04'522°058 SLGLE'D ¥ LOZ/BOVG0 anNog BOMINANG LEZO0L
000 08559211 'E EE'SEL'OTLE EBLFEL 0FGEaZILE BLFPEDL ¥ Okt 000 PR
o' 085692115 EE'SELGEL'R ZEHLVEL OFSEaZILE BLPFEDL FLOZIGONG0 aNog SODIM3 6ZZ0L
oo 66RO LGL L 61 0EP'ESL'L 0Z0EE'Z 66680 L5L ) 02 0EZ'E i OLk'L 000 PELNNN
0o BE BB LSL L GLO0ZPESLL 02 0EE'2 GEERD LS 0E'0Ee'E b LOZ/BOVED aONGCE BOOWMAI HEZO0L
bLOEE S8 WLLLEL oo WLibeL ELBGLYES LLBEL it OF'L ¥L0EE'90E 9LBEEHEEEE
¥ OEE 908 W LLLEL ooo WLILVEL £LBGLPED LLEEL GO0ZHEILO amNog 504151 a0LoL
LEESODER'S FLBE0OLE: EEPOELET B5GOE'SL bELGL'9L0'9 BG'50E 1 ] ord'l LG'Z50'098'S BE666665E
LEZS0'098'S FLEG0GLE CEPYETLEE BLSOT'SL LLLGL'BL0'S 65'592°G1 SO0ZE0I0L anod BOAIST ¥EOO0L
100 EL'OrE G4 60'0 Py 60°0 i 0000 Lo LLZOPERDL
100 £L Bk ZEavy GO0 L rP 600 LO0ZISOITL anog =la| #O00L

sSpung puog pung

anes, jayep anjg/, Ul ebuey)  suopdwapey SUCIPRY BNIEA, 1R paABIaY J5a2)u| seg ep WLA anjep, Jed disng
Buipusg [SESEYIING Guuuibag

anjes, yoog anjen, yoog [ENESY JSauajU)| #Eeg yung  pung Janss| # |
Buipuz Buuubag

kLBl ML 'unsmy

GEL ayng
JBJOW 'S LOG

S2IBID0ESY § UDSIajEd

L10Z '0€ 1aquiaAop - £1L0Z ‘| Jequaydeg
puny Aq payjog
Hoday |ep ul abuey) asueldwo?) sexa]

abajjo) Aunwiwo) ojuider ueg

FILVIINEEY § MODENALIVL

~
o



GE L S paday

G200 0 DL ZZ4 L - BLOZGHLG @R uny
DOrs oopiod
<
BEGRELE BECUELE E5BE6'GHE 0 EE6'CEY 000 oo i 0000 S6'50E1E ¥ LESGEEE6G
BEGRELE B GOELE Z5°666'GYE EOEBE'E6Y 000 00D LLOZ OG0 N3D a0 GROOL
OUEEE 02 DOEEE 02 00 E8e U5 ZEY I 000 00'g 1 00o'g O0'EEZ'0Z £ EEEEEEEE
ODEEZ'02 DDEEZ0Z opzge e Zer' Ly 0o oo LLOZFLOG0 N30 2d g8001
SOZLEEZE SOZTLE'EEE" £600TRYL 25 BGE'RrS 00 oo I 0000 COZLE'ETE ZO00PER0L
SOZLEEEE SO ZLE'EEE ERE0O N1 25 B EFS 0oo o LEOZILONGD N3D S0 e001L
FLIEZ LS PLLET LS E£'00r" 0 28 099'EG- FUER] 000 1 000'Q PLLEE LS GFEEGLL0L
¥LIEZ' LS FLLEZ' LD £L00%'OF 29'099'¢5- 0o o0 LLDE/LOVED N3D Avd CE00L
oo ooa Doo ooo 000 00a i 0oaa o0a QEEBSLL0L
0oa oora oo 000 oo 000 LLOZ/LVG0 NID Oddd GA00L
22 092068 0r 25 FEQ'ORY OF LZ'BEZ'61 EL DR ESY OF 04522058 SOR0G'LE [ oLl ZE 092069 0F Oie00zL-og
&' 0920680 25 FEQOrY O LZBSE'6L ELERE'BEY OF 0L GEL05E SORO0S'LE FLOZIGVED NID niraMa QgzoL
0o'o PrGOL LEE b Pl ZPL BEE 0F 094119 T SOLLEE' Oy BLLEV LS i Ok 000 OLEXNY
oo P SOL LEE DI PL'ZPE'SEE OF 08119 ¥ SOLLEE DY OLLZF LS FLOZIB0G0 NIS SJiaMm3 LZZO0L
GE ¥FSE'T00S 0g'80L’L 0Z'vGZ'E OO'Ege’e SPaFLLOD'S OUE9E'E i OLED GEPSET00'S DZEGELLO0L
G2 P52 200'S 0g'20L'L 0Z¥SE'E CO'E9e’e SEGELL00'S 00 E9E'E L00Z/LVED N3D WIN GECOL
BEZLLOVE EB'B0Z 00 £6B0Z SIEDGOvE EEB02 i QSE'D BETLLONE 966666666
BE'ZLLOFE £6'802 000 CEHBOZ SOEDS'0FE £6'602 LOOE8za0 NID LIDKL FEOOL
EOLBG EFLOL 006LE LL0'G ono O9GLE LL0'G EF 400 LL9'G 0oo 'y 0000 £ L86'8RL0L BEEESLL0L
E0°LBE'ERL'OL 0OGLE LL0S oo OAGLELL0'S P L00'LL9'S 0o L10Z/ LB FEL] y3do 8001
LUESE'FOF'E SO0 ESE'E OB PEr 08" 9B PEGERSL SOEES' L2 LLLEE N o0l LUEBWORE EBGEEEE6E
LUESS'POF'E SO EREE OB'vEP 082 98 rES£99'L SO'EED'LE LRE LO0Z/0E0 NID dis7 FEOOL
LSEE8'0L0'S S EOE PSE'LE- BO°CBO'0LSEY EUEEE'OLY T L5 B66'YO69E ¥R LBZ'BY I 0501 LSS 0L'S VEGEEGEEE
LS BEa'0L0'S SO E0EFEE e B9 G69'0L5 Ep EYEGE'ILY LE LG PEE VOG0T FELEZ'6Y LODEN VG0 =L I00NL ZE00L
10j04 pajep|osU0] pung
anjes, Jaxep anjep ul sbueyD  suondwapay SUCpRY anfen, laen patiaay jsauaiu| e ew WLA anjea Jed disng
Buipug [SESEUN Buunbag
an|ep, yoog anjep, yoog [Enuaoy jsausiu) BB yMng  pung lanss) # AU
Gupug Buuwbag
L10Z '0F Jaquisaop - LLOZ 'L Jequisideg
z abey poday [ep u) abueyn aouedwos sexa)

abajjog AJunwwod oJuIDEr UBS

38



S8 4ap Loty
02 (DL d46dl DL

ZEL b - BLOZAE0L0 (e Wy

J0rs topiog
()
<
[
™
9L°660°988" 922 SLBREOLS LE- SEELLLBLLOL EARRE A T PERET'OLE BRE ELLPY LIS
9L660"9RE" 02 SLBRE0CS LE- SEELL LELLOL ZL LvE'60E 98 PEREPOLPERE CLLPYLLG sjejo) puelin poday
ZE9REarLee LULPPEEE R Z1SBE'S0Z 06 0L BBE'SLE'SL BOBZL9EP'EL GLPLESTL
ZE'0RT'8YL'vD LULPFBEEYL- Z1'SHE'SO0Z'06 0L GEE'GLE'GL BYREL98Y'SL 6L FLIGK] 10j04 pRiep|losuo] (pung (104 S|ej0L qng
S 60EE S660C'E ZTLBL'E 065" 0o oo fi oooo SEB0E"2- LAEESLL0L
SE60E'2- SH60E'E- ETLGL'E 0L 'E5- oo oo LLOZILOE0 [LED] DM £0L01
0o 000 0o’ oo 0org oo I 0000 000 EEEGELL0L
00'g 0og 0o oo’ oo 0a LLOELOVE0 [ ED] 105 LgLoL
96'995'Z 860852 L5 5 ESP'E oo Loa i 0000 BE99G5E VSBLELO0EEL
g6'905'Z ELR BLES ZEESHE oo 0org LLOE/LVED NID d0va FOLOL
BNEN, 18YIEW anjep, w wmcm.._u suodwapay SUOIRRY BNEA 12BN pasEaay jsauaju| e ey WALA anjep, Je4 disngy
Bupuz fsEsEyMng Buuibag
an|ep, yoog anjes, yoog [EUDY 1Sa1a0u| e yungd pun4 ianss) # AU
Gupug BuiuuGag
LI0Z '0F Jequiaaop - LLOZ 'L Jequeideg
¢ ebey yoday jep u abueys asuedwos sexa)

aba)on AYUNWIWo D 0JUISEN UES



SJCD Financials
December 2017



SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Assels

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable - taxes
Accounts receivable
Deferred charges
Inventores
Tetal current assels

MNoncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Capital assets, net
Tetal noncurrent assets
Total assets

Deferred ouflows of resources;

Deferred outflow related o pensions

Statement of MNet Position
December 31,

Deferred outflow related to defeased deba
Tmal deferred outflows of resources

Liabilitics

Current habalities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Accrued compensable absences and deferred compensation

Deferved revenues
Total current habilities

Mongurrent liabilitics:
Met pension liability
Bonds and notes payable
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total habilities

Deferred inflows of resources -
Deferred inflow related 1o pensions

Net assels
Beginning of yvear

Current year addition
Total net position

40
Subject to Change - Pending Final Audit

2017 2016
72,719,209 57,447,404
75,735,725 75.555,570
17,919,585 18,763,836

795,254 780,769

363,167 443,645
167.532.940 152.991.224
162,335,993 188,987,729
433,087,398 423,912,749
595,423 391 612,900,478
762,956,331 765.891.702

6,924,946 5,502,111
11,200,902 5,079,624
15,134 848 11,481,735

8,272,707 $.963,570

7,044,303 7,102,794

2,282,758 2,612,623
72,230 001 72,184,243
89,829,750 90,863,230
31,690,143 29,942,125

480,071,993 485,651,445
511,962,136 515.593.570
601,791,935 606,456,800
3,795 258 4,122,366
164,328 451 166,844,720
11,175,535 (50.449)
175.503.986 166.794.271

48



San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Four Months Ended December 31, 20017

Consolidated -All Funds
(Mot Including Capital Improvement Program)

% Actual to Yo of
Actual Adjusted 831717
Adjusted Budget (33.33%) Budget 12731716 Actual
REVENLIES:
State Appropriations 5 49035178 20,446,222 41.70 5 19.053.179 a8.61
Local Taxes - Maimenance & Operations 66,740,000 12,566,910 1£.83 5,300,006 8.17
Local Taxes - Debt Service 28,583,724 5,547,378 19.41 2.366,382 B.86
Credit Tuition 46,384,109 15,148 571 75.78 35,069 016 76,94
Credit Fees 15,210,000 11,625,646 T6.43 11,240,511 T4.00)
Credit Exemptions & Waivers (5,670.0000) (4,629 286) 81.65 {3.675,713) 75.46
Bad Deht (1 8040000y (600, 000) 3333 (783,593) 38.13
Continuing Professional Development 5,041,723 1674137 332 1,756,914 31.86
Sales & Services 1,869,775 724,181 38.73 758,274 163,15
Investment Income 00,000 782,227 15645 322 482 84,83
Auxiliary Services 3,535,367 1,300,070 36.77 1,276,391 860
Girants 59,264,747 22 R06,464 3548 21,667 373 4271
Local Grants 2,675,632 998418 37.32 1,141,108 56.71
Total 271,370,255 108,391,238 39,94 095,493 330 37.03
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 71,767 (83 21.910,159 38,89 26,943 948 35.03
Public Service 5578 468 2,068,396 37.08 1,676,645 25.55
Academic Suppon 22616917 7,258,782 312.09 6,457,901 34,32
Student Services 16,005,344 5.129.389 32,05 4,516,199 29.53
Institutional Support £1,897.674 20,138,281 24.59 21,324,313 34.91
Physical Plant 15,130,093 5,321,205 29,35 4,742.534 2843
Scholarships and Fellowships 51,780,653 22052615 42.59 21,750,641 45,82
Auxiliary Enterprises 4,251,640 1,737,769 40.87 1.860,577 4434
Depreciation 22,000,000 6,040,425 27.46 6,085,289 33.00
Capital Purchases - (441.318) - (114,268) 326
Toal 204,027 872 97,215,703 33.06 95,543,779 36,33
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:
Transfers In (4,041,221) (495 4700 - (GU0,B55) -
Transfers Out 4,041,221 495 470 - 690855 -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 5 (22,657.617) 11,175,535 5 (50.449)
41 49



San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Four Months Ended December 21, 2017

11 Unrestricted Funds

% Actual to % of
Actual Adjusted 8317
Adjusted Budget (33.33%) Budget 12/31/16 Actual
REVENUES:
State Appropriations § 38,785,178 $ 16,683,773 43402 $ 15660494 4293
Local Taxes - Maintenance & Operations i, 740,000 12,566,910 18.83 5,301,006 8.17
Credit Tuition 44,569,109 33,682 688 75.57 33,599,236 T6.57
Credit Fees 15,210,000 11,625.646 T6d3 11,240,511 T4.00
Credit Exemptions & Waivers (5.670.000) (4,629 286) %1.65 (3,675,713) 75.46
Bad Debt (1, 800,000) (600,000 3333 (783,593) 58.13
Continuing Professional Development 5,041,723 1,674,137 i [, 756,914 31.86
Sales & Services 1,869,775 721,181 38.57 09,674 424.27
Investment Income 00,000 209,692 41.94 49,375 14.22
Total 165,245,785 71,934,741 43.53 63,857.906 3986
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 67,787,354 26,044,767 JR.42 25,167,233 3595
Public Service 4,931,234 1,830,615 3712 1,444 376 25.06
Academic Suppon 14,190,380 4,986,306 35.14 4,803,755 38.03
Student Services 15,186,162 4,484,129 2953 4,296,356 3021
Institutional Support 40,979,341 12,454,796 30.39 13,337,152 1546
Physical Plant 18,130,093 5,321,205 2035 4,742,534 28.43
Total 161,204,564 55,121,818 3419 53,791,406 3428
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:
Transfers In - (1.700) - (2,075) -
Transfers Out 4,041,221 495470 - 690,855 e
Met Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 5 - 5 16,319,153 § 9377720

42 50



Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position

San Jacinto Community College District

For the Four Months Ended December 31, 2017

Federal Restricted Funds

REVENUES:
Granis

Total
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction

Public Service

Academic Support

Student Services
Instittional Support
Scholarships and Fellowships

Total
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Met Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

Yo Actual to % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 8/31/17
Bu:!gel (33.33%) Budget 12/31/16 Actual
£ 54851671 § 21.624.411 3042 $ 20,776,700 43.60
54,851,671 21,624,411 39.42 20,776,700 43.60
570,296 134,558 23.59 149,134 33.42
264,272 63,146 23.89 77,825 37.09
6,979 146 1,833,676 2627 1,172,021 27.73
236,179 132,970 56.30 82,232 27.63
967,237 275,745 28.51 299,287 25.20
45,834,541 19,184,316 41.86 18,996,201 4593
54.851.671 21624411 3942 20,776,700 43 .58
5 - $ - £ -
43 51



State Restricted Funds

REVENUES:

State Paid Benefits
Grants

Toral
EXPENDITURES:

Instruction

Public Service

Academic Support

Student Services

Institutional Support
Scholarships and Fellowships

Total

TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Total

Met Increase ( Decrease) in Net Position

San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position

For the Four Months Ended December 31, 2017

% Actual to % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 83117
Budger (33.33%) Budget 12/31/16 Actual
§ 10,250,000 $ 3.762449 36.71 § 3392683 26.36
4.413,076 1,182,053 26.79 B90,673 28.92
14,663,076 4,944 502 33,72 4,283,356 26.85
3328594 1,692,132 50.84 1,605,317 25.09
139,737 119,521 85.53 90,636 2242
729,593 401,003 54.96 379,703 21.32
555,063 485,328 87.44 432,432 24.43
7,645,267 1,247 438 16.32 1,031,923 31.41
2,264,822 999,080 44.11 743,345 3213
14.663.076 4,944,502 3312 4,283,356 26.85
5 - 5 = 5 -
44 52



San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Four Months Ended December 31, 2017

Local Restricted Funds

% Actual to % of
Actual Adjusted 831117
Adjusted Budget {33.33%) Budget 12/31/16 Actual
REVENUES:
Local Grants % 2,675,632 £ 008418 37.32 $ 1,141,108 56.71
Total 2,675,632 998,418 37.32 1,141,108 56.71
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction 80,839 36,592 45.27 19,775 23.83
Public Service 243 225 55.114 22.66 63,808 34.94
Academic Support T17.798 37,797 5.27 102,422 56.40
Student Services 27,940 5,901 21.12 5,179 21.33
Institutional Support 23,680 2.749 11.61 11,620 16.14
Scholarships and Fellowships 1,866,290 909,940 48.7h 1,033,487 61.56
Total 2959772 1,048,003 35.4] 1,236,291 55.63
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:
Transfers In (302,004) (56.071) (104,594} -
Transfers Out - - -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position g 17,864 £ 6,396 b3 9411

45 53



San Jacinto Community College District

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position

27 Texas Public Education Grant

REVENUES:
Credit Tuition
Total
EXPENDITURES:
Schelarships and Fellowships
Taotal
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

For the Four Months Ended December 31, 2017

46

% Actual to

Adjusted Actual Adjusted
Budget (33.33%) Budget 12/31/16

$ 1.815000 5 1,466,183 80,78 § 1,469,780
1.815,000 1,466,183 80,78 1,469,780
1,815,000 950,279 52 85 977.608
1,815,000 050,279 52.85 Q77,608

- 506,904

402,172

e of
83117

Actual

2648

B6.48

46.21

46.21

54



San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Four Months Ended December 31, 2017

28 Private Gifts and Donations

% Actual to % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 83117
Budget (33.33%) Budget 12/31/16 Actual
REVENUES:
Sales & Service b - 5 3000 - 5 48,600 16.34
Total - 3,000 - 48.600 16.34
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction = 2,110 - 2,489 -
Student Services - 21,061 - = -
Total - 23,171 - 2,489 -
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:
Transfers In - a e 2 .
Transfers Out - - - - -
Net Increase {Decrease) in Net Position $ ; 5 (20171) 5 46,111

47 55



San Jacinto Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Four Months Ended December 31, 2017

Auxiliary Enterprises

% Actual to % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 83117
Budget (33.33%) Budget 12/31/16 Actual
REVENUES:
Sales & Services § 45,000 p 18,592 41.32 18,464 17.10
Auxiliary Services 3490367 1,281,478 36.71 1,257,927 3932
Total 3,535,167 1,300,070 36.77 1,276,391 38.60
EXPENDITURES:
MNon-Instructional Labor R08.850 240,192 2970 262,777 36.24
Benefits 190,526 146,230 76.75 149,715 33.82
Supplies 1,392,022 205,626 14.77 242,731 4229
Travel 255283 128,329 50.27 110,024 2068
Contracted Services 412,183 02,852 22.53 109 839 38.92
Scholarships and Fellowships 1,192,226 924,540 17.55 976,441 50.86
Utihiues 550 - - 9 050 -
Total 4,251,640 1,737,769 40.87 1,860,577 44.34
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:
Transfers In (716,273) {437.699) - (584,186) -
Transfers Out - = = - -
MNet Increase (Decrease) in Net Position  § = 4 = -
48 56



San Jacinte Community College District
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position
For the Four Months Ended December 31, 2017

95 Retirement of Indebtedness

% Actual 1o % of
Adjusted Actual Adjusted 83117
Budget (33.33%) Budget 12/31/16 Actual
REVENUES
Investment Income % - b 572,535 - L 273,107 §27.42
Local Taxes - Debt Service 28,583,724 5.547.378 19.41 2,366,382 556
Total 28,583,724 6,119.913 - 2,639 489 9.87
EXPENDITURES
Institutional Support 32282149 6,157,553 19.07 6,644 131 35.10
Total 32,282,149 6,157,553 19.07 6,644,331 35.10
TRANSFERS AMOUNG FUNDS:
Transfers In (3.022.944) - - E -
Transfers Out C - - . .
Met Increase (Decrease) in Net Position § (675481) 8§ (37,6400 £ (4.004,842)
49 57



97 Investment in Plant

EXPENDITURES

Depreciation
Capital Purchases

Total

Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position

San Jacinto Community College District

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Net Position

For the Four Months Ended December 31, 2017

% Actual to % of
Adjusied Actual Adjusted 83117
Budget (33.33%) Budget 12/31/16 Actual

$ 22,000,000 § 6040425 27.46 § 6,085289 33.00

- (441,318) & {114,268) =
22,000,000 5,599,107 5,971,021 40,00
§ (22,000,000 § (5,599,107) § (5,971,021)
50 58



Capital Improvement
Program

51

59



San Jacinte Community College Distnict
Stmement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 1n Met Position
For the Four Months Ended December 31, 2017

91 Capital Projects

Adjusted Actual
Budget {33.33%) 12731116

REVENLUES:
Investment Income g - % - §

Tonal - - -
EXPENDITURES:
Bond Programs - 6,793,538 13,789,318

Teaal - 6,793,538 13,789,318
Met Increase {Decrease) in Net Position S = $ (6,793538) 5§ {13,789.318)

52



61

vEl

S3LYIJIOSSY % NOSHILIVI

LT0T ‘T€ 13quIddd
310d3Yy JUIUNSIAU] AJYJUOTA]

53

1531100 @
b

OLNIDVI[ NVS




SIMAIRUY JDARH) SISAEUY JILLOUDIS j0 NESINE 82IN0S
LiL0Z 910z 32 SLoZ

[ RRFIS (S-S S S S PN CAPPUPRNS| RPREP (SPT] P SRl (I P

Ll S iniane 1enl - -9
Buipuads jsnl Buiaes op e s s
SpdALA BLIODU| [BUOSID —
L L
SA B JOARH SIEAEUY SWLOUODE JO NESING 80Nog
LLOZ _m_._u_ﬂ _m_..uﬂ FLOEZ EL0Z ZL0Z | LLOZ OLOZ G0O0Z 800Z L00Z
N||___ P " T I R .‘.hppp_.n____'___.....ﬂu
a > o
- z
L -
= 3 ! 1wlie] %07 sped
uole|ju| 0] ajg oN %AGA F0d 80D =
9 %AOA 3Dd — 3

"uoseas Aepijoy [1e3as ansod

B P3)E3.12 U} OYM SIBWNSUOD palinds aney Os[e ABW 10V W03y
xe) passed Ajjuadal ay) ‘saiydesSowsap ul aSueyd e Jo ainny ayl ul
20u3pluod 12334 Aew jey) ‘Suines Jou ase 3jdoad 1eYl U BWOSLIIOM
sIydiym 3 pasedino sey Sulpuads jng dn s1 swodu| “wawAiojdwa

1IN 03 aaow 3y} patuedwodde Jou sey yimold adem ydnoyy uana
sadem asoyl Suipuads s1JawnNsuod 3yl "8T0Z Ul %6 03 dip usna
Aew pue yuawdhodwa jjny e st sn ayy “ulod Sy} I8 10198 € 10U 51
Juawdhojdw3 "uonepyul pue ‘Yimois ‘sqol uo puadap ||Im voisidap ayL

‘Y18uaays Buinunuod

Ul Ja113q e 510843 YaIym (%E) aunf u Jayjoue pue gTOT Yyalew ul
35B3JIUI )81 YIS N0 J0 3Jueyd %59 e Sunedidijue s1jajJew sainng
ayl ‘Ajasianuc) "gToz 0Iul Buinow Awouoda ay) jo yiduadls ay)
Juuapisuod ydiy swaas Ajjenjae yaiym %sT Ajuo je Ajjigeqoad ey}
alew}sa sisiwouoda pakamns Blaquwoo|g "gT07 W ajqegoad Ajjeas
S1 U0jssadal e Jaylaym o} se uoljsanb ay) s8aq uonezijewsou jey)

"3k

duisea annelnuenb ayl y8nouyl dn 3ing syaays asuejeq Suipnpad

Jo ssasoud nyuied ayy SuiuwiBaq os|e aue Aay] "sajed jsasajul Suisiel
Ul pels mo|s e Ag saled Jo uoiezijewou e SuLIaPISUOD aue Jo SpIemo)
panow aAey SyUEBQ |B4IUID 3SOY) JO JSOW pPUY 'SIA0LW 3]RJ 15a131U)
Ji3yl ui pajda|jal se plIoM JWOoU0I3 3y} Jo uonelaldialul iay) pue
s)jueq |eljuad |eqo|d ay} uo pajexyy 3Jam S1SNIeW 3y} LTOT 4O yanw

8107 01U] SUl])0y WNIUSWOW JO S10T

62

54



= g TR Lo r oA, et

\m \ LA

f> :,t W f:‘,. 1/ ?{

(e} smgaagruy spsoseny Bupewy

PR T == )

Eowi @ A BB SR e A AR RE N AR N R s R G E o N R

e L T e e
ALk

e

- R T

L]

X

e D SRR

SR

b

810¢ 0] X007 Si2WNSU0?) pue SI10)SaAU|

vl

'@10z w ayids Jou saop uoiie|ul

Jey3 os Buljiao e pue }a81e] B Yloq ag Aew 947 18yl yimosd
2jo43pow soy Ayisuadoud s Jieyd pad Mau Syl uamg "asn Jpatd
u) aseaLoul pue sSuIAeS Ul UOIINP3J B pue 53502 ASJaua Mo AQ
padcue|eq uaag sey i S321AISS pue Spood Ul SISIXa UOHEUI 3I3YM
"J281e1 %7 5,pa4 3y} mojaq Ajuloqqnis sulewal pue 10z ul
Ajy3ys Ajuo umoud sey uolieul "UCIIEYUI 3G (1M BTOTZ Ul A3y ay)

JUSWIIUDS JBWNSUDD
s8)eJ JsaJajul poys pue Suo| uaamiaq pealds
(Zw) Ajddns Aauow paysnipe uoiepul
X3pul }201s 00S d'8S
spwsad uipjing mau
spood [ended Jo4 SI3pJ0 mau
slopuaa 0} siayddns woyy Asn|ap spood jo paads
s|elsalew pue spood J3WNSU0d 10j SI3PI0 Mau
@Juelnsul JuawAo|dwaun Joj suonednjdde |eiiul agesane
siayiom Buunioegnuew Ag payiom sinoy a8esane
:Awouoda aijua ay) pue sjuasaldal 115103295 U3y Ay}
550408 Y1dualls aunjny Jo UOIIEIIPUI JUS||23X3 Ue 51 (|37) Joledlpul
21Wou03 Suipes| ayl “3uipjing sauojuaaul yim Suolls uaag
sey Suunioeynuew pue dn yaeq Suaid st uoionsisuod ‘Suons
st spun Ajlwej-ijnw ul 3uisnoy ‘Apipeays dn saunjipuadxa
pue syyoid 3jelodiod yum Buodls os|e s| AWOUOIA 3Y] Ul YIMOoLD

'S,046T Y3 22UIS UISS JOU SMO| B JIS MOU PUE UOoISS3Ial
158| 3y} JO pua 3y} 20uls pasealdap AjIpeals aney swie|d ssa|qor
'sqol jo Anjigejieae ay) Aq pasinds aq osje Aew Jawnsuod ay)

63

55



1AQg 01 SpUn4 pa4 — 8N PIBIA |ind - SBIEY YIUOW jo pu3

IA0E 1501 1A% 14z AA1 oG OwE spun,] pay

— et =3 i S+ 000

G050

g1-23(] 20071
}
AT-1R — u
Ar-ung NSl a
L1-120 2
B 00°E 4
a
d

wWOSE

%O0'E

—_— L goSE

"punos-je anjisod s) yaym Awouoaa ayy ojul spuny Sulysnd

Agasayl sueo| asow Jayo syueq djay |im amnd Jadaals Suipuodsaliod e Ing SI0)saAUl Wial-1IoYs padjay AjRyuly=ap aaey sales poys Jaydiy ay)
"34n3ny Jeau syl ul sajed Juo| saysiy |enuaiod ol se uoined awos Juiuied pue

uoiisod 3y} Supuiyl-a1 ase (jacepnsal Jaaau pinom uonejul Sulunsse uaaq pey Yaiym) sioisanul Suo| Jeyl a1enpul Aew Suaow Jou pua Suo| ayl
"134e3|2 sawodaq ainjaid ay) |un ysea o} asop uipjoy siosanul sey (Ajeanijod-0ad pue Ajjeaiwouoa) Ajjeqold Ajuienaoun Suinuiuod (q) pue saaneusalje
[euoiieuIaiUl UBY] JayBIy aie pad ayl Ag P3| sn Y3 Ul saled (B) S10108) OM] 131431 O] SBY OS[E YIUOLI-334y3 343 03 Spuny IYFILITAD WOl UoISIaAU 3]

ing "JN330 S30p U0ISS3TRJ B §I UoIYSNI AJe]auow e a1easd 0] 34IS3p 5 pue ALoUO33 Y3 JO UONIBYAL 5,pa4 3y} A USALIP SI PU3 LIOYS 3Y] Ul 3A0W 3y :
‘BUN[ 10 13qoiaQ Woly pasow Ajaleq pua Sug| 3yl ing dn pasow

918 LOYS 3Y3 13quIadaQ Ul s3led Pasiel aniasay |eapa4 3yl sy “Janienb jeuly ayy ul panuiuod sey aaind (daals ssaj) Suualiey e Joj UIAIUOD BYL

S9NULIU0) SuLua]Ie]{ Sa1ey

64

56



L
wﬁ...

o
“ ] L PR
ISP

Q @, ©
. .
% G

%

% @
%é,p%

EHEE
yueg

YZbBa'Te

5|00d

HeB9TITED

Vi

"U00s BUIWOD Spuny Xej} ayl Joy
ue|d pue sajue|eq Yysed adnpas 0} awil si 3}

‘Sjueq ayl apIsINo 3|ge|IeAR 350Y] SNSIAA
salel YI3 3yl Mainal 1snw auohiana pue
sysodap mau ul pa)saJajuiun ulewal syueg

'sjood ay} 1saq ||im Jeak auo puohaq

sajey aded |eipiawwod 0) 552208 YyUm
asoy} Joj Aj|enadsa ajqe|iene ale sanljeuld}|e
W3} JOoYs pue aAow s,pa4 ayl yum dn
A0 0} 3NUIJU0D S31eJ WId)-Joys Asan ay|

"SUOIHPUOI
123Jew 3|11ej0A 0} Isnlpe 1313aq ued oljojiiod
paijisianip e asnedaq Ajuniew adesane
paj|0Jluod e pue uoijedo)je Jasse jewndo

104 oljojyiod InoA smainas AjJuelsuod ygd

£10T ‘1€ 1aquiada( Jo sy

0110J1J0d eJauan

65

57



fa
o =) L ﬂG
#.\zb nﬁv« %/.,vno mav«ov &auv oF

o
%

%

o
%‘.‘bf

%

%
»

%

%,

WLTTS06
s|00d

%9000°0
yueg
YaliBt 6
I

"u0os uIWod Spuny xey ay}
10} ue|d pue sajuejeq Ysed IDNpPaJ 0} W 513

‘$ueq ayj apIsIno a|qe|leAe asoyy
SN5J3A 531.J YOI 243 mainal 3snw aucfiana
pue sysodap mau Ui pajsasajuiun ulewal syueg

"sjood ay3 353q |im Jeah auo puokag

sajey Jaded |e1nsawwod 0] s53308 YUm

asoyy Joj Ajjenadsa ajqejiese aie sanljeud)je
LUI3] JIOYS pue aAow s,pa4 3yl yum

dn aAow 03 anuUEI sajes wiR-Hoys AIaA ay)

'SUOIJIPUOD 13)Jew 3|i3e|oA 03 Isnipe 13)1aq ued
oljojiiod paijisianip e asnedaq Ajunjew ssesane
Pa||043u0d e pue uoljedo||e }asse |ewnydo

10} oljojuiod JnoA smaiaad Ajjueisuod yg4

66

58

L10T ‘1€ 19quiad3Q Jo sy

01103404 puog




SR s ey
OE L (g™ Suded) i

v
J0rs oopod

0F-0L = SL0Z5Z L0 28] Ly
OF:0L 8L0Z/SZ/L0 100rS™ 135 perepdn Beq
LLOZ/LEIZL-LL0Z/1L0/Z ) pouad Bujuoday

N~
©

SPNUIS FEITEANS Qv rl bl A0 1 LTV @
FESTDASQ I vy io M)
SHEjSY |8281HO-I0(BIURYD 3N

ST0Z[52]io g 3T

59

"Apog Buwanot ayy of sunsopasip (jny apinoud o) oyojuod sy jo suonejusssidas aiydest se jjam se podal UOHABSURY B ‘pouad By jo pua auy) 10) odas Jojuasul pajEap B Mansns BN
uawabeuew e apnpu) spodal 8| SUBWISaAU Jo olojued S,uclepUNS puE 5868100 au) UIYIM Al pue uomsod ay) Jo uonepuno grafia)eg Aunwwoe) cuner ues au) jo Apoq Buiwanob ay) wioju

Aliny o) 12pao w1y Sy A pasnbal 10U UoRBLLIGHLI

[ejuawaddns Jayo os|e spodal ey (9522 #POD 1,A0D) SEXS | ) 19y IUSWISBAL] SPUNL DN SU) Yl SOURPIOIIE U] PAIIIWGNS aue spodal Buimeloy ay |

Jg@), Juaung

-~ sBujuez oy

B0 LLOEBL SE60Ie

o1eQ 01 JEBA [€951d Bulpu3 yuow g Jequiasag

: . SIUBWIIS AL
Z60°L b 4 007001 L9 LOZ'SSO'SET L9°L0Z'S50'5E2 L9°LOZ'SS0'GET
L] L ] BE'GE FATETA T A T A4 LS ZEVP'BET YEL LG TEY BEZT VEL SlENIE ABUOW/SI00 JUaLISaAL]
0000 L I Lay DLELL'92E' DL 0L'ELL'92E'DL OL'BLL'928" 08 slunosay Buppaymoogssey
‘ainb3 gag Auangey waa | olijued  anjep anjes ane SUBLSBAL|
WLA o1 sheg 2% Noog PR Ied

LB WL unsmy

SEL Fng

2BdON 'S 106
SBIER0SSY 3 UoSIa)Bd

L10Z ‘L€ Jeaquiadag
Alewwnsg oljojuod
juswabeueyy oljojuod
absjjo9 Miunwwos ojuioer ueg

FILYIIERTY § MODONILIVY



GE L A uaday
e (18 d6d) 1S
dv

DOrS oljojuog

OF28L X1 'ugsny

S61 sung
SEdO 'S 106

LE:01 = BLOZGEIL0 (FIBg U

68

o
©

L Z60° L 00001 L LOZ'S50'SEE LU LOZ'SS0'SET 52 abesany pue [210]

b LZ60 ¥E'OC GEBOZ'ELLEL GEROZ'ELLEL 5k [EeIgng

L 28071 g BE'GZF Z6E 1D GBIV ZEE' 1O a SIRIEIY ABUCIIEICO IuSwISaAL)

L 000°0 1y OL'GLL9ZE'0L OLBLLDZR'0L [ sunossy BureyDMocgssed
cljojod pajep|osuo] pung

! B9L'E 69 BYZEE'SEEZL 80°TEE'SEL'TIL oL [Elolgng

i oLl 90'60 BUEEE'GEEZOL 89266 GEL 201 ]! Sliep ABUDWISIO0 LML)

sSpungd puog pundg
umuhmﬁ_m.ﬂ.”“:{ mw.m._u____..r_.h H_M:an anje s yoog ._qhn__-.: w“ﬂhﬂh:. adf] funoag

SEBIDOSSY § UOSIalE

pung Aq padnoug

L10Z ‘1€ 1equiedeg
adA) Aq Alrewwng

abajj09 Munwwo ojuider ueg

FILVIIDEEY B NEBR¥ALLVY



SEL A ey
101 = BLOCSE/L0 W0 Uiy

LLL T el 1
dy
D0rs Mojog
3
b 8L ZEVE BY'ZEE'SEE AL BY'ZE6'SEEZL BY'ZEE'SEL'ZIL abesaay pue sluawjsasu] [2jo) S
b 29 5L B9'ZEE'SEE'ZAL B9'Z66'SEE'ZOL 99°Z66'SELEIL abieiany pue [2101Gng
L 0241 ESLL 0L L 0B0°0L0 FLOB00L0 FLOB0'0LE GOOZI0E/LD 0MES 03] - JOD dIST 80L0L 91 6EGEEEEE
I 0LLL EGL'L QLL'L A8 BFR"IRGITL 98 6FE'ERSEEL 9% 63 BESBEL SLOEAEIPD Spaanted puog 9102 - 400 JI57 SE20L HLEEGEEG66
b 0Ll £S1°L 0iL'L Zb OEE'0FE'L ZFOTE'OVEL 2P OCE"ORE | S10Z/B0/80 SP@800I4 PUOR GLOZ - 40D dIS1 FEZOL L L GEGEEEEE
b 0LL'L ESE'L 0LL'e LG HEE'EELS LYBGE'EEL'S LSREEEEL'S SO0ZIE00L EpSE30Ld PUog G002 - 409 JI57 FR00L GEEGGOGES
L g PELL 0gL'L 6l 'GRE'GEE'R 6L GRE"GEE'R 6L BRE'SEE'D ¥LOZ/B0ED BIMDE 1590 N 159 1583 ZE201 FrE000ZL-08
L 0SL'L tEL'L [ SESPFRT00'S SE'SPR'PO0'S CE'GFR'¥00'S SLOZrA0/E0 SpEBI0I4 pUOG §1 N 185A 1583 EEZOL ZrEPOOEL-98
! 0SL°L PELE 0sLL FLELE'LO0'Z FLELE'LO0'E FPLELELO0E ¥LOZIB0/G0 SPB900I- PUOE B0 WIN 1598 1583 LEZOL FELOD0Z L0
b oo 000 000 FLOZIE0/E0 B2IMBS 120 S 15844 1583 GEZZOL PIEXXX
! 000 000 oo ¥L0Z/B0/G0 SPD204g PUCE §0 SOI 153 1523 BEZOL PELNK
i 100 ] o LOOZISOIEL BIMBS 1020 - Wdl #2001 LIZOVESDL
sjayiep Asuops|ood Juaw)sau)
Aumey eg S9¢ 09g ey anjep e anjep, Jed anjep yoog aleq HNEE| i WIS DALY diSnd
o) sAeq Awimen WLA WLA BN BSELYIUN

L10Z ‘L€ Jequiadag
pung Aq sjuaw}saau|
spung puog - NOS§ Pung
abajjon Aunwwoy ojulder ueg

SiBL XL uasny

G6L a|Ung

Je4OW 'S LO6
SBIENOSSY § uosiaed

FILYIJOEEY § NEBY¥ALLIVH



GE L e aday

7 affey

oljojH0d pajepijosuod - N3O pund

pung Aq sjusunsaau|

VL (147 ud) 1 9104 - BLOZAGZILD 91RO Uy
dv
20rs oNojuod
o
N~

1 LZE'D GOED 66 B0Z'6LLEL 65'BOZ'6LLZL 66 B0Z'6LLEL afigsany pUe SIUBWISAAL] [B10 L
3 2807 a9 GE'BIFZ6E LD GR'6ZP'ZER LY BE'BZY'ZEE' LD obesany pue |y0Igng
b 9171 0911 I PE'0ZL'BEL'CL PEOZLB6L 51 ¥B0ZL'BEL'GL LO0E G0 10dEa L ZE00L VEBEEEEEE
L 05Ed CFEQ OSE°0 ZE'BBLOPE Z6'68L 0FE CE'GRL0rE LOOZIBEI60 e fauop - gaL GE00L BEOGEEGEG
! 0LZ°0 BAE0 Lzl ZE00F"E00'S Z2° 00K E00'S ZZ'00¥ E00'S LO0ZH0NG0 e Aauop - Wdr SE001L QZEGGLLDL
L 04471 511 aLL'L LIBRRVLL LYERETIL LYERE VLY L00Z/LOFG0 Bullessdg - 409 dIST PEOOL LEGEEEGEE
L 0511 FEL'L 0s5L's PLBEE PEL 0¥ PLBEZ VEL'OF PLBEE PEL OF FLOZIE0NED N 153 15E3 OEE0L DIB0DEL-98
L o0 000 oo rLOZIGOME0 S0 158 1se3 LETOL Dy

sjaqIeW ABUopyS|00  JUBWISBAU|
b 0000 000D 04 '6L2'028'0) 0L'6LL'9Z80 0L'6L4°928°04 aBeiany pue [101GNg . - ==
I £L0L EL0L EL0L- LL0ZIVONG0 dwaD) S, UaLIIoN - Ndl EDLDL LOEBSLLOL
b 000 00 (il LLOZILO/GO O pRUBEI WSS LgLoL EGEEGLIOL
' 00'ear'og 0OEsr' 02 00°39p 02 LLOZIHOMG0 yseD Alad BE00L € 1EEEEEEEE
4 20'PLO'EG- BOFLIES 80 FLY'ES- LLDE/LOVED puny jouieg SHO0L SFEBSLLOL
I ZUCHLOGLLL ZEGRL'OSLLL ZEGRL'O5L' L LLOENLNG0 Gunesad(y - Wl 9001 BETESLLOL
b oo 00 000 L0 G0 swelfold [eiapag - Wdr 69001 BEEEGLLOL
L 19TV pLE: LIELv PLE- LOEivrLE- LLDE/LONB0 SluBLUIEEINGgSI] SR00L 2900vER0L
L 0039072~ 00 890'¥E- 00 BO0'YE- LL0E NGO VSUBIL U - SPUED 1P GE00L ¥ 1 GE6EEGEE
L 02 LSE'E 0Z'ISE'E 01582 LL0ZI VB0 Gunessd - Bauswy jo yueq ¥oLOL YOELZLODEEL

sjunoady Buysaygpoogssed
funjew ageq S9¢ 09t ajey anjep 19yEp anjep jeg anjep yoog eg Janss| # WawSIAU| diSnNa
o) sheq Aumew  WLA LA Wang aseyung
L10Z ‘L€ 1equede(

62



SEL Jan woday

oE LA dud) @ AZ:0L - BLOTGIIL0 (BB wy
dy
200rs dljojuod
—
N~

SEGZ0LT o000 SEGE'0LE L60D GZLLE LA RLT 06'GBE'980'LLE 95 ZIV'BET VEL 2oy
0966 6 000 09'636'6% 0600 97598 15455 LU LBS'BYE'FS G8'GEF'TEE 19 [Eogng
0L 9EY'GE oo OL'9EY'6E LBOD OGLL 20 ZES BES O Z2092'069'0F FLEEE PEL O dHH [Ea] 0EZ0L OLB00ZL-98
AL 00n Forigt £900 QL) LEEOT LEE'L LUESS POr'E LYEREYLL diy N3 FEOOL CERGEEGEE
LESPLL oo LESpL'L £20'0 0420 GLG9E'Z00S G252 E00'S 2E00FE00'S dHH N3D SEOOL DZEBSLLOL
pE'90 000 P690 gZ0'0  0SED 0F LZL'OVE SEILLONE ZE'BRLDKE diy N3D FE00L SHEGGEEGE
BEERL'E 000 SEErL'E gOL'D BLLL S 0L9'BT6 L LSOR'0L0'G PEOZL 661G dHH N3D ZEOOL | GEBERGEE

OlOJUOd PBIEPOSUSS (puny
SL859'091 000 GLE59'001 6600 £0'905'6ZL'291 CETLELCLTIL LY TEE'SEC'ZIL [Ejolgng
BEZSVLEL 000 68'ZSY LEL GEOD GLLL 08 LIS GLSBEL B9'069'BLZ'6EL 98 BFE' SRS L. il aNoa SEE0L BLEGEEGEGEE
69°L26L 000 B LTE'L G600 0LL7L P EZLLERE' L BE'PES 0061 4 g dHH amMoa FEZODL L LEEBEEE6E
CESHR'Y o000 GEGHEY 60D 06LL 06 899 000°G 28155 00°S CE'GFE PO0'S duy amMoE EEZ0L EFEPO0ZL-98
aFLzLe 000 O LZL'S 600 DS B 0L0'FRE'S ZE LoV GEE'R BL'BREGEE'R duly aNOE ZEEOL FEE000ZL-08
FLBEE"L 000 FLBEG'L L6070 0541 FLSEL000°2 LUETELODE PLELE LOD'E duy aMod LEZOL PELODOT.L-98
60°po0 0o 60'r99 B0 0LL'L o i TG L OEE D06 F1080°0L8 ey aNos 0108 91 BGEEEEGE
40088 00g ELE0L'S 6800 0L GE'0E0'ZSL'S LETS009R'S L5EGEECL'S duy anod PEO0L GE6A666EE

spung puog :pung

shujwes LS DY pawey pouag ajey meg anjep yooq anjes yoog anjep Jeg adi] pun4 # JUBLLSBA L] dISND
IS pHsaipy  uolEZMOWY 1salau| Syl Pt weung Mumey  eBeieay Gujuuibog Bujpug funzag

sBuiweg IS8 pasnlpy

GFL8L XL unsny

SEL aung

JELOW 'S LOG
SEHBIDOSSY B UoSIaNEd

anjep yoog abelaay uo pjai) pouad
L10Z ‘L€ Jequiedaq - LLOZ ‘L Jequadeg

punj - pung Aq pajos

sBuiuieg ysauaiu|
abs|j0n Alunwwon ojuioer ueg

FILYIIMESY § NOFEILIVE

63



Foundation Financials
November 2017



San Jacinto College Foundation
Statement of Financial Position
As of November 30, 2017

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
General Fund
Other Funds
Total Checking/Savings

Accounts Receivable

Pledge Receivables

Other Receivables

Special Events Receivables
Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets

Short Term Investments
Goldman Sachs
Capital Bank CD
Prosperity Bank

Total SJC Short Term Investments

Total Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
Event Payable
Grants Payable
Programs Payable
Endowments Payable
Scholarship Payables
Student Success Payables

Total Accounts Payable

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Equity

Net Assets

Net Income

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

$810,696

810,696

312,800
750
20,955
334,505

10,534,039
204,142
202,818

10,941,000
12,086,201

$12,086,201

635
58,137
38,959
84,071

223,806
5,719

411,326

411,326

411,326

11,476,782
198,093

11,674,875

$12,086,201

73



San Jacinto College Foundation

Statement of Activities
For the Period Ending November 30, 2017

Current Last Effect on
Year Year Net Income
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Contributions
Grant Contributions 8,280 15,810 (7,530)
Permanently Restricted 31,305 159,940 (128,635)
Program Sponsorship 112,410 57,477 54,933
Temporarily Restricted 322,138 151,706 170,432
Total Contributions 474,133 384,933 89,200
Other Income
Special Events 62,028 103,067 (41,038)
Investment Income 79,488 44,364 35,124
Realized Gain / (Loss) 15,242 1,210,882 (1,195,640)
Unrealized Gain / (Loss) 102,646 (1,277,827) 1,380,472
Total Other Income 259,404 80,485 178,919
Total Income 733,537 465,418 268,119
Expense
Programs
Scholarships Awarded 404,542 49,933 (354,608)
Grants Awarded 8,650 0 (8,650)
Programs Sponsored 59,912 66,007 6,095
Total Programs 473,104 115,940 (357,164)
Supporting Services
Management and General 11,831 8,339 (3,492)
Fundraising Expenses 47,657 78,112 30,456
Sponsorship Expense 2,852 750 (2,102)
Total Supporting Services 62,340 87,201 24,861
Total Expense 535,444 203,141 (332,302)
Net Ordinary Income 198,093 262,277 (64,184)
Other Income / Expenses
Net Other Income $198,093 $262,277 ($64,184)

74



SAN ]z"\(fl MNTO

" COLLEGE

FounDaTioN

Contributions Report
November 2017

Donors

Amount

Fund

Corporations

$32,671

County Manufacturer, Ford Asset
Scholarship, Kroger, Lady Gators
Basketball, Milton Stanley Jr. Scholarship

Foundations

120,500

George Hamman Foundation, Greater
Houston Community Foundation, North
Campus Baseball Program, Promise for
their Future

Individuals

966

Disaser Relief, East Harris County
Manufacturers, Jennifer Puryear
Memorial, North Campus Baseball
Program,

Total Donation

154,137

Employee Contributions

1,753

Brysch Garza Firefighter, Disaster Relief,
Dunseith Sr. Memorial, East Harris County
Manufacturers, Golf, John Locke
Memorial, Lady Gators Basketball,
Promise for their Future, Veteran Center

Total Contributions

$155,890

75




Foundation Financials
December 2017



San Jacinto College Foundation
Statement of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2017

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings

General Fund $1,114,841
Other Funds -
Total Checking/Savings 1,114,841

Accounts Receivable

Pledge Receivables 262,700
Special Events Receivables 20,955
Total Accounts Receivable 283,655

Other Current Assets

Short Term Investments

Goldman Sachs 10,568,674

Capital Bank CD 204,142

Prosperity Bank 202,818

Total SJC Short Term Investments 10,975,634

Total Current Assets 12,374,130
TOTAL ASSETS $12,374,130

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Event Payable 635

Grants Payable 54,963

Programs Payable 111,664

Endowments Payable 79,779

Scholarship Payables 214,287

Student Success Payables 5,719

Total Accounts Payable 467,047

Total Current Liabilities 467,047

Total Liabilities 467,047
Equity

Net Assets 11,476,782

Net Income 430,301

Total Equity 11,907,083

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY $12,374,130



San Jacinto College Foundation

Statement of Activities
For the Period Ending December 31, 2017

Current Last Effect on
Year Year Net Income
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Contributions
Grant Contributions 9,280 15,810 (6,530)
Permanently Restricted 78,835 159,940 (81,105)
Program Sponsorship 381,104 76,741 304,363
Temporarily Restricted 342,877 171,081 171,796
Total Contributions 812,096 423,572 388,524
Other Income
Special Events 67,915 105,167 (37,252)
Investment Income 151,388 95,638 55,750
Realized Gain / (Loss) 15,242 1,210,774 (1,195,532)
Unrealized Gain / (Loss) 65,472 (1,258,850) 1,324,323
Total Other Income 300,017 152,728 147,289
Total Income 1,112,113 576,300 535,813
Expense
Programs
Scholarships Awarded 495,286 57,944 (437,341)
Grants Awarded 8,650 0 (8,650)
Programs Sponsored 104,846 75,811 (29,035)
Student Success Initiatives 0 14,277 14,277
Total Programs 608,782 148,032 (460,749)
Supporting Services
Management and General 15,645 17,601 1,956
Fundraising Expenses 47,657 78,996 31,340
Sponsorship Expense 9,728 750 (8,978)
Total Supporting Services 73,030 97,347 24,317
Total Expense 681,811 245,379 (436,432)
Net Ordinary Income 430,301 330,921 99,381
Other Income / Expenses
Net Other Income $330,921 $99,381

_$43030L

78



SAN JAC

INTCO

" COLLEGE

FounpaTioN

Contributions Report
December 2017

Donors

Amount

Fund

Corporations

$287,658

Bank of America Foundation, Bob &
Doylene Perry Scholarship, Brenda
Hellyer Scholarship, Dow Chemical
Foundation, Energy Venture, Ford Asset
Scholarship, Gala, Lady Gator's
Basketball, Milton Stanley Jr., North
Campus Baseball, PETC Careers,
Process Technology Building, South
Campus Baseball, Veterans Center

Foundations

91,500

Albemarle, Sinor Industrial Technology
Scholarship, Veterans Center

Individuals

7,800

Alumni Fund, Disaster Relief, Jennifer
Puryear Scholarship, John B. "Jack" Niday
Scholarship, Joseph Cantalamessa
Scholarship, Joy Ruth Niday Scholarship,
Pope Cosmetology Scholarship, Promise
for their Future, Sue & Jerry Chapman
Scholarship, Wynell Phelps Scholarship

Total Donation

386,958

Employee Contributions

7,427

Brysch Garza Firefighter Scholarship,
Disaster Relief, Dunseith Sr. Memorial
Fund, Gala, Golf, John Locke Memorial
Fund, Promise for their Future, Veterans
Center,

Total Contributions

$394,385

79




2008 Bond Program

Report As of December 31, 2017

Project

Base Budget

Budget
Adjustments

Current
Budget

Executed
Change Orders

Encumbered

Funds

YTD
Expenditures

Remaining
Balance

Percent of
Budget
Encumbered/
Expensed

2612 - NC Plant Chiller 14,225 1,721,732 1,735,957 - 123,440 1,590,008 22,509 98.70%
Sub-total 14,225 1,721,732 1,735,957 - 123,440 1,590,008 22,509 98.70%
3914 - SC Softball Improvements 850,000 - 850,000 - 207,813 37,440 604,747 28.85%
Sub-total 850,000 - 850,000 - 207,813 37,440 604,747 28.85%
720100 - Program Management - 552,501 552,501 - 18,845 16,418 517,238 6.38%
726800 - Contingency 14,626,260 (11,525,610) 3,100,650 - - - 3,100,650 -
726907 - Graphics Phase I 50,000 - 50,000 - - 41,618 8,382 83.24%
Sub-total 14,676,260 (10,973,109) 3,703,151 - 18,845 58,036 3,626,270 2.08%
721911 - CC OR Electric Bed - 19,146 19,146 - 19,146 - - 100.00%
721914 - CC Engine Driver Welder - 18,288 18,288 - 120 18,168 - 100.00%
721915 - CC Police Vehicles - 110,000 110,000 - 99,672 - 10,328 90.61%
721916 - CC FS Passenger Van - 85,000 85,000 - - - 85,000 -
721917 - CC FS Pick-Up/Mini Van - 80,000 80,000 - 77,729 - 2,271 97.16%
722912 - NC Cardiac Monitor - 20,312 20,312 - - 8,995 11,317 44.28%
722913 - NC Nursing Kelley - 25,914 25,914 - 4,563 19,822 1,529 94.10%
722915 - NC Monument Room AV Update - 20,818 20,818 - 20,818 - - 100.00%
723916 - SC SimMan 3G - 91,378 91,378 - - 90,568 810 99.11%
726909 - Dist Network/Wireless Equipment - 784,920 784,920 - 209,731 571,139 4,050 99.48%
726910 - Dist Juniper Switches - 902,012 902,012 - - 902,012 - 100.00%
726911 - Dist Enterprise Applications: ILP - 81,034 81,034 - 30,240 49,725 1,069 98.68%
726912 - Dist MAC Computer Refresh - 615,000 615,000 - 301,232 - 313,768 48.98%
726913 - Dist Dell Lease Refresh/Bond Comp - 125,000 125,000 - 9,840 - 115,160 7.87%
726918 - Dist Marketing Website Devel - 250,000 250,000 - 200,000 - 50,000 80.00%
726919 - Dist Marketing Printer - 7,500 7,500 - 2,500 - 5,000 33.33%
726810- 2008 Contingency Supplemental Projects - 962,697 962,697 - - - 962,697 -
Sub-total - 4,199,019 4,199,019 - 975,591 1,660,429 1,562,999 62.78%
Proje osed
Sub-total 279,459,515 5,052,357 284,511,872 (245,084) - 284,511,872 - 100.00%
TOTALS 295,000,000 - 295,000,000 (245,084) 1,325,689 287,857,785 5,816,526 98.03%




2015 Revenue Bond Program
Final As of December 31, 2017
. Budget Current | Executed Change | Encumbered YTD Remaining| Percent of Budget
Project Base Budget| , . "
Adjustments| Budget Orders Funds Expenditures| Balance |Encumbered/Expensed
North - CIT
722909 - North CIT 47,591,645 - | 47,591,645 182,215 302,890 42,128,811 5,159,944 89.16%,
726908 - Dist Campus Purchases - 748,950 748,950 - - 748,950 - 100.00%
Contingency (726900) 2,408,355 (748,950) 1,659,405 - - - 1,659,405 -
Sub-total 50,000,000 - | 50,000,000 182,215 302,890 42,877,761 6,819,349 86.36%

81



2015 Bond Program

Report as of December 31, 2017

Percent of
. Budget Current |Executed| Encumbered YTD Remaining Budget
Project Base Budget . -
Adjustments| Budget | Change Funds Expenditures | Balance |Encumbered/
Orders Expensed

Central
1601 - CC Petrochemical Center 52,450,000 337,630 | 52,787,630 - 40,677,520 3,263,364 8,846,746 83.24%
1601A - CC Petrochem Process Plant - 7,630,389 7,630,389 - 44,338 672,922 6,913,129 9.40%
1601B - CC Petrochem Extended Site Development - 7,946,009 7,946,009 - 3,259,299 3,055,942 1,630,768 79.48%
1602 - CC Welcome Center 16,600,000 2,938,463 | 19,538,463 - 870,779 282,138 18,385,546 5.90%
1602A - CC Welcome Center Site Development - 3,000,000 3,000,000 - 72,963 1,062 2,925,975 2.47%
1603 - CC Class Room Building 47,155,000 (1,113,647)] 46,041,353 - 18,029 421,855 45,601,469 0.96%
1604 - CC Central Data Closets 2,444,000 (57,718)] 2,386,282 - 204,833 39,351 2,142,098 10.23%
1605 - CC Central Access Security 1,852,000 (564,532) 1,287,468 - - 44,402 1,243,066 3.45%
1606 - CC Frels Demo 1,153,000 - 1,153,000 - 50,824 - 1,102,176 4.41%
1607 - CC Davison Building Reno 14,970,000 (353,542)] 14,616,458 - 9,500 115,088 14,491,870 0.85%
1608 - CC McCollum Center Reno 24,685,000 (582,987)] 24,102,013 - 45,078 189,654 23,867,281 0.97%
1609 - CC McCollum North Reno 2,535,000 (59,868)] 2,475,132 - - 19,477 2,455,655 0.79%
1610 - CC Ball Demo 1,725,000 - 1,725,000 - 248 - 1,724,752 0.01%
1611 - CC Anderson Demo 2,654,000 (62,680)] 2,591,320 - 373 20,390 2,570,557 0.80%
1612 - CC Stadium and Track Demo 174,000 (4,109) 169,891 - 43,665 9,337 116,889 31.20%.
1613 - CC Central DDC Network 1,160,000 (27,393)] 1,132,607 - 112,859 134,872 884,876 21.87%
1614 - CC Central Plant Upgrades 1,160,000 (27,393)] 1,132,607 - 70,388 17,958 1,044,261 7.80%

Sub-total 170,717,000 18,998,622 | 189,715,622 - 45,480,696 8,287,812 | 135,947,114 28.34%
North
2601 - NC Cosmetology & Culinary Center 22,845,000 (539,529)] 22,305,471 - 930,503 284,732 21,090,236 5.45%
2602 - NC North Data Closets 915,000 (21,616) 893,384 - 214,415 35,480 643,489 27.97%
2604 - NC Lehr Library Demo 650,000 (15,356) 634,644 - 35,694 183,124 415,826 34.48%
2605 - NC North Access/Security 877,000 100,687 977,687 - 37 29,373 948,277 3.01%
2606 - NC Wheeler Reno 14,300,000 (337,719)] 13,962,281 - 19,330 110,371 13,832,580 0.93%
2607 - NC Brightwell Reno 6,628,000 (156,525)] 6,471,475 - 4,300 50,931 6,416,244 0.85%
2608 - NC Spencer Reno 13,000,000 (307,023)] 12,692,977 - 8,170 99,877 12,584,930 0.85%
2609 - NC North DDC Network 580,000 (13,696) 566,304 - 60,045 56,368 449,891 20.56%
2610 - NC Underground Utility Tunnel 11,600,000 (6,100,000)[ 5,500,000 - 274,296 176,836 5,048,868 8.20%
2612 - NC Uvalde Expansion 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 -

Sub-total 76,395,000 7,390,777)] 69,004,223 - 1,546,790 1,027,092 66,430,341 3.73%

3601 - SC Engineering & Technology Center 28,400,000 (670,716)| 27,729,284 - 1,132,664 329,332 26,267,288 5.27%
3602 - SC Cosmetology Center 16,213,000 (382,892)| 15,830,108 - 737,335 203,546 14,889,227 5.94%
3603 - SC Longenecker Reno 22,555,000 (532,682)] 22,022,318 - 69,173 211,234 21,741,911 1.27%
3604 - SC South Data Closets 765,000 (18,070) 746,930 - 178,101 22,257 546,572 26.82%
3605 - SC South Primary Electrical Upgrade 5,800,000 (136,979) 5,663,021 - - 44,561 5,618,460 0.79%
3606 - SC South Access/ Security 599,000 218,859 817,859 - 10 23,524 794,325 2.88%
3607 - SC South HW/CW Relocation 10,266,000 (242,456)| 10,023,544 - - 78,869 9,944,675 0.79%
3608 - SC South Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 1,160,000 (27,393) 1,132,607 - - 8,915 1,123,692 0.79%
3610 - SC Jones Reno 13,803,000 (325,980)| 13,477,020 - - 106,054 13,370,966 0.79%
3611 - SC Bruce Student Center Reno 10,400,000 (245,615)| 10,154,385 227,250 9,786 2,039,025 8,105,574 20.18%
3612 - SC HVAC Tech 312,000 2,042,899 2,354,899 - 21,231 76,706 2,256,962 4.16%
3613 - SC South DDC Network 580,000 (13,697) 566,303 - 81,751 70,023 414,529 26.80%
Sub-total 110,853,000 (334,722)| 110,518,278 227,250 2,230,051 3,214,046 105,074,181 4.93%

6603 - MC Maritime Expansion 28,000,000 (13,000,000)] 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000 -
Sub-total 28,000,000 (13,000,000)| 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000 -

6602 - College Development 30,000,000 - | 30,000,000 - - - 30,000,000 -
6604 - Dist Construction Studies - 366,510 366,510 - 55,136 302,713 8,661 97.64%
6605 - Dist Access/Security - 166,400 166,400 - - 3,747 162,653 2.25%
720100 - Program Management - 7,032,123 7,032,123 - 2,015,352 429,573 4,587,198 34.77%
736601 - Contingency - 3,196,844 3,196,844 - - - 3,196,844 -
Sub-total 30,000,000 10,761,877 | 40,761,877 - 2,070,488 736,033 37,955,356 6.89%

2603 - NC Chiller Plant Replacement 1,450,000 (1,450,000) - - - - - -
2611 - NC 24 Acres Wetlands Mitigation 2,000,000 (2,000,000) - - - - - -
3609 - SC Fire House Expansion 5,585,000 (5,585,000) - - - - - -
Sub-total 9,035,000 (9,035,000) - - - - - -

TOTALS 425,000,000 - | 425,000,000 227,250 51,328,025 13,264,983 360,406,992 15.20%

82



Energy Conservation and Air Monitoring Project

As of December 31, 2017

E17001 - Energy Project

Executed Percent of
Proiect Base Budget Current Chanae Encumbered YTD Remaining Budget
] Budget | Adjustments | Budget 9 Funds Expenditures | Balance [(Encumbered/
Orders
Expensed

1,061,790

1,061,790

292,908

College Wide
768,598 284 99.97%

Contingency

1,400,000

(1,061,790)

338,210

338,210

Sub-total

1,400,000

1,400,000

292,908

768,598

338,494

75.82%

83



Repair and Renovation

Report As of December 31, 2017

North
F18002 NC - North Misc.

20,000

20,000 - 3,489

Percent of
Moved to i
. Base Budget Current | Executed Total . Remaining Budget

Project . Encumbered . Construction
Budget | Adjustments| Budget | Change Expenditures | . Balance Encumbered

Funds in Process
Orders IExpensed
F18001 CC - Central Misc. - 20,000 20,000 - 2,864 - - 17,136 14.32%
Sub-total - 20,000 20,000 - 2,864 - - 17,136 14.32%

16,511

17.45%

F18003 SC - South Misc.

Sub-total

20,000

20,000

20,000 = 3,489

20,000 - 1,847

16,511

18,153

17.45%

9.24%

Sub-total

20,000

20,000 - 1,847

18,153

9.24%

F18004 Dist - College Administration Misc. - 10,000 10,000 - 4,096 - - 5,904 40.96%
F18008 Dist - A..1 Restroom ADA Renovation - 49,700 49,700 - 16,400 - - 33,300 33.00%
Sub-total - 59,700 59,700 - 20,496 - - 39,204 34.33%
Contingency (720700) 1,070,684 (119,700) 950,984 - - - - 950,984 -
Sub-total| 1,070,684 (119,700) 950,984 - - - - 950,984 -
TOTALS 1,070,684 -| 1,070,684 - 28,696 - - 1,041,988 2.68%

84



SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT
Building Committee Meeting
January 23, 2018

Members Present: Dan Mims, John Moon, Jr., Marie Flickinger

Members Absent: Erica Davis Rouse

Others Trustees Present: None

Others Present: Bill Dowell, Brenda Hellyer, Ken English (AECOM), Chuck Gremillion

(C3), Mike Harris, Mini lzaguirre, Bryan Jones, Angela Klaus, Ann
Kokx-Templet, Jeff Parks, Frank Rizzo (Rizzo & Assoc.), Janet Slocum,
Charles Smith, Teri Zamora

The meeting was called to order at 4:03 p.m. by Committee Chair, Dan Mims.

Roll Call of Committee Members by Dan Mims
a. John Moon, Jr., present
b. Marie Flickinger, present
c. Other Trustees present: None
d. Members absent: Erica Davis Rouse

Approval of Minutes from the November 28, 2017 Building Committee Meeting

a. Dan Mims presented the minutes of the November 28, 2017 Building Committee
meeting. A motion was made by John Moon, Jr. to accept the minutes as presented. This
was seconded by Marie Flickinger. The minutes were approved as presented.

Construction Career Collaborative (C3)

a. Chuck Gremillion, Executive Director of Construction Career Collaborative (C3) was
introduced to the meeting attendees. His presentation explained the purpose for the C3
organization and its potential benefits to the College. Questions were posed and discussed
after the presentation. It is recommended that one 2015 Bond project be used as a pilot to
test the program and gauge the benefits to the College. The proposed project is the
Central Campus Welcome Center. At the February 5, 2018 Board Meeting, an action will
be presented with an overview of the program.

Recommended Projects and Delivery Methods which will provide the best value to the College
(led by Bryan Jones)

a. Consideration of Approval of Architectural Programming Services for the North Campus
Spencer, Brightwell, and Wheeler Building Renovations

i.  This initiative will provide for architectural programming services necessary for
the design of the Spencer, Brightwell, and Wheeler building renovation projects.
Architectural programming defines the detailed requirements to be supported in
the renovated space. These details are gathered collaboratively by the
programmer from all stakeholders and are used to establish the facilities related
instructional requirements, physical adjacencies, space allocation, and equipment

85



Building Committee Minutes

January 23, 2018

requirements. While the three buildings are considered separate projects under
the 2015 Bond Program, they will be managed together due to the buildings
being connected.

It is proposed that HKS Architects be selected for this work with a proposed
expenditure of $172,720.

b. Consideration of Approval to Contract for South Campus Softball Training Facility

Approval of this request will authorize IKLO Construction as the contractor for
the construction of a new softball training facility. A request for Competitive
Sealed Proposals, Project number 18-13, was issued to procure services for this
project. There were three responses to the solicitation. A team comprised of
representatives from Facilities Services, South Campus administration, and
AECOM evaluated the proposals. They determined IKLO Construction would
provide the best value to the College and could complete the project within the
established budget.

The proposed expenditure amount for this request will not exceed $580,000.
Dr. Hellyer explained that the team is working diligently to stay within the
$850,000 overall budget for improvements to the softball facilities. This may
require the delay or reduction in scope of the components.

c. Consideration of Approval of a Contract for Architectural Services for the South Campus
HVAC Tech Building Renovation

Approval of this request will authorize a contract with Huitt-Zollars to provide
architectural design services for the South Campus HVAC Tech Building
renovation project. These services are required to develop the detailed plans and
documents necessary to obtain construction bids and permits from the city of
Houston.

The proposed expenditure amount for this request is $100,763.

d. Consideration of Approval of Method of Procurement for Building Repairs on the South
Campus HVAC Tech Building

This request provides for use of the Job Order Contracting (JOC) method of
procurement for building repairs at the South Campus HVAC Tech Building.
During a facility assessment of the building, certain exterior wall and structural
deficiencies were identified that require repair. It is recommended that the
identified repairs be performed in advance of the renovation work in order to
support the overall renovation schedule.

e. Consideration of Approval of Contractor for Building Repairs on the South Campus
HVAC Tech Building

This request provides for Construction Masters of Houston to deliver the building
repairs at the South Campus HVAC Tech Building. During the facility
assessment of this building, certain exterior wall and structural deficiencies were
identified that require repair. Construction Masters of Houston has a contract
through the Choice Partners cooperative contracts program to provide JOC
services.

86



Building Committee Minutes

January 23, 2018

The proposed expenditure amount for this request will not exceed $75,000.

f.  Consideration of Approval of Method of Procurement for South Campus Longenecker
Building Renovation

Approval of this request will allow the Construction Manager-at-Risk (CMR)
method of procurement for South Campus Longenecker Building renovation.
CMR has proven to be an effective procurement methodology that
accommodates flexibility in scope development while maintaining control of risk
and assures delivery of good value for projects of this type and magnitude.

g. Consideration of Approval of a Contract for Architectural Services for South Campus
Longenecker Building Renovation

This request provides for authorization to enter into a contract for architectural
design services for the South Campus Longenecker Building renovation. The
scope of the renovations will include recommendations from the programming
and feasibility study developed by Page architects dated August 24, 2017.
Additionally, the renovations will address existing regulatory and ADA
requirements, architectural, civil, mechanical-electrical-plumbing, and structural
concerns. The architectural design work is required to develop detailed plans
necessary to bid the renovation project and obtain construction permits from the
city of Houston.

It is proposed that Page Southerland Page Architects be selected for this work
with a proposed expenditure of $995,077.

h. Consideration of Approval to Purchase Records Management Software

This request provides for purchase of Perceptive Intelligent Capture for
Transcripts software from Lexmark Enterprise Software, LLC for the College
Registrar and Records Management department. Perceptive Intelligent Capture
for Transcripts is an optical character recognition software that will enable the
Registrar and Records Management department to efficiently capture relevant
data from PDF, EDI and paper transcripts, while automatically uploading the
data into Banner. This project is a 2008 Bond supplemental contingency project.
The proposed expenditure amount for this request will not exceed $284,954.

i. Consideration of Approval of Contracts for Architectural Services for Early College High
School Renovation Projects

This request provides for contracts with Board approved architectural firms to
provide design services for the renovation of buildings, Central Campus Frels
Building (C-20), North Campus Burleson Classroom (N-7), South Campus
Academic Wing-North (S-7), and South Campus Academic Wing-South (S-9) to
support Early College High School (ECHS) activities on San Jacinto College
Campuses.

The spaces being supplied to the ECHS programs all require some level of
renovation in order to make them suitable for use by high school students under
the current building codes. These renovations include revisions to mechanical
systems, life safety systems, and accessibility compliance, as well as addressing

87



Building Committee Minutes

January 23, 2018

cosmetic concerns.

In order to ensure that all issues that could impact the renovations are identified
and properly evaluated, authorization is requested to engage the following
architectural firms to provide building assessment and renovation design
services:

Gensler at an estimated fee of $291,143 for South Campus Academic Wing -
North (S-7) and South Campus Academic Wing — South (S-9)

HKS Architects at an estimated fee of $160,063 for Central Campus Frels
Building (C-20)

Kirksey Architects at an estimated fee of $127,323 for North Campus Burleson
Classroom (N-7)

j- Consideration of Approval of Method of Procurement for College Administration East
Building Renovations

This request provides for use of the Job Order Contracting (JOC) method of
procurement for renovations required at the College Administration East (Al)
Building. The proposed project provides for mandatory accessibility compliance
renovations on the first floor of the building and at the adjacent parking lots. The
JOC procurement method is requested for this project in order to provide timely
and accurate correction of these issues.

Dr. Hellyer recommended that 2008 Bond contingency funds be used for this
project.

k. Consideration of Approval of Contractor for College Administration East Building
Renovations

This request provides for use of Construction Masters of Houston for renovations
required at the College Administration East (A1) Building. Construction Masters
has a contract through the Choice Partners cooperative contracts program to
provide JOC services, and complies with the competitive procurement
requirement. Additionally, Construction Masters has proven to be a reputable
supplier of renovations of this nature with past projects.

The proposed expenditure amount for this request will not exceed $136,000.

I.  Consideration of Approval to Grant Utility Easements

This request provides for authorization to grant, sell, and convey two narrow
parcels of land to Harris County as easements to construct traffic signals and
wheelchair ramp/sidewalks at the northeast and northwest corners of Central
Campus. The County will work with the College to coordinate the timing and the
extent of the construction of the improvements within the easement areas. The
County will ensure that there is access to either Cunningham Road or Luella
Avenue and that construction does not cause the closure of both entrances to the
College to occur simultaneously.

In consideration for grating the easements, the College will receive $4,500 and
$4,382 in compensation for each easement, respectively.

VI.  Project Updates — Bond — (presentation led by Chuck Smith)

88



Building Committee Minutes

January 23, 2018

a. Safety Data

Reporting safety data with man-hours worked provides a neutral measure that
allows individual projects to be compared in a meaningful way.

Examples were given of the type of conditions reported as “at risk” and would
require immediate corrective action. Examples of items falling in this condition
are: unguarded or poorly guarded holes or hazards, trenches that have walls more
than four-foot-high, ladders that fail to provide at least three feet of climbing
height above their exit surface, and material being moved without the required
number of tag lines or other methods to prevent the load form shifting or
swinging.

Field observations at construction sites continue to be made by College Facilities
Services personnel.

b. Master Bond Program Schedule

Weather issues have negatively impacted the construction timeline. The
Petrochemical project has suffered a one-month delay due to weather. Recovery
of schedule during the construction phase seems feasible.

The Welcome Center has incurred a two-month delay in design.

The South Campus HVAC project will be pushed back by two months due to the
replacement of the architect firm.

The South Campus utility projects and Longenecker renovations have been
adjusted to reflect administrative realities.

c. South Campus — Softball Improvements

The foundation work for the bleachers began last week after the permit was
issued by the City of Houston. The cold weather conditions hindered the work,
however the foundation should be completed within one week. This will allow
the bleachers to be installed by mid-February. Upon Board approval to engage
IKLO Construction, a contract will be issued to begin the work on the practice
building.

d. Central Campus — Petrochem

Construction continues but has been delayed by the recent cold weather. Warmer
temperatures are required for proper lime stabilization and concrete curing.
Building pads are complete and piers are greater than 80% complete. Some of the
roadways on the east and south sides of the building have begun to be poured.
Pouring of the building slab is scheduled to begin in February.

e. Central Campus — Welcome Center

The project team met with the building stakeholders to review details of their
departmental spaces to ensure that the current building design meets their
expectations. This latest meeting resulted in final minor adjustments of the
design. The building will soon move into the schematic design phase.

f.  Central Campus — Central Plant

89



Building Committee Minutes

January 23, 2018

A retro-commissioning study was completed in early December 2017 and was
reviewed by College and program management firm staff in January. This
resulted in minor changes in scope and identified a number of deferred
maintenance items. The next steps for this project are completion of the design
package and bidding of the construction package. There will be no further
updates until we bring forward the procurement package in summer 2018.

g. Central Campus — Stadium and Track Demolition

The stadium structure and related above ground items have been removed. The
paving has been left in place to provide a staging area for the construction of the
Welcome Center. The demolition phase of the project came in under budget and
it is recommended that these funds be reallocated to bond contingency.

h. Central Campus — Davison Building

Environmental studies for the presence of lead and asbestos were conducted
earlier in January 2018 with results anticipated by end of month. Kirksey
Architects has been engaged to conduct a full facility assessment including
architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, and accessibility
concerns. The report will provide information necessary to generate a renovation
cost estimate.

i. North Campus — Cosmetology and Culinary

The design development phase is 50% complete. The team is working with
stakeholders to identify the fixtures and vocational furniture that will be
incorporated into the programs.

The request from last month to have a more modern exterior building design is
being developed by the architect.

j- North Campus — Underground Utility Tunnel

Design is essentially complete. A solicitation package is expected to be brought
before the Board in May 2018.

The tunnel was toured by FEMA and College staff to determine if any
reimbursement for damage incurred as a result of Hurricane Harvey can be
expected. An upgrade in piping insulation to a material known as FOAMGLAS®
is being considered. This product is impervious to water and cannot be damaged
by water submersion. This further supports the previous philosophy of defending
the tunnel in place, and not removing.

k. North Campus — Spencer, Brightwell, and Wheeler Renovation

Upon approval by the Board at the February 2018 meeting, engagement with HKS
Architect will begin. A full facility assessment will include architectural,
structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, life safety, and accessibility concerns.
This will provide information necessary for a project cost estimate.

90



Building Committee Minutes
January 23, 2018

I.  South Campus — Cosmetology Building

i.  The schematic design for the building was approved by the departmental
stakeholders and campus Provost in December 2017. The design development
phase is 33% complete.

m. South Campus — Engineering & Technology Building

i.  Campus stakeholders provided input in December of the schematic design.
The architect and contractor have conducted meetings to refine the design to
reduce estimated costs. It is expected that this information will be available in the
February 2018 Building Committee meeting.

n. South Campus — HVAC Building

i.  With Board approval in February, the project will proceed with detailed design
and pre-construction building repairs.

0. South Campus — Longenecker Renovation

i.  Page Architects submitted their draft design. College personnel have reviewed
and returned the information with comments. It has been determined there is not
enough space to fit all of the requested components into the building. Other
options are being considered.

p. Campus Wide — Direct Digital Control (DDC) Network

i.  Phase I of the project is nearing completion. Work at the South Campus
Welcome Center, North Campus Library, Interactive Learning Center and
Maritime Campus are scheduled for completion at the end of January 2018.

g. Campus Wide — Data Closets

i.  Submittals have been provided and material has been ordered for the North
Campus. Permitting questions remain for Central and South Campuses which the
team is working to resolve. It is expected that these issues will be resolved
within two to four weeks.

r. Areas Impacting Construction Costs

i. A study was conducted by MGAC consulting for cost impact in Texas due to
Hurricane Harvey. The study was conducted in San Antonio, two-hundred miles
away, and the city was not impacted to the degree that was seen in Houston. The
study showed a minimum expected cost increase of 5%.

ii. A study conducted by the University of Florida reported an expected increase of
8% due to the 2015 State Mandated International Energy Conservation Code.

iii.  Pricing of current new construction projects reflecting a 13% cost increase for
new construction reflects the figures observed in excess of budget. The team
continue to review ways to adjust pricing but it is anticipated that a budget
realignment proposal on several projects will be presented in the next few

91



Building Committee Minutes
January 23, 2018

VIL.

VIII.

months.
Financial Report — 2008 Bond, 2008 Supplemental Bond, 2015 Revenue, and 2015 Bond Projects
a. 2008 Bond
i.  The supplemental contingency projects are shown on the spreadsheet. Each
project will be added to the report as the projects are approved for expenditure
and begin the procurement process.
b. 2015 Revenue Bond

i.  The CIT Building project is in close-out and is operating normally.

c. 2015 Bond Projects
i.  No items noted

Operating Fund Report (R&R)
a. LED Lighting & Air Monitoring Project
i.  The air quality monitoring station is working at South Campus.
ii.  LED lighting project is scheduled to be completed by March 31, 2018.
Change in start time of the Building Committee Meetings
i.  Due to the number of discussion items related to the 2015 Bond Program, the
Chancellor recommended that the meeting start time be changed to 3:30 p.m. for

future Building Committee meetings. The members agreed.

Adjournment — The meeting was adjourned at 5:18 p.m.

92



Action Item “IX”

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of Amendment to the 2017-2018 Budget

for Restricted Revenue and Expenses Relating to Federal and State Grants

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve an amendment to the 2017-
2018 budget for restricted revenue and expenses related to grants.

BACKGROUND

Federal, state, and local grants may require amendments for receipt of newly awarded grants or
changes to existing grants. These amendments should be processed in a timely manner in order
to provide the access to funding to meet the objectives set forth within the grant requirements.
This budget amendment request includes the additions to restricted revenues and restricted
expenses as a result of new awards and changes to existing grants received during the months of
December 2017 and January 2018.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

Approval of the budget amendment will allow the College’s staff to implement the programs in
accordance with the requirements of funded award amounts.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

Restricted revenues and restricted expenses will each be increased by $327,599, so the net
impact on the College budget is zero.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The Office of Grants Management provides continuous monitoring of grant operations, which
are included in the annual financial report to the Board of Trustees.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1- Budget Amendments-02-05-18
Attachment 2- Grant Detail-02-05-18

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Teri Zamora 281-998-6306 teri.zamora@sjcd.edu
Michael Lee Moore 281-998-6162 michael.moore@sjcd.edu

93


mailto:michael.moore@sjcd.edu

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT
Federal, State, and Local Grant Amendments
February 5, 2018

Fund Org. Account Prog.

Amount
Debit
(Credit)

U.S. Department of Agriculture/University of Texas at El Paso - San Jacinto Community College
District - Wheels of Change (Year 2)

Federal Grant Revenue 531002 56700 554100 110000
PT - Extra Service Agreements 531002 56700 614200 360931
Benefits 531002 56700 651000 360931
Student Travel - Lodging 531002 56700 721315 360931
Student Travel - Meals 531002 56700 721335 360931
Contract Svcs-Indirect Cost/Grants 531002 56700 731500 620909
S/A - Stipends 531002 56700 751140 520235

U.S. Department of Labor/Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board - Apprenticeship Crosswalk
Leadership Grant 2017-2018 (New Grant)

Federal Grant Revenue 531717 56700 554100 110000

Operating Supplies- Consumable 531717 56700 711410 460961

Texas Workforce Commission - San Jacinto Community College District in Partnership with a
Manufacturing Consortium (New Grant)

State Grant Revenue 551031 56699 554200 110000
Non-Instructional Labor - Staff 551031 56700 612000 460961
Fringe Benefits 551031 56700 651000 460961
S/A Departmental Scholarships T&F 551031 56700 751009 520235

Dow Gives Community Grants - Helping Hands: Houston's Hallmark on Hurricane

Harvey (H6 Project) (New Grant)
Local Grant Revenue 571049 56700 554300 110000
Operating Supplies - Consumable 571049 56700 711410 465817

Houston Astros Foundation / San Jacinto College Foundation - SJC Adult Literacy
Bridge Program (ALBP) (New Grant)

Local Grant Revenue 571050 56700 554300 110000
Labor - Instructional 571050 56700 620000 460911
Benefits 571050 56700 650000 460911
Supplies 571050 56700 711110 460911
Contractual Services 571050 56700 731110 460911

Net Increase (Decrease)

Note: Credits to revenues are increases and credits to expenses are decreases.
Conversely, debits to revenue are decreases and debits to expenses are increases.

New Grant and Additional Funding Summary by Agency:

U.S. Department of Agriculture $ 19,999
U.S. Department of Labor 14,164
Texas Workforce Commission 275,402
The Dow Chemical Company Foundation 9,754
Houston Astros Foundation 8,280

$327,599

Attachment 1- Budget Amendments-02-05-18

(19,999)
3,156
64
3,000
1,000
1,526
11,253

(14,164)
14,164

(275,402)
27,214
8,708

239,480

(9,754)
9,754

(8,280)
2,970
82
550
4,678

94



February 5, 2018 Board Book — Grant Amendments Detail List

U.S. Department of Agriculture/University of Texas at El Paso - San Jacinto Community College
District - Wheels of Change (Year 2)

San Jacinto Community College District (SJCCD) will develop and implement modules for
engineering applications in agricultural sciences. These proposed modules will be implemented
in at least two courses: Introduction to Engineering and Engineering Economics. Six students per
year who indicate a high interest in the field of agricultural sciences will be recruited from these
courses. They will be encouraged to prepare for careers related to agricultural sciences through
incentives that will include a stipend, cohort activities and community, and visits to the
agricultural labs of our four-year partner institution, Texas A & M Kingsville.

U.S. Department of Labor/Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board - Apprenticeship
Crosswalk Leadership Grant 2017-2018 (New Grant)

Community colleges across the state of Texas are collaborating with industry on formal
apprenticeship programs. Most of these programs do not offer college credit for the instruction
that the apprentices receive. The purpose of this grant is to develop crosswalks in specific college
majors that can equate to the student learning objectives that are part of the related instruction
required of all apprentices. SJICCD will lead an effort to standardize this process by working
with colleges currently receiving apprenticeship grants through the Chapter 133 federal
apprenticeship program passed on by the Texas Workforce Commission. SJICCD will invite the
partner institutions to a series of workshops that will identify student learning outcomes in one or
more of the programs that they are currently sponsoring. The partners will then cross-walk them
with specific courses that their college or another college in the state currently offers. Since all of
those courses are official Workforce Education Course Manual courses, any college in the state
will be able to calculate the appropriate number of credits to which apprentices are entitled.

Dow Gives Community Grants - Helping Hands: Houston's Hallmark on Hurricane Harvey (H6
Project) (New Grant)

SJCCD will conduct a Mind Trekkers-style STEM experience for middle school teachers and
students from local Independent School Districts (ISD) that were impacted by Hurricane Harvey.
The first component of the project will consist of SJICCD science faculty training eight middle
school teachers on eleven science experiment activities the day before the STEM outreach event.
The second component is the STEM outreach event, where 1SD students will each be able to
explore all of the science activities in a fun, engaging atmosphere at SJCCD. ISD teachers will
attend the event with their students and enjoy the fun! Afterwards, the teachers will receive the
H6 Project activity Kits, on which they were trained, to be kept and reused within their own
school's science department. The eleven science activities will cover science college concepts to
help reinforce relevant content.

Attachment 2- Grant Detail -02-05-18

95



Houston Astros Foundation / San Jacinto College Foundation - SJCCD Adult Literacy Bridge
Program (ALBP) (New Grant)

The ALBP pilot project will provide an alternative pathway to building and improving
comprehension of reading, analysis of written material, and written expression of ideas. This will
enhance the foundation necessary to achieve successful literacy scores on the Texas Success
Initiative Assessment entrance exam. This program will provide participants with a 5-week
course prior to the start of a semester, designed to offer a bridge from entry-level knowledge and
skills to post-secondary coursework. The program is specifically targeted to students who have
earned a high school diploma, or are about to graduate, but have not yet demonstrated the skills
needed to be successful in college. Additionally targeted are those who completed high school
and entered the workforce and who now want to complete a post-secondary education credential.
For this initial pilot project, we expect to serve a total of 60 students. The outcomes will be
evaluated for potential expansion opportunities.

Texas Workforce Commission - San Jacinto Community College District in Partnership with a
Manufacturing Consortium (New Grant)

Kaneka North America (KNA) and E.l. DuPont De Nemours (EIDPDN) will receive training to
address a shortage of senior, experienced process operators and maintenance technicians due to
attrition and promotions. The training program will also address new and advanced equipment
used for production. The Skills Development Fund grant will provide KNA with the opportunity
to provide the necessary training to help close identified skills gaps and assist in strengthening
the skills set of less experienced operators. The grant program will also provide EIDPDN an
opportunity to upgrade the training of current and new employees, so they can realize continued
success as new and advanced equipment is purchased.

Attachment 2- Grant Detail -02-05-18

96



Action Item “X”

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of Membership in the Construction Careers Collaborative for
Construction of the Central Campus Welcome Center

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees authorize the Chancellor to enroll
San Jacinto College as a member of the Construction Careers Collaborative on a pilot basis
for the Central Campus Welcome Center construction project.

BACKGROUND

The Construction Career Collaborative (C3) is a not-for-profit alliance of construction
owners, contractors, design professionals, and trade organizations working to create a
sustainable and skilled construction craft workforce for the Greater Houston Region. It is
required that the work force of C3 member companies be paid as W-2 employees, with
overtime pay, worker’s compensation insurance, OSHA credentials, and on-going craft and
safety training.

In preparing this request, the administration contacted five industry leaders with C3
experience. Universally, the respondents applauded C3’s goals and acknowledged a critical
need to improve the supply of skilled trades workers in the Houston region. These industry
leaders believed that C3 will result in better built, higher quality buildings with longer useful
lives. In addition, respondents pointed to the positive safety impacts of C3 participation, with
the Recordable Incidence Rate for all C3 projects to date being more than five times better
than the national construction industry average.

It is proposed that the C3 program be used with the construction of the Central Campus
Welcome Center in order to validate the actual cost or managerial impacts attributable to C3
participation.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

Participation in C3 visibly positions San Jacinto College as a leader in the development of a
high quality trades workforce. Should the assertions of C3 proponents prove true, the College
will also be making an investment in the quality of future building projects and expanding
the College’s connection to the construction industry in general.

By engaging with the C3 process with one construction project, San Jacinto College will be
able to study and better understand the details, benefits, and issues of the process in an
incremental fashion. Discussion of C3 participation’s impact on the Welcome Center will be
included as part of the monthly update to the Board Building Committee. Upon completion
of the project, a formal report on the pilot project will be delivered to the Chancellor with
recommendations for subsequent action, if any.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

There is no direct fee for the College’s participation in C3, and participation in C3 is not
anticipated to materially impact construction project costs. A review of the cost impact to
owners, conducted in September 2017 by Tellepsen Builders for the College, concluded that
the cost premium for C3 participation was 0.22% of the cost of construction.

97



Action Item “X”

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of Membership in the Construction Careers Collaborative for
Construction of the Central Campus Welcome Center

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

Monitoring occurs continuously with a final report delivered at the conclusion of
construction of the Welcome Center.

ATTACHMENTS
None
RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Bryan Jones 281-998-6343 bryan.jones@sjcd.edu
Chuck Smith 281-998-6341 charles.smith@sjcd.edu

98



Action Item “X1”
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Consideration of Approval to Grant Utility Easements

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees authorize the granting, selling, and
conveyance of two narrow parcels of land to Harris County (County) as easements to construct
traffic signals and wheelchair ramp/sidewalks at the northeast and northwest corners of Central
Campus.

BACKGROUND

The easements will grant the County access to construct, operate, and maintain a traffic signal,
wheelchair ramp/sidewalks, and such other related purposes and improvements, as may be
associated therewith at two of the College’s entrances along Spencer Highway. The intersections
that will be effected are at the northeast corner at Luella Avenue and the northwest corner at
Cunningham Road. The County will be responsible for all construction and maintenance of the
areas and any improvements including lighting, landscaping, plants, ground cover, or other forms
of soil stabilization.

The County will work with the College to coordinate the timing and the extent of the construction
of the improvements within the easement areas. The County will ensure that there is access to
either Cunningham Road or Luella Avenue and that construction does not cause the closure of
both entrances to the College to occur simultaneously.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

The planned improvements will install sidewalks, wheelchair ramps, and upgraded traffic signals
at the campus entrances along Spencer Highway. This will improve accessibility and safety for
students with a very minimal impact to the campus’s usable land resources.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The County will purchase each small easement, 0.041 acres at Luella and 0.040 acres at
Cunningham, for the fair market value price of $2.50 per square foot ($4,500 and $4,382
respectively). The County will release the College from any liabilities associated with the property

or upgrades related thereto. Appropriate legal documents for this transaction have been developed
and will be executed with minimal cost following approval by the Board.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

All work will be scheduled and managed by the County and coordinated with the College through
Facilities Services personnel.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 — Traffic Signal Easement —Spencer at Luella
Attachment 2 — Traffic Signal Easement —Spencer at Cunningham

99



Action Item “X1”
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Consideration of Approval to Grant Utility Easements

Attachment 3 — Temporary Construction License Agreement — Spencer at Luella
Attachment 4 — Temporary Construction License Agreement — Spencer at Cunningham

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Bryan Jones 281-998-6343 bryan.jones@sjcd.edu
Ann Kokx-Templet 281-998-6103 ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu

100



Attachment 1

Traffic Signal - Spencer at Luella, Tr. 3; mt

TRAFFIC SIGNAL EASEMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS  §
§ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
COUNTY OF HARRIS §

THAT, SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT, a public junior
college established under Chapter 130 of the Texas Education code and political
subdivision of the State of Texas, (“Grantor”), for and in consideration the sum of Four
Thousand Five Hundred and NO/100 Dollars ($4,500.00) to GRANTOR in hand paid,
the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and for which no lien is
retained, either expressed or implied, do by these presents GRANT, SELL and
CONVEY unto the County of Harris, a body corporate and politic under the laws of the
State of Texas, an easement (“Easement”) for a traffic signal and a wheelchair
ramp/sidewalk and such other related purposes as may be associated therewith, as

further set forth herein, such Easement being in or upon, over, under, along and across

the following land located in Harris County, Texas:

Approximately 0.041 acres of land situated in the William M. Jones Survey,
Abstract 482, Harris County, Texas, said land being more particularly
described in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof (“Easement
Area”), and identified thereon as “Parcel 3,” reference being made to that
certain insert thereon depicting Parcel 3 in more detail for the location of the
traffic signal and the wheelchair ramp/sidewalk and related improvements.

101



Attachment 1

Purpose and Extent of Easement

The Easement hereby granted shall be for the purpose of a traffic signal and a
wheelchair ramp/sidewalk and such other related purposes as may be associated
therewith, which purposes shall include, by way of description only and not by way of
limitation, the right: 1) to construct, operate and maintain a traffic signal and a
wheelchair ramp/sidewalk and such other related improvements and appurtenances as
a may be associated therewith, at the intersection of roads contained within the
Easement Area, on, over, below, along, and across the Easement Area; 2) to clear, cut,
fell, remove and dispose of any and all timber, trees, underbrush, vegetation, buildings,
improvements and/or other obstructions (whether manmade or natural) within the
Easement Area; 3) to excavate, dig and remove any of the land within the Easement
Area (as long as such removal does not affect drainage from Grantor’s adjacent land
abutting the Easement Area), and to dispose of or use, on, or off the Easement Area, the
dirt, soil, shell, stone, gravel, sand or other overburden, trees, grass, shrubbery,
vegetation, and any other material from the Easement Area as Grantee in its sole
discretion shall determine without additional compensation being paid to Grantor; 4) to
place on the Easement Area dirt, soil, riprap, dredge or spoil material; 5) to install and
maintain upon the Easement Area the traffic signal and the wheelchair ramp/sidewalk
and such other related improvements as may be associated therewith, landscaping,
plants, ground cover, terraces and other forms of soil stabilization and erosion
abatement, lighting, and signs, (whether permanent or temporary) and to remove the

same; 6) to install and maintain upon the Easement Area various forms of surfacing

2

102



Attachment 1

materials, including by way of description and not by way of limitation, concrete,
asphalt, planks, bricks, cinders, rubberized compounds, gravel and other surfacing
materials; 7) and to bring and keep upon the Easement Area all machinery, equipment,
building materials, and personnel reasonably necessary to efficiently prosecute such

work.

Construction Within Easement Area

All matters concerning or relating to the design, operation, maintenance,
configuration and the construction of any improvement or related facility permitted
under the terms of this Easement shall be at the sole discretion of the Grantee.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Grantee shall work with the Grantor to coordinate
the timing and extent of the construction of the improvements within the Easement
Area and the closure of Cunningham Road and access to Cunningham Road from
Spencer Highway so that construction does not cause the closure of the entrance to
Grantor’s adjacent property to occur simultaneously with the construction and closure

of any other entrances to Grantor’s adjacent property.

Maintenance of Easement Area

From and after the Effective Date, all matters relating to the maintenance and
repair of the Easement Area shall be the sole responsibility of the Grantee and Grantor

shall have no obligations with respect to maintenance.

103



Attachment 1

Reservations and Exceptions

The Easement is granted by Grantor subject to all matters of record in Harris
County, Texas, enforceable against the Easement Area on the Effective Date and all
existing easements, rights-of-way, and prescriptive rights, whether of record or not.

THE EASEMENT OVER THE EASEMENT AREA IS GRANTED “AS-IS”,
“WHERE-IS” AND WITH ALL FAULTS AND GRANTOR MAKES NO WARRANTY,
EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THE EASEMENT AREA PROPERTY
OR ITS PHYSICAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITION. GRANTEE HAS
CONDUCTED OR HAS BEEN PROVIDED THE OPPORTUNITY TO CONDUCT ITS
OWN INDEPENDENT INSPECTION OF THE EASEMENT AREA PROPERTY AND
HAS ELECTED NOT TO RELY ON ANY REPRESENTATIONS THAT MAY HAVE
BEEN MADE BY GRANTOR BUT RATHER, AS A SIGNIFICANT PORTION OF THE
CONSIDERATION GIVEN TO GRANTOR FOR THIS EASEMENT GRANT, HAS
AGREED TO BE SOLELY AND EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR EVALUATING
THE CONDITION OF THE EASEMENT AREA PROPERTY.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, subject to the reservations and exceptions herein,
GRANTOR does hereby bind itself and its successors and assigns TO WARRANT title
to the land comprising the Easement Area (without any warranty to any improvements
or appurtenances) unto the said County of Harris, itself and its successors and assigns,
against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same, or any part

thereof by, through, and under Grantor but not otherwise.

104



Attachment 1

EXECUTED this 5th day of February, 2018 (“Effective Date”).

San Jacinto Community College District

By:
Dr. Brenda Hellyer, Chancellor

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF HARRIS §
This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2018 by

Dr. Brenda Hellyer, Chancellor of San Jacinto Community College District, on behalf of
said entity.

Notary Public Signature

105



Attachment 1

EXECUTED this day of , 2018 (“Effective Date”).

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED BY:

County of Harris

By:

Ed Emmett, County Judge

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF HARRIS §
This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2018 by Ed

Emmett, County Judge, pursuant to the order of Commissioners” Court and behalf of the
County of Harris.

Notary Public Signature

106



Attachment 2

Traffic Signal - Spencer at Cunningham, Tr. 002; mt

TRAFFIC SIGNAL EASEMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS  §
§ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
COUNTY OF HARRIS §

THAT, SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT, a public junior
college established under Chapter 130 of the Texas Education code and political
subdivision of the State of Texas, (“Grantor”), for and in consideration of the sum of
Four Thousand Three Hundred Eighty-Two and NO/100 Dollars ($4,382.00) to
GRANTOR in hand paid, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
and for which no lien is retained, either expressed or implied, do by these presents
GRANT, SELL and CONVEY unto the County of Harris, a body corporate and politic
under the laws of the State of Texas, an easement (“Easement”) for a traffic signal and a
wheelchair ramp/sidewalk and such other related purposes as may be associated
therewith, as further set forth herein, such Easement being in or upon, over, under,
along and across the following land located in Harris County, Texas:

Approximately 0.040 acres of land situated in the William M. Jones

Survey, Abstract 482, Harris County, Texas, said land being more

particularly described in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part

hereof (“Easement Area”), and identified thereon as “Parcel 2"

reference being made to that certain insert thereon depicting Parcel 2 in

more detail for the location of the traffic signal and the wheelchair
ramp/sidewalk and related improvements.

107



Attachment 2

Purpose and Extent of Easement

The Easement hereby granted shall be for the purpose of a traffic signal and a
wheelchair ramp/sidewalk and such other related purposes as may be associated
therewith, which purposes shall include, by way of description only and not by way of
limitation, the right: 1) to construct, operate and maintain a traffic signal and a
wheelchair ramp/sidewalk and such other related improvements and appurtenances as
a may be associated therewith, at the intersection of roads contained within the
Easement Area, on, over, below, along, and across the Easement Area; 2) to clear, cut,
fell, remove and dispose of any and all timber, trees, underbrush, vegetation, buildings,
improvements and/or other obstructions (whether manmade or natural) within the
Easement Area; 3) to excavate, dig and remove any of the land within the Easement
Area (as long as such removal does not affect drainage from Grantor’s adjacent land
abutting the Easement Area), and to dispose of or use, on, or off the Easement Area, the
dirt, soil, shell, stone, gravel, sand or other overburden, trees, grass, shrubbery,
vegetation, and any other material from the Easement Area as Grantee in its sole
discretion shall determine without additional compensation being paid to Grantor; 4) to
place on the Easement Area dirt, soil, riprap, dredge or spoil material; 5) to install and
maintain upon the Easement Area the traffic signal and the wheelchair ramp/sidewalk
and such other related improvements as may be associated therewith, landscaping,
plants, ground cover, terraces and other forms of soil stabilization and erosion
abatement, lighting, and signs, (whether permanent or temporary) and to remove the

same; 6) to install and maintain upon the Easement Area various forms of surfacing

2

108



Attachment 2

materials, including by way of description and not by way of limitation, concrete,
asphalt, planks, bricks, cinders, rubberized compounds, gravel and other surfacing
materials; 7) and to bring and keep upon the Easement Area all machinery, equipment,
building materials, and personnel reasonably necessary to efficiently prosecute such

work.

Construction Within Easement Area

All matters concerning or relating to the design, operation, maintenance,
configuration and the construction of any improvement or related facility permitted
under the terms of this Easement shall be at the sole discretion of the Grantee.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Grantee shall work with the Grantor to coordinate
the timing and extent of the construction of the improvements within the Easement
Area and the closure of Cunningham Road and access to Cunningham Road from
Spencer Highway so that construction does not cause the closure of the entrance to
Grantor’s adjacent property to occur simultaneously with the construction and closure

of any other entrances to Grantor’s adjacent property.

Maintenance of Easement Area

From and after the Effective Date, all matters relating to the maintenance and
repair of the Easement Area shall be the sole responsibility of the Grantee and Grantor

shall have no obligations with respect to maintenance.

109



Attachment 2

Reservations and Exceptions

The Easement is granted by Grantor subject to all matters of record in Harris
County, Texas, enforceable against the Easement Area on the Effective Date and all
existing easements, rights-of-way, and prescriptive rights, whether of record or not.

THE EASEMENT OVER THE EASEMENT AREA IS GRANTED “AS-IS”,
“WHERE-IS” AND WITH ALL FAULTS AND GRANTOR MAKES NO WARRANTY,
EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THE EASEMENT AREA PROPERTY
OR ITS PHYSICAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITION. GRANTEE HAS
CONDUCTED OR HAS BEEN PROVIDED THE OPPORTUNITY TO CONDUCT ITS
OWN INDEPENDENT INSPECTION OF THE EASEMENT AREA PROPERTY AND
HAS ELECTED NOT TO RELY ON ANY REPRESENTATIONS THAT MAY HAVE
BEEN MADE BY GRANTOR BUT RATHER, AS A SIGNIFICANT PORTION OF THE
CONSIDERATION GIVEN TO GRANTOR FOR THIS EASEMENT GRANT, HAS
AGREED TO BE SOLELY AND EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR EVALUATING
THE CONDITION OF THE EASEMENT AREA PROPERTY.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, subject to the reservations and exceptions herein,
GRANTOR does hereby bind itself and its successors and assigns TO WARRANT title
to the land comprising the Easement Area (without any warranty to any improvements
or appurtenances) unto the said County of Harris, itself and its successors and assigns,
against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same, or any part

thereof by, through, and under Grantor but not otherwise.

110



Attachment 2

EXECUTED this 5th day of February, 2018 (“Effective Date”).

San Jacinto Community College District

By:
Dr. Brenda Hellyer, Chancellor

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF HARRIS §
This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2018 by

Dr. Brenda Hellyer, Chancellor of San Jacinto Community College District, on behalf of
said entity.

Notary Public Signature

111



Attachment 2

EXECUTED this day of , 2018 (“Effective Date”).

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED BY:

County of Harris

By:

Ed Emmett, County Judge

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§
COUNTY OF HARRIS §
This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2018 by Ed

Emmett, County Judge, pursuant to the order of Commissioners” Court and behalf of the
County of Harris.

Notary Public Signature

112



Attachment 3

Tract TCE-001, Traffic Signal - Spencer @ Luella

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION LICENSE AGREEMENT

This Temporary Construction License Agreement (“Agreement”) with an effective date of
February 5, 2018 (“Effective Date”) is by and between SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY
COLLEGE DISTRICT, a public junior college established under Chapter 130 of the Texas
Education code and political subdivision of the State of Texas (“Licensor”) and the COUNTY
OF HARRIS, a body corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas (“Licensee”).
As used in this Agreement, the term “Party” shall mean either the Licensor or the Licensee
individually and the term “Parties” shall mean the Licensor and Licensee collectively.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Licensor owns a parcel of land containing approximately 141 acres in
the William M. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 482, Harris County, Texas, as more particularly
described in the instrument recorded in the Harris County, Texas Deed Records under Clerk’s
File No. B288597 (“Licensor Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Licensee has need and intends to perform work on Luella Drive, a drive
on Licensor’s Property that intersects with Spencer Highway, and serves as access for ingress and
egress to Licensor’s Property operated as its central college campus; and

WHEREAS, as part of the staging for construction work to install traffic signals at the
intersection of Luella Drive and Spencer Highway, a public road abutting the Licensor’s Property
and for work to restripe a portion of Luella Drive, the Licensee requires temporary use of a small
portion of Licensor’s Property consisting of that portion of Luella Drive, as shown on and
depicted as T.C.E. 001 on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein (“Work Area”).

AGREEMENT

Temporary License for Entry and Use; Work. For good and valuable consideration, the Licensor
hereby grants the Licensee and any of the Licensee’s employees and contractors the right to enter
the Work Area during the Term for the sole purpose of restriping Luella Drive and for staging for
installation of traffic signals at the intersection of Spencer Highway and Luella Drive. The
restriping and staging (“Work”) will be performed in accordance with all applicable
governmental requirements. Additionally, Licensee shall comply with Chapter 2253 of the Texas
Government Code and shall not permit any contractor to place a lien on the Licensor’s Property.
In the event any lien is placed on Licensor’s Property by a contractor performing work for the
Licensee, Licensee, at its sole cost and expense, shall cause the lien to be removed. Licensee
shall coordinate the timing of the Work with the Licensor and the Parties shall agree upon a date

1

113



Attachment 3

for the Work so that the Work will not cause closure of Luella Drive or impede access to and
from Licensor’s college campus during a time when any other entrance to the Licensor’s college
campus is closed or access is impeded. Upon completion of the Work, Licensee shall remove all
debris, equipment, and materials and to the extent that any portion of the Work Area or
Licensor’s Property is damaged, Licensee shall restore the property to substantially the same
condition as prior to the Effective Date.

Term
This Agreement commences on the Effective Date and shall terminate sixty (60) days after the
beginning of construction.

Conditions and Limitations

1. This Agreement is for the temporary use of a portion of Licensor’s Property only and does
not convey title or any interest in title to Licensor’s Property or any portion thereof.

2. Licensee may not construct any permanent improvements or above-ground facilities over the
Work Area.

3. The grant of right of entry and use by the Licensor is subject to any and all encumbrances
filed of record in Harris County, Texas.

General Provisions

No Third Party Benefit. This Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the
Licensor and Licensee and shall not be construed to confer any benefit or right upon any other
party or person, including in the nature of third party beneficiaries.

Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable by either Party.

Modification. Except as provided in this Agreement, this Agreement may not be changed or
modified except with the written mutual consent of the Parties hereto.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties relative
to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior negotiations and agreements, whether verbal
or written. There have been and are no agreements, covenants, representations, or warranties
between the Parties other than those expressly stated or provided for herein.

No Waiver of Immunity. Nothing contained herein shall operate to or be deemed as having
waived any immunities to which the Licensor or Licensee is entitled under law.

Incorporation. The recitals are incorporated into the Agreement for all purposes. Exhibit A also
IS incorporated into the Agreement for all purposes.
2

114



Attachment 3

Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance
with the laws of the State of Texas, without regard to its conflict of law provisions. The Parties
consent to the jurisdiction and venue of the state courts of Harris County, Texas, or the federal
courts of the Southern District of Texas, Houston Division, for any action under this Agreement.

Counterparts; Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in any number of
identical counterparts each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which will constitute
one agreement. The parties agree to accept electronic signatures and electronic copies of the
Agreement for purposes of an original and intend that this Agreement be subject to the Texas
Electronics Transaction Act.

EXECUTED this the 5th day of February, 2018.

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE
DISTRICT

By:

Dr. Brenda Hellyer, Chancellor

COUNTY OF HARRIS

By:

[Name & title]

115



Attachment 4

Tract TCE-001, Traffic Signal - Spencer @ Cunningham

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION LICENSE AGREEMENT

This Temporary Construction License Agreement (“Agreement”) with an effective date of
February 5, 2018 (“Effective Date”) is by and between SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY
COLLEGE DISTRICT, a public junior college established under Chapter 130 of the Texas
Education code and political subdivision of the State of Texas (“Licensor”) and the COUNTY
OF HARRIS, a body corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas (“Licensee”).
As used in this Agreement, the term “Party” shall mean either the Licensor or the Licensee
individually and the term “Parties” shall mean the Licensor and Licensee collectively.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Licensor owns a parcel of land containing approximately 141 acres in
the William M. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 482, Harris County, Texas, as more particularly
described in the instrument recorded in the Harris County, Texas Deed Records under Clerk’s
File No. B288597 (“Licensor Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Licensee has need and intends to perform work on Cunningham Drive, a
drive on Licensor’s Property that intersects with Spencer Highway, and serves as access for
ingress and egress to Licensor’s Property operated as its central college campus; and

WHEREAS, as part of the staging for construction work to install traffic signals at the
intersection of Cunningham Drive and Spencer Highway, a public road abutting the Licensor’s
Property and for work to restripe a portion of Cunningham Drive, the Licensee requires
temporary use of a small portion of Licensor’s Property consisting of that portion of Cunningham
Drive, as shown on and depicted as T.C.E. 001 on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated
herein (“Work Area”).

AGREEMENT

Temporary License for Entry and Use; Work. For good and valuable consideration, the Licensor
hereby grants the Licensee and any of the Licensee’s employees and contractors the right to enter
the Work Area during the Term for the sole purpose of restriping Cunningham Drive and for
staging for installation of traffic signals at the intersection of Spencer Highway and Cunningham
Drive. The restriping and staging (“Work™) will be performed in accordance with all applicable
governmental requirements. Additionally, Licensee shall comply with Chapter 2253 of the Texas
Government Code and shall not permit any contractor to place a lien on the Licensor’s Property.
In the event any lien is placed on Licensor’s Property by a contractor performing work for the
Licensee, Licensee, at its sole cost and expense, shall cause the lien to be removed. Licensee
shall coordinate the timing of the Work with the Licensor and the Parties shall agree upon a date

1

116



Attachment 4

for the Work so that the Work will not cause closure of Cunningham Drive or impede access to
and from Licensor’s college campus during a time when any other entrance to the Licensor’s
college campus is closed or access is impeded. Upon completion of the Work, Licensee shall
remove all debis, equipment, and materials and to the extent that any portion of the Work Area or
Licensor’s Property is damaged, Licensee shall restore the property to substantially the same
condition as prior to the Effective Date.

Term
This Agreement commences on the Effective Date and shall terminate sixty (60) days after the
beginning of construction.

Conditions and Limitations

1. This Agreement is for the temporary use of a portion of Licensor’s Property only and does
not convey title or any interest in title to Licensor’s Property or any portion thereof.

2. Licensee may not construct any permanent improvements or above-ground facilities over the
Work Area.

3. The grant of right of entry and use by the Licensor is subject to any and all encumbrances
filed of record in Harris County, Texas.

General Provisions

No Third Party Benefit. This Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the
Licensor and Licensee and shall not be construed to confer any benefit or right upon any other
party or person, including in the nature of third party beneficiaries.

Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable by either Party.

Modification. Except as provided in this Agreement, this Agreement may not be changed or
modified except with the written mutual consent of the Parties hereto.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties relative
to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior negotiations and agreements, whether verbal
or written. There have been and are no agreements, covenants, representations, or warranties
between the Parties other than those expressly stated or provided for herein.

No Waiver of Immunity. Nothing contained herein shall operate to or be deemed as having
waived any immunities to which the Licensor or Licensee is entitled under law.

Incorporation. The recitals are incorporated into the Agreement for all purposes. Exhibit A also
IS incorporated into the Agreement for all purposes.
2

117



Attachment 4

Governing Law; Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance
with the laws of the State of Texas, without regard to its conflict of law provisions. The Parties
consent to the jurisdiction and venue of the state courts of Harris County, Texas, or the federal
courts of the Southern District of Texas, Houston Division, for any action under this Agreement.

Counterparts; Electronic Signatures. This Agreement may be executed in any number of
identical counterparts each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which will constitute
one agreement. The parties agree to accept electronic signatures and electronic copies of the
Agreement for purposes of an original and intend that this Agreement be subject to the Texas
Electronics Transaction Act.

EXECUTED this the 5th day of February, 2018.

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE
DISTRICT

By:

Dr. Brenda Hellyer, Chancellor

COUNTY OF HARRIS

By:

[Name & title]

118



Action Item “XI11”
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Consideration of Approval of Agreements with University of Houston — Downtown

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the articulation, joint
admissions, and cooperative advising agreements between San Jacinto College and the
University of Houston-Downtown.

BACKGROUND

The University of Houston—-Downtown (UH-D) is part of the University of Houston system.
UH-D asserts that its tuition is the lowest of any university in Houston. UH-D offers day,
evening, weekend, online, and hybrid course offerings that would fit the schedule of many
community college transfer students.

San Jacinto College (College) has a history of partnering with UH-D in order to provide
transfer opportunities to its students and graduates. Over the past five years, 806 students
have transferred with at least 15 credit hours from the College to UH-D. UH-D now ranks as
the third highest on the College’s list of transfer universities.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

The proposed agreement with UH-D includes three separate components: an articulation
agreement, a joint admissions agreement, and a cooperative advising agreement. The
agreements in their entirety will facilitate seamless transfer of San Jacinto College students
into baccalaureate degree programs at UH-D without the loss of credits by the creation of
transfer plans in individual degree pathways. The agreements will also serve to encourage
and facilitate degree completion at San Jacinto College through the awarding of associate
degrees through reverse articulation. In addition, these agreements address the transfer of
Honors Program students from San Jacinto College into the Honors Program at UH-D.
Special advising, joint admission, and transfer assistance for early college high school
students from San Jacinto College are also part of the agreements. Representatives from UH-
D will provide advising services at the San Jacinto College campus(es) through University
Center programs and will participate in other special events. The data sharing component of
the agreements will provide information so both institutions can support and monitor student
progress. All data sharing will comply with the requirements of the Family Education Rights
and Privacy Act (FERPA).

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)
There is limited budgetary impact.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The agreements will commence once they have been signed by the appropriate parties of

each institution. The agreements shall continue indefinitely until such time as either or both
institutions wish to terminate them.

119



Action Item “XI11”

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of Agreements with University of Houston — Downtown
ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1- Articulation Agreement
Attachment 2 — Joint Admissions Agreement
Attachment 3 — Cooperative Advising Agreement

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Laurel V. Williamson 281-998-6182 laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu
Pamela S. Campbell ~ 281-991-2672 pamela.campbell@sjcd.edu

120


mailto:laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu
mailto:pamela.campbell@sjcd.edu

Attachment 1

Articulation Agreement
Between San Jacinto College and the University of Houston-Downtown

UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN- UHD
SAN JACINTO COLLEGE- San Jacinto College

I. PURPOSE

A. This Agreement provides a framework to develop programs designed to enhance the
educational experience of students attending both UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-
DOWNTOWN and SAN JACINTO COLLEGE in areas including, but not limited to:

i. Transfer of credit, including Transfer and Reverse Transfer;
ii. Datasharing;
iii. Transfer student benefits.

Both Parties enter into this Agreement in the spirit of cooperation and to mutually
recognize each other as quality institutions of higher education. Each Party is
dedicated to serving students from diverse populations.

II. TRANSFER OF CREDIT

A. Transfer of credit from SAN JACINTO COLLEGE to the UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-
DOWNTOWN for the purpose of completion of a baccalaureate program of study is
designed to maximize the amount of course work completed for the associate degree
applicable to the baccalaureate degree.

a. Credits from SAN JACINTO COLLEGE that are transferrable to UNIVERSITY
OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN degree programs will be attached as an
addendum as they are worked through with
faculty/departments/institutions. Changes to the degree maps will be
communicated as needed.

b. UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN will recognize for transfer credit
within legal and accreditation limitations, no less than 60 semester credit
hours of course work submitted from SAN JACINTO COLLEGE resulting
from transfer credit, dual/concurrent enrollment, advanced placement,
CLEP, or other recognized means by which credit is awarded by
examination (as appropriate and subject to UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-
DOWNTOWN & SAN JACINTO COLLEGE policies).

c. Separate academic records for students will be maintained at each Party’s
institution.

121



Attachment 1

B. Reverse transfer of credit from the UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN to SAN
JACINTO COLLEGE allows students to complete requirements for the associate degree
in accordance with the Texas Education Code Section 2, Chapter 61, Subchapter S,
Section 61.833. This program is specifically designed to allow students to receive the
advantages pursuant to completion of the associate degree when they leave SAN
JACINTO COLLEGE and prior to completion of the baccalaureate degree.

a.

UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN will provide SAN JACINTO COLLEGE
with information on transfer students to help SAN JACINTO COLLEGE officials
determine students who could benefit from reverse transfer of courses and
SAN JACINTO COLLEGE will provide UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN
with information about degrees awarded as a result of reverse transfer,
subject to applicable state and federal laws.

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE and UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN will
work together to establish a timeline for record exchange, including original
submission and the schedule of repeated academic record submissions.
Separate academic records for students will be maintained at each Party’s
institution.

C. SANJACINTO COLLEGE and UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN will promote
the opportunity on institution websites, in social media, in printed and electronic
materials, and through various presentations, media relations, and events.

III. DATASHARING

A. SANJACINTO COLLEGE will provide the following data elements to UNIVERSITY OF
HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN on an annual basis:

a.

Directory information (including student grade point average; demographics;
total credits; last semester enrolled), as designated by SAN JACINTO
COLLEGE, for students who have expressed a stated interest in transferring

to UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN,;

Major area of interest for students who have expressed a stated interest in
transferring to UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN; and

Student information within legal guidelines about specific students with the
goal of making students aware of scholarship, financial aid, and the potential
to satisfy degree requirements by transferring coursework between both
Parties.

B. UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN will provide the following data elements to
SAN JACINTO COLLEGE on an annual basis:

a.

b.

™o a0

Directory information for students living in the SAN JACINTO COLLEGE service
area;

Degree name and completion status of SAN JACINTO COLLEGE transfer
students;

Semesters attended by SAN JACINTO COLLEGE transfer students;

Hours completed by SAN JACINTO COLLEGE transfer students;

Grade Point Average of SAN JACINTO COLLEGE transfer students, and
Student information within legal guidelines about specific students with the
goal of making students aware of scholarship, financial aid, and the potential

2

122



Attachment 1

to satisfy degree requirements by transferring coursework between both
institutions.

C. SAN JACINTO COLLEGE agrees that data transferred from UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-
DOWNTOWN to SAN JACINTO COLLEGE is and shall remain the sole and exclusive
property of the UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN. UNIVERSITY OF
HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN agrees that the data transferred from SAN JACINTO
COLLEGE to the UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN is and shall remain the sole
and exclusive property of SAN JACINTO COLLEGE.

D. Data sharing practices and storage will be consistent with the Family Education Rights
and Privacy Act (FERPA) as well as SAN JACINTO COLLEGE and UNIVERSITY OF
HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN policies and procedures for managing student records and
other confidential information.

IV. TRANSFER STUDENT BENEFITS

A. SAN JACINTO COLLEGE students admitted to UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-
DOWNTOWN will be allowed access to academic advising services at UNIVERSITY OF
HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN.

B. SAN JACINTO COLLEGE Honors students admitted to UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-
DOWNTOWN institution will receive:

a.

Acceptance to UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN Honors Program in a
particular College with a minimum GPA (to be determined by the College in which the
program resides).

UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN will accept a minimum of 12 hours of
transfer Honors credits; Honors transfer students will be eligible for merit and need-
based aid commensurate with qualifications.

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE and UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN will
work together to provide a simple process for scholarship application; SAN JACINTO
COLLEGE and the UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN will work to provide
additional opportunities to Honors transfer students, potential travel and study abroad
benefits and joint admissions benefits. All opportunities will be detailed in Appendices
to this Agreement.

C. EARLY COLLEGE HIGH SCHOOLS

V. TERM

a. Students attending Early College High Schools associated with SAN JACINTO
COLLEGE wishing to transfer to the UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN
will receive advising assistance in making the transition. In addition, scholarship
opportunities will be identified for those students who have completed an associate
degree at the College to enable them to complete their baccalaureate degree in fewer
than three years after transfer.

b. Data on these students will be provided to SAN JACINTO COLLEGE by
UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN in order to promote the partnership
that will extend from the Independent School Districts through the College to the
University.

A. This Agreement will commence on (date) and remain in effect for
two full academic years, including summer, and shall automatically renew for three
additional one-year terms for a maximum five-year term unless sooner terminated in

3

123



Attachment 1

accordance with this Agreement. Either Party may request modification of this
agreement in writing, subject to review.

Immediate termination will occur if either SAN JACINTO COLLEGE or UNIVERSITY
OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN loses their current accreditation status. If termination
due to aloss of accreditation occurs, the Agreement will end retroactive to the date
the accreditation status changed.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, either Party shall have the
right to terminate this Agreement upon ten (10) days’ prior written notice if the Party
to whom such notice is given has breached any provision of this Agreement, and such
breach shall not have been cured within twenty (20) days following the receipt of
such notice.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, either Party shall have the
right to terminate this Agreement after thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice is
given to the other Party.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in the event of termination,
UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN agrees to ensure students currently
enrolled in or newly accepted into a Program under this Agreement, prior to the
effective termination date, will be given the opportunity to complete their Degree
Program with UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN.

VI. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

A.

Itis agreed and understood that nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to imply
or create any SAN JACINTO COLLEGE joint venture, association, or like relationship
between the Parties. Neither Party shall have the power to obligate or bind the other in
any manner except to the extent herein provided.

VII. GENERALPROVISIONS

A.

C.

This Agreement and all attached Exhibits and Appendices (collectively known as the
“Articulation Agreement” or “Agreement”), contains the entire agreement between
SAN JACINTO COLLEGE and UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN and may only
be modified in writing by the individuals authorized to execute on behalf of their
respective Party below or their designees at least thirty (30) days in advance of the
modification.

Parties agree that this Agreement will be construed by the laws of the State of Texas
(exclusive of its conflict of laws provision), and venue for purposes of claims, or

litigation shall be Houston, Harris County, Texas.

Any notice required or permitted under this Agreement shall be considered effective
as of the date sent by certified mail, return receipt requested as follows:

124



Attachment 1

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE: UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-
DOWNTOWN:

D. This Agreement is entered into by and between the Parties hereto and for their benefit.

Unless explicitly provided in this Agreement, there is no intent by either Party to
create or establish third party beneficiary status or rights in any third party, and no
such third party shall have any right to enforce any right or enjoy any benefit created
or established under this Agreement.

E. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which will be
deemed an original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

F. Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of any Party expressly represents
and warrants that he/she has authority to do so, and thereby to bind Party on behalf
of which/whom he/she signs, to the terms of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, Parties have executed this Agreement in multiple counterparts. The
effective date of this Agreement will be the date of the last signature below.

Signatures:

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE: UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN:
Signature Date Signature Date

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Signature Date Signature Date

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

125



Attachment 2

Sample San Jacinto College Agreement for Joint Admission

. PURPOSE

Joint Admission provides students the opportunity to maximize utilization of facilities and
programs offered jointly by SAN JACINTO COLLEGE and UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-
DOWNTOWN.

Programs in Joint Admission include the ability to attend both schools simultaneously or
alternately, and (select and initial all thatapply):

StudentID at SAN JACINTO COLLEGE and UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN
___ Studentcomputer/internet accountat SAN JACINTO COLLEGE and UNIVERSITY OF
HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN
___ Studentaccess to computer labs at SAN JACINTO COLLEGE and UNIVERSITY OF
HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN
__ Studentaccess to libraries at SAN JACINTO COLLEGE and UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-
DOWNTOWN
Student access to student employment opportunities at SAN JACINTO COLLEGE
and UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN
Student access to sporting events at UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN
Freeelectronictransfer transcripttransmission/evaluation
Application fees will be waived for SAN JACINTO COLLEGE students who apply
to UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN within 6 months of earning an
Associate's degree.

II. JOINT OBLIGATIONS

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE and UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN agree to the
following terms and conditions (in addition to the specifications of the Articulation
Agreement):

A. Students applying to SAN JACINTO COLLEGE and simultaneously meeting
UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN admission requirements may
apply for and be accepted into the joint admission program following the
UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN application process.

B. If a student does not meet the UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN
entrance requirements at the time they enter SAN JACINTO COLLEGE, they
are not eligible for joint admission. They may become eligible at a future date
by meeting the requirements for transfer student admission to UNIVERSITY
OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN.

C. After acceptance under joint admission, a student must continually meet all
admission requirements for both institutions to retain their eligibility to
participate in theprogram.

D. Students accepted under joint admission may transfer, alternate enrollment
between institutions, or co-enroll at their discretion.
E. Students opting for co-enrollment must meet all payment deadlines for the

respective institutions. Means for reducing student financial obligations will
be explored. SAN JACINTO COLLEGE and UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-
DOWNTOWN will strive to make financial aid transfer between the respective
institutions as convenient as possible for the student.

F. Students who lose their eligibility to continue in classes at either Party’s
institution lose their eligibility to participate in the joint admissions program.

126



Attachment 2

Each Party reserves the right to allow students to continue at its respective
discretion.

G. Students are expected to abide by conduct, computer/internet usage, and
facilities usage policies at each institution. Students who co-enroll will be
expected to be knowledgeable of the rules for students at both institutions
and agree to comply with said rules.

H. Students appealing academic or disciplinary issues will be directed to the
institution under whose jurisdiction the matter falls and will follow
established procedures at that institution.

Signatures:

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE: UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN:
Signature Date Signature Date

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Signature Date Signature Date

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

127



Attachment 3

San Jacinto College Agreement for Cooperative
Advising

. PURPOSE

Cooperative Advising allows students to access academic advisors at both institutions for the
purpose of planning and selecting courses applicable to the anticipated degree program at
both institutions.

This opportunity applies to students who are (select and initial all that apply):

Admitted (either through regular or joint admission) to UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-
DOWNTOWN
__ AlISANJACINTO COLLEGE students with an expressed interest in
transferring to UNIVERSITY OFHOUSTON-DOWNTOWN

And applies to (select and initial all that apply):

___ Advising forall degree programs (including undecided) at UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-
DOWNTOWN

Advising for only degree programs with specific articulation agreements between

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE and UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN

II. JOINT OBLIGATIONS

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE and UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN agree to the
following terms and conditions (in addition to the specifications of the standard
agreement):

e UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN agrees to provide reasonable access to
academic advisors from UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN to students
attending SAN JACINTO COLLEGE prior to their actual transfer and in accordance with
the options selectedabove.

Signatures:

SAN JACINTO COLLEGE: UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN
Signature Date Signature Date

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Signature Date Signature Date

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

128



Action Item “XI11”
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Consideration of Approval of Policy VI1.7001.A: Public Relations — Second Reading

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a revision and update to
the College’s Policy VII.7001.A, Public Relations, formerly designated as Policy VI-J:
Public Relations.

BACKGROUND

Policy VI-J was most recently approved by the Board of Trustees on September 8, 2014. This
policy reflects the responsibilities of the Marketing, Public Relations and Government
Affairs department in regards to pitching and distributing College news to local, state and
national media outlets. Procedures have been in place to support the policy.

The revisions to the policy are recommended to establish the new policy format and to reflect
the strengthened College practices for public relations. Additionally, the associated

procedure has been revised to support implementation of the policy. These procedures are
attached for informational purposes.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

The updated policy and procedures were sent to the College community on December 8,
2017. One comment was received which resulted in grammatical changes.

BUDGET INFORMATION

No budgetary impact.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The Board will be notified of any changes that require its action.
ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 — Summary of Changes

Attachment 2 — Policy VI-J: Policy on Public Relations (current policy)
Attachment 3 — Policy VI11.7001.A, Public Relations (proposed policy)
Informational items only:

Attachment 4 — Procedure 2-18: Public Relations (current procedures)
Attachment 5 — Procedure VI1.7001.A.a, Public Relations (proposed procedures)
RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Teri Crawford 281-998-6152 Teri.crawford@sjcd.edu

129


mailto:Teri.crawford@sjcd.edu

Attachment 1

Policies and Procedures Summary of Changes

New Policy Number: VII.7001.A
Proposed Policy Name: Public Relations
Current Policy Number/Name: Policy VI-J Public Relations

New Procedure Number: VII.7001.A.a
Proposed Procedure Name(s): Public Relations
Current Procedure Number(s)/Name(s): Procedure 2-18: Public Relations

Action Recommended for Policy: Revised
Action Recommended for Procedures: Revised

Web Links:
http://www.sanjac.edu/policy-vi-j-policy-public-relations
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-2-18-public-relations

Primary Owner: Vice Chancellor, Marketing, Public Relations, Government Affairs

Secondary Owner: Vice President, Marketing and Public Relations

Summary of Changes:

e Changes to the policy:

0 Change the title of director, marketing and public relations to vice president, marketing and
public relations to reflect changes made in the Marketing, PR, and Government Affairs office
two years ago.

0 Add statement that an employee may speak to media if asked to do so by the vice president,
marketing and public relations.

e Changes to procedures include:

o Title changes and team structure changes to reflect changes made in the Marketing, PR, and
Government Affairs office two years ago.

o Addition of statement reflecting what information and communications will be released
during a crisis.

o0 Change the name throughout the procedure from emergency management team to incident
management team.

0 Added a statement regarding non-news and commercial filming or photography on campus.

e Reorganization of the procedure to reflect the new procedure format:

0 Moved paragraph formerly under “purpose statement” as the introductory first paragraph for
the procedures.

0 Moved paragraph I11 in the old format with the overview of the procedure to the introductory
paragraph located directly beneath the paragraph mentioned in the bullet above.

o0 Changed numbering of paragraph Il, Public Relations Staff Responsibility, to Paragraph |
with the same title.

o Changed number of paragraph IV, Event Coverage, to Paragraph Il with the same title.

1

130


http://www.sanjac.edu/policy-vi-j-policy-public-relations
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-2-18-public-relations

Attachment 1

Removed paragraph V, Privacy, due to redundancy of information and to shorten the
procedure.

Removed paragraph VI, Media Information for Employees.

Created paragraph I11, Contact with the Media and Preparing for Interviews.

Changed number of paragraph VII, Crisis Communications, to Paragraph 1V with the same
title.

Updated titles in the Crisis Communication section to reflect that the vice president,
marketing and public relations, or the senior communications coordinator will serve as the
spokesperson(s) for the College.

Changed number of paragraph VIII, Filming and Photography on Campus, to Paragraph V
with the same title. Removed repetitive language.

Removed paragraph IX, Information for the News Media.

Updated titles in the Information for the News Media section to reflect that the vice
president, marketing and public relations, will serve as the contact for the College regarding
guestions about news media.

Removed paragraph X, College Photography.

Changed paragraph XI, Social Media Guidelines, to paragraph VI with the same title.
Removed the majority of the text for the social media guidelines and referenced to the
College website where the social media guidelines are located.

131



Attachment 2

Policy VI-J: Policy on Public Relations

The San Jacinto College Marketing, Public Relations, and Government Affairs department is responsible
for pitching and distributing news to local, state, and national news outlets. News items should be
presented to the director, marketing and public relations, for distribution to the news media. Refer to
Procedure 2-18: Public Relations for media procedures. Employees are to refer all media inquiries to the

director, marketing and public relations.

Policy #:
Policy Name:
Pages:

Adopted Date:

Revision/Reviewed Date:

Effective Date:

Associated Procedure:

VI-J

Policy on Public Relations

1

March 2, 1981

September 8, 2014

March 2, 1981, and September 8, 2014

2-18

132


http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/procedure-2-18-public-relations

Attachment 3

Policy VI1.7001.A, Public Relations

Purpose
The policy on public relations establishes the responsibilities of the Marketing, Public Relations
and Government Affairs department in regards to public relations for San Jacinto College

(College).

Policy

The San Jacinto College Marketing, Public Relations and Government Affairs department is
responsible for pitching and distributing College news to local, state and national media outlets.
The Vice President, Marketing and Public Relations, is the designated spokesperson for the
College unless another is designated by the Chancellor or an employee is asked by the Vice
President, Marketing and Public Relations to speak to the media. College employees must refer
all media inquiries to the vice president, marketing and public relations.

The Authority, Applicability, Sanctions, Exclusions, and Interpretation do not differ from Policy
11.2000.A, Policy and Procedures Development, Review, Revision, and Rescission.

Associated Procedures
Procedure VI1.7001.A.a, Public Relations

Date of Board  Anticipated February 5, 2018

Approval

Effective Date  Anticipated February 6, 2018

Primary Vice Chancellor, Marketing, Public Relations and Government Affairs
Owner

Secondary Vice President, Marketing and Public Relations

Owner

133



Attachment 4

Procedure 2-18: Public Relations

Links to...

Purpose, San Jacinto College Marketing,

. . . Crisis Communications
Public Relations, and Government Affairs

Public Relations Staff Responsibility Filming and Photography on Campus
Media Guidelines Overview Information for the News Media
Event Coverage College Photography

Privacy Social Media Guidelines

Media Information for Employees

I. Purpose Statement of the San Jacinto College Marketing and Public Relations and Government
Affairs department

The purpose of the San Jacinto College Marketing, Public Relations, and Government Affairs office is to
tell the story of our students, employees, alumni, and programs, through multiple communications
channels. We provide strategic counsel, creative solutions, and timely, responsive service to internal and
external clients.

Il. Public Relations Staff Responsibility

The public relations staff has primary responsibility for "coverage" of news and information throughout the
College. We want to share the extraordinary story of San Jacinto College and its students, faculty, and
staff. Communications coordinators work closely with each campus to produce news items concerning
activities, events, students, programs, and employees. The public relations staff is also responsible for
sports information to promote the College’s athletic programs.

The Marketing, Public Relations, and Government Affairs department is led by the vice chancellor,
marketing, public relations, and government affairs. The public relations staff includes a director,
marketing and public relations; senior communications coordinator; communications coordinators; and
social media coordinator. The director is responsible for final editing and review of material prepared for
release to the news media. The public relations staff handles the distribution of all official College news
and photo releases to the media.

The public relations staff works closely with local, state, and national news media, including newspapers,
radio and television, magazines, wire services, and Web publishers. The staff also maintains the
newsroom content on the College website.

Public relations staff media activities include:

Reporting, writing, editing, and distributing news releases. These are designed to convey information of
news value in a timely manner to the appropriate media.

Preparation and distribution of news tips and story pitches. These are brief releases designed to suggest
story topics and sources for the news media, and to alert them about upcoming events.

Production of The Watercooler, an online employee newsletter that offers the latest news and events for
San Jacinto College employees.

134


http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-2-18-public-relations%23purpose
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-2-18-public-relations%23purpose
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-2-18-public-relations%23crisis%20comm
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-2-18-public-relations%23staff%20responsibility
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-2-18-public-relations%23film%20and%20photos
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-2-18-public-relations%23overview
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-2-18-public-relations%23news%20media
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-2-18-public-relations%23event%20coverage
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-2-18-public-relations%23college%20photography
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-2-18-public-relations%23privacy
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-2-18-public-relations%23social%20media
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-2-18-public-relations%23media%20info%20employees

Attachment 4

Personal contacts with local, state, and national news media. These can be initiated by public relations
office staff, or in response to inquiries from media.

Assist with maintenance of the main San Jacinto College website (www.sanjac.edu), and the College’s
athletics website (www.sanjacsports.com), that contain a mixture of news, features, an events calendar,
search engine, and other links in order to convey the rich history and the stories of our College.
Arranging news conferences, briefings, or other meetings / interviews with news media as appropriate.
Monitoring mentions of San Jacinto College in the news media.

Develop strategies to address changes in the news media industry and the impact of technology on how
media is reported.

I1l. Overview

These public relations procedures have three basic objectives:

To ensure consistency in communications with news media from all areas of the College.
To help maintain the high level of credibility the College enjoys in its dealings with the media.
To protect the reputation of the College, its students, and employees.

The Marketing, Public Relations, and Government Affairs department will always be an honest provider of
information to the public. One of the College’s eight values is integrity — acting in ways which instill
confidence and trust. Failure to provide accurate information to the public in general -- and specifically to
the news media -- could damage the credibility of the College and diminish the effectiveness of the
Marketing, Public Relations, and Government Affairs department in its relationships with news media.

IV. Event Coverage

News releases for upcoming events are prepared when those events are open to the public, or at least
open to news coverage. The only exception to this would be when the event, in the judgment of the vice
chancellor for marketing, public relations, and government affairs, or director, marketing and public
relations, is of such overriding importance to the public that an advance release in itself would be news.

As part of the mission of San Jacinto College, our College enriches the life in the communities we serve.
In addition to classes for students, San Jacinto College conducts seminars, lectures, and other programs
to educate members of the College community and those beyond. Therefore, most events at San Jacinto
College should be open to the public. On some occasions, events will not be open to the public because
of space limitations or safety concerns. News releases of impending events are designed to spur public
interest and participation in those events. It would be counterproductive to advertise an event and then
bar news coverage.

San Jacinto College encourages event organizers to open the event to news coverage, even if it may be
limited coverage. Television cameras can be prohibited from the event if, in the event organizer’s
judgment, they would be disruptive. However, television reporters without cameras or recording
equipment should be given access if print reporters receive similar access. There should be no
discrimination based on medium. The public relations staff has responsibility for determining whether an
event is of such importance that it merits a release even if it is closed to the news media. Event
organizers are encouraged to contact the public relations office to discuss news coverage.

San Jacinto College employees and staff are encouraged to provide the public relations staff with three to
four weeks advance notice of events. This will allow the public relations staff ample time to research,
interview, and disseminate the event information to the news media to garner interest and coverage.

V. Privacy

135


http://www.sanjac.edu/
http://www.sanjacsports.com/

Attachment 4

San Jacinto College respects the privacy of students and employees, and follows all appropriate local,
state, and federal guidelines and statutes affecting privacy and confidentiality.

Students

The federal Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) of 1974 limits the disclosure of information
from a student's education records to only basic "directory” facts. A description of all information that can
be released as “directory information” under FERPA is outlined in the San Jacinto College catalog.
Directory information will be withheld if a student so requests.

Employees

Included among information that will not be released outside the College are any data that would
selectively advantage or disadvantage individuals with regard to race, creed, color, national origin,
citizenship status, age, disability, pregnancy, religion, gender, sexual orientation, gender expression or
identity, genetic information, marital status, or veteran status in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws.

VI. Media Information for Employees

In the event of a crisis situation, the vice chancellor, marketing, public relations, and government affairs;
or the director, marketing and public relations, will serve as the spokesperson(s) for the College.
Employees, must refer all media to the marketing, public relations, and government affairs department,
and should not speak directly to media unless instructed to do so. However, there are other opportunities
outside of crisis situations for members of the College community, including students, faculty, and staff, to
be interviewed “on the record.” Employees must refer all media requests to the director, marketing and
public relations; and public relations staff will help you prepare for interactions with reporters.

About reporters

Reporters are professionals attempting to communicate information in the most interesting and accurate
way. Most are general reporters who cover anything that is considered worthy of airtime or newspaper
space. Beat reporters, however, are usually assigned to specific subject matter or area.

Deadlines: Reporters represent the public's right to know and they attempt to be as objective as they
can. However, the constant pressure to meet deadlines makes their job extremely difficult. Deadlines
force reporters to prepare a story, whether or not they can present both sides. The public relations staff,
in conjunction with campus personnel, will do everything possible to attempt to meet a reporter’s
deadline.

Radio: Radio reporters work under tight deadlines. Because they are limited to approximately 30-60
seconds to present their stories on-air, they look to experts for lively voice clips of about 15 seconds,
which describe the "bottom line" of what the issue is and why it is relevant.

Television: Images (also called b-roll) are the essential ingredient for a TV story. Television reporters
have limited time in which to present their stories so they simplify information to keep stories to an
average length of 90 seconds.

Print: Print reporters work for daily and weekly newspapers, magazines, and wire services. Often, they
want a lot of detail because they do not have the benefit of using visual and audio imagery. They rely on
vivid descriptions to communicate their stories. Interviews with print reporters can happen in person or
on the phone.

Things for you to know

136



Attachment 4

If a reporter contacts you directly, you are to direct them to the director, marketing and public relations.
The public relations staff will then make arrangements for the appropriate staff or students to interview
(on the phone or in person), at a mutually agreeable time, and any necessary time on campus. Reporters
often are on a tight deadline, but this doesn't mean that you have to carve out time for a full interview
immediately. The public relations staff can work out the details with the reporter. By having a member of
the public relations staff facilitate the interview, they can also find out what information the reporter is
looking for and what information he or she has already gathered, how the information will be used, how
much information he or she is requiring, etc., so that you have time to collect your thoughts or finish
teaching your class.

Beware of talking "off the record.” You can ask that what you say not be used, but even if a reporter
agrees, it's important to know that you might still see the information turn up in print or on-air.

It is important to understand that San Jacinto College public relations staff members will disseminate the
news to the media, but that under no circumstance does the media have an obligation to print or air any
news releases or briefs. Therefore, there is no guarantee that your story will appear in the local
newspapers or on TV, but the San Jacinto College public relations staff will make every effort to get the
information to the media.

What's news worthy?

Not sure whether your news would interest the media? The public relations staff is happy to provide
guidance. We're always interested in hearing about:

Research findings. The media is most interested in your research breakthrough if it will impact or
interest the general public. Think about what types of stories are “trendy” (ex: health care, jobs, work
force training, STEM). Reporters also pay more attention to peer-reviewed work about to be published in
a journal or presented at a conference or government hearing.

Well-known campus visitors. San Jacinto College often draws well-known individuals to speak at
special gatherings including conferences, lectures, and graduation ceremonies. Let us know if you're
about to host such a visitor.

Major announcements. Let the public relations staff know if a faculty member or student has received
an important award or recognition from an organization, or if your department has acquired a significant
gift or grant.

Events. The campus calendar is filled with events throughout the year, but certain ones — especially
those on newsy or otherwise fascinating topics — would catch a reporter's eye. We can help attract
coverage of such events.

Human-interest stories. Reporters are always interested in a good human-interest story, whether it's
about an extraordinary person or project. We're always interested in stories about students and their
one-of-a-kind contributions to San Jacinto College and our community.

Unique new courses. As each new semester is about to begin, the public relations staff looks for unique
new courses — whether they're tied to current events, are trendy, or would simply be fun for the public to
read about — to pass along to reporters.

An important factor to also consider is the visual that accompanies the story. Television reporters will
need what is called b-roll, and a newspaper reporter will need that one image / photograph that will catch
a reader’s eye. Subjects will be asked to sign a photo release form for use of their image on the air or in
an article.

VII. Crisis Communications

137



Attachment 4

The College has established two basic guidelines for communicating with the media, which should be
observed in all situations, especially in crisis situations:

The vice chancellor for marketing, public relations, and government affairs; and the director, marketing
and public relations, are the authorized spokespersons to disseminate information to the media, unless
the Chancellor appoints an alternate designee. In crisis situations, employees should not engage with
the media on behalf of San Jacinto College. The designated spokesperson(s) is the point of contact
between media and College resources, provides referrals to proper sources of information within the
College community, and can provide a consistent message to the media during crisis situations.

Only factual information is released; no speculation will be offered.

Other Guidelines

All personnel are directed to report the status of an emergency situation directly to the crisis
management team. Personnel are not to discuss this status with outsiders, especially media, on behalf
of the College.

All contacts from the media must be referred directly to the vice chancellor for marketing, public relations,
and government affairs at 281-998-6151 (office) or 281-733-9386 (mobile); or the director, marketing and
public relations at 281-998-6160 (office) or 713-542-7729 (mobile).

The vice chancellor for marketing, public relations, and government affairs will be kept apprised of the
status of all emergencies, including what the emergency is, how it began (what caused it), who is
involved, if there are injuries, the names of those injured and extent of injuries, what is happening
currently, and what help has been summoned. Additionally, information should be given on what is being
done to resolve the emergency.

Employees should be wary of video cameras or photographers, and their coverage of an incident, and
should contact the vice chancellor for marketing, public relations, and government affairs; or the director,
marketing and public relations, if media is seen on campus.

Under no circumstances shall anyone other than the designated spokesperson(s) release the names of
victims. The spokesperson(s) shall not release any information about the victims without direct
authorization from the crisis management team to ensure family members have been appropriately
contacted.

Family members affected are discouraged from agreeing to provide media with an interview, but if they
chose to grant an interview, it is recommended that questions be prescreened. It is recommended that
the vice chancellor for marketing, public relations, and government affairs, the director, marketing and
public relations, or a member of the crisis management team be present during interviews with family
members to ensure that ground rules are followed and inappropriate questions are not asked of the
family members.

The vice chancellor for marketing, public relations, and government affairs will work with the public
relations staff to disseminate approved communication to the campus community through the Emergency
Notification System, SJC AlertMe, and news releases to the media. The public relations staff will also
update the College website and any appropriate social media outlets. It is important to remember that the
College website and emergency notification systems are the official form of communication. Students and
employees should not rely on media for information during a crisis situation.

138


http://www.sanjac.edu/alert-me

Attachment 4

VIII. Filming and Photography on Campus
Purpose

This information is intended to clarify under what circumstances Filming and Photography on any of the
San Jacinto College campuses and its properties may be allowed by external entities wishing to use our
college campuses or facilities as a backdrop for projects not related to San Jacinto College. This
information is principally applicable to all San Jacinto College faculty, staff, affiliates and students and to
the Photography and Filming services they may utilize.

Definitions

The following terms shall be used in the context and for the purposes of this Policy only:

Campus Image: a still or moving image of San Jacinto College property that can be readily identified by
the public as college property by architecture, landmarks, signage, the presence of prominent
individuals, the inclusion of logo clothing or athletic uniforms, or any other means.

College Name and Graphic marks: any use of the college name or any form of the college including
the campuses or district office. Graphic marks include the college logo, tagline, advertising campaign,
seal, and mascots.

Filming: the capturing of moving or still images of San Jacinto College property by any means on any
media now known or that may be invented in the future including, but not limited to, film, videotape,
digital disk or any electronic transmission to another medium or to the Internet.

Photography: the capturing of still images onto any compatible medium, or posting to the Internet, by
any means or devices now known or that may be invented in the future including, but not limited to, film
cameras, digital cameras, electronic devices such as personal computers (PC), mobile phones, personal
digital assistants (PDA), etc.

Filming and Photography will be permitted on San Jacinto College campuses or property leased by the
College in accordance with this information and provided that such activity does not interfere with the
educational or normal program functions or previously scheduled events of the College and does not
pose a security or safety risk. Further, the use or re-use of the Filming or Photography output must not be
deemed inconsistent with College values or in violation of the policies of the College. All activities
requiring College resources, such as police, grounds restoration, traffic control, parking, and any other
College services rendered shall be charged to the user.

a. External Use Filming or Photography

For purposes of this information, External Use shall include Filming or Photography on campus for
commercial or non-commercial purposes and for which San Jacinto College will not own the copyright to
the work created. No campus images may be used without prior written authorization from the Marketing,
Public Relations, and Government Affairs Department. Examples of External Use Filming or Photography
include, but are not limited to:

1. Theatrical release, broadcast or print media;

2. Industrial use (e.g., trade show or intra-company, intra-industry use);
3. Editorial use;

4. Public service announcements;

5. Non-San Jacinto College student filming;

139



Attachment 4

6. Documentary.
b. Internal Use Filming or Photography

For purposes of this information, Internal Use shall include all Filming and/or Photography on any campus
which is not incidental for non-commercial use by a San Jacinto College employee or student, or
contracted for by a San Jacinto College department or unit and for which San Jacinto College exercises
artistic, creative control. Examples of Internal Use include, but are not limited to:

1. Broadcast or print media primarily for San Jacinto College use;
2. San Jacinto College student filming;
3. San Jacinto College academic or departmental broadcast or Webcast.

Departments or units that engage the services of non-College staff (e.g., a commercial photographer or
film company) for any Internal Use Filming or Photography must ensure that terms governing the use and
re-use of any Campus Images are clearly spelled out in the agreement with each contractor. Departments
should pursue all ownership rights and interests in the work created on behalf of the College and paid for
with College funds.

c. News Reporting

For purposes of this information, News Reporting is live Filming or Photography and transmission (with or
without audio recording) as “active” or “breaking” news, by a qualified news reporting service. All requests
for News Reporting should be referred to the Marketing, Public Relations, and Government Affairs
Department. News organizations must get verbal permission from the Marketing, Public Relations, and
Government Affairs Department before News Reporting can commence.

In most cases, a public relations representative will accompany television news film crews. Any disputes
involving News Reporting should be referred to the director, marketing and public relations, for resolution.

d. Incidental, Non-commercial Filming or Photography

No special permission is required for the incidental Filming or Photography by San Jacinto College faculty
or staff creating work to be used for non-commercial, educational or administrative purposes provided

such incidental Filming or Photography can be done unobtrusively without interrupting campus programs,
classes or activities and will not require any special campus services (Campus Police, maintenance, etc.).

In addition, no special permission is required for the incidental, unobtrusive non-commercial Filming or
Photography by visitors or tourists to the campus. Any such Filming or Photography may not be used for
commercial purposes at any time without the express written permission of the Marketing, Public
Relations, and Government Affairs Department.

e. San Jacinto College Identification and Appropriate Use of Campus Images

No identification of San Jacinto College as the location of External Use Filming or Photography will be
permitted, except that which has been approved in advance by the Marketing, Public Relations, and
Government Affairs Department. The Department will refer questions of the suitability of proposals or
requests that propose the identification of San Jacinto College to the Vice Chancellor for Marketing,
Public Relations, and Government Affairs.

The request may be approved when the proposed identification is deemed to be in the College’s
interests. Such requests for San Jacinto College identification should clearly specify how the identification
will be made and in what subject matter context.

No trademarked icons, images, logos, or widely recognizable landmarks or highly sensitive locations of
the College shall be filmed, photographed, or otherwise reproduced for any commercial purposes now or
in the future.

140



Attachment 4

Responsibilities

San Jacinto College staff and faculty should become familiar with the provisions of this Procedure and
avail themselves of appropriate departmental and campus resources in all instances of Filming and
Photography on campus. The Marketing, Public Relations, and Government Affairs Department is
ultimately responsible for reviewing all requests for Filming and Photography on Campus.

In general, the following criteria will be evaluated:

All proposals for Filming or Photography on campus will be evaluated for potential logistics problems and
if approved, determine the appropriate facility and services usage;

Be responsible for obtaining the approval of the authority in direct charge of the facility requested prior to
issuing any permit for a specific facility;

Determine the need for assigning an on-site campus Film Location Manager for Filming activities;
Ensure that proposed Filming or Photography does not include Campus Images; may grant exceptions
on a case-by-case basis.

The Marketing, Public Relations, and Government Affairs Department will:

Coordinate the securing of permissions on behalf of the requestor once the request has been approved.
Provide all coordination with other campus entities and services as necessary.

IX. Information for the News Media
News media on campus

We want the media to come visit us. However, in order to ensure the privacy of our students, faculty, staff,
and community, we request that all media contact a member of the public relations staff prior to visiting
campus. As part of their jobs, our police officers look for vehicles and people who are not authorized to be
on campus. If we know a member of the news media is coming, we can notify the police department, and
also provide media members with the most convenient parking to maximize your time. In almost all cases,
student/faculty interviews and other taping/photography are possible, and a public relations staff member
can assist with the arrangements.

Interviews

We want to talk to you. San Jacinto College faculty and staff are encouraged to share their stories.
However, as a member of the news media, you may find it helpful to contact the public relations staff for
further background information, or additional experts. Since our expert list is continually updated, we may
be able to refer you to an expert who might better serve your needs. We can also assist in making
arrangements for on-campus interviews.

College Data or Information

We want you to have the most complete and accurate information. So, if you are looking for data or
information about the College, you should call the public relations staff directly.

Campus Emergencies

In the event of an emergency at San Jacinto College, the news media should contact the director,
marketing and public relations.

X. College Photography

141



Attachment 4

The San Jacinto College marketing and public relations staff offers professional photography services for
a variety of College uses, focused primarily on promotional purposes and to support news media
publicity. Other events or requests — especially those outside of regular office hours, and those that do
not support the purpose of the San Jacinto College marketing, public relations, and government affairs
department — may not be fulfilled.

San Jacinto College employees may take photos with a camera (cell phone photos are not usually shot at
a high resolution suitable for website or print use) and submit them to the marketing and public relations
staff for use on the Watercooler or The Exchange. If your department does not have a camera, you may
check one out from the marketing, public relations, and government affairs staff.

The priority for marketing and public relations photography services is as follows.

Essential:

Board of Trustees

Chancellor’s Office

Advertising

News / Media Requests

Institutional publications such as: recruiting brochures, About San Jacinto College brochure, College
catalog, program / departmental promotional brochures, CareerFocus magazine

Athletics

Student organizations / events (as needed for marketing, publication, and promotional purposes)

Nonessential:

Photos for a department’s personal use in memory albums, scrapbooks, presentations

Requests for which a majority of photos shot will not be used in a publication ad / or media placement
Photos taken only to give to the subject as a memento

Studio portraits

Criteria for requesting photography services

The San Jacinto College marketing and public relations staff dedicates its resources to advancing the
overall institutional image. The following criteria should be considered when requesting photography
service from the department.

Why is the photography needed and how will it be used?

Is the photo newsworthy to local, regional, and / or national news?

How can the subject(s) to be photographed yield the strongest impact? What is the visual trying to be
captured?

Is there potential for multiple uses of the photo (i.e., news release, publication, magazine, etc.)?

How does the photographic need support the San Jacinto College strategic goals and annual priorities?

Photography requests should be made at least a week in advance. Requests made with less than a week
may not be fulfilled. Click here to submit a photography request form.
All subjects in photos must sign a photo release form.

Xl. Social Media Guidelines

142



Attachment 4

San Jacinto College has established guidelines for students, faculty, and staff to consider when
establishing a social media online presence. Please see the social media guidelines for employees and
students for more information.

Employee Guidelines

San Jacinto College respects the rights of its employees to maintain and interact within the online social
media community. Existing policies and guidelines concerning the governance of faculty and staff
behavior apply to the College’s social media sites.

Reputation:

Please be aware that employee social media sites are a reflection of College. In keeping with the
College’s value of integrity, we remind all employees to “act in ways which instill confidence and trust” in
the online community. Any comments made online can be linked back to the College, especially if San
Jacinto College is shown as the employer. If an employee wishes to disclose a working relationship with
San Jacinto College, employees are requested to include the following disclaimer in their profile:

“l am not authorized to speak on behalf of San Jacinto College and the views expressed on this site are
mine and do not necessarily reflect those of San Jacinto College.”

Confidentiality:

Employees should maintain and respect confidentiality at all times. An employee could become subject to
disciplinary action for disclosing confidential or proprietary information about San Jacinto College
students, employees, or alumni. Exercise good, ethical judgment and adhere to existing College policies
and federal requirements, such as Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). As a general rule, do not post anything on social
media regarding the College that would not be OK to present at a conference.

Time and Equipment:

Please respect College time and property by maintaining personal sites when not at the College and
using personally owned equipment. It is appropriate to engage in social media in the workplace only if the
involvement is directly related to accomplishing College goals.

Proceedings:

In response to concerns, complaints, or information provided by individuals, San Jacinto College
administrators may view publicly shared profiles on online social networking sites and use the information
contained on these sites in informal or formal College proceedings.

Student Guidelines

Social media is a great way for students to stay connected with fellow students and to find
College resources. The following guidelines are designed to help students navigate the social
web at San Jacinto College and in life outside the college.

Participate and Connect:

Students are encouraged to ask questions through the College social media sites. College resources are
available to help students succeed and social media is a great way to connect to those resources. Be
aware that the marketing department does not have access to student records, so questions concerning
financial aid, student accounts and academic advising are best left to the experts on campus. For some
guestions, students may be asked you to contact socialmedia@sjcd.edu for further assistance - some
conversations are better left off our social media sites.

If a student disagrees with someone on social media and wants to state a differing opinion, that student
should do so in a respectful manner. If the response includes profanity or attacks someone personally, it
will be removed from the official College social media sites without warning. Language that is illegal,

143


http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/marketing-pr-and-govt-affairs/social-media/employee-guidelines
http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/marketing-pr-and-govt-affairs/social-media/social-media-student
mailto:socialmedia@sjcd.edu

Attachment 4

obscene, defamatory, threatening, infringing of intellectual property rights, invasive of privacy, profane,
libelous, threatening, harassing, abusive, hateful or embarrassing to any person or entity, or otherwise
injurious or objectionable is unacceptable and shall be removed. In some cases, student discipline may
be involved. Social media sites are not an appropriate place to talk negatively about classmates or
instructors. Students with a situation to report are asked to send an email to socialmedia@sjcd.edu. The
College will look into submitted complaints. A good rule of thumb for all online communication is to resist
posting a comment that would be inappropriate on the front page of a newspaper.

The College Social Media sites are a great place for a student organization to post information about
events or any event happening on one of the campuses. Students are encouraged to share pictures from
a campus event.

Students are encouraged to utilize social media to connect with friends, family and classmates. Social
media provides a great opportunity to connect and engage. The College has posted a social media
directory online for a list of San Jacinto College’s social media sites so students can join those that are of
interest.

Be careful what you share:

Students should never give out personal information on social media sites such as social security
numbers, G number, passwords, PIN numbers, account numbers, address, or phone number. San
Jacinto College will never request this type of information from students through a social media site.

You can't take it back:

Once something is posted in social media, it can’t be taken back. Always remember that social media
sites are not “private.” Regardless of privacy settings, connections may share something they see posted
online. Before posting, remember that many employers, colleges, and universities are turning to social
media sites to help determine admissions and employee selections. Each day there are more court cases
utilizing social media sites as supporting evidence. So, please be careful what information is shared
online.

San Jacinto College does not monitor the personal social media sites of our students. However, we do
monitor the College name (San Jacinto College) and variations of it online. Students may be subject to
disciplinary action, as outlined in the San Jacinto College student handbook, based on information posted
on social networking sites. San Jacinto College reserves the right to turn cases of serious incidents over
to the proper authorities. Examples of this may include, but are not limited to, threats against the College,
its students, or employees.

Classroom Activities:

Students should not access social media sites during class times, unless instructed to do so by the
professor. Students should limit social media activity on public computers in the open labs during times of
high traffic; other students may need the machines to complete course work.

144


mailto:socialmedia@sjcd.edu

Procedure #:
Procedure Name:
Pages:

Adopted Date:

Revision/Reviewed Date:

Effective Date:

Associated Policy:

Attachment 4

2-18
Public Relations

9

VI-J

145


http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-vi-j-policy-publicity

Attachment 5

Procedure VI11.7001.A.a, Public Relations

Associated Policy
Policy VI1.7001.A, Public Relations

Procedures

The purpose of the San Jacinto College Marketing, Public Relations and Government Affairs
department is to tell the story of the College’s students, employees, alumni and programs through
multiple communications channels. The department provides strategic counsel, creative
solutions, and timely, responsive services to internal and external clients.

All media relations requests and actions flow through the Marketing, Public Relations, and
Government Affairs department for three reasons:

1. To ensure consistency in messaging from all areas of the College with news media.
2. To maintain a high level of credibility with the media.
3. To protect the reputation of the College, its students and its employees.

The Marketing, Public Relations and Government Affairs department will always be an honest
provider of information to the public. One of the College’s eight values is integrity — acting in
ways which instill confidence and trust — which is vital to maintaining successful public relations
efforts for the College. Failure to provide accurate information to the public in general -- and
specifically to the news media -- could damage the credibility of the College and diminish the
effectiveness of its relationships with news media.

I. Public Relations Staff Responsibility

The public relations staff has primary responsibility for "coverage™ of news and information
throughout the College. Communications coordinators work closely with each campus and
College departments to produce news items concerning activities, events, students, programs and
employees. The public relations staff is also responsible for sports information to promote the
College’s athletic programs.

I1. Event Coverage

e News releases for events are prepared in advance when events are open to the public, or
at least open to news coverage. The only exception to this would be when the event, in
the judgment of the Vice Chancellor, Marketing, Public Relations and Government
Affairs; or Vice President, Marketing and Public Relations, is of such overriding
importance to the public that an advance release in itself would be news.

e San Jacinto College employees and staff are encouraged to provide the public relations
staff with three to four weeks advance notice of events. This allows the public relations

146



Attachment 5

staff ample time to research, interview and disseminate the event information to the news
media to garner interest and coverage.

I11. Contact with the Media and Preparing for Interviews

Opportunities exist outside of crisis situations (see section IV for crisis communications) for
members of the College community, including students, faculty and staff, to be interviewed and
tell the story of San Jacinto College. Employees must refer all media requests to the Vice
President, Marketing and Public Relations; and public relations staff will prepare employees and
/ or students for interactions with reporters.

About reporters

Reporters are professionals attempting to communicate information to their respective audiences
in the most interesting and accurate way. Reporters represent the public's right to know and they
attempt to be as objective as they can. However, the constant pressure to meet deadlines makes
their job extremely difficult. Deadlines force reporters to prepare a story by a certain time or
date, whether or not they can present both sides. They look to experts to describe the "bottom
line" of what the issue is and why it is relevant.

Things to know

If a reporter contacts an employee directly, the employee should direct the reporter to the Vice
President, Marketing and Public Relations. The public relations staff will then make
arrangements for the appropriate staff or students to interview at a mutually agreeable time,
including any necessary time on campus.

Beware of talking "off the record.” Even though employees or students can ask that what is said
not be used, even if a reporter agrees, that information may still turn up in print or on-air.

Employees should be wary of video cameras or photographers on campus that are not
accompanied by a member of the College public relations staff. Employees should contact the
Vice President, Marketing and Public Relations; or the Senior Communications Coordinator, if
media is seen on campus unaccompanied.

San Jacinto College public relations staff members will disseminate College news to the media,
but under no circumstance does the media have an obligation to print or air any news, photo
releases or briefs.

IV. Crisis Communications

The College has established two basic guidelines for communicating with the media, which
should be observed by employees and students, especially in crisis situations:

147



Attachment 5

1. The Vice President, Marketing and Public Relations; and the Senior Communications
Coordinator, are the authorized spokespersons (Public Information Officer) to
disseminate information to the media, unless the Chancellor appoints an alternate
designee or the P10 requests an employee to speak to the media. In crisis situations,
employees are not to engage with the media on behalf of San Jacinto College.

2. The PIO is the point of contact between media and College resources, provide(s) referrals
to proper sources of information within the College community, and will provide a
consistent message to the media and the public during crisis situations.

3. The most accurate information is the only information that will be distributed. No
College employee is to offer any speculation.

Procedures to Follow

o Employees are not to speak with the media unless requested to do so by the Public
Information Officer.

« All contacts from the media must be referred directly to the Vice President, Marketing
and Public Relations, at 281-998-6160 (office) or 713-542-7729 (mobile); or the Senior
Communications Coordinator at 281-991-2633 (office) or 713-858-8248 (mobile).

e The incident management team will keep the Vice President, Marketing and Public
Relations apprised of the status of all emergencies.

e Under no circumstances shall anyone other than the designated spokesperson(s) release
the names of victims or details about the emergency situation. The spokesperson(s) shall
not release any information about the victims without direct authorization from the
incident management team to ensure family members have been appropriately contacted.

« Family members affected by a crisis situation on campus are discouraged from agreeing
to provide media with an interview. However, if they choose to grant an interview, it is
recommended that the Vice President, Marketing and Public Relations; the Senior
Communications Coordinator; or a member of the incident management team be present
during interviews with family members to ensure that media follow ground rules and that
inappropriate questions are not asked.

The Vice President, Marketing and Public Relations; or the Senior Communications Coordinator
will disseminate communication approved by the incident management team to the campus
community through the Emergency Notification System, SJIC AlertMe, as well as through news
releases to the media. The College website and official College social media outlets will be
updated throughout an emergency situation, as well as the emergency notification phone line 1-
877-316-8308. It is important to remember that the College website and emergency notification
systems are the official form of communication. Students and employees should not rely solely
on media for information during a crisis situation.

V. Filming and Photography on Campus
Filming and photography will be permitted at San Jacinto College locations, campuses, grounds,

facilities, or properties (whether owened or leased) in accordance with this information and
provided that such activity does not interfere with the educational or normal business operations

148


http://www.sanjac.edu/alert-me

Attachment 5

and program functions or previously scheduled events of the College, and does not pose a
security or safety risk. Further, the use or re-use of the filming or photography output must not
be deemed inconsistent with College values or in violation of the policies of the College. All
activities requiring College resources, such as police, grounds restoration, traffic control,
parking, and any other College services rendered shall be charged to the user.

a. External Use Filming or Photography

For purposes of this information, External Use shall include filming or photography on campus
for commercial or non-commercial purposes and for which San Jacinto College will not own the
copyright to the work created. No campus images may be used without prior written
authorization from the Marketing, Public Relations and Government Affairs department.

b. Internal Use Filming or Photography

For purposes of this information, Internal Use shall include all filming and/or photography on
any campus which is not incidental for non-commercial use by a San Jacinto College employee
or student, or contracted for by a San Jacinto College department or unit and for which San
Jacinto College exercises artistic, creative control.

Departments or units that engage the services of non-College staff (e.g., a commercial
photographer or film company) for any Internal Use filming or photography must ensure that
terms governing the use and re-use of any campus images are clearly spelled out in the
agreement with each contractor. Departments should pursue all ownership rights and interests in
the work created on behalf of the College and paid for with College funds.

c. News Reporting

For purposes of this information, news reporting is live or recorded filming or photography and
transmission (with or without audio recording) as “active” or “breaking” news or pre-recorded
for a later newscast, by a qualified news reporting service. All requests for news reporting should
be referred to the Vice President, Marketing and Public Relations. News organizations must
receive verbal permission from the Marketing, Public Relations and Government Affairs
department before news reporting can commence.

In most cases, a public relations staff member will accompany television news film crews. Any
disputes involving news reporting should be referred to the Vice President, Marketing and Public
Relations, for resolution.

d. Incidental, Non-commercial Filming or Photography

No special permission is required for the incidental filming or photography by San Jacinto
College faculty or staff creating work to be used for non-commercial, educational or
administrative purposes provided such incidental filming or photography can be done

4

149



Attachment 5

unobtrusively without interrupting campus programs, classes or activities and will not require
any special campus services (Campus Police, maintenance, etc.).

In addition, no special permission is required for the incidental, unobtrusive non-commercial
filming or photography by visitors or tourists to the campus. Any such filming or photography
may not be used for commercial purposes at any time without the express written permission of
the Marketing, Public Relations and Government Affairs department.

e. Non-News and Commercial Filming or Photography

San Jacinto College does not allow the use of its campuses and facilities for the purpose of non-
news and commercial filming or photography. However, the Marketing, Public Relations and
Government Affairs department may consider specific requests. Express written permission is
required at least 30 days in advance of the projected filming or photo shoot date. Requests must
include the following information:

e Name and description of the individual, company or organization making the request.

e Project description, which may include scripts and / or storyboards, and the manner in
which San Jacinto College will be represented.

e The specific sites on campus, including buildings and / or facilities, to be included in the
filming or photography.

e Proposed date(s) and time(s) for the filming or photography shoot, including set-up and
breakdown.

e Alist of all equipment that will be used.

e A copy of all releases, agreements or other legal documents proposed by the production
individual, company or organization.

e Proof of liability insurance.

If a specific facility is required for the filming or photography shoot, the requestor must obtain a
contract with the respective campus services department. A fee may be required.

f. San Jacinto College Identification and Appropriate Use of Campus Images

No identification of San Jacinto College as the location of external use filming or photography
will be permitted, except that which has been approved in advance by the Marketing, Public
Relations and Government Affairs department.

No trademarked icons, images, logos, or widely recognizable landmarks or highly sensitive

locations of the College shall be filmed, photographed, or otherwise reproduced for any
commercial purposes now or in the future.

150



Attachment 5

Responsibilities

San Jacinto College staff and faculty should become familiar with the provisions of this
procedure and avail themselves of appropriate departmental and campus resources in all
instances of filming and photography on campus. The Marketing, Public Relations and
Government Affairs department is ultimately responsible for reviewing all requests for filming
and photography on College campuses.

V1. Social Media Guidelines

San Jacinto College has established guidelines for students and employees to consider when
establishing a social media online presence. The social media guidelines for employees and
students are available on the College website.

Definitions

Campus Image: A still or moving image of San Jacinto College property that can be readily
identified by the public as College property by architecture, landmarks, signage, the presence of
prominent individuals, the inclusion of logo clothing or athletic uniforms or any other means.

College Name and Graphic Marks: Any use of the College name or any form of the College
name including the campuses or district office. Graphic marks include the college logo, tagline,
advertising campaign, seal and campus mascots.

Filming: The capturing of moving or still images of San Jacinto College property by any means
on any media now known or that may be invented in the future including, but not limited to,
film, videotape, digital disk or any electronic transmission to another medium or to the Internet.

Photography: The capturing of still images onto any compatible medium, or posting to the
Internet, by any means or devices now known or that may be invented in the future including,
but not limited to, film cameras, digital cameras, electronic devices such as personal computers
(PC), mobile phones, personal digital assistants (PDA), etc.

Public Information Officer: The Public Information Officer, or P10, is the designated
spokesperson during a crisis situation at San Jacinto College. The PIO is a member of the
incident management team.

Date of SLT November 28, 2017
Approval
Effective Date Anitipcated February 6, 2018

Associated Policy Policy VI1.7001.A, Public Relations

151


http://www.sanjac.edu/policy-vi-j-policy-public-relations

Attachment 5

Primary Owner of Vice Chancellor, Marketing, Public Relations Government Affairs
Policy Associated
with the Procedure

Secondary Owner of  Vice President, Marketing and Public Relations
Policy Associated
with the Procedure

152



Action Item “XI1V”

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of Policy VI11.7002.A: Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property —
Second Reading)

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a revision and update to
the College’s Policy VI1.7002.A on Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property, formerly
designated as Policy VI-LL: Policy on Alcohol Usage.

BACKGROUND

Policy VI-LL was most recently approved by the Board of Trustees on August 5, 2014. This
policy reflects the designation of San Jacinto College as an alcohol-free institution. The
policy gives the Chancellor authorization to permit the consumption, possession, serving,
and/or use of alcohol for persons aged 21 and over for College programs and events or
outside organization events that meet specific requirements as stated in the policy.

The revisions to the policy are recommended to establish the new policy format and to reflect
the strengthened College practices for events on College property. The supporting procedures
were developed and are an informational item for the Board.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

The updated policy and procedures were sent to the College community on December 8,
2017. Comments were received from four employees. All comments were reviewed and
evaluated, and several resulted in changes to both the policy and procedures (see Attachment
3 and Attachment 5 track changes versions). Additionally, one comment identified the need
for additional procedures to be developed for alcohol related instructional activities in the
culinary arts program. These additional procedures will be developed by the appropriate
areas and presented to the Strategic Leadership Team.

BUDGET INFORMATION

No budgetary impact.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The Board will be notified of any changes that require its action.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 — Summary of Changes

Attachment 2 — Policy VI-LL: Policy on Alcohol Usage (current policy)

Attachment 3 — Policy VI11.7002.A, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property (proposed
policy with track changes from first reading)

Attachment 4 — Policy VI11.7002.A, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property (proposed
version clean)

153



Action Item “XI1V”
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of Policy VI11.7002.A: Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property —
Second Reading)

Informational items only:

Attachment 5 — Procedure VI11.7002.A.a, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property
(proposed procedures with track changes from first reading)

Attachment 6 — Procedure VI11.7002.A.a, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property
(proposed procedures clean)

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Teri Crawford 281-998-6152 Teri.crawford@sjcd.edu

154


mailto:Teri.crawford@sjcd.edu

Attachment 1

Policies and Procedures Summary of Changes

New Policy Number: VII1.7002.A
Proposed Policy Name: Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property
Current Policy Number/Name: Policy VI-LL: Policy on Alcohol Usage

New Procedure Number: VII.7002.A.a
Proposed Procedure Name(s): Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property
Current Procedure Number(s)/Name(s): N/A

Action Recommended for Policy: Revised
Action Recommended for Procedures: New

Web Links: http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-vi-ll-policy-
alcohol-usage

Primary Owner: Vice Chancellor, Marketing, Public Relations and Government Affairs

Secondary Owner: Events Planner

Summary of Changes:

e Move the policy from HR —Policies, Procedures and Interpretations to Administration with the Use
of College Facilities Policy.

e Policy Changes
o Divide areas of approved groups/programs into — College Programs and Events and Outside

Organization Events
0 Moved restrictions and clarified any federal non-profit organization rather than only
501(c)(3) organizations
0 Added Organizations must use college- approved vendor to limitations of Outside
Organization Events
e Formalize procedures

155


http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-vi-ll-policy-alcohol-usage
http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-vi-ll-policy-alcohol-usage
http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-vi-ll-policy-alcohol-usage

1.

Attachment 2

Policy VI-LL: Policy on Alcohol Usage

INTRODUCTION

The San Jacinto College District (the “College”) is designated as an alcohol-free campus. The
possession or consumption of alcohol is prohibited in classroom buildings, laboratories, auditoriums,
library buildings, offices, athletic facilities, and all other College property, except as may be authorized in
this policy.

This policy applies to all employees, students, visitors, volunteers, contractors, and vendors. This policy
also applies to individuals and groups that rent or lease College facilities.

DEFINITION

“College property” means property, whether indoors or outdoors, located within the State of Texas that is
owned, operated, leased, occupied, or controlled by the College. For purposes of the General Policy on
Alcohol, this includes but is not limited to all buildings, structures, sidewalks, parking lots, walkways, and
attached parking structures owned or controlled by the College.

GENERAL POLICY

The possession or consumption of alcohol is prohibited on all College property. However, the Chancellor
is authorized to permit the use, serving, or consumption of alcohol for persons aged 21 and over as
follows:

a) At designated College facilities as part of a specifically defined and approved academic curricular
program or class, e.g., Culinary Arts;

b) At official events sponsored by the College;
c¢) At special fund-raising functions for the College sponsored by the College’s Foundation; or

d) At events sponsored by 501(c) organizations and/or not-for-profit community service organizations.
The events must serve a charitable, civic, or educational purpose. Such organizations must agree to the
terms in the College’s facilities rental agreement. In addition to describing the event and any limitations
placed on the event, the rental agreement shall address the following:

i. The organizers of such events will be required to provide proof of liability insurance. The College
shall require a certificate of insurance coverage with a reputable insurance company authorized by
the State of Texas. The facilities rental agreement shall contain a hold harmless and
indemnification provision that requires the organizers of the event to be solely responsible for
damage to property or injury or death to persons related to the consumption of alcohol.

ii. Alcohol will be allowed and consumed only in the facility identified in the facilities rental
agreement and not in restrooms, parking lots, or other areas of campus. Additionally, only
authorized individuals are permitted to deliver alcoholic beverages onto the premises or remove
them from the premises at the conclusion of the event.

iii. Cash bars are not permitted except in strict conformity with the rules and regulations of the
Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission.

4. Compliance and Enforcement

156



Attachment 2

Federal law, state law, and local ordinances shall be strictly enforced at all times on all property owned,
leased, or controlled by the College in regards to the possession and consumption of alcoholic
beverages. All parties serving alcoholic beverages must comply with the contractual obligations specified
in any facility rental agreement, College policy, local ordinances, the rules and regulations of the Texas
Alcoholic Beverage Commission, laws of the State of Texas, and federal law, including but not limited to
the Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act and the Drug-Free Workplace Act.

Policy #: VI-LL

Policy Name: Policy on Alcohol Usage
Pages: 2

Adopted Date: August 4, 2014

Revision/Reviewed Date:
Effective Date: August 5, 2014

Associated Procedure:

157



Attachment 3
Policy #V11.7002.A, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property

Purpose
TFhe-San Jacinto College (College) is designated as an alcohol-free institution. The pessessien-or
consumptlon possessmn servmq and/or use of alcohol |s prohlblted |n/or on Colleqe Property,

aJrl—e%her—GeHegeeFepeﬁy except as may be authorlzed in thls pPollcy

This pPolicy applies to all employees, students, visitors, volunteers, contractors, and vendors.
This Ppolicy also applies to individuals and groups that rent or lease any Sotege- facilities that
are designated as College Property.

Policy

The possession-or consumption, possession, serving, and/or use of alcohol is strictly prohibited
on all College prProperty. However, the Chancellor is authorized to permit the use, serving, or
consumption of alcohol for persons aged 21 and over as follows:

1. College Programs and Events

a) At designated College Property facthties as part of a specifically defined and
approved academic curricular program(s) or class(es). But even in these designated
program(s) or class(es), no one under the age of 21 may consume alcohol; {e-g-

I

b) At official events hosted and/or sponsored by the College; or

b)) At functions or events for the College sponsored by the San Jacinto College

Foundation.-spensered-and/or-hosted-events:
2. Outside Organization Events
a—Atotficial-events-hosted-by-the-College;-or
bya)  Atevents sponsored by any federal non-profit 564{€}{3} organization(s) and/or

not-for-profit community service organizations. Approval is at the discretion of the
College. The events must serve a charitable, civic, or educational purpose.

Such organizations must agree to the terms in the College’s Ffacilities Rrental
Aagreement. In addition to describing the event and any limitations placed on the event,
the Facilities Rrental aAgreement shall address the following:

i. The organizers of such events will be required to provide proof of liability insurance.
The College shall require a certificate of insurance coverage with a reputable
insurance company authorized by the State of Texas. The Ffacilities Rrental
aAgreement shall contain a hold harmless and indemnification provision that
requires the organizers of the event to be solely responsible for damage to property

or injury, illness, or death to persons.-related-to-the-consumption-of alcehek

158



Attachment 3

ii. Alcohol will be allowed and consumed only in the College Property facthity
identified in the Ffacilities Rrental Aagreement and not in restreoms,-parking lots; or
other prohibited areas of the College Property. iastiution-

iii. Organizations must use a College-approved caterervender that has been authorized
to deliver and/or serve alcoholic beverages on the College Property. ata-Colege

iv. Cash bars are not permitted except in strict conformity with the rules and regulations
of the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission (TABC).

Compliance and Enforcement

All Ffederal laws, state laws, and local ordinances shall be strictly enforced at all times on all

College Property property-owned;-leased-or-controlled-by-the- College in regard to the

consumption, possession, serving, and/or use -and-censumption of alcoholic beverages. All
parties serving alcoholic beverages must comply with the foregoing laws, the contractual

obligations specified in the College’s Ffacility Rrental Aagreement, this Policy, Cellege-pelicy;
Jreeal—erelmaneesr the rules and regulatlons of the TABC.; Law&ef—the%&a{euef—?e*as—and—fede#&l

Definitions

College Pproperty: Property, whether indoors or outdoors, located within the State of Texas
that is owned, operated, leased, occupied, or controlled by the College. For purposes of the
Policy on Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property, this includes but is not limited to all
buildings,_classrooms, laboratories, auditoriums, library buildings, offices, athletic facilities, any
other structures, grounds, sidewalks, parking lots, walkways, and attached parking structures
owned or controlled by the College.

The Authority, Applicability, Sanctions, Exclusions, and Interpretation do not differ from Policy
11.2000.A, Policy and Procedures Development, Review, Revision, and Rescission.

Associated Procedures
Procedure #V11.7002.A.a, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property

Date of Board  Anticipated February 5, 2018

Approval

Effective Date  Anticipated February 6, 2018

Primary Vice Chancellor, Marketing, Public Relations; and Government Affairs
Owner

Secondary Events Planner

Owner

159



Attachment 4

Policy VI11.7002.A, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property

Purpose

San Jacinto College (College) is designated as an alcohol-free institution. The consumption,
possession, serving, and/or use of alcohol is prohibited in/or on College Property, except as may
be authorized in this Policy.

This Policy applies to all employees, students, visitors, volunteers, contractors, and vendors. This
Policy also applies to individuals and groups that rent or lease any facilities that are designated as
College Property.

Policy

The consumption, possession, serving, and/or use of alcohol is strictly prohibited on all College
Property. However, the Chancellor is authorized to permit the use, serving, or consumption of
alcohol for persons aged 21 and over as follows:

1. College Programs and Events

a) At designated College Property as part of a specifically defined and approved
academic curricular program(s) or class(es). But even in these designated program(s)
or class(es), no one under the age of 21 may consume alcohol,

b) At official events hosted and/or sponsored by the College; or

c) At functions or events for the College sponsored by the San Jacinto College
Foundation.

2. Outside Organization Events

a) At events sponsored by any federal non-profit organization(s) and/or not-for-profit
community service organizations. Approval is at the discretion of the College. The
events must serve a charitable, civic, or educational purpose.

Such organizations must agree to the terms in the College’s Facilities Rental Agreement. In
addition to describing the event and any limitations placed on the event, the Facilities
Rental Agreement shall address the following:

i. The organizers of such events will be required to provide proof of liability insurance.
The College shall require a certificate of insurance coverage with a reputable
insurance company authorized by the State of Texas. The Facilities Rental
Agreement shall contain a hold harmless and indemnification provision that requires
the organizers of the event to be solely responsible for damage to property or injury,
illness, or death to persons.

ii. Alcohol will be allowed and consumed only in the College Property identified in the
Facilities Rental Agreement and not in parking lots or other prohibited areas of the
College Property.

160



Attachment 4

iii. Organizations must use a College-approved caterer that has been authorized to
deliver and/or serve alcoholic beverages on the College Property.

iv. Cash bars are not permitted except in strict conformity with the rules and regulations
of the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission (TABC).

Compliance and Enforcement

All federal laws, state laws, and local ordinances shall be strictly enforced at all times on all
College Property in regard to the consumption, possession, serving, and/or use of alcoholic
beverages. All parties serving alcoholic beverages must comply with the foregoing laws, the
contractual obligations specified in the College’s Facility Rental Agreement, this Policy, the
rules and regulations of the TABC.

Definitions

College Property: Property, whether indoors or outdoors, located within the State of Texas that
is owned, operated, leased, occupied, or controlled by the College. For purposes of the Policy on
Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property, this includes but is not limited to all buildings,
classrooms, laboratories, auditoriums, library buildings, offices, athletic facilities, any other
structures, grounds, sidewalks, parking lots, walkways, and attached parking structures owned or
controlled by the College.

The Authority, Applicability, Sanctions, Exclusions, and Interpretation do not differ from Policy
11.2000.A, Policy and Procedures Development, Review, Revision, and Rescission.

Associated Procedures
Procedure V11.7002.A.a, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property

Date of Board  Anticipated February 5, 2018

Approval

Effective Date  Anticipated February 6, 2018

Primary Vice Chancellor, Marketing, Public Relations and Government Affairs
Owner

Secondary Events Planner

Owner

161



Attachment 5

Procedure #\V11.7002.A.a, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property

Associated Policy
Policy #V11.7002.A, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property

Procedures
The Chancellor must authorize any event or program that will utilize the use, serving and/or
consumption of alcohol on San-Jacinte College Pproperty.

1.

All College programs, and events, and outside organizations (collectively referred to
e0rganizations for this procedure) events desiring to serve alcoholic beverages at an
event must submit a request to the College Event Planner who will ensure compliance
with the requirements of the Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property Ppolicy
(Policy VI1.7002.A) requirements-and will seek approval from the Chancellor no less
than 30 days before the event date. To request authorization, the Request for
Authorization to Serve Alcoholic Beverages on College Property fForm (Form) must be
utilized. This fForm may be obtained from the College Event Planner.

If approved, the related oOrganization will be contacted by the College Event Planner to
begin planning the logistics and completing the Facilities Rental Agreement with the
Campus Services department on the chesenapplicable campus.

The Facilities Rental Agreement factity-contract and all required documents must be
completed and turned into Campus Services before proceeding with the event.

Once the Facilities Rental Agreement eontract is completed, the Oerganization(s) will be
provided information for approved caterers. The Oerganization{s} areis responsible for
contacting the approved caterers to obtain quotes for the event. The Organizations areis
permitted to use a different caterer for food service if so desired. Organizations must
submit the outside caterer’s information and proof of insurance to Campus Services with
the catering contract as well as order details (i.e. menu, space/set-up needs, delivery times
etc.)
a. If alcohol is donated to the Oerganization, the Oerganization is still required to
contract with one of the cCollege’s approved caterers to provide bartending
services for the event.

After an approved caterer is chosen for alcohol service, the eOrganization must send the
final order to the College Event Planner. The College Event Planner will work with the
Oerganization to request the required approval letter from the Chancellor’s-Office for the
Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission (TABC) serving permit. Once the TABC serving

162



Attachment 5

permit is issued, the College Event Planner will send to the eOrganization who must send
it to the caterer. (The letter will be sent no later than 10 days before the event date.)

6. The San Jacinto College Police Department “(SJCPD)” must be notified no less than 10
days prior about any event which with shall utilize the use, serving, and/or consumption
of alcohol present in or on-at-a College Property. factity. SJCPD is required to have a
presence at the event location while alcohol is being served. The College Event Planner
will work with the SICPDthe-San-Jacinto-College-Police-Chief- to determine the number
of officers needed based on the event location and number of people. The Oerganization
is responsible for costs associated with SJICPD Pslice coverage for the event. (Police
Support Fee - $35 per hour/per officer, rate is subject to change)

7. The event must be attended by the College Event Planner or his/her deS|qnee other

order to ensure the eOrganlzatlon@ has#have what theyisJeheyL needeel for the event.

8. Any erganizationOrganization{s) desiring to use, rent, or lease space on any College
Pproperty of-the-Cellege must follow these procedures for using, serving, and/or
consuming alcohol regardless of with whom or the location where the Facilities Rental

Agreement is submitted. whether-the request-goes-directhy-to-Campus-Services-on-any
cmppea e Colloco e lo e Codoan Bope Plasnoe

Definitions

College Property: Property, whether indoors or outdoors, located within the State of Texas that
is owned, operated, leased, occupied, or controlled by the College. For purposes of the Policy on
Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property, this includes but is not limited to all buildings,
classrooms, laboratories, auditoriums, library buildings, offices, athletic facilities, any other
structures, grounds, sidewalks, parking lots, walkways, and attached parking structures owned or
controlled by the College.

Date of SLT November 28, 2017
Approval
Effective Date Anticipated February 6, 2018

Associated Policy Policy #V11.7002.A, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property

163



Attachment 5

Primary Owner of Vice Chancellor, Marketing, Public Relations; and Government Affairs
Policy Associated
with the Procedure

Secondary Owner of  Events Planner
Policy Associated
with the Procedure

164



Attachment 6

Procedure VI11.7002.A.a, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property

Associated Policy
Policy VII1.7002.A, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property

Procedures
The Chancellor must authorize any event or program that will utilize the use, serving and/or
consumption of alcohol on College Property.

1.

All College programs, events, and outside organizations (collectively referred to
Organizations for this procedure) desiring to serve alcoholic beverages at an event must
submit a request to the College Event Planner who will ensure compliance with the
requirements of the Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property Policy (Policy
VI1.7002.A) and will seek approval from the Chancellor no less than 30 days before the
event date. To request authorization, the Request for Authorization to Serve Alcoholic
Beverages on College Property Form (Form) must be utilized. This Form may be
obtained from the College Event Planner.

If approved, the Organization will be contacted by the College Event Planner to begin
planning the logistics and completing the Facilities Rental Agreement with the Campus
Services department on the applicable campus.

The Facilities Rental Agreement and all required documents must be completed and
turned into Campus Services before proceeding with the event.

Once the Facilities Rental Agreement is completed, the Organization(s) will be provided

information for approved caterers. The Organization is responsible for contacting the

approved caterers to obtain quotes for the event. The Organization is permitted to use a

different caterer for food service if so desired. Organizations must submit the outside

caterer’s information and proof of insurance to Campus Services with the catering

contract as well as order details (i.e. menu, space/set-up needs, delivery times etc.)

a. If alcohol is donated to the Organization, the Organization is still required to

contract with one of the College’s approved caterers to provide bartending
services for the event.

After an approved caterer is chosen for alcohol service, the Organization must send the
final order to the College Event Planner. The College Event Planner will work with the
Organization to request the required approval letter from the Chancellor for the Texas
Alcoholic Beverage Commission (TABC) serving permit. Once the TABC serving permit
is issued, the College Event Planner will send to the Organization who must send it to the
caterer. (The letter will be sent no later than 10 days before the event date.)

165



Attachment 6

6. The San Jacinto College Police Department (SJCPD) must be notified no less than 10
days prior about any event which shall utilize the use, serving, and/or consumption of
alcohol in or on College Property. SICPD is required to have a presence at the event
location while alcohol is being served. The College Event Planner will work with the
SJCPD to determine the number of officers needed based on the event location and
number of people. The Organization is responsible for costs associated with SICPD
coverage for the event. (Police Support Fee - $35 per hour/per officer, rate is subject to
change)

7. The event must be attended by the College Event Planner or his/her designee in order to
ensure the Organization has what they need for the event.

8. Any Organization desiring to use, rent, or lease space on any College Property must
follow these procedures for using, serving, and/or consuming alcohol regardless of with
whom or the location where the Facilities Rental Agreement is submitted.

Definitions

College Property: Property, whether indoors or outdoors, located within the State of Texas that
is owned, operated, leased, occupied, or controlled by the College. For purposes of the Policy on
Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property, this includes but is not limited to all buildings,
classrooms, laboratories, auditoriums, library buildings, offices, athletic facilities, any other
structures, grounds, sidewalks, parking lots, walkways, and attached parking structures owned or
controlled by the College.

Date of SLT November 28, 2017
Approval
Effective Date Anticipated February 6, 2018

Associated Policy Policy VI1.7002.A, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property

Primary Owner of Vice Chancellor, Marketing, Public Relations and Government Affairs
Policy Associated
with the Procedure

Secondary Owner of  Events Planner
Policy Associated
with the Procedure

166



Action Item “XV”

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of Policy 111.3008.A: Use of College Owned or Leased Vehicles —
First Reading (Information Only)

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a revision and update to
the College’s Policy on Use of College Owned or Leased Vehicles formerly designated as
Policy VI-T. The Board of Trustees will not vote on this item but is creating awareness that
the policy is being considered and input is being gathered.

BACKGROUND

Policy VI-T was most recently approved by the Board of Trustees on February 5, 2008. This
policy reflects the purpose of preserving the College’s investments, establishing protocols for
ensuring effective vehicle utilization, and establishing safety protocols and expectations for
vehicle operators. Procedures have been modified to support this policy.

The revisions to the policy are recommended to establish the new policy format and to reflect
the strengthened College practices for intellectual property rights. Additionally, the
associated procedure has been revised to support implementation of the policy. These
procedures are attached for informational purposes.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

The updated policy and procedures were sent to the College community on February 2, 2018.
Comments will be reviewed, and any changes, if appropriate, will be addressed prior to the
Board’s second reading which is anticipated on March 5, 2018.

BUDGET INFORMATION

No budgetary impact.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The Board will be notified of any changes that require its action.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 — Summary of Changes

Attachment 2 — Policy VI-T: Use of College Owned or Leased Vehicles (current policy)
Attachment 3 — Policy ##, Use of College Owned or Leased Vehicles (proposed policy)
Informational items only:

Attachment 4 — Procedure 2-15: Use of College Vehicles (current procedures)

Attachment 5 — Procedure ##, Use of College-Owned or Leased Vehicles (proposed
procedures)

167



RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Van Wigginton 281-542-2000
Ginger Lambert 281-998-6183
Teri Zamora 281-998-6306

Action Item “XV”
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of Policy 111.3008.A: Use of College Owned or Leased Vehicles —
First Reading (Information Only)

van.wigginton@sjcd.edu
ginger.lambert@sjcd.edu
teri.zamora@sjcd.edu

168


mailto:van.wigginton@sjcd.edu

Attachment 1

Policies and Procedures Summary of Changes

New Policy Number: 111.3008.A
Proposed Policy Name: Use of College Owned or Leased Vehicles
Current Policy Number/Name: VI-T, Use of College-Owned or Leased Vehicles

New Procedure Number: 111.3008.A.a
Proposed Procedure Name(s): Use of College Owned or Leased Vehicles
Current Procedure Number(s)/Name(s): 2-15, Use of College-Owned or Leased Vehicles

Action Recommended for Policy: Revised
Action Recommended for Procedures: Revised

Web Links: http://www.sanjac.edu/policy-vi-t-policy-use-college-vehicles

Primary Owner: Vice Chancellor, Fiscal Affairs

Secondary Owners: Director, Safety, Health, Environment and Risk Management

Summary of Changes:

e Additional verbiage added to provide a more comprehensive set of procedures that will preserve
the college’s investments, ensure effective utilization and promote safety.

e Included Leased vehicles in policy title

e Included specific responsibilities to various departments involved in the process

e Removed the ability for any individual to drive college vehicles. Only Full-Time employees and
Part-Time employees over the age of 25 are allowed the privilege of driving college owned or
leased vehicles.

e Changed Policy title to include Leased Vehicles

e Verbiage regarding new CHL laws are specifically addressed that allows carrying of handguns
within all restrictions of the law.

e Decreased the allowance of local usage. Use of vehicle is prohibited for travel less than 50 mile
radius from campus, except where there are four (4) or more passengers or carrying of specialized
equipment.

e Decreased the allowance of distant usage. Use of vehicle is prohibited for in-state travel over 600
miles radius from the campus of departure.

e College 15-Passenger/Extended Van Utilization procedures were removed. SJC no longer uses 15-
Passenger vans for travel purposes.

e Procedures for vehicle failure, accidents, rentals and student travel was included.

e Reservation process was updated to reflect a one-college approach

¢ Included Interdepartmental Chargebacks for Vehicle use.

169


http://www.sanjac.edu/policy-vi-t-policy-use-college-vehicles

Attachment 2

Policy VI-T: Policy on Use of College

Vehicles

Vehicles, whether owned or leased by the college, are to be used solely for college related business.
Operation of college vehicles for personal use is strictly prohibited unless provided otherwise in an
employment or other written agreement approved by the Board of Trustees.

All drivers of college owned or leased vehicles must hold a current valid Texas driver's license
appropriate for the intended usage of the vehicle, must have successfully completed the SJC Safe
Drivers Training Course, and must be eligible for coverage under the college's insurance policies.

In addition to guidelines accompanying this policy, each campus shall establish and publish specific
guidelines and procedures regarding reservations and priorities for usage of college vehicles.

(Effective August 3, 1998) (Revised April 4, 2005; Reviewed February 5, 2008)

Policy #: VI-T

Policy Name: Policy on Use of College Vehicles

Pages: 1

Adopted Date: August 3, 1998

Revision/Reviewed Date: April 4, 2005 and February 5, 2008

Effective Date: August 3, 1998; April 4, 2005 and February 5, 2008
Associated Procedure: 2-15

170


http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedurs/procedure-2-15-use-college-vehicles

Attachment 3

Policy 111.3008.A, Use of College Owned or Leased Vehicles

Purpose

San Jacinto College (College) owns and/or leases vehicles for multiple uses to conduct its day to
day business. The College strives to maintain its fleet of vehicles in good operating condition and
expects those who are authorized to operate the vehicles to abide by procedure set forth in this
policy. The policy is written for the purpose of preserving the College’s investments, establishing
protocols for ensuring effective vehicle utilization, and establishing safety protocols and
expectations for vehicle operators.

Policy

Vehicles, whether owned or leased by the College, are to be used solely for college related
business. Operation of college vehicles for personal use is prohibited unless provided otherwise
in an employment or other written agreement approved by the Board of Trustees.

All drivers of college owned or leased vehicles must hold a current valid Texas driver's license
appropriate for the intended usage of the vehicle, must have successfully completed an approved
on-line Drivers Training Course, and must be eligible for coverage under the College's insurance
policies.

Procedures related to this policy, shall include processes regarding reservations and priorities for
usage of college-owned or leased vehicles.

The Authority, Applicability, Sanctions, Exclusions, and Interpretation do not differ from Policy
11.2000.A, Policy and Procedures Development, Review, Revision, and Rescission.

Associated Procedures
Procedure 111.3008.A.a, Use of College Owned or Leased Vehicles

Date of Board  Anticipated March 5, 2018

Approval

Effective Date  Anticipated March 6, 2018

Primary Vice Chancellor, Fiscal Affairs

Owner

Secondary Director, Safety, Health, Environment and Risk Management (SHERM)
Owner

171



Attachment 4

Procedure 2-15: Use of College Vehicles

College vehicles may be used only for college business.

All operators of College vehicles must be at least 18 years of age and hold a currently valid Texas
driver's license appropriate for the intended usage of the vehicle.

All operators of College vehicles must be determined to be eligible for coverage under the College's
insurance policies prior to the operation of a vehicle.

All operators of College vehicles must successfully complete the SJC Safe Driver’s Training Course
every three years.

The designated driver shall be responsible for operating the vehicle in accordance with all vehicle,
parking and traffic regulations.

The designated drivers as well as the vehicles occupants shall be responsible to adhere to all SIC
Safety Guidelines.

Mechanical failure or damage due to the negligence of the driver shall be the responsibility of the user
department or recognized student organization.

Insurance cards are located on the sun visor of all college vehicles as well as included in the Vehicle
Information Packet located in the storage compartment.

College vehicles, including buses, may not be used for travel to destinations more than 750 miles from
campus. "Out-of-town" is defined as destinations outside a 75-mile radius from the campus of departure.
"Local" is defined as destinations within a 75-mile radius from the campus of departure. College vehicles
may not be driven and are not insured for use in Canada and Mexico.

Firearms, ammunition, and/or explosives may not be transported in College vehicles.

Alcoholic beverages and/or illegal narcotics may not be transported or consumed in College vehicles.
Tobacco products may not be consumed in College vehicles.

Driver's Requirements and Verification

A College Driver is a person who operates a college owned, rented, leased, or personal vehicle on a
permanent or intermittent basis as a requirement of their job function.

No College Driver shall operate a college owned, rented, or leased vehicle without having a signed
Request to Drive a College Vehicle form on file with the Insurance Specialists in the Purchasing Office
and an acceptable driving record as confirmed by the Texas Department of Public Safety.

All College Drivers shall be in compliance with licensing and classification requirements of the Texas
Department of Motor Vehicles.

No person may drive a college motor vehicle without having a valid Texas Driver's license in their
possession with applicable endorsements and valid classification for the vehicle they are driving. The
driving license shall be in their possession.

No person whose license has been revoked or suspended shall be permitted to operate a motor vehicle
as a College Driver without obtaining a valid license through the proper reinstatement procedures.

*A College Driver who is charged with violating any state law or local ordinance relating to motor traffic
control, in this or any other state while driving a college vehicle, shall notify the Insurance Specialist in
the Purchasing Office before the end of the next business day following the day of the violation.

172



Attachment 4

*A College Driver involved in a motor vehicle accident involving injuries to any party involved must notify
the Safety Office and Campus Police Departments as soon as possible after the incident.

Any College Driver, who has their license suspended, revoked, or canceled, must notify the Insurance
Specialist in the Purchasing Office of the fact immediately during operating hours, or upon the start of the
next business day.

All reports and violation records shall be confidential and maintained by the driver's department for a
period of three years.

Driver's License Audits — Upon initial application to drive a college vehicle and at other times as
appropriate, the college shall conduct driver's license audits of all employees who operate college motor
vehicles. While the college reserves the right to modify acceptable standards, currently an acceptable
driver must have:

No major violations in the last three (3) years — (DWI, Vehicular Homicide, Reckless driving, Drugs,
Leaving the Scene of an Accident); or

No more than two (2) moving violations in the last three (3) years in combination with one at-fault
accidents; or

No more than three (3) other moving violations in the last three (3) years with no at-fault accidents; or
No more than two 2 at fault accidents in the last 3 years with no moving violations.

Violations —

A College Driver, while driving a college vehicle, who is convicted of violating any state law or local
ordinance relating to motor vehicle traffic control, in this or any other state, shall have their driving record
reviewed by the Insurance Specialists in the Purchasing Office.

A College Driver, who drives a college vehicle while their license is suspended, revoked, or canceled, in
addition to having their driving privileges revoked, may be disciplined up to and including termination if
an employee or the appropriate discipline if a student.

All motor vehicle or parking violations by a College Driver in a college vehicle shall be paid promptly by
the College Driver. This does not prevent a College Driver from using the court process to contest motor
vehicle or parking violations through established procedures.

Evidence of the transportation of firearms, ammunition, and/or explosives; alcoholic beverage
consumption; use of illegal drugs or the use of tobacco may result in the forfeiture of future privileges for
the user department or recognized student group and/or appropriate disciplinary action.

College 15-Passenger/Extended Van Utilization

In addition to all guidelines applicable to drivers of college vehicles, drivers of fifteen-passenger
vans must comply with the following:

The College Driver is responsible for ensuring passenger occupancy does not exceed a total of nine
individuals, including the driver.

The College Driver is responsible for ensuring each passenger utilizes seatbelts.

The College Driver is responsible to ensure no luggage is loaded on the top racks of the vehicle and no
towing behind vehicle occurs.

173



Attachment 4

College Mini Vans or Other Standard Sized Vehicles

In addition to all guidelines applicable to drivers of college vehicles, drivers of mini vans must
comply with the following:

The College Driver is responsible for ensuring passenger occupancy in mini vans does not exceed a
total of eight individuals, including the driver.

The College Driver is responsible for ensuring each passenger utilizes seatbelts.

The College Driver is responsible to ensure no luggage is loaded on the top racks of the vehicle and no
towing behind vehicle occurs.

College Passenger Buses

In addition to all guidelines applicable to drivers of college vehicles, drivers of passenger buses
must comply with the following state regulations:

The College Driver is responsible for ensuring passenger occupancy in passenger buses does not
exceed the intended design.

The College Driver is responsible for ensuring each passenger utilizes seatbelts.

The College Driver is responsible to ensure no luggage is loaded on the top racks of the vehicle and no
towing behind vehicle occurs.

The College Driver must obtain the proper Texas driver’s license appropriate for the intended usage of
the vehicle.

0 16-23 Passengers Bus: CDL Class C, with Passenger Endorsement GVWR UNDER 26,001

0 25+ Passengers Bus: CDL Class B, with Passenger Endorsement GVWR OVER 26,001

Vehicle Reservation Procedure & Required Forms

Prior to requesting a vehicle, all drivers’ requirements must have been met and approval from Insurance
Specialist received.

Vehicle reservations will be accepted by telephone or in person. Reservations should be made as far in
advance as possible.

A Vehicle Reservation Form (VRF) must be obtained from the appropriate office and presented to the
Maintenance Department to obtain a vehicle.

Additional travel related documents may be required depending upon the circumstances of the travel.

Related Travel Documents

College Sponsored Travel Request Form and Liability Waiver Form: These forms are required whenever
students are traveling under College sponsorship/auspices regardless of the mode/means of
transportation.

174



Procedure #:
Procedure Name:
Pages:

Adopted Date:

Revision/Reviewed Date:

Effective Date:

Associated Policy:

Attachment 4

2-15
Use of College Vehicles

3

VI-T

175


http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/vi-t-policy-use-college-vehicles

Attachment 5

Procedure 111.3008.A.a, Use of College-Owned or Leased Vehicles

Associated Policy
Policy 111.3008.A, Use of College-Owned or Leased Vehicles

Procedures
Responsibilities
Facilities Services will maintain a fleet of vehicles to be used for official college business. Campus
Services will manage vehicle reservations and assign appropriate vehicles for approved travel. The
Safety, Health, Environment and Risk Management (SHERM) Office is responsible for the
following:
e Procure and manage insurance coverage for college vehicles.
e Maintain in-house files on approved drivers.
Process Texas Department of Public Safety driving history records.
Process insurance and injury claims.
Add/Delete vehicles to college insurance policy.
Distribute insurance identification cards to applicable departments.

Documents and records must be retained in accordance with San Jacinto College (College)
document retention procedures.

Eligible Drivers and Passengers
Full-time, part-time, and approved contracted employees of the College are eligible to operate
college vehicles if he/she:
e Possess a valid Texas Driver’s License with applicable endorsements and valid
classification for the vehicle he/she is driving.
e Successfully complete the College’s approved on-line Driver’s Training Course every
three years.
e Maintain an acceptable driving record.
e s 18 years of age or older if a full-time employee.
e Is 25 years of age or older if a part-time employee.
A driver meeting the above requirements and authorized through the SHERM Office is considered
an “eligible driver.”

Passengers are limited to college employees, students, and persons directly involved with the
purposes for which the vehicle was requested.

Driving Records
To ensure the safety of people and property, the SHERM Office will obtain and review Texas
Department of Public Safety (TxDPS) driving history records for each prospective driver. Driving
records must be updated every three (3) years in order to operate a college-owned vehicle.
e While the College reserves the right to modify acceptable standards, currently an
acceptable driver must have:

176



Attachment 5

o No major violations in the last three (3) years — (Driving While Intoxicated (DW1),
Vehicular Homicide, Reckless Driving, Drugs, Leaving the Scene of an Accident); or

o No more than two (2) moving violations in the last three (3) years in combination
with one at-fault accidents; or

o No more than three (3) other moving violations in the last three (3) years with no at-
fault accidents; or

o No more than two (2) at fault accidents in the last 3 years with no moving violations.

General Use Regulations for College-Owned or Leased Vehicles

At all times, college-owned or leased vehicles should be operated in compliance with all state and
local laws. Drivers who exhibit unsafe, illegal, or discourteous driving habits may have their
driving privileges revoked. All traffic citations are the sole responsibility of the driver.

The applicable license must be in the employee’s possession while driving.

Use of college-owned or leased vehicles for personal business or pleasure is prohibited.
No person whose license has been revoked or suspended shall be permitted to operate a
college-owned or leased vehicle without obtaining a valid license through the proper
reinstatement procedures.

Any approved driver who is charged with violating any state law or local ordinance
relating to motor vehicle traffic control, in this or any other state, or has their license
suspended, revoked, or canceled, must notify the SHERM Office immediately for review
of driving privileges.

Mechanical failure or damage due to the negligence of the driver shall be the financial
responsibility of the user department or recognized student organization.

Insurance identification cards are located in all college vehicles.

Seat belts will be worn by all occupants at all times while vehicle is in operation.
Loading items on top of any vehicle or towing behind vehicle is prohibited.

Smoking and consuming and/or transporting alcoholic beverages or illegal substances are
prohibited in college-owned or leased vehicles.

The transporting of ammunition and/or explosives is prohibited in college-owned or
leased vehicles.

No driver may operate a college-owned or leased vehicle while impaired and/or under the
influence of a controlled substance.

The use of cellular phone or any electronic device is not allowed while driving college-
owned or leased vehicles. The only exception is a preprogrammed directional driving
application (i.e. Goggle Maps or similar).

College-owned vehicles are not to be kept at a residence overnight upon completion of a
scheduled trip.

Use of college-owned vehicles are prohibited for travel less than a 50 mile radius from a
campus, except where there are four (4) or more passengers, plus the driver, or the
vehicle is used for carrying specialized materials or equipment. Exceptions must be
approved by employee’s supervisor and Campus Services.

Travel outside of Texas is prohibited for college-owned vehicles. Limited liability is
granted under the Texas Tort Reform and does not include college-owned vehicles driven
outside the State of Texas.

In-state travel is limited to a 400 mile radius from the campus of departure.

No handguns or guns of any type may be carried or stored in a college-owned vehicle.

177



Attachment 5

o Law enforcement officers using college vehicles in the performance of their duties are
exempt to the provisions of this section.

Violations

A driver who has fulfilled the requirements of an “eligible driver” as defined in this procedure,
may not drive a college-owned or leased vehicle if his/her license is suspended, revoked, or
canceled; in addition to having his/her driving privileges with the College revoked, he/she may
be disciplined up to and including termination.

All motor vehicle violations including parking violations incurred by a driver in a college-owned
or leased vehicle shall be paid promptly with non-college funds by the driver. This does not
prevent a driver from using the court process to contest motor vehicle or parking violations
through established processes.

Evidence of transporting firearms, ammunition, explosives, alcoholic beverages and/or illegal
drugs; driving while impaired; or using tobacco, alcohol, or illegal drugs in a college-owned or
leased vehicle may result in the forfeiture of future privileges for the user department or
recognized student group and/or appropriate disciplinary action or termination of the parties
involved.

Reporting Vehicle Failure

If mechanical failure occurs to a vehicle during normal operating hours, Facilities Services
should be notified. If failure occurs after normal operating hours, the driver should contact the
San Jacinto College Police Dispatch (SJC Police) for assistance with notifying the Facilities
Services personnel on-call.

Reporting Accidents
When involved in an accident, the driver should:
a. Ensure his /her safety and wellbeing and the safety and wellbeing of all passengers.
b. Contact the local law enforcement agency having jurisdiction.
b. Do not admit to any guilt of any party involved with the accident investigation.
c. Obtain contact and insurance information regarding other driver(s) involved in the
accident.
Using mobile phone, take photographs if safe to do so.
Obtain an accident report from the responding law enforcement agency whenever a
college-owned or leased vehicle is involved in an accident.

—h @D

Once the driver, passengers, and accident scene have been secured, all vehicle incidents
including accidents, damages, and moving violations, must be reported immediately, in detail to
the Director of SHERM, SJC Police, and the employee’s supervisor. The driver must provide
the SHERM Office the accident report from the responding law enforcement agency and details
of the accident including all personal injuries resulting from the vehicle accident. The SHERM
Office, in conjunction the College’s insurance provider, will investigate the accident and monitor
follow-up steps. The driver and all passengers are expected to fully cooperate with the
investigation.

178



Attachment 5

The driver’s supervisor is required to complete a Supervisor’s Accident of Investigation Report
and forward to the SHERM Office within five (5) working days from the date the vehicle
accident was reported.

Failure to report accidents and damages involving college-owned or leased vehicles in a timely
manner or failure to cooperate with the investigation may result in disciplinary action to the
driver.

Reserving a Vehicle
Vehicles are reserved through Campus Services. Users may reserve the vehicles on a first-come,
first-served basis. When college travel requests exceed fleet capacity, leased vehicles may be
acquired to supplement. All drivers conducting official business in college-owned, leased, or
personal vehicles must meet the College’s driving requirements. Prior to requesting the use of a
college-owned vehicle, the driver must meet the “eligible driver” requirements and must be
approved by the SHERM Office.
o Vehicle reservations will be accepted by email. Reservations should be made as far in
advance as possible.
o The Vehicle Reservation Process must be completed through Campus Services.
« Additional travel related documents may be required depending upon the circumstances
of the travel.

Maintenance of Vehicles

Only vehicles with 12 or less passengers, including driver will be purchased for college business
use. Facilities Services will provide a safe operating fleet of vehicles through documented
inspections, regular maintenance work and schedules, and repair processes. Unsafe vehicles
will be removed from service by Facilities Services as required.

Interdepartmental Chargebacks for Vehicle Use

To reflect costs and usage of College owned vehicles, departments will be charged the standard
mileage rate in effect by the Internal Revenue Service. The chargeback rate will be reviewed in
January of each year for changes.

e The driver must provide a proper fund, organization, account, and program code (FOAP)
when reserving the vehicle. The FOAP must be associated with the department receiving
the benefit of the use of the vehicle.

e Facilities Services will maintain a log of the department, FOAP, date(s) of use, and
number of miles driven and will forward the log to the District Business Office for
processing chargebacks to the department’s budget. The log must be submitted to the
District Business Office on a monthly basis so that departments can properly manage
departmental budgets.

e Departments are responsible for budgeting for vehicle chargebacks.

Vehicle Rentals or Bus Charters

Travel outside of procedural guidelines may be accomplished through charter, rental or lease.
Contact SJCCD Purchasing Department for current information on rentals or charters including a
list of approved vendors and bus charter agreements.

179



Attachment 5

Student Travel

Student travel requires the completion of the Instructional or Organizational Authorization Form
and Release Agreement for College Sponsored Travel. These documents are available on the
College’s internal website. Students are required to sign and submit an emergency contact form.

Definitions

Eligible Driver: An eligible driver for operating a college-owned or leased vehicle must: (1)
possess a valid Texas Driver’s License with applicable endorsements and valid classification for
the vehicle he/she is driving, (2) successfully complete the College’s approved on-line Driver’s
Training Course every three years, (3) maintain an acceptable driving record, (4) is 18 years of age
or older if a full-time employee or is 25 years of age or older if a part-time employee, and (5) must
be authorized by the SHERM Office.

Date of SLT December 19, 2017
Approval
Effective Date Anticipated March 6, 2018

Associated Policy Policy 111.3008.A, Use of College Owned or Leased Vehicles

Primary Owner of Vice Chancellor, Fiscal Affairs
Policy Associated
with the Procedure

Secondary Owner of  Director, Safety, Health, Environment and Risk Management
Policy Associated (SHERM)
with the Procedure

180



Action Item “XVI”
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Consideration of Approval of Policy Rescissions — First Reading (Information Only)

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve to rescind the following
policies and procedures. The Board of Trustees will not vote on this item but is creating
awareness this is being considered for first reading and is anticipated to be presented to the
Board for second reading on March 5, 2018.

BACKGROUND

Currently, the San Jacinto Community College District Policy Manual is the official
repository of College policies that govern the operations of San Jacinto College. Board policy
establishes a general statement of rule that provides direction to the College community
regarding conduct of College affairs. The Board reviews and approves changes to College
policy prior to implementation. The Board of Trustees delegates authority to and requires the
Chancellor through his/her designees to manage procedures that implement College policies.
The policy approval process continues with gathering input from the College community and
with the requirements of two readings by the Board of Trustees.

As part of the College’s focus on continuous improvement, the Strategic Leadership Team
(SLT) looked for gaps in the current policy and procedure process and manual and for areas
to improve transparency, input, timeliness of review, and user friendliness. The Board
approved Policy 11.2000.A and its associated procedures on April 10, 2017, and this process
was reflected in the Board bylaws. As part of this updated process and the undertaking of a
full review of the policy manual, the SLT and appropriate direct reports are reviewing the
entire policy and procedure manual to make recommendations on revisions, new policies and
procedures, and recommendations for rescission.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

These recommendations were sent to the College community for review on February 2, 2018.
The purpose of this recommendation is to eliminate policies and procedures that are no
longer needed based on various reasons. The recommendations for rescission are noted on
each attachment. The Board will be approving the rescission of the policies attached and the
rescission of the procedures are attached as an informational item. The SLT approved these
recommendations to rescind on December 19, 2017. The policy rescissions will be effective
immediately after Board approval which occurs on the second reading. The procedure
rescissions will be effective following the comment period unless areas of concern are
determined.

BUDGET INFORMATION

No budgetary impact.

181



Action Item “XVI”
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Consideration of Approval of Policy Rescissions — First Reading (Information Only)

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
The Board will be notified of any changes that require its action.
ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 — Summary of Changes, IV-C-13 Policy on Professional Trips (current policy)
and 3-8 Professional Trips (current procedure)

Attachment 2 — Summary of Changes, VI-D Policy on Professional Growth and
Development (current policy)

Attachment 3 — Summary of Changes, VII Curriculum Development Manual (current
procedure)

Attachment 4 — Summary of Changes, 6-3-a Excessive Absence (current procedure)

Attachment 5 — Summary of Changes, 6-2-a Course Syllabus and Curriculum Guide

Attachment 6 — Summary of Changes, 6-2-b Beginning of Class Information

Attachment 7 — Summary of Changes, 5-19 Curriculum Design and Instructional
Effectiveness

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Laurel Williamson 281-998-6184 laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu

182



Attachment 1

Policies and Procedures Summary of Changes

New Policy Number: n/a
Proposed Policy Name: n/a
Current Policy Number/Name: 1V-C-13 Policy on Professional Trips

New Procedure Number: n/a
Proposed Procedure Name(s): n/a
Current Procedure Number(s)/Name(s): 3-8: Professional Trips

Action Recommended for Policy: Rescind
Action Recommended for Procedures: Rescind

Web Links: http://www.sanjac.edu/policy-iv-c-policy-employment
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-3-8-professional-trips

Primary Owner: Deputy Chancellor and President

Secondary Owner: Martha Robertson, Asst. VC, Teaching & Learning

Summary of Changes:

e Policy - Information regarding Professional Trips is updated in the Faculty Handbook annually.
e Policy - Information is also on the internal website under forms and documents and is revised

annually.

e Procedure - This information is updated annually in the Faculty Handbook. See Class Field Trips,

College Vans, and Travel guidelines

e Procedure - Travel guidelines which apply to all employees are also on the internal website.

183



http://www.sanjac.edu/policy-iv-c-policy-employment
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-3-8-professional-trips

Attachment 1

I\VV-C-3 Policy on Professional Trips

The individual campus President will be responsible for recommending for approval or disapproval of all
budgeted travel requests to the Executive Vice Chancellor and Chancellor for final approval. Non-
budgeted travel requests will be submitted and approved or disapproved on an individual basis.

Full-time faculty members may apply to attend one or up to two seminars or workshops for professional
development in a subject matter area per year for up to two days for each seminar or workshop without
loss of pay. In order to qualify, the program offered must be on an educational topic, and the employee's
attendance must benefit the college. Travel which is undertaken at the direction of the college
administration shall not be limited, and upon approval of the Executive Vice Chancellor and Chancellor,
the college may pay the reasonable expenses associated with the travel.

Policy #: IV-C-13

Policy Name: Policy on Professional Trips
Pages: 1

Adopted Date: February 12, 1981

Revision/Reviewed Date:
Effective Date: February 12, 1981

Associated Procedure: 3-8

184


http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/procedure-3-8-professional-trips

Attachment 1

Procedure 3-8: Professional Trips

Travel requests for administrators, faculty and staff are to be submitted at least two weeks in advance of
a trip. An outline program or other literature describing the meeting the employee wishes to attend must
be attached to the travel request. Budget control must verify that money is available in the budget, and
the President of the campus will then recommend for approval or disapproval of the travel request.

The supervision and assignment of transportation is the responsibility of the campus President or his/her
designee. All travel requests for transportation must be made in their respective offices at least two weeks
prior to the trip. If the travel request concerns student activities, it must first be approved by the Vice
President of Student Services on the appropriate campus.

Procedure #: 3-8
Procedure Name: Professional Trips
Pages: 1

Adopted Date:
Revision/Reviewed Date:
Effective Date:

Associated Policy: IV-C-13

185


http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-iv-c-policy-employment

Attachment 2

Policies and Procedures Summary of Changes

New Policy Number: n/a
Proposed Policy Name: n/a
Current Policy Number/Name: VI-D: Policy on Professional Growth and Development

New Procedure Number: n/a
Proposed Procedure Name(s): n/a
Current Procedure Number(s)/Name(s): n/a

Action Recommended for Policy: Rescind
Action Recommended for Procedures: n/a

Web Links: http://www.sanjac.edu/policy-vi-d-policy-professional-growth-and-development

Primary Owner: Deputy Chancellor and President

Secondary Owner: Martha Robertson, Asst. VC, Teaching & Learning

Summary of Changes:

e There is no associated procedure with this policy.

e Professional growth and development is so imbedded in the culture at San Jacinto College, it is

counter-intuitive to have a policy that permits it.
e The policy is outdated.

186



http://www.sanjac.edu/policy-vi-d-policy-professional-growth-and-development

Attachment 2

Policy VI-D: Policy on Professional Growth

and Development

College instruction is recognized as a profession. Faculty members are expected to accept
responsibilities in practicing, developing and promoting high standards of moral, ethical and professional
conduct. The image of any faculty member at all times should be such that any student striving to emulate
same should be assured of being a good, stable citizen.

The college district expects faculty to accept the obligation of continuing their professional development in
their areas of expertise, especially in those areas directly related to their teaching assignments. This
growth may take the form of participation in professional organizations; publication of books, articles,
monographs, or original compositions; exhibition of original art works; or participation in recitals or
performances. At the same time, the college requires that the first responsibility of all faculty is the
instruction of students enrolled in classes at San Jacinto College. Consequently, responsibilities in
curriculum planning, syllabus revision, departmental planning, lesson preparation, paper-grading,
classroom teaching, sponsoring student activities and counseling with students will take priority over all
professional-development activities.

Policy #: VI-D

Policy Name: Policy on Professional Growth and Development
Pages: 1

Adopted Date: March 2, 1989

Revision/Reviewed Date: May 2, 1994

Effective Date: March 2, 1989

Associated Procedure:

187



Attachment 3

Policies and Procedures Summary of Changes

New Policy Number: n/a
Proposed Policy Name: n/a
Current Policy Number/Name: n/a

New Procedure Number: n/a
Proposed Procedure Name(s): n/a
Current Procedure Number(s)/Name(s): VII Curriculum Development Manual

Action Recommended for Policy: n/a
Action Recommended for Procedures: Rescind

Web Links: http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-vii-curriculum-development-manual

Primary Owner: Deputy Chancellor and President

Secondary Owner: Provosts

Summary of Changes:

e The Curriculum Development Manuals (Academic and Technical) are updated annually in
the Faculty Handbook located on the internal exchange.

188


http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-vii-curriculum-development-manual

Attachment 3

Procedure VII: Curriculum Development

Curriculum Development Manual Academic Disciplines 2017

Curriculum Development Manual Technical Programs 2017

Procedure #: Vi
Procedure Name: Curriculum Development Manual
Pages: 1

Adopted Date:
Revision/Reviewed Date:
Effective Date:

Associated Policy:

189


http://www.sanjac.edu/sites/default/files/Curriculum-Development-Manual-Academic-Disciplines-2017.pdf
http://www.sanjac.edu/sites/default/files/Curriculum-Development-Manual-Technical-Programs-2017.pdf
http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-iv-i-policy-employee-concerns

Attachment 4

Policies and Procedures Summary of Changes

New Policy Number: n/a
Proposed Policy Name: n/a
Current Policy Number/Name: n/a

New Procedure Number: n/a
Proposed Procedure Name(s): n/a
Current Procedure Number(s)/Name(s): 6-3-a Excessive Absence

Action Recommended for Policy: n/a
Action Recommended for Procedures: Rescind

Web Links: http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-6-3-excessive-absence

Primary Owner: Deputy Chancellor and President

Secondary Owner: Martha Robertson, Asst. VC for Teaching and Learning

Summary of Changes:

e This information is updated annually in the Faculty Handbook located on the College’s internal

exchange.

190



http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-6-3-excessive-absence

Attachment 4

Procedure 6-3-a: Excessive Absence

The College Catalog of Courses offers the following information about student attendance:

Failure, Excessive Absences (FX)

A faculty member may award a grade of FX at the end of the term to any student. This grade means that
the student registered and paid for the course and failed the course because the student missed an
excessive number of classes and did not exercise the right to drop the course or was not eligible to drop
the course because of TSI or Six-Drop rule regulations. For each grade of FX submitted, the last date the
student attended the course must be reported. Grades of FX will not be posted without this date. The
grade of FX carries the same academic impact as the grade of F in that the credit hours are included in
the calculation of the grade point average and the grade awards zero (0) grade points. The grade of FX
indicates a completed course just as a grade of F indicates a completed course. The grade of FX is not a
drop or withdrawal. The process to appeal the grade of FX is the same as an appeal for any other faculty
awarded grade.

Procedure #: 6-3-a
Procedure Name: Excessive Absence
Pages: 1

Adopted Date:
Revision/Reviewed Date:
Effective Date:

Associated Policy:

191


http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-iv-i-policy-employee-concerns

Attachment 5

Policies and Procedures Summary of Changes

New Policy Number: n/a
Proposed Policy Name: n/a
Current Policy Number/Name: n/a

New Procedure Number: n/a
Proposed Procedure Name(s): n/a
Current Procedure Number(s)/Name(s): 6-2-a Course Syllabus and Curriculum Guide

Action Recommended for Policy: n/a
Action Recommended for Procedures: Rescind

Web Links: http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-6-2-course-syllabus-curriculum-quide

Primary Owner: Deputy Chancellor and President

Secondary Owner: Martha Robertson, Asst. VC for Teaching and Learning

Summary of Changes:

e This information is updated annually in the Faculty Handbook located on the College’s internal

exchange.

192



http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-6-2-course-syllabus-curriculum-guide

Attachment 5

Procedure 6-2-a: Course Syllabus / Curriculum

At San Jacinto College, a course syllabus is the document by which a department's faculty delineates the
basic purpose, structure, and proposed outcomes of a course. Each faculty member has a central role in
designing, reviewing, and revising the appropriate syllabi for courses within his or her discipline. Every
course taught at the college has a district syllabus to which the department faculty have agreed and
which has been signed by the appropriate department chairman or dean.

Procedure #: 6-2-a
Procedure Name: Course Syllabus / Curriculum Guide
Pages: 1

Adopted Date:
Revision/Reviewed Date:
Effective Date:

Associated Policy:

193


http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-iv-i-policy-employee-concerns

Attachment 6

Policies and Procedures Summary of Changes

New Policy Number: n/a
Proposed Policy Name: n/a
Current Policy Number/Name: n/a

New Procedure Number: n/a
Proposed Procedure Name(s): n/a
Current Procedure Number(s)/Name(s): 6-2-b: Beginning of Class Information

Action Recommended for Policy: n/a
Action Recommended for Procedures: Rescind

Web Links: http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-6-2-b-beginning-class-information

Primary Owner: Deputy Chancellor and President

Secondary Owner: Martha Robertson, Asst. VC for Teaching and Learning

Summary of Changes:

e This information is reviewed annually in the Faculty Handbook located on the College’s internal

exchange.

194



http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-6-2-b-beginning-class-information

Attachment 6

Procedure 6-2-b: Beginning of Class Information

The course syllabus is the controlling document for faculty who teach a particular course. In much the
same way, an instructor's beginning-of-course information handouts describe section of the course for the
students.

Instructors prepare handouts for each course they teach and distribute and explain them to all students
during the first or second class day of the semester. Whether the handout is developed by an individual
instructor or the departmental faculty, it includes the following:

Course number and title

Instructor's name, office number, conference hours, and office phone number

Course description from syllabus/curriculum guide

Student learning outcomes as defined in the syllabus/ curriculum guide

Official withdrawal date for that semester

Instructor's policies on absences, withdrawals, and make-up work (These policies must be consistent
with those stated in the college catalog.)

Tentative calendar for major assignments and tests

Grading formula

Required and recommended textbooks and supplies

Obviously, the instructor may add other information that either the instructor or the department or division
wish to be included. At least one copy of each beginning-of-class handout is filed with the dean.

Procedure #: 6-2-b
Procedure Name: Beginning of Class Information
Pages: 1

Adopted Date:
Revision/Reviewed Date:
Effective Date:

Associated Policy:

195


http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-iv-i-policy-employee-concerns

Attachment 7

Policies and Procedures Summary of Changes

New Policy Number: n/a
Proposed Policy Name: n/a
Current Policy Number/Name: n/a

New Procedure Number: n/a

Proposed Procedure Name(s): n/a
Current Procedure Number(s)/Name(s): 5-19 Curriculum Design and Instructional Effectiveness

Action Recommended for Policy: n/a
Action Recommended for Procedures: Rescind

Web Links: http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-5-19-curriculum-design-and-instructional-effectiveness

Primary Owner: Laurel Williamson, Deputy Chancellor and President

Secondary Owner: Martha Robertson, Asst. VC for Teaching and Learning

Summary of Changes:

e This information is updated annually in the Faculty Handbook located on the College’s internal
exchange. See Course Syllabus, Syllabus Review, Syllabus Revision, and Textbook Adoption.

196



http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-5-19-curriculum-design-and-instructional-effectiveness

Attachment 7

Procedure 5-19: Curriculum Design and

Instructional Effectiveness

Elements of a Course Syllabus

The course syllabus is the key document in defining each course in the college curriculum. Each syllabus

is composed of the sections listed below.

Title Page

The following information appears on the title page of each syllabus:

The name San Jacinto College,
The word "Syllabus,"
The course name and number,
The date of revision,

The dated signature of one personnel member from each campus who participated in the preparation of

that syllabus,
The dated signatures and titles of administrators who confirmed that the syllabus was developed
according to the established procedures and that it meets the college's requirements.

Heading for the Syllabus

The first page of the syllabus begins with a heading that includes the course title and course number.

Purpose Statement

The first major section of the syllabus is the purpose statement, a brief explanation of why the college
teaches the course, how it contributes to addressing the goals of the department and of the college
curriculum as a whole.

Course Description

This section includes the following:

A verbatim copy of the course description as it appears in the college catalog,

An expanded description of the course that gives more detailed information about the contents and
general structure of the course,

The number of weekly lecture hours and (if applicable) lab hours,

The number of credit hours, and

A list of any prerequisites and/or co-requisites that are listed in the college catalog.

Student Learning Outcomes

This section identifies measurable skills and abilities that the student develops in the course. The course
learning outcomes relate the specific contents of that course to the general goals of the department and

also to the college philosophy and learning outcomes statements that appear in the catalog.

197



Attachment 7

Learning Activities

This section indicates any learning activities that the department faculty deem so fundamental that they
must be part of all sections of the course, and it also suggests other activities that instructors may want to
consider using to address the course learning outcomes effectively.

Grading System

Each syllabus establishes the broad parameters within which an instructor's grading system for that
specific course must fall. Grading systems for all courses at the college must include at least two major
grades. A final exam is required for all courses. Beyond these basic requirements, the department faculty
defines any limits on grading flexibility that seem necessary to assure overall consistency in addressing
the goals of each specific course.

Outcomes Inventory

In order to evaluate a course, administrators and faculty compile what is basically an inventory of data
that indicate the results of offering and teaching that particular course. The college depends primarily on
the Office of Planning, Research, and Evaluation to make long-term studies of how well the college
curriculum and instruction work. As they become available, such studies become part of the outcomes
inventory. Listed in this section are ways in which the department will evaluate the success of the course
each semester. Basic to this evaluation are the samples of student work that are turned in to instructional
supervisors at the end of each semester. For each course, the department faculty determines what types
of work and how much should be submitted. This section may also define any other data that the
department faculty thinks will provide evidence of the actual success of the course.

Calendar

Each syllabus contains some indication of how the course material is presented throughout the semester.
The department faculty decides how specific this section should be to assure that course instruction is
appropriately consistent. For many courses, a general statement that gives minimal guidelines about
course timing and emphasis suffices. In other cases, department faculty may choose to be more rigid
about establishing in the syllabus a schedule of topics and/or assignments.

Materials

The final section of each syllabus indicates the materials required for the course and those which may be
used at the instructor's discretion.

All required textbooks and special materials are listed and clearly identified as required. If there is no
required text, that should be made clear. Supplementary texts are listed and are identified as "special
required" or "non-required" according to the definitions in the textbook-adoption policy.

The college encourages instructors to assign additional readings to their students. If it chooses, the
department faculty may add to the syllabus a list of suggested supplemental readings. Instructors will
then have that list to use for reference in making reading assignments from sources other than the course
textbooks.

Curriculum Changes

The college curriculum represents the manner in which the college responds to the needs of its
communities. Faculty have the central role in designing the curriculum of San Jacinto College. In order to
encourage faculty innovation in curriculum design and to expedite curriculum decisions, the vice-
chancellor of business and industry and a task force of faculty are redesigning the curriculum-
development processes of the college. Faculty and all other employees are encouraged to contact the
members of the various task force committees on their campuses for current information regarding

198



Attachment 7

progress in this project. Information regarding curriculum change procedures is available in the offices of
the vice-presidents of instruction and the associate deans.

Syllabus Review

The course syllabus for each course is the product of the collective professional judgment of the
appropriate faculty on all three campuses. Consequently, it is the most important single document in
determining the content, structure, and expected student learning outcomes for the course. It drives all
other curriculum-related issues such as selecting textbooks and preparing beginning-of-class information
handouts. In other words, faculty select textbooks which are most capable of helping students achieve the
expected learning outcomes, rather than structure syllabi to conform to textbooks. Also, the expected
student learning outcomes section of the syllabus reappears verbatim in the beginning-of-course
handouts, so that faculty explain that these outcomes are the students' basic learning objectives for the
course.

Syllabus Revision

Syllabus revision is the periodic process, following syllabus review, by which actual changes are made.

Ordinarily, a faculty panel representing all three campuses both reviews and revises the syllabus. Either
the department chairs or committee members themselves select a committee chair to call meetings and
organize committee activities.

Steps in the Process:

Members of the faculty panel make every effort to understand and convey the points of view of the
faculty from their campuses. The role of associate deans and department chairmen varies slightly from
discipline to discipline, but instructional supervisors have the general role of facilitating the panel's
progress and may participate directly in it.

The syllabus draft is prepared and submitted to the associate deans for their study and comment. The
syllabus review conducted by the associate deans focuses primarily on the extent to which the course is
in keeping with the college's statements of philosophy, purpose, and student learning outcomes. After
the associate deans have determined that all required elements are present, the draft syllabus is
presented to the district department faculty for discussion.

The syllabus is presented to the district department faculty for approval. As is the case with the process
of approving a new syllabus, every effort is made to come to a consensus regarding the syllabus, but if
agreement by consensus is not possible, then the district department faculty will vote, each campus
having one vote. The result of this decision is binding on all faculty in that department in the college
district.

Should faculty decline to approve the revised syllabus, the form of the syllabus before revision will be in
force until agreement is reached about the revisions. No syllabus will be used as a basis for instruction
without approval of the faculty.

If a faculty consensus is reached or if a majority of the faculty approve, the revised syllabus is signed by
the three department chairmen and associate deans as indication that they agree that the syllabus is
effective and appropriate. Copies of the official syllabus will be sent to the vice chancellor of business,
industry, and technology and to the vice presidents of instruction. The revised syllabus becomes the
official syllabus at the beginning of the next long term.

199



Attachment 7

Textbook Adoption

Selecting textbooks is one of the most important tasks in which faculty participate because the use of
textbooks is basic to almost every course. Since textbooks are adopted district-wide, a district procedure
specifies precise steps to be followed. Although the procedures may seem complex at first, they are quite
manageable when followed carefully a step-at-a-time over a period of several weeks or months. Following
the steps has the additional benefit of providing an orderly manner by which personnel reach a collective
decision.

Guidelines for Courses Offered on All Three Campuses

Definitions

District Required Books:

All books adopted district-wide, whether they be core textbooks, laboratory manuals, workbooks, or
others, are classified as district required books. Also the term applies regardless of whether one, two, or
three campuses are involved, since a district process as specified in the Book Adoption Guidelines has
been followed.

Special Required Books:

All books required of all students enrolled in a particular course taught by an individual instructor, in
addition to the district required book, are classified as special required books.

Non-required Books:

All books which are optional because students may choose to purchase them in order to supplement or
enhance their learning in a particular course and which students are not required to purchase are
classified as non-required books.

Guidelines for the selection of textbooks are available in the offices of the vice-presidents of instruction on
all three campuses. Faculty follow these guidelines as they make decisions regarding textbook selection
for the courses offered by the college.

Procedure #: 5-19

Curriculum Design and Instructional
Effectivemness

Procedure Name:

Pages: 4
Adopted Date:

Revision/Reviewed Date:

Effective Date:

Associated Policy:

200


http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-iv-i-policy-employee-concerns

Action Item “XVII”

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of Policy 1V.4003.A: Filling Vacancies— First Reading (Information
Only)

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a revision and update to
the College’s Policy 1V.4003.A, Filling Vacancies, formerly designated as Policy IV-C-3:
Policy on Filling Vacancies. The Board of Trustees will not vote on this item but is creating
awareness that the policy is being considered and input is being gathered.

BACKGROUND

Policy IV-C-3, Policy for Filling Vacancies was most recently approved by the Board of
Trustees on February 5, 2008. This policy addresses the process for filling vacancies at San
Jacinto College. Procedures on job vacancies and screening committees were revised to
support the policy.

The revisions to the policy are recommended to establish the new policy format and to reflect
the strengthened College practices for filling vacancies. Additionally, the associated
procedure has been revised to support implementation of the policy. These procedures are
attached for informational purposes.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

The updated policy and procedures were sent to the College community on February 2, 2018.
Comments will be reviewed, and any changes, if appropriate, will be addressed prior to the
Board’s second reading which is anticipated on March 5, 2018.

Additionally, several procedures are recommended for rescission because of practices being
incorporated in other checklists or resources available on the College’s website. These
procedures are included in Attachment 8 and are explained on the Summary of Changes
(Attachment 1).

Finally, several procedural headings have been suspended with new software systems such as
Cornerstone. These headings will be removed from the College’s policy and procedural
manual effective immediately. These items are listed on the summary of changes
(Attachment 1).

BUDGET INFORMATION

No budgetary impact.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The Board will be notified of any changes that require its action.

201



Action Item “XVII”
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Consideration of Approval of Policy 1V.4003.A: Filling Vacancies— First Reading (Information

Only)
ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 — Summary of Changes
Attachment 2 — Policy 1V-C-3: Policy on Filling Vacancies (current policy)
Attachment 3 — Policy 1V.4003.A, Filling Vacancies (proposed policy)

Informational items only:

Attachment 4 — Procedure 4-1: Job Vacancies (current procedures)

Attachment 5 — Procedure 1VV.4003.A.a, Job Vacancies (proposed procedures)
Attachment 6 — Procedure 4-1A: Screening Committee (current procedures)

Attachment 7 — Procedure 1VV.4003.A.b, Screening Committee (proposed procedures)
Attachment 8 — Procedures 4-1-a-1: Screening Committee Process, 4-1-a-2: Permitted and

Prohibited Pre-Employment Questions, 4-1-a-7: Screening Applicants on
PeopleAdmin (SOAR)

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Stephen Trncak 281-998-6115 stephen.trncak@sjcd.edu

202



Attachment 1

Policies and Procedures Summary of Changes

New Policy Number: To be determined by the Chancellor’s Office
Proposed Policy Name: Filling VVacancies
Current Policy Number/Name: IVV-C-3 Policy for Filling Vacancies

New Procedure Number: To be determined by the Chancellor’s Office

Proposed Procedure Name(s): Job Vacancies, Screening Committee

Current Procedure Number(s)/Name(s): 4-1 Job Vacancies, 4-1a Screening Committee
4-1a parts 1-8 (see detailed list below)

Action Recommended for Policy: Revision

Action Recommended for Procedures:

4-1 Job Vacancies (Revision), 4-1a Screening Committee (Revision and associate with this policy)
Procedure 4-1a Parts 1 — 8 (rescind)

Web Links:

http://www.sanjac.edu/policy-iv-c-policy-employment (current Policy 1V-C-3)
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-4-1-job-vacancies (current Procedure 4-1)
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-4-1-screening-committee-guidelines (current Procedure 4-1a)

Primary Owner: Vice Chancellor, Human Resources

Secondary Owner: Vice President, Human Resources

Summary of Changes:
Policy
Moved bulleted procedural section to the associated procedure 4-1 Job Vacancies
Updated minimum posting days per current practice in procedure 4-1 Job Vacancies

Procedure 4-1
e Changed wording to be consistent with current hiring practices and current titles
e Added request form
Procedure 4-1a
e Removed questions and added sub titles
0 Examples:
=  What is a Screening Committee? To A. A screening committee...
= How is a Screening committee formed? To B. Multiple-Campus Hiring
e Realigned subtitles to flow with practice A. Forming a Screening Committee, B.
Responsibilities of the Screening Committee Chair etc.
e Updated wording to include current college terms i.e. Provost , hiring leader
e Removed statement “This will ensure that there is agreement as to the qualified
candidates” from subtitle B, Multiple-Campus Hiring

1

203



http://www.sanjac.edu/policy-iv-c-policy-employment
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-4-1-job-vacancies
http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-4-1-screening-committee-guidelines

Attachment 1

e Added statement “demonstrate a consistent commitment to the College’s core values” to
subtitle C, Forming a Screening Committee

e Deleted the first two paragraphs from section titled “What Is The Role Of The Screening
Committee Chair” to keep consistent with current practice

e Removed statement “the software that allows applicants to apply on-line and attach
transcripts, resumes and other documents” from third bullet under Subtitle D,
Responsibilities of the Screening Committee Chair

¢ Removed statement “for applicants that are non-selected to continue in the interview
process” from fifth bullet under subtitle D

e Added statement “are not selected to continue in the interview process” to fifth bullet
point under Subtitle D

e Removed descriptors from telephone interviews under subtitle D

e Added links to the hiring practices where appropriate

Recommend rescission - Procedure 4-1a Parts 1 -8

4-1a-1 Screening Committee Process — current practices have been incorporated into
the Hiring Guiding Principles, Hiring Leader Recruitment Process Checklist, and 4-1a
Screening Committee (recommendation to rescind this part)

4-1a-2 Permitted and Prohibited Pre-Employment Questions — will be added to
Hiring Practices webpage as a resource document (recommendation to rescind this part)

4-1a-3 FAQs — questions related to SOAR (PeopleAdmin system) superseded by
Cornerstone (recommendation to rescind this part) (procedural heading only — suspended)

4-1a-4 Non-Selection of Candidates — superseded by Cornerstone, final disposition
process (recommendation to rescind this part)

4-1a-5 Interview Response Form from Committee Members — Interview Architect
provides this functionality (recommendation to rescind this part) (procedural heading
only — suspended)

4-1a-6 Final Summary of Interview Results — Interview Architect and Cornerstone
provide this functionality (recommendation to rescind this part) [no longer an active link
online] (procedural heading only — suspended)

4-1a-7 Screening Applicants on PeopleAdmin — superseded by Cornerstone
(recommendation to rescind this part)

4-1a-8 Telephone Reference Checks — included in this recommendation for 4-1a
(recommendation to rescind this part) (procedural heading only — suspended)

204


http://www.sanjac.edu/procedure-4-1-1-screening-committee-process
http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/procedure-4-1-a-2-permitted-and-prohibited-pre-employment-questions
http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/procedure-4-1-a-3-faqs
http://www.sanjac.edu/sites/default/files/documents/Non_Selection_Of_Candidates_FormB.pdf
http://www.sanjac.edu/sites/default/files/documents/Interview_Response_FormC.pdf
http://www.sanjac.edu/guideline-4-1-7-screening-applicants-peopleadmin
http://www.sanjac.edu/sites/default/files/documents/Telephone_Reference_Check_Attach2.pdf

Attachment 2

Policy IV-C-3: Policy for Filling Vacancies (Current Policy)

Declared full-time vacancies may be filled under the following conditions:

e The position must be budgeted or authorized by the Chancellor and/or Board of Trustees.

e The administration must approve the advertisement and posting of the position.

e All posting and advertising must be through the Human Resources Office.

e The position must be posted a minimum of ten days for classified staff, twenty days for
professional non-contracted positions and thirty days for all contracted positions.

e All applicants must apply through the Human Resources Office during the posting period.

e Initial applicant screening must be coordinated through the Human Resources Office.

e The Chancellor is responsible for recommending to the Board of Trustees the employment of
all full-time employees.

Because no employee is employed to fill a specific position or assignment, the Chancellor of the San
Jacinto College District shall have the right to assign an employee such duties as the Chancellor deems
proper. An employee may be assigned or reassigned additional duties for which he or she is
professionally certified or otherwise qualified to perform, at whatever campus deemed necessary.
Generally, a new assignment or reassignment will not result in a reduction in compensation. Likewise, the
Chancellor has the authority to promote a current employee into a position that results in an increase in
compensation. The Chancellor will present assignment, reassignment and promotion recommendations
to the Board of Trustees for ratification. A vacant position resulting from a promotion must be posted
unless the position has been eliminated through reorganization.

Part-time and temporary employees may be employed without a formal posting following fair non-
discriminatory employment practices.

Policy #: IV-C-3

Policy Name: Policy for Filling Vacancies
Pages: 1

Adopted Date: March 2, 1981

October 4, 1982; July 11, 1988; May 2, 1994;
November 6, 1997 and February 5, 2008

Revision/Reviewed Date:

March 2, 1981; October 4, 1982; July 11, 1988; May 2,
1994; November 6, 1997 and February 5, 2008

Effective Date:

Associated Procedure: 4-1

205


http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/procedure-4-1-job-vacancies

Attachment 3

Policy 1V.4003.A, Filling Vacancies

Purpose
This policy addresses the process for filling vacancies at San Jacinto College.

Policy

No employee is hired to fill a specific position assignment. The Chancellor, when appropriate,
has the right to assign employee duties that meet the current needs of the College. An employee
may be assigned or reassigned duties for which he or she is professionally certified or otherwise
qualified to perform. Reassignment may include relocation to another department, program, or
location as necessary. Generally, a new assignment or reassignment will not result in a reduction
in compensation. The Chancellor has the authority to promote a current employee into a position
that results in an increase in compensation. The Chancellor will present assignment,
reassignment, and promotion recommendations to the Board of Trustees for ratification.

Full-time positions will be posted in accordance with procedure 1V.4003.A.a, Job Vacancies and
filled in accordance with procedure 1V.4003.A.b, Screening Committee.

Part-time and temporary employees may be employed without a formal posting as long as fair
non-discriminatory employment practices are followed

Definitions
Vacancy: An unoccupied position or job created by a promotion, transfer, exit, or newly funded
position approved by the Chancellor and/or Board of Trustees.

The Authority, Applicability, Sanctions, Exclusions, and Interpretation do not differ from Policy
11.2000.A, Policy and Procedures Development, Review, Revision, and Rescission.

Associated Procedures
Procedure 1V.4003.A.a, Job VVacancies
Procedure 1VV.4003.A.b, Screening Committee.

Date of Board  Anticipated March 5, 2018

Approval

Effective Date  Anticipated March 6, 2018
Primary Vice Chancellor, Human Resources
Owner

Secondary Vice President, Human Resources
Owner

206



Attachment 4

Procedure 4-1: Job Vacancies - (Current Procedure)

When a budgeted position becomes available, the campus provost, vice chancellor or designee must
submit to the Human Resources Office an approved job description and advertisement instructions. The
job posting will be worded from the job description. Positions for print advertisement in The Chronicle of
Higher Education and certain professional publications should have a minimum of a sixty (60) day lead
time.

Human Resources will post jobs in the order in which they were received. Please send posting request in
memo format with attached sample job description through your department or dean then on to your
campus provost for approval. After campus provost approval, forward to Human Resources. After the
posting is approved by the Vice Chancellor of Human Resources, it will be prepared in the online
employment system and forwarded to the hiring department for final approval before posting.

Please keep in mind the following guidelines:

e |f the position is a new position, it must be budgeted.
e If the position is replacing someone who has resigned, a copy of their resignation letter must
accompany the posting request.

Job vacancies will be posted for a duration that meets organizational needs.

The recommended posting duration times are as follows:

e Seven (7) to ten (10) days for staff positions
e Fourteen (14) to twenty-one (21) days for professional positions
e Thirty (30) calendar days for all full-time, non-temporary faculty positions

To facilitate a more efficient posting procedure, we prefer to post for a longer period of time rather than
put "Until Filled" on the postings.

When a final decision to offer the position is made, please notify the Human Resources Office of your
choice. All job offerings to full-time applicants and discussions of salary must be made by Human
Resources.

The campus must complete a Personnel Information Sheet on the successful candidate for
Faculty/Administrative positions. The original form must be sent to the Human Resources Office for action
by the Board.

207



Attachment 4

Procedure #:
Procedure Name:
Pages:

Adopted Date:

Revision/Reviewed Date:

Effective Date:

Associated Policy:

4-1
Job Vacancies

1

June 2, 2008
June 2, 2008

IV-C-3

208


http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-iv-c-policy-employment

Attachment 5

Procedure 1V.4003.A.a, Job Vacancies

Associated Policy
Policy IV.4003.A, Filling Vacancies

Procedures
This procedure specifies the process for implementing, requesting, and posting vacancies.

When a budgeted position becomes available, posting requests (see table below) should be routed
to the Human Resources Department after receiving the appropriate approvals; this includes
approval by the respective leadership and the Strategic Leadership Team (SLT) member or
designee. Requests should be in memo-format. The SLT member or designee must also submit an
approved job description to the Human Resources Department along with the posting request.

The job posting will be prepared from the job description. Positions for print advertisement should
have a minimum of a sixty (60) day lead time, and collateral for print advertisement shall be

coordinated through the Human Resources Department. The posting will be prepared in the
applicant tracking system and forwarded to the hiring department for final review before posting.

For full-time vacancies:

e The position must be budgeted or authorized by the Chancellor and/or Board of Trustees.
e The SLT must approve the posting of the position.

e All posting and electronic advertising must be coordinated through the Human Resources
Department.

e Job vacancies will be posted for a duration that meets organizational needs. The
recommended posting duration times are as follows:

0 Seven (7) to ten (10) days for staff position.
o0 Fourteen (14) to twenty-one (21) days for professional positions.
o Thirty (30) calendar days for all full-time, non-temporary faculty positions.

e All applicants must apply through the applicant tracking system during the posting
period.

¢ Initial applicant screening will be conducted during the posting period.

e |f the position is replacing someone who has resigned or retired, a copy of the resignation
letter, along with SLT member acknowledgment, must accompany the posting request.

209



Attachment 5

Use the following Request for Posting table below when submitting requests to the SLT
for posting.

e The campus must complete the Faculty Candidate Recommendation Form (FCRF) for the
successful faculty candidate and submit it to Human Resources.

e The Chancellor is responsible for recommending to the Board of Trustees the
employment of all full-time employees.

To facilitate a more efficient posting procedure, the preference is to post for a longer period of
time rather than list the posting end date as Until Filled.

Request for Posting Table

Name (First and Last)
of exiting employee

Position Number (POSN#)

Title

FOAP

Leader

Date of SLT January 31, 2018
Approval

Effective Date Anticipated March 6, 2018

Associated Policy Policy I1V.4003.A, Filling Vacancies

Primary Owner of Vice Chancellor, Human Resources
Policy Associated
with the Procedure

Secondary Owner of  Vice President, Human Resources
Policy Associated
with the Procedure

210



Attachment 6

Procedure 4-1A: Screening Committee — (Current Procedure)
WHAT IS A SCREENING COMMITTEE?

A screening committee is an appointed group of individuals whose purpose is to:

e Review application materials for a particular administrative or faculty position
e Select qualified candidates for preliminary and campus interviews

o |dentify the top two to three candidates for potential employment

e Complete required documentation of the screening and interview process

SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES - Multiple-campus hiring

In the case that more than one campus is hiring for the same position, faculty from those campuses must
cooperate to create a preliminary screening committee consisting of members from the different
campuses. This will ensure that there is agreement as to the qualified candidates. In order for all
committee members to be able to screen applicants in the Applicant Tracking System (ATS), the
preliminary screening committee will need to designate a hiring manager, who will in turn designate guest
users (other members of the search committee). This will allow all members of the search committee
access to the applications and attached documents. Only the Hiring Manager can designate/change
status of the applicants in the ATS. Once the preliminary screening is completed, further screening,
interviewing and hiring can be completed on the individual campuses as described below.

This procedure will only be necessary for positions with multiple campus designations. The Provosts will
be responsible for facilitating this process.

HOW IS A SCREENING COMMITTEE FORMED AND WHO SHOULD SERVE ON A SCREENING
COMMITTEE?

For faculty searches, members within the discipline will meet and determine a chair and four to six diverse
members with an academic background and/or expertise pertinent to the teaching field. This committee
will be recommended to the appropriate dean, who will either accept the faculty recommendation or
submit revisions to the appropriate vice president for consideration and for the final decision regarding
faculty screening committee membership. For administrative searches, screening committees are
appointed by the appropriate president and should also represent a diverse group of individuals with
academic backgrounds and/or expertise pertinent to the administrative area.

The screening committee chair should be an individual who:

e isregarded highly within the college
e demonstrates a consistent commitment to the district’s core values
e is skilled at conducting meetings

Screening committee members should not be related to or be engaged in business ventures with persons
who may apply for the vacant position. A committee member who has a relationship with a candidate,
thus creating or giving the appearance of a conflict of interest should not be a member of the screening
committee. It is incumbent upon a screening committee member to disclose when such a conflict arises.
Upon having knowledge of any potential conflict of interest, the committee chair should discuss the matter
with the appropriate administrator.

Additionally, an individual who accepts appointment to a screening committee cannot become a
candidate for the posted position.

WHAT IS THE ROLE OF THE SCREENING COMMITTEE CHAIR?

211



Attachment 6

The screening committee chair provides leadership to the members and ensures that the appropriate
college procedures, as well as state and federal laws, are followed.

The chair meets with the district Human Resource office prior to the first screening committee meeting to
review the position description and recruitment process and to discuss the screening committee
guidelines and required forms. The chair keeps the appropriate dean, vice president and the Human
Resource office apprised of the selection process status.

The chair is the designated “Hiring Manager” in the ATS, the software that allows applicants to apply
online and attach transcripts, resumes and other documents. The chair may designate other members of
the screening committee as “Guest Users” with the ability to review applications and make decisions
about a pool of applicants, but only the chair will be authorized to make changes or record events in the
ATS.

The chair schedules meetings, designates a secretary to keep minutes, and provides a roster for
recording screening committee attendance at each meeting.

The chair, with assistance from the committee members, documents reasons for non-selection of
applicants to continue to the interview process.

The chair, with assistance from the committee members, establishes job-related questions to be asked at
the preliminary interview. (Preliminary interviews are not always necessary.) These questions are
submitted to Human Resources, in advance, for review and approval.

If preliminary interviews are to be conducted, the chair or his/her designee schedules preliminary
interviews with local applicants and contacts Human Resources for further information in reference to
scheduling preliminary interviews for those candidates who are not local.

Telephone interviews may be used and are highly effective for large pools as a second level screening
tool. This is particularly useful for pools with a large contingency of non-local applicants. If telephone
interviews are used, they should be used for all or none.

The chair notifies Human Resources at the conclusion of the preliminary interviews (if conducted), and
provides a list of candidates to be scheduled for finalist interviews.

For teaching positions, the chair, with assistance from the screening committee members, determines a
teaching topic to be presented by the finalist.

The chair collects and returns all applicable forms to Human Resources, including the Interview
Response forms from the preliminary and finalist interviews.

The chair presents screening committee recommendations to the appropriate dean/provost/vice
chancellor.

The chair, with assistance from the committee members, completes required documentation of the
screening and interview process.

WHAT IS THE ROLE OF A SCREENING COMMITTEE MEMBER?
Members attend meetings scheduled by the screening committee chair.

Members review application materials of all qualified applicants and assist the screening committee chair
in completing all required documentation of the screening and interview process.

Members assist the screening committee chair in preparing questions for preliminary and final interviews
and in determining the teaching topic to be presented by the applicants at the time of interview.

Members participate in the interviews of all selected candidates and complete and submit to the chair an
Interview Response Form for each candidate interviewed providing their impression of the interview.

212



Attachment 6

Members participate in a meeting at the conclusion of the interview process to formulate a
recommendation of the top two to three candidates to be submitted to the appropriate dean/provost/vice

chancellor.

Procedure #:
Procedure Name:
Pages:

Adopted Date:

Revision/Reviewed Date:

Effective Date:

Associated Policy:

4-1-a
Screening Committee

3

213


http://www.sanjac.edu/about-san-jac/college-operations/policies-and-procedures/policy-iv-g-policies-dismissal-disciplinary-actions

Attachment 7

Procedure 1V.4003.A.b, Screening Committee

Associated Policy
Policy IV.4003.A, Filling Vacancies

Procedures
This procedure specifies the process for forming screening committees and identifies the
responsibilities for its members.

A. Forming a Screening Committee

The Employment Selection and Hiring Guiding Principles are provided to familiarize hiring
leaders and screening committees with the College’s position in reference to the hiring
process. The guiding principles are located on the Human Resources page of the College
website.

Employment Selection and Hiring Guiding Principles:

For faculty searches, members within the discipline will meet and select a committee of
four to six diverse members with an academic background and/or expertise relevant to
the teaching field will be selected to serve. This committee will be recommended to the
appropriate dean, who will either accept the faculty recommendation or submit revisions
to the appropriate provost for consideration and the final decision regarding faculty
screening committee membership.

For administrative and staff searches, screening committees are appointed by the
appropriate hiring leader. The committee should represent a diverse group of individuals
with academic backgrounds and/or expertise relevant to the administrative area.

The screening committee should be made up of individuals who demonstrate a consistent
commitment to the College’s core values.

Screening committee members should not be related to or be engaged in business
ventures with persons who apply for the vacant position. A committee member who has a
relationship with a candidate, creating or giving the appearance of a conflict of interest,
will not be a member of the screening committee. It is incumbent upon a screening
committee member to disclose when such a conflict arises. Upon having knowledge of
any potential conflict of interest, the committee chair should discuss the matter with the
appropriate administrator.

Additionally, an individual who accepts appointment to a screening committee cannot
become a candidate for the posted position.

214



Attachment 7

. Responsibilities of the Screening Committee Chair

The screening committee chair provides guidance to committee members and ensures
that the appropriate college procedures, as well as state and federal laws, are
followed.

The chair keeps the appropriate leadership chain and the Human Resources
Department apprised of the status of the selection process.

The chair may designate other members of the screening committee as
“Reviewers/Interviewers.” They have the ability to review applications and make
recommendations about a pool of applicants. The chair should make all status
changes and record any comments in the Applicant Tracking System (ATS).

The chair will schedule meetings and maintain attendance records for each meeting.

The chair, with assistance from the committee members, documents reasons (Final
Dispositions in the ATS) for applicants that are not selected to continue in the
interview process.

The chair, with assistance from the committee members, establishes job-related
questions to be asked during the interview process. Additionally, Human Resources
makes available tools that can aid in the creation of questions for competencies
related to the position.

The chair or his/her designee schedules interviews with local applicants. Human
Resources will provide guidance for scheduling interviews for those candidates who
are not local.

Telephone interviews may be used as a screening tool for large pools of applicants.

For full-time teaching positions, the chair, with assistance from the screening
committee members, determines a teaching topic to be presented by the finalists.

The chair presents screening committee recommendations to the appropriate
leadership for further interview or consideration.

The chair or designee conducts reference checks on the final candidate selected. A is
located on the Human Resources page of the College website for use.

The chair, with assistance from the committee members, completes required
documentation of the screening and interview process.

The chair collects and returns all applicable credentialing and hiring forms to Human
Resources.

215



Attachment 7

The Hiring Leader Checklist is provided as a tool to aid in the adherence to this process. The
checklist is located on the Human Resources page of the College website.

C. Responsibilities of Screening Committee Members
e Members attend meetings scheduled by the screening committee chair.

e Members review application materials of all qualified applicants in the applicant pool
and assist the screening committee chair in completing all required documentation of
the screening and interview process.

e Members assist the screening committee chair in preparing questions for interviews
and in determining the teaching topic to be presented by the applicants at the time of
interview.

e Members participate in the interviews of all selected candidates. They will complete
and submit to the chair a summary for each candidate interviewed providing summary
of the interview.

e Members participate in a meeting at the conclusion of the interview process to
formulate a recommendation of the top candidates to be submitted to the respective
leadership team.

The Recruitment Process Efficiencies Gantt chart is provided as a reference to aid in completing
the hiring process as efficiently as possible. The chart is located on the Human Resources page
of the College website.

D. Multiple-Campus Hiring

The following process will only be necessary for positions with multiple campus
designations. The provosts will be responsible for facilitating this process for positions
under their leadership.

In the case that more than one campus is hiring for the same position, representatives
from each campus must cooperate to create a preliminary screening committee consisting
of members from the different campuses. In order for all committee members to be able
to screen applicants in the ATS, the preliminary screening committee will need to
designate a hiring leader, who will in turn designate Reviewers/Interviewers (other
members of the search committee). This will allow all members of the search committee
access to the applications and attached documents. Only the hiring leader can designate
the status change “finalist” for the applicants in the ATS. Once the preliminary screening
is completed, then further screening, interviewing, and hiring can be completed on the
individual campuses as described below.

216



Attachment 7

Definitions

Screening committee: is an appointed group of individuals whose purpose is to: review
application materials for candidates within the Applicant Tracking System (ATS), may select
qualified candidates for interviews, identify the most qualified candidates for each position, and
complete required documentation of the screening and interview process.

Date of SLT January 31, 2018
Approval
Effective Date Anticipated March 6, 2018

Associated Policy Policy I1V.4003.A, Filling Vacancies

Primary Owner of Vice Chancellor, Human Resources
Policy Associated
with the Procedure

Secondary Owner of  Vice President, Human Resources
Policy Associated
with the Procedure

217



Attachment 8

Procedure 4-1-a-1: Screening Committee

Process

The employment process requires excellent record keeping. The screening committee will need to keep a

record of its proceedings, and a recorder should be designated for each meeting. Records help the
screening committee maintain consistent procedures.

Remember: Keep track of committee decisions and document the process, including notes from
screening committee meetings, interviews, and evaluations of candidates. If you have questions
regarding any documentation issues, call Human Resources,

Screening Candidates

The approved job posting should be reviewed carefully, and any duties or statements that are not clear
should be clarified prior to reviewing resumes.

During the screening process, actions and discussion of the screening committee are confidential and
are not to be discussed outside the meetings.

Contact Human Resources for specific instructions to facilitate travel for out-of-town/state applicants.
Screening committee concerns should be forwarded to Human Resources.

Interviewing Candidates

Prior to the interviews, assignments should be made for a college employee to meet, greet, and escort
the candidates between various phases of the interview process.

The employment interview is a vital component in the hiring process. In order to recommend the most
qualified applicant, screening committee members must be well versed in how to effectively conduct

interviews. In addition, we must be aware of federal and state legislation that precludes asking certain
guestions during an interview.

Structured interviewing involves approaching the interview with a pre-planned agenda. The interviewer
knows ahead of time what he/she will ask the applicant and tries to stick to the agenda. Some
interviewers will ask the questions in order and others will take a more relaxed approach but are still sure
to address all of the pre-planned questions. This type of interviewing style generally provides the
interviewer with the information needed to make the hiring decision. It is also important as a defense

against discrimination in hiring and selection, because all applicants are asked the same questions. This
is the method used by SJCD.

Interviewing Guidelines

The Screening Committee chair, at the beginning of the interview, should ensure the commitiee
members are introduced to the candidate.

Ensure the candidate has an occasional break between interviews to get water or have a cup of coffee,
etc.

All candidates are to be asked the same questions so that each candidate has an opportunity to respond
to the same issues. It is suggested that the candidate be told how much time and how many questions

218



Attachment 8

will be asked during the interview session. If the candidate would like to expand on his/her response to a
question at the end of the process, this is permissible.
Try to facilitate open discussion to elicit as much information as possible from the candidate. The easiest
way to accomplish this is by creating an atmosphere that allows the applicant to speak freely. The
following are suggestions for fostering an atmosphere that is conducive to open discussion:
o Try to put the applicant at ease at the beginning of the interview. If the applicant feels comfortable,
he/she will be more likely to share information with the committee,
Try to ask questions that will facilitate discussion. Avoid questions that require a yes or no answer.
Don't ask leading questions. Keep the questions open-ended so that the applicant has the
opportunity to speak freely,
o Be sure to ask only job-related questions.
Listening skills are essential in an interview. It is important to let the applicant speak without being
interrupted. Remember, the purpose of the interview is to obtain as much information as possible.
Follow-up job-related questions may be asked when an answer is incomplete or when additional
information is needed from the candidate to get a clear understanding of his/her job-related experience,
skills and knowledge.

Remember: Applicants and candidates will form decisions about San Jacinto College based on the
quality of our screening process and the hospitality of the screening committee. Remember our core
values and ask appropriate questions. Introduce candidates to faculty and staff who are positive, out-
going ambassadors for the many good things the college is achieving and the new projects we are
pursuing.

After the interview

Once the interviews are complete, the screening committee will complete its work as follows:
The committee will present its hiring recommendations to the Dean or the appropriate campus
administrator.

The Hiring Manager will coordinate Cabinet-level interviews with the Dean and/or the appropriate
campus administrator and provide administrators with the finalists’ application materials.

The appropriate dean/president/vice chancellor will review the screening committee recommendation of
the top two to three candidates and complete reference checks on these individuals.

Final Selection

Once a finalist is selected. the Human Resources office will:
Conduct and document criminal background checks
Calculate the hiring salary

Extend an offer of employment, contingent upon approval by the Board of Regents
Send email notification to all other qualified applicants for the position.

219



Procedure #:
Procedure Name:
Pages:

Adopted Date:

Revision/Reviewed Date:

Effective Date:

Associated Policy:

Attachment 8

4-1-a-1
Screening Committee Process

2

220



Attachment 8

Procedure 4-1-a-2: Permitted and Prohibited

Pre-Employment Questions

Job-Related Questions
Interview questions should be job-related and focus on the candidate’s academic
preparation, related work experience, and depth of knowledge within the content area.
Additionally, questions should provide an opportunity for the candidate to discuss how
he/she would respond to scenarios or examples of job-related issues that may be faced by
the person in this position.

Race /Ethnicity

A candidate may not be asked guestions concerning ethnic background.

Age

A candidate may not be asked guestions concerning age. To comply with federal regulations,
records regarding age must be kept but are obtained following hiring and maintained in the
Human Resource office.

Disability Status
Frior to a job offer, a candidate may not be asked questions concerning whether he/she has
a disability or health problem which may affect job performance, or which the college should
consider in determining the need for accommaodation. A candidate may be asked only if
he/she can perform the essential functions of the job or if there is anything that would
prevent him/her from performing the job. It is the responsibility of the candidate to inform
the college that he/she has a disability and to request reasonable accommodations. In light
of the Americans with Disabilities Act, it is important to consult with Human Resources if any
questions arise regarding disabilities.

Religion or Creed
A candidate may not be asked questions concerning religious denomination, religious
affiliations, and/or church attendance. A candidate may be advised of normal hours or days
of work required by the position to avoid possible conflict with religious or other personal
convictions.

Marital or Parental Status
A candidate may not be asked questions concerning whether the candidates are married,
single, divorced, or engaged. Questions regarding the number and age of children,
pregnancy or future pregnancy is also prohibited. The candidate may be asked if he/she can
meet specific time schedules or if he/she has activities, commitment or responsibilities that
may hinder meeting attendance requirements. A candidate may be asked about expected
duration in the position or anticipated absences if the questions are asked of all candidates
and weighed equally for males and females.

221



Attachment 8

Character

A candidate may not be guestioned about whether they have ever been arrested, or about
personal habits in private life. A candidate may be questioned as to whether they have been
convicted of a crime and, if so, when, the nature of the crime, and the disposition of the
case,

Credit Rating
A candidate may not be questioned regarding credit rating or financial commitments.
Organizational Membership

A candidate may be questioned regarding organizational memberships associated with
ability to discharge the responsibilities of the position, but excluding any organization that
might indicate the race, religion, national origin or ancestry of its members.

References

A candidate may be asked who suggested that the candidate apply for a position with the
college. Names and address of persons willing to give references may be requested.
Military Experience
A candidate may be asked about military duty, and the type of education and experience
obtained in military service as it relates to a particular position. A candidate may not be

Procedure #: 4-1-a-2
Procedure Name: Permitted and Prohibited Pre-Employment Questions
Pages: 2

Adopted Date:

Revision /Reviewed Date:

Effective Date:

Associated Policy:

asked what type of discharge was received.

222



Attachment 8

Procedure 4-1-a-7: Screening Applicants on
PeopleAdmin (SOAR)

To begin the screening process, LOG ON to the system at jobs sjcd edu/hr. A "Hiring Manager" Manual is
available to assist in the screening process. To access this manual, click on the manual icon at the top of
screen,

Choose the appropriate position from the list of active positions.

View the individual applicants and application. At this time you may print the application or
Close application and come back at a later time

Changing the Status of Applicants

While in the Active Applicants display screen, you may change the status of applicants as the applications
are reviewed.

To change the status of an applicant, click the "Change Status" link under the Status column in the row
corresponding to the applicant.

Under the "Status” column there is a drop down menu of the choices an applicant could be changed to.
Select the new status for each applicant, and then click the Continue to Confirm Page button.
The status choices are:

Did not meet preferred qualifications (state reasons)
Interview Pending

Interviewed

Finalist (may be used as a second interview category)
Mot Hired Reason:

o salary

o references

o other applicant selected

o other (please specify)

Application Withdrawn Reason

o declined interview

o unable to contact

o accepted another position

Mot selected for Interview (used to narrow a large field of applicants - please specify reason)
Hired

After clicking the Continue to Confirm Page button, a confirmation page will appear. Select the Save
Status Changes button to complete the action. Select the Cancel button to return to the previous screen
to edit your changes.

The "Hiring Manager" may change an applicant’;s status several times during the screening process.

223



Attachment 8

At the end of the interview process and a decision has been made on which applicant to hire, Human
Resources must be notified to make the official job offer. Please note: You have not completed the
hiring process in PeopleAdmin (SOAR).

Once the successful candidate has accepted the offer officially, the other applicants (those interviewed
and not hired) must be marked as "Not Hired" status. At that point, Human Resources will notify those
applicants that were not hired.

Procedure #: 4-1-a-7
Procedure Name: Screening Applicants on PeopleAdmin (SOAR)
Pages: 1

Adopted Date:

Revision/Reviewed Date:
Effective Date:

Associated Policy:

224



SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
PURCHASE RECAP
February 5, 2018

EQUIPMENT, SUPPLIES & SERVICES BIDS

CSP #18-13
Contract for South Campus Softball Training Facility (pgs. 2-4)

RFP #18-21
Contract for Backbone Circuits (pgs. 5-6)

TOTAL OF ALL BIDS

PURCHASE REQUESTS,
SOLE SOURCE VENDORS,
COOPERATIVES, AND CONTRACT RENEWALS

Purchase Request #1
Architectural Programming Services for the N. Campus
Spencer, Brightwell, Wheeler Buildings (pgs. 7-8)

Purchase Request #2
Contract for Architectural Services for the S. Campus HVAC
Tech Building Renovation (pg. 9)

Purchase Request #3
Method of Procurement for S. Campus HVAC Tech Building Renovation (pg. 10)

Purchase Request #4
Contractor for S. Campus HVAC Tech Building Renovation (pgs. 11)

Purchase Request #5
Method of Procurement for S. Campus Longenecker Building Renovation (pgs. 12-13)

Purchase Request #6
Contract for Architecural Services for S. Campus
Longenecker Building Renovation (pgs. 14-15)

Purchase Request #7
Purchase Transcript Evaluation Records Management Software (pgs. 16-17)

Purchase Request #8
Contract for Architectural Services for ECHS Renovations (pgs. 18-19)

Purchase Request #9
Method of Procurement for College Administration East Building Renovation (pg. 20)

Purchase Request #10
Contractor for College Administration East Building Renovations (pg. 21)

TOTAL OF PURCHASE REQUESTS

GRAND TOTAL:

$

580,000

102,000

682,000

172,720

100,763

75,000

995,077

248,954

578,529

136,000

2,307,043

2,989,043

225



CSP #18-13
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Consideration of Approval to Contract for South Campus Softball Training Facility

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a contract with IKLO
Construction for the construction of a new softball training facility at South Campus.

BACKGROUND

A new training facility is needed for the South Campus women’s softball program. The training
facility will be located adjacent to the South Campus softball field and will provide an indoor
and air-conditioned environment for hitting and pitching practice.

Detailed specifications and project plans were developed by Bay IBI Architects and were used
as part of the documentation package required for public solicitation of construction proposals
utilizing the Competitive Sealed Proposals (CSP) procurement method in accordance with the
Texas Government Code, Section 2269.151.

A request for Competitive Sealed Proposals, Project Number 18-13, was issued to procure
services for this project. Three responses were received and evaluated by a team comprised of
representatives from Facilities Services, South Campus, and AECOM. The evaluation team
determined the negotiated proposal submitted by IKLO Construction would provide the best
value to the College and could complete the project within budget.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

Approval of this request will allow for the construction of an approximately 4,000 square-foot
single-story training facility for the South Campus women’s softball program, as part of the
South Campus softball field improvements. These improvements will transition the present
softball field into one more suited for college-level play.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The expenditure of this request will not exceed $580,000. These expenditures will be funded
from the 2008 Bond Program. The budget of $850,000 for enhancements to the softball
facilities were previously approved by the Board on July 10, 2017. This facility is one
component of those enhancements.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

All work is scheduled to be completed in one hundred eighty (180) calendar days from issuance
of Notice to Proceed. Facilities Services personnel will oversee the project. Program
management will be provided by AECOM.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 — Tabulation

2 226



CSP #18-13

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval to Contract for South Campus Softball Training Facility

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Bryan Jones 281-998-6343
Charles Smith 281-998-6341
Ann Kokx-Templet 281-998-6103

Angela Klaus 281-998-6327

bryan.jones@sjcd.edu
charles.smith@sjcd.edu
ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu
angela.klaus@sjcd.edu

227



Project Name South Campus Softball Improvements
Project Number CSP 18-13
# of Evaluators 4

Total Construction
Stated Criteria Criteria Explanation Points Masters of
Available Houston, Inc.
[ S T ——
Proposed Amount Evaluations based on Proposed
Construction Contract Amount of Base
Proposal. Lower price equates to higher
score.

Part 1 - General Evaluations based on responses received
on general information regarding Staffing
Approach, Management Plan, Proposed
Construction Schedule, Current
Workload, Resources, and Prime- 25 18.98 18.43 20.14
Contractor/Sub-Contractor Relationships.
Quality of information provided equates
to a higher score.

Flintco, IKLO
LLC | Construction

30 16.60 15.21 21.25

Part 2 - History Evaluations based on responses received
on Firm's history. Quality of information

provided equates to a higher score. 10 8.75 8.00 7.94

Part 3 - Safety Evaluations based on responses received
on Firm's safety record and safety
program. Quality of information provided
equates to a higher score.

Part 4 - Financial Evaluations based on Firm’s audited
financial statements, bonding capacity,
and responses received on requested 10 8.40 9.00 7.13
information. More favorable financial
records equate to a higher score.

References Evaluations based on responses received
from references. Positive comments 15 14.75 12.75 13.00
equate to a higher score.

10 6.46 7.05 6.89

100 73.94 70.43 76.34
Total Points Received

Final Ranking

Vendor Name Total Score
IKLO Construction 76.34
Construction Masters of Houston, Inc. 73.94
Flintco, LLC 70.43

4 228



RFP # 18-21
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Consideration of Approval to Contract for Backbone Circuits

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a contract for backbone
circuits with AT&T for the Information Technology Services (ITS) department.

BACKGROUND

The College interconnects campuses, satellite locations, and the district administrative offices
through a series of data circuits. These data circuits allow the College locations to
electronically share data and communicate with each other, and the systems located in each
of the data centers. The existing circuits are nearing the end of contracted term.

A request for proposals, Project Number 18-21, was issued to procure a new contract for
backbone circuits. Three responses were received and evaluated by a team consisting of ITS

personnel who determined the proposal submitted by AT&T would provide the best value to
the College.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

This will be a new contract with the incumbent provider that allows ITS to continue to
provide the network services critical to daily business operations and instruction for use by
all students and employees.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The estimated annual expenditure is $102,000. This expenditure is funded from the ITS
department’s 2017-2018 operating budget and subsequent year budgets.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The initial award term will end three (3) years from the date of the final execution of the
contract, with renewal options of two (2) one-year terms.

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment 1 - Tabulation
RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Allen Bourque 281-922-3494 allen.bourque@sjcd.edu
Charity Simpson 281-998-6328 charity.simpson@sjcd.edu

5 229



Project Name
Project Number
Number of Evaluators

Stated Criteria

Project Understanding and

Backbone Circuits
18-21
5

Criteria Explanation

Management and
technical approach to the

Total
Points
Available

AT&T

Comcast
Business

PS Lightwave

scope of services, breadth 100 70 64 38
Management and depth of the Plan
Detail
e . Firm’s references,
Quallflcatlons apd reputation and experience 100 60 76 67
Experience of Firm
Qualifications and Firm's personnel
Experience of Personnel [experience 100 56 75 67
and Team
Evaluated on a best
Price Proposal overall value approach for 200 200 153 94
the College
500 386.00 368.45 266.30
Total Points Received
Final Ranking
Vendor Name Total Score

AT&T 386.00
Comcast Business 368.45
PS Lightwave 266.30

230



Purchase Request #1

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of Architectural Programming Services for
the North Campus Spencer, Brightwell, Wheeler Buildings

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a contract for
programming services from HKS Architects, Inc. for the renovation of the North Campus
Spencer, Brightwell, and Wheeler Buildings.

BACKGROUND

HKS Architects, Inc. provides a critical first step in the renovation design process by defining
the detailed requirements of the programs and processes required for new buildings or
renovated spaces. The details required to complete the assessment are gathered collaboratively
from all stakeholders by defining the vision, goals, and needs as they relate to the program
features, instructional requirements, physical adjacencies, space allocation, and equipment
requirements.

In June 2016, the Board approved a pool of architects for 2015 Bond projects. Architectural
programming services are classified as professional services pursuant to Section 2254 of the
Texas Government Code and are awarded based on the firm’s qualifications relative to each
project. HKS Architects is one of the seven architectural firms approved for the pool of
architects to be utilized for the 2015 Bond Program as a result of RFQ 16-15.

It is anticipated that HKS Architects will be awarded the architectural design services on the
Spencer, Brightwell, and Wheeler Buildings. Thus awarding the programing services on a
renovation project is reasonable to ensure consistency of assessment and anticipated design.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

HKS Architects, Inc. provides critical project development services for construction and
renovation projects. The services provided by HKS Architects, Inc. facilitate the coordination
of construction projects and reduces the impact to the students and employees of the College.

Facility program development is indispensable in capturing the multiple and dynamic variables
which combine the proposed new and existing educational offerings and facility requirements
in order to meet the needs of our constituents and community. Determining proper adjacencies,
access, interactions, and total space requirements before the design of a new building or
renovation provides best overall value in the building life cycle for the College.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The estimated expenditure of this request is $172,720. These expenditures will be funded from
the 2015 Bond Program.

7 231



Purchase Request #1
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Consideration of Approval of Architectural Programming Services for
the North Campus Spencer, Brightwell, Wheeler Buildings
MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

Programming services are expected to last approximately eight (8) weeks with additional time
provided for final review.

ATTACHMENTS
None

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Bryan Jones 281-998-6343 bryan.jones@sjcd.edu

Bill Dowell 281-998-6122 william.dowell@sjcd.edu
Ann Kokx-Templet 281-998-6103 ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu
Angela Klaus 281-998-6327 angela.klaus@sjcd.edu

8 232



Purchase Request #2

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of a Contract for Architectural Services for
the South Campus HVAC Tech Building Renovation

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a contract with Huitt-Zollars
to provide architectural services for design of South Campus HVAC Tech Building renovation.

BACKGROUND

In June 2016, the Board approved a pool of architects for 2015 Bond projects. A review process
was conducted to assess which firm would be best suited for each respective project. It is
recommended that Huitt-Zollars is the firm best suited to design the South Campus HVAC Tech
Building Renovation. This project is included in the 2015 Bond Program.

Architectural services are classified as professional services pursuant to Section 2254 of the Texas
Government Code and are awarded based on the firm’s qualifications relative to each project.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

This action will authorize a contract for architectural design of the South Campus HVAC Tech
Building Renovations. This contract will provide services to develop design solutions for
improvements and upgrades to the HVAC Tech Building (formerly The Auto Body Shop).
BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The architect’s proposed fee of $100,763 is based on the estimated construction cost of the work
for the South Campus HVAC Tech Building Renovations of $1,343,500. This fee proposal is
within the Board approved guidelines established for renovation projects in the 2015 Bond
Program. These expenditures will be funded from the 2015 Bond Program.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

Architectural design of this project will require approximately six (6) months following notice to
proceed. Design will be monitored by the College’s Facilities Services personnel.

ATTACHMENTS
None

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Bryan Jones 281-998-6343 bryan.jones@sjcd.edu

Bill Dowell 281-998-6122 william.dowell@sjcd.edu
Ann Kokx-Templet 281-998-6103 ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu
Angela Klaus 281-998-6327 angela.klaus@sjcd.edu

9 233



Purchase Request #3

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of Method of Procurement for Building Repairs on the
South Campus HVAC Tech Building

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Job Order Contracting
(JOC) method of procurement for exterior and structural building repairs at the South Campus
HVAC Tech Building.

BACKGROUND

Renovations are planned for the HVAC Tech program in the former Auto Body Building at
South Campus. During the facility assessment of this building, certain exterior wall and
structural deficiencies were identified that require repair. Due to the aggressive design and
construction schedule for the renovation of this facility, it is recommended that the identified
repairs be performed in advance of the renovation work.

JOC method of procurement is recommended to be used for this project in accordance with
Section 2269.401 of the Texas Government Code in order to complete the necessary construction
upgrades to bring the building into code compliance.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

This action will authorize the utilization of Job Order Contracting as the procurement method for
initial building repairs at the South Campus HVAC Tech Building.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The estimated budget for this project is $75,000 and will be funded from the 2015 Bond
Program.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The renovations associated with this portion of the project will require approximately three (3)
months to complete and will be monitored by the College’s Facilities Services personnel.
Program Management will be provided by AECOM.

ATTACHMENTS

None

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Bryan Jones 281-998-6343 bryan.jones@sjcd.edu
Chuck Smith 281-998-6341 chuck.smith@sjcd.edu

Ann Kokx-Templet 281-998-6103 ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu
Angela Klaus 281-998-6327 angela.klaus@sjcd.edu

10 234



Purchase Request #4

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of Contractor for Building Repairs on the
South Campus HVAC Tech Building

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a contract with Construction
Masters of Houston for exterior and structural building repairs at the South Campus HVAC Tech
Building.

BACKGROUND

Renovations are planned for the HVAC Tech program in the former Auto Body Building at
South Campus. During the facility assessment of this building, certain exterior wall and
structural deficiencies were identified that require repair. Due to the aggressive design and
construction schedule for the renovation of this facility, it is recommended that the identified
repairs be performed in advance of the renovation work.

Construction Masters of Houston has a contract through the Choice Partners cooperative
contracts program to provide Job Order Contracting (JOC) services, Contract Number 15/041JN-
04, and complies with the competitive procurement requirement in Section 44.031 of the Texas
Education Code and Section 2267.401 of the Texas Government Code and is permitted through
Section 791.001 of the Texas Government Code.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

Purchase Request #3 at this meeting (February 5, 2018) requested the JOC procurement method
for this repair work. Approval of this request will allow the College to contract with Construction
Masters of Houston for the exterior and structural building repairs at the South Campus HVAC
Tech Building.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The estimated expenditure for this request is not to exceed $75,000. This expenditure will be
funded from the 2015 Bond Program.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The renovations associated with this portion of the project will require approximately three (3)
months to complete and will be monitored by the College’s Facilities Services personnel.
Program Management will be provided by AECOM.

ATTACHMENTS
None

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Bryan Jones 281-998-6343 bryan.jones@sjcd.edu
Chuck Smith 281-998-6341 chuck.smith@sjcd.edu

Ann Kokx-Templet 281-998-6103 ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu
Angela Klaus 281-998-6327 angela.klaus@sjcd.edu

11 235



Purchase Request #5

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of Method of Procurement for
South Campus Longenecker Building Renovation

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Construction Manager-at-
Risk (CMR) method of procurement for South Campus Longenecker Building renovation.

BACKGROUND

Plans are underway to renovate the South Campus Longenecker Building as part of the 2015 Bond
Program. Architectural programming for these renovations have been carried out and documented
as of August 24, 2017.

Construction Manager-at-Risk (CMR) is recommended as the method of procurement for this
project. CMR has been proven to be an effective procurement methodology that accommodates
flexibility in scope development while maintaining control of risk and assures delivery of good
value. The package of specifications will be used as the documentation required for public
solicitation of construction proposals in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section
2269.151.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

The CMR method is designed to include early involvement of the general contractor with the
architect and owner, to provide a smooth transition to the construction process. Additionally, the
CMR method allows for correction of potential mistakes or unnecessary expenses with early
discovery and resolution.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The estimated cost of construction work for the South Campus Longenecker Building renovations
is $13,429,670. This project will be funded from the 2015 Bond Program.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
Design and renovation of the bond project will require approximately twenty-six (26) months.
Following selection of the Construction Manager and receipt of subcontractor bids, a Guaranteed

Maximum Price (GMP) will be brought to the Board for consideration and approval.

Design and construction will be monitored by the College’s Facilities Services personnel. Program
management will be conducted by AECOM.

ATTACHMENTS

None

12 236



RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Bryan Jones

Chuck Smith

Ann Kokx-Templet
Angela Klaus

281-998-6343
281-998-6341
281-998-6103
281-998-6327

13

Purchase Request #5
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Consideration of Approval of Method of Procurement for
South Campus Longenecker Building Renovation

bryan.jones@sjcd.edu
charles.smith@sjcd.edu
ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu
angela.klaus@sjcd.edu

237



Purchase Request #6

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of a Contract for Architectural Services for
South Campus Longenecker Building Renovation

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a contract with Page
Southerland Page, Inc. for architectural design services for South Campus Longenecker Building
renovation.

BACKGROUND

In June 2016, the Board approved a pool of architects for 2015 Bond projects. A review process
was conducted to assess which firm would be best suited for the respective projects. It is
recommended that Page Southerland Page, Inc. (Page) is the firm best suited to design the South
Campus Longenecker Building Renovation. This project is included in the 2015 Bond Program.

Architectural services are classified as professional services pursuant to Section 2254 of the Texas
Government Code and are awarded based on the firm’s qualifications relative to each project. Page
is one of the seven architectural firms approved for the pool of architects to be utilized for the 2015
Bond Program as a result of RFQ 16-15.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

This action requests authorization to enter into a contract for architectural design services for the
South Campus Longenecker Building renovation. The renovation project will use these
architectural designs to upgrade the building utility systems, upgrade portions of the building
envelope, and reconfigure the building interior to better support the needs of the campus. In
addition, the building will be brought up to current life safety and accessibility codes.

With completion of this renovation project, the life of the Longenecker building will be extended
for 20 to 30 years due to this safer and more effective learning environment.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The architect’s proposed fee of $995,077 is based on the estimated cost of construction work for
the South Campus Longenecker Building renovations of $13,429,670. This fee proposal is within
the Board approved guidelines established for renovation projects in the 2015 Bond Program.
These expenditures will be funded from the 2015 Bond Program.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

Architectural design of the project will require approximately one (1) year following notice to
proceed, and renovations will require approximately fourteen (14) months. Design and
construction will be monitored by the College’s Facilities Services personnel. Program
management will be provided by AECOM.

ATTACHMENTS

14 238



None
RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Bryan Jones

Chuck Smith

Ann Kokx-Templet
Angela Klaus

281-998-6343
281-998-6341
281-998-6103
281-998-6327

15

Purchase Request #6
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Consideration of Approval of a Contract for Architectural Services for
South Campus Longenecker Building Renovation

bryan.jones@sjcd.edu
charles.smith@sjcd.edu
ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu
angela.klaus@sjcd.edu

239



Purchase Request #7
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Consideration of Approval to Purchase Records Management Software

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the purchase of
Perceptive Intelligent Capture for Transcripts software from Lexmark Enterprise Software,
LLC (Lexmark) for the College Registrar and Records Management department.

BACKGROUND

Perceptive Intelligent Capture for Transcripts is an optical character recognition software that
will enable the Registrar and Records Management department to capture relevant data from
PDF, Electronic Data Interchange, and paper transcripts. As the required information is
captured, it will automatically be uploaded into Banner.

Currently, transcripts are imaged into webXtender by the staff and then submitted for
individual evaluation, as requested by the student or based on financial aid application. Staff
members review the course work on the transcript and then manually enter each individual
course and grade into Banner, which allows the transcript data to be reflected on the student’s
record for advising, registration and graduation purposes. This process can take up to three
weeks during peak times.

Lexmark has a contract through the Texas DIR Co-op contracts program to provide
Perceptive Software products and related services under Contract Number DIR-TSO-3418.
The contract complies with the competitive procurement requirement in Section 44.031 of
the Texas Education Code and is permitted through Section 791.011(g) of the Texas
Government Code.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

Perceptive Intelligent Capture for Transcripts will be used for Texas Success Initiative
information, course-by-course evaluations, record indexing into webXtender, and expediting
the student transcript evaluation time. All course work from the transcripts will be
automatically uploaded into the Banner workflow process and evaluated within 72 hours of
receipt, rather than on a request basis, while also providing a shorter turnaround time for
evaluations to be completed.

The software’s automatic evaluation process of transcripts will allow students to register for
courses that have a prerequisite without waiting for assistance from a counselor, allow them
to see how their previous courses fit into their degree plan, and prevent students from
registering for classes they have already completed. Ultimately, it is expected that use of this
application will streamline the registration and graduation processes, allowing students to
graduate in a more timely manner.

16 240



Purchase Request #7
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Consideration of Approval to Purchase Records Management Software

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The estimated expenditure is $248,954. This is a 2008 supplemental contingency project
expenditure funded from the 2008 Bond Program.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The project is expected to commence in February 2018 and be completed in eight (8) months.
Project development and execution will be monitored by College Registrar and Records
Management personnel in collaboration with ITS. Funding and procurement will be
managed by Facilities Services and Contracts & Purchasing.

ATTACHMENTS

None

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Wanda Munson 281-669-4711 wanda.munson@sjcd.edu
Bryan Jones 281-998-6343 bryan.jones@sjcd.edu
Joan Rondot 281-669-4737 joan.rondot@sjcd.edu
Patsy Laredo 281-998-6106 patsy.laredo@sjcd.edu

17 241



Purchase Request #8

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of Contracts for Architectural Services for
Early College High School Renovation Projects

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve contracts with the architectural
firms indicated below to provide design services for the renovation of Frels (C-20), Burleson (N-
7), North Longenecker, (S-7) and South Longenecker (S-9) Buildings to support Early College
High School (ECHS) activities on San Jacinto College Campuses.

BACKGROUND

A total of eight active ECHS programs operate as a partnership between San Jacinto College and
the school districts. All are four-year programs with a nominal capacity of 500 students. Five of
the programs recently began operation, and many of those ECHS students are currently housed at
the school district. By the Fall semester of Academic Years 2019-2020, all eight programs will
require space at the San Jacinto College campuses.

The spaces being supplied to the ECHS programs all require some level of renovation in order to
make them suitable for use by high school students under the current building codes. These
renovations include revisions to the mechanical systems and ADA compliance as well as cosmetic
considerations. In order to ensure all issues that could impact the renovations are identified and
properly budgeted, the administration is requesting authorization to engage the following
architectural firms to provide building assessment and renovation design services:

e Gensler at an estimated fee of $291,143 for Buildings S-7 and S-9.
e HKS Architects at an estimated fee of $160,063 for Building C-20.
e Kirksey Architects at an estimated fee of $127,323 for Building N-7.

Each of the firms is included in the pool of architects approved by the Board in June 2016 for 2015
Bond projects. Each has been selected for their respective projects based on an analysis of the
firm’s qualifications and ability to execute the work in question.

Architectural services are classified as professional services pursuant to Section 2254 of the Texas
Government Code and are awarded based on the firm’s qualifications relative to each project.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

This action will authorize contracts for architectural design services of indicated renovations in
support of the ECHS programs at each campus. Early initiation of this design work will provide
the budget clarity and lead time required to successfully execute the required renovations during
the remaining summer and winter breaks before the spaces are required by incoming students. The
combined impact of all the ECHS programs will result in an estimated 1,375 additional students
housed at San Jacinto College.

18 242



Purchase Request #8

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of Contracts for Architectural Services for
Early College High School Renovation Projects

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The proposed fees for architects are based on preliminary construction cost estimates for each of
the buildings. Each of the fees are within the Board approved guidelines established for renovation
projects in the 2015 Bond Program.

The $578,529 requested for these expenditures will be re-purposed from the 2015 Bond line item
for demolition of Building C-20. This building will no longer be demolished due to the master-
planning process which was completed in August 2016. Building C-20 will ultimately be
remodeled as part of this effort.

Funds for the renovation of buildings to support the ECHS activity were distributed across the
originally proposed renovations in the 2015 Bond Program. A re-allocation of funds to specifically
support the projects listed above will be brought forward by the administration in the coming
months.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

Architectural design of these projects will require approximately six (6) months following notice
to proceed. Design will be monitored by the College’s Facilities Services personnel. Progress will
be reported through the monthly Board Building Committee.

ATTACHMENTS

None

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Bryan Jones 281-998-6343 bryan.jones@sjcd.edu
Charles Smith 281-998-6341 charles.smith@sjcd.edu
Ann Kokx-Templet 281-998-6103 ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu
Angela Klaus 281-998-6327 angela.klaus@sjcd.edu

19 243



Purchase Request #9

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018

Consideration of Approval of Method of Procurement for
College Administration East Building Renovations

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Job Order Contracting
(JOC) method of procurement for renovations required at the College Administration East (A1)
Building.

BACKGROUND

Previously completed renovations in the Al building provided for updated office areas for ITS,
Marketing, and Grants departments. Following these renovations, it was discovered that
deficiencies existed with accessibility standards compliance (ADA — Americans with Disabilities
Act). This renovation will provide for correction of these code deficiencies, including first floor
restroom renovations and modification/addition of accessible automobile parking spaces.

The JOC method of procurement is recommended to be used for this project in accordance with
Section 2269.401 of the Texas Government Code in order to complete the necessary construction
upgrades to bring the building into code compliance.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

This action will approve the procurement method for regulatory compliance renovations required
on the first floor of the College Administration East Building and at the associated parking lots.
The JOC method is requested for this project in order to provide timely and accurate correction
of these issues.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The estimated budget for this project is $136,000 and will be funded from the 2008 Bond
Program contingency funds.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The construction phase of this project will require one hundred and twenty (120) days to
complete and will be managed by Facilities Services personnel.

ATTACHMENTS
None

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Bryan Jones 281-998-6343 bryan.jones@sjcd.edu

Bill Dowell 281-998-6122 william.dowell@sjcd.edu
Ann Kokx-Templet 281-998-6103 ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu
Angela Klaus 281-998-6106 angela.klaus@sjcd.edu

20 244



Purchase Request #10
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Consideration of Approval of Contractor for College Administration East Building Renovations

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a contract with Construction
Masters of Houston (Construction Masters) for renovations required at the College
Administration East (A1) Building.

BACKGROUND

Previously completed renovations in the Al building provided for updated offices areas for ITS,
Marketing, and Grants departments. Following these renovations, it was discovered that
deficiencies existed with accessibility standards compliance (ADA — Americans with Disabilities
Act). This request will provide for correction of these code deficiencies, including first floor
restroom renovations and modification/addition of accessible automobile parking spaces.

Construction Masters has a contract through the Choice Partners cooperative contracts program
to provide Job Order Contracting (JOC) services, Contract Number 15/041JN-04. The contract
complies with the competitive procurement requirement in Section 44.031 of the Texas

Education Code and Section 2267.401 of the Texas Government Code and is permitted through
Section 791.001 of the Texas Government Code.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

Purchase Request #9 at this meeting (February 5, 2018) requested the JOC procurement method
for these required compliance renovations. Approval of this request will authorize Construction
Masters to perform the necessary renovations required on the first floor of the College
Administration East Building and at the associated parking lots.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)

The estimated expenditure for this project shall not exceed $136,000. This expenditure is funded
from the 2008 Bond Program contingency funds.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

The construction phase of this project will require one hundred and twenty (120) days to
complete and will be managed by Facilities Services personnel.

ATTACHMENTS
None

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Bryan Jones 281-998-6343 bryan.jones@sjcd.edu

Bill Dowell 281-998-6122 william.dowell@sjcd.edu
Ann Kokx-Templet 281-998-6103 ann.kokx-templet@sjcd.edu
Angela Klaus 281-998-6106 angela.klaus@sjcd.edu

21 245



Item “A”

Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Approval of the Minutes for the December 11, 2017
Board Workshop and Regular Board Meeting

RECOMMENDATION

The Chancellor requests that the Board of Trustees approve the minutes for the
December 11, 2017, Board Workshop and Regular Board Meeting.

246



San Jacinto College District Board Workshop
December 11, 2017
District Administration Building, Suite 201

MINUTES
Board Workshop Board Members: Erica Davis Rouse, Marie Flickinger,
Attendees: Dan Mims, John Moon, Jr., Keith Sinor, Dr. Ruede
Wheeler, Larry Wilson
Chancellor: Brenda Hellyer
Others: Teri Crawford, Allatia Harris, Ann Kokx-
Templet, Elissa Poway (Doeren Mayhew), Bill Raffetto,
Mandi Reiland, Rob Stanicic, Steve Trncak, Laurel
Williamson, Teri Zamora
Agenda Item: Discussion/Information

Call the Meeting to
Order

Board Chair, Marie Flickinger, called the workshop to
order at 4:47 p.m.

Roll Call of Board
Members

Erica Davis Rouse, Marie Flickinger, Dan Mims, John
Moon, Jr., Keith Sinor, Dr. Ruede Wheeler, Larry Wilson

Adjournment to
closed or executive
session pursuant to
Texas Government
Code Section

551.074 and 551.072 public officer or employee or to hear complaints or
of the Texas Open charges against a public officer or employee.
Meetings Act, for Mandi Reiland was present for this discussion.

the following

purposes: Personnel
Matters & Real
Estate

Adjourned to closed session at 4:49 p.m.

a. Personnel Matters - For the purpose of considering
the  appointment, employment, evaluation,
reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a

b. Real Estate - For the purpose of discussing the
purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property.
Mandi Reiland and Ann Kokx-Templet were
present for this discussion.

V. Reconvene in Open | Reconvened in open meeting at 5:17 p.m.
Meeting
V. Discuss Delegation Brenda Hellyer explained the action item for Purchase

of Procurement for
Glycol Unit

Request #10, Consideration of Approval of Delegation of
Authority for Method of Procurement. This item

247



recommends the Board of Trustees delegate authority and
designate the Chancellor to approve the procurement
methodology for construction of the Glycol Unit at the
Center for Petrochemical, Energy, and Technology
(CPET) at the Central Campus.

Brenda explained that the original method of procurement
for the CPET, in 2015, included the Glycol Unit and was
awarded to Tellepsen Builders. The original intent was for
the construction manager at risk (CMR) method to be used,
but based on recent discussions with the development team
which includes College facilities and purchasing personnel,
industry partners, program manager, and Tellepsen
Builders, Inc., a revised approach is being considered. The
approach will be analyzed over the next few weeks and such
delegation will allow for the project to continue through
December and January.

The solicitation to select a firm to construct the glycol unit
will be issued in January 2018 with the intention to bring
forward a recommendation for award to the March or April
2018 Board meeting.

The Board members present were comfortable with this
action item and process.

Teri Crawford, Anita Dewease, Bill Dickerson, Allatia
Harris, Elissa Posway, Bill Raffetto, Rob Stanicic, Steve
Trncak, Laurel Williamson, and Teri Zamora joined the
meeting.

Brenda introduced Teri Zamora to the Board. Each Board
member introduced themselves to Teri.

VI. Review Brenda Hellyer reviewed the historical performance
Performance management distribution curves.
Management
Distribution Curves | She reviewed the trend lines of the one college faculty,
staff, and administrators’ validated performance ratings
and the percentage per type of rating. There is additional
information in the packet that the Board can review.
VII. Review 2016-2017 Elissa Posway with Doeren Mayhew reviewed the audit

Comprehensive
Annual Financial
Report

results report for year ended August 31, 2017 and gave an
overview of the audit process and findings.

248



Elissa stated that with respect to the audit, Doeren
Mayhew was required to report the following items:

e Auditor’s Responsibilities under Generally
Accepted Government Auditing Standards —

o Financial Statements — Unmodified Report

o Internal Control over Financial Reporting —
No significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses

o0 Public Funds Investment Act — Compliant

0 Major Program Compliance Report —
Noncompliance with the reporting
compliance requirement for the Small
Business Development Centers program.
Brenda explained that the internal process
for reporting has been modified and there
should be no delay next year. The auditor
will review this program again next year.

e Significant Accounting Policies — The College
adopted GASB Statements No. 74, 77, 78, and 79
during fiscal year 2017, all of which had no impact
on financial statement amounts and minimal
impact on disclosures.

e Management’s Judgements and Accounting
Estimates — Estimates were reviewed and within an
acceptable range

e Significant Audit Adjustments — No significant
adjustments

e Major disagreements with management — None

e Material errors, fraud, and illegal acts — None

¢ Required material written communications will be
completed after Board approval of audit

o Engagement letter dated April 17, 2017

o0 Audit reports — to be issued

0 Management representation letter — to be
obtained upon issuance of audit reports

Elissa explained that an audit performed in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance and the State of Texas Single
Audit Circular requires tests of the College’s compliance
with requirements of major Federal and State of Texas
programs, including consideration of related internal
controls. The student financial aid cluster and the small
business development centers were reviewed. No findings
were noted as a result of audit procedures performed and
unmodified reports will be used on the student financial
aid cluster. A noncompliance with respect to submitting

249



reports within the timeframe prescribed by the grant
agreement for the Small Business Development Centers
program was noted. A qualified report on this program
will be issued.

Brenda explained that Dr. Allatia Harris is working with
her team to ensure compliance and improvements within a
timely manner.

Brenda reviewed key pages in the draft comprehensive
annual financial report.

Bill Dickerson, Anita Dewease, and Elissa Posway left the
meeting after the audit and CAFR review.

VIIL. Highlight 2017 Brenda asked Erica Davis Rouse to give an overview of
Texas Higher her experience at the THECB Leadership Conference.
Education Erica explained that she attended the conference and
Leadership enjoyed the experience.

Conference Agenda
Brenda stated for the record that Erica Davis Rouse has
completed all required training for new Board members.
This includes: THECB Leadership Conference, open
meetings act training, public information act training, and
public funds investment act training.

IX. Review Brenda provided an overview of two communications to
Communications to | the Board.

the Board of
Trustees Received One communication was an email from Michelle Pray

by the Chancellor regarding the vote to discontinue the four sports programs.
Brenda asked the Board to read the communication. She
specifically noted the comment regarding a donation from
Spencer Tillman. Brenda stated for the record that to date,
there has not been a donation or offer of a donation of $30
million from Spencer Tillman.

Brenda also explained that a women with an athletics
coalition group has visited the Chancellor’s office. Brenda
and assistants from her office have attempted to contact
and set up a meeting with her multiple times but she has
not been reached.

Marie stated that she has also received calls in regards to
the rumored donation. She explained that there has been

250



no such donation but that contacting the Chancellor to
discuss would be the best option.

Keith Sinor stated that his wife Rae has also been
contacted regarding the rumored donation. She clarified to
the person that contacted her, that contacting the
Chancellor to discuss would be the best option.

The second communication is to the Board from Robert
Drewett in regards to the LED lighting project. He is a
supplier to one of the bidders. This bidder had the lowest
price but was not awarded the project. Ann Kokx-Templet,
Director, Contracts and Purchasing Services, responded to
this email of concern. She clarified the legal and other
requirements by which the College selected the vendor for
this project.

X. Reviewed Letter Brenda reviewed a recent letter from Achieving the Dream
Received From that she received. This letter references the engagement of
Achieving the the Board which “continues to be a model for appropriate
Dream and effective leadership by a governing entity.” Brenda

wanted the Board to be aware of this communication from
Achieving the Dream.

XI. Review of Calendar | Brenda reviewed the calendar with the Board.
XILI. General Discussion | Brenda asked the members if there were any additional
of Meeting Items items for discussion. There were no questions or other

items for discussion.

XTII. Adjournment Workshop adjourned at 6:17 p.m.

251



San Jacinto College District
Regular Board Meeting Minutes

December 11, 2017

The Board of Trustees of the San Jacinto Community College District met at 7:00 p.m.,
Monday, December 11, 2017, in Room 104 of the Thomas S. Sewell District Administration
Building, 4624 Fairmont Parkway, Pasadena, Texas, for the Regular Board Meeting.

Board of
Trustees:

Chancellor:

Others Present:

Erica Davis Rouse, Assistant Secretary
Marie Flickinger, Chair

Dan Mims, Vice Chair

John Moon, Jr.

Keith Sinor, Secretary

Dr. Ruede Wheeler
Larry Wilson

Brenda Hellyer

Carlos Arellaoo
Joshua Banks
Rhonda Bell
Michelle Callaway
Pam Campbell
Cristina Cardenas
Janet Cowey

Teri Crawford
Suzanne Deblanc
Anita Dewease
William Dickerson
Chris Duke

Ken English
Amanda Fenwick
George Gonzélez
Rebecca Goosen
Megan Greene
Jim Griffin
Allatia Harris
Joseph Hebert
Mini lzaguirre
Sallie Kay Janes
Robert Jeter 111
Mark Johnson

Brenda Jones
Bryan Jones

Ruth Keenan
Tami Kelly

Ann Kokx-Templet
Kevin McKisson
Kevin Morris
Wanda Munson
Alexander Okwonna
Jeff Parks

Elissa Posway
Bill Raffetto
Martha Robertson
Keith Robison
Joe Scully

Kelly Simons
Rob Stanicic
Kimberly Steele
Janice Sullivan
Ann Tate

Eddie Weller

Bill Wolfe

252



Call the Meeting
to order:

Roll Call of Board
Members:

Invocation and
Pledges to the
Flags:

Special
Announcements,
Recognitions, and
Presentations:

Student Success
Presentations:

Communications
to the Board:

Hearing of Such
Citizens or
Groups of
Citizens Desiring
to be Heard
Before the Board:

Chair Marie Flickinger called the Regular Meeting of the Board of
Trustees to order at 7:00 p.m.

Erica Davis Rouse
Dan Mims

John Moon, Jr.
Keith Sinor

Dr. Ruede Wheeler
Larry Wilson

The invocation was given by Dr. Alexander Okwonna. The pledges to the
American flag and the Texas flag were led by Erica Davis Rouse.

1. Dr. Eddie Weller provided an update on the 2016-2017 Honors
Program.

2. Dr. Brenda Hellyer recognized Mott Community College for the 2017
Harvey Relief Donations for San Jacinto College Students and
Employees.

1. Michelle Callaway presented an update on Fall 2017 Headcount and
FTIC Fall-to-Fall Persistence.

1. Athank you was sent to the Board from Becky Shuttlesworth, for the
plant sent in memory of her mother.

2. A thank you was sent to the Board from Kacie Allen, for the plant sent
in memory of her grandmother.

3. Athank you was sent to the Board from Nicholas Allen, for the plant
sent in memory of his mother.

4. A thank you was sent to the Board from Patricia Bradley, for the plant
sent in memory of her mother.

5. A thank you was sent to the Board from Rukiya Akua, for the plant
sent in memory of her mother.

6. A copy of the most recent Opportunity News from the Houston
Chronicle was presented to the Board.

7. A copy of the Greater Houston Partnership 2018 Houston Employment
Forecast was presented to the Board.

8. Dr. Hellyer announced that Kenneth English, AECOM project
manager, is retiring and expressed the College’s thanks for his support
and congratulations on his retirement.

There were no citizens desiring to be heard before the Board.

2 253



Informative
Reports:

Motion 9825
Consideration of
Approval of
Amendment to
the 2017-2018
Budget for
Restricted
Revenue and
Expenses Relating
to Federal and
State Grants

Motion 9826
Consideration of
Approval of
Interlocal
Agreement
Between San
Jacinto
Community
College District
and College of the
Mainland

Motion 9827
Consideration of
Approval of
Interlocal
Agreement
Between San
Jacinto
Community
College District
and Houston-
Galveston Area
Council

Chair Marie Flickinger indicated such reports were in the Board
documents.

A. San Jacinto College Financial Statement

B. San Jacinto College Foundation Financial Statements
C. Capital Improvement Program

D. San Jacinto College Building Committee Minutes

Motion was made by Dr. Ruede Wheeler, seconded by Keith Sinor, for
Approval of Amendment to the 2017-2018 Budget for Restricted Revenue
and Expenses Relating to Federal and State Grants.

Motion Carried.

Yeas: Davis Rouse, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson
Nays: None

Motion was made by John Moon, Jr., seconded by Larry Wilson for
approval of Interlocal Agreement Between San Jacinto Community
College District and College of the Mainland.

Motion Carried.

Yeas: Davis Rouse, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson
Nays: None

Motion was made by Dr. Ruede Wheeler, seconded by Erica Davis Rouse,
for approval of Interlocal Agreement Between San Jacinto Community
College District and Houston-Galveston Area Council.

Motion Carried.

Yeas: Davis Rouse, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson
Nays: None

3 254



Motion 9828
Consideration of
A Resolution For
Casting A Ballot
For The Election
Of A Peron To
The Board of
Directors Of The
Harris County
Appraisal District

Motion 9829
Consideration of
Approval of 2018-
2019 Academic
Calendar

Motion 9830
Consideration of
Acceptance of the
2016-2017
Comprehensive
Annual Financial
Report

Motion 9831
Consideration of
Approval to Sell
Surplus Real
Estate Located in
University Park,
Clear Lake Area

Motion 9832
Consideration of
Approval of the
Awarding of a
Posthumous
Degree

Motion was made by John Moon, Jr., seconded by Larry Wilson for
approval of a Resolution For Casting A Ballot For The Election Of A
Person To The Board of Directors Of The Harris County Appraisal
District.

Motion Carried.

Yeas: Davis Rouse, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson
Nays: None

Motion was made by Dan Mims, seconded by Erica Davis Rouse, for
approval of 2018-2019 Academic Calendar.
Motion Carried.

Yeas: Davis Rouse, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson
Nays: None

Motion was made by Keith Sinor, seconded by Dan Mims, for acceptance
of the 2016-2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
Motion Carried.

Yeas: Davis Rouse, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson
Nays: None

Motion was made by John Moon, Jr., seconded by Dan Mims, for approval
to Sell Surplus Real Estate Located in University Park, Clear Lake Area.
Motion Carried.

Yeas: Davis Rouse, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson
Nays: None

Motion was made by Larry Wilson, seconded by Erica Davis Rouse, for
Approval of the Awarding of a Posthumous Degree.

Motion Carried.

Yeas: Davis Rouse, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson
Nays: None

4 255



Consideration of
Approval of
Policy #: Public
Relations — First
Reading

Consideration of
Approval of
Policy #: Alcohol
Usage at Events
on College
Property — First
Reading

Motion 9833
Consideration of
Purchasing
Requests

Informational item on Policy (##), Public Relations — First Reading. Policy

number will be added prior to second reading.

No vote needed.

Informational item on Policy (##), Alochol Usage at Events on College
Property — First Reading. Policy number will be added prior to second

reading.

No vote needed.

Motion was made by Dan Mims, seconded by Dr. Ruede Wheeler for

approval of the purchasing requests.

CSP #18-14
College-Wide ILC Data Rooms

RFP #18-05
Custodial Services

RFQ #18-15
Minor Projects Architect Services Pool

Purchase Request #1
Additional Funds for Custodial Services

Purchase Request #2
Temporary Personnel Services

Purchase Request #3
Purchase Fleet Vehicles

Purchase Request #4
Renew Promotional Items Contracts

Purchase Request #5
Renew the Contract for Printing Collaterals

Purchase Request #6
Renew Contract for Steel Supplies

Purchase Request #7
Architectural Programming Services for the
Central Campus Davison Technical Building

$625,316

3,102,401

150,000

765,000

350,000

310,000

300,000

235,000

90,000

75,250

256



Motion 9824
Consent Agenda

Items for
Discussion/
Possible Action

Adjournment:

Purchase Request #8
Purchase Graduation Event License 66,300

Purchase Request #9
Renew the Contract for Commercial Truck
Repair Services 50,000

Purchase Request #10
Delegation of Authority - Method of Procurement -

TOTAL OF PURCHASE REQUESTS $2,241,550
Motion Carried.

Yeas: Davis Rouse, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson
Nays: None

Motion was made by Larry Wilson, seconded by Erica Davis Rouse, to
approve the consent agenda.

A. Approval of the Minutes for the November 6, 2017 Board
Workshop and Regular Board Meeting

Approval of the Budget Transfers

Approval of Personnel Recommendations

Approval of the Affiliation Agreements

Approval of the Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting

moow

Motion Carried.

Yeas: Davis Rouse, Mims, Moon, Jr., Sinor, Wheeler, Wilson
Nays: None

There were no additional items discussed.

Meeting Adjourned at 7:42 p.m.

6 257



Item “B”
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Consideration of Approval of Budget Transfers

ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REPORT

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve budget transfers for
2017-2018 which have been made in accordance with State accounting procedures.

BACKGROUND

Adoption of the budget by the Board of Trustees in August of each year serves as the
authorization to expend funds for the next fiscal year. The budget is adopted by functional
classification (or cost elements: Instruction, Academic Support, Student Services,
Institutional Support, and Operation and Maintenance of Plant) as defined by the National
Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO). Realizing that the
budget is a viable document that reflects the evolving needs of the College in terms of
meeting goals and objectives, occasional movement of budgeted funds between cost elements
is desirable and warranted. The budget transfers under consideration represent previously
authorized expenditures that are requested to be reclassified from one cost element to another
cost element.

IMPACT OF THIS ACTION

Approval of the budget transfers will allow the College to more effectively utilize existing
resources in fulfilling its instructional objectives.

BUDGET INFORMATION (INCLUDING ANY STAFFING IMPLICATIONS)
This request is a reclassification of existing authorizations.

MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE

None

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 — Budget Transfers

RESOURCE PERSONNEL

Teri Zamora 281-998-6306 teri.zamora@sjcd.edu
Dianne Duron 281-998-6347 dianne.duron@sjcd.edu

258



SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT

Budget Transfers For The February 5, 2018 Board Meeting

Fiscal Year 2017 - 2018

ELEMENT OF COST

DEBIT

CREDIT

DISTRICT

CENTRAL

NORTH

SOUTH

INSTRUCTION

PUBLIC SERVICE
ACADEMIC SUPPORT
STUDENT SERVICES
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT
PHYSICAL PLANT
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES

INSTRUCTION

PUBLIC SERVICE
ACADEMIC SUPPORT
STUDENT SERVICES
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT
PHYSICAL PLANT
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES

INSTRUCTION

PUBLIC SERVICE
ACADEMIC SUPPORT
STUDENT SERVICES
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT
PHYSICAL PLANT
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES

INSTRUCTION

PUBLIC SERVICE
ACADEMIC SUPPORT
STUDENT SERVICES
INSTITUTIONAL SUPPORT
PHYSICAL PLANT
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES

Attachment 1 — Budget Transfers

180
2,441
248

9,616
1,148

1,893

29,939

259



RECOMMENDATION

Item “D”
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Approval of the Affiliation Agreements

The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the following Affiliation

Agreements:

Central Campus

Department
Medical Imaging Program

South Campus
Department

Physical Therapy Assistant Program

Occupational Therapy Assistant Program

Occupational Therapy Assistant Program

Nursing Program

North Campus

Department
Nursing Program

Nursing Program

Nursing Program

Mental Health Program

Mental Health Program

Medical Assisting Program
Health Information Management

Health Information Management

Affiliation Entity

Infinity MRI & Diagnostics Center

Il, LP d/b/a Pearland MRI & Imagining
Center

Affiliation Entity
Orthopedic Hospital LTD dba Texas
Orthopedic Hospital

Pathfinder Pediatric Home Care, Inc.

The University of Texas MD Anderson
Cancer Center

The University of Texas Medical Branch at
Galveston

Affiliation Entity
Oceanview Healthcare Inc. d/b/a Oceanview
Healthcare and Rehabilitation

Paramount SCC @ Pasadena

Baytown SCC d/b/a Baytown Nursing &
Rehab Center

Cenikor Foundation

Bay Area Council on Drugs & Alcohol
Mariette Pierre, M.D.

ICON Hospital

TOPS Surgical Specialty Hospital

260



Item “D”
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Approval of the Affiliation Agreements

Health Information Management La Michoacana Dental
Health Information Management Bay Area Surgicare
Health Information Management U.T. Physicians
RATIONALE

The Affiliation Agreements were reviewed by the College’s external legal counsel.
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS TO THE COLLEGE

N/A

CONTACT PERSONNEL

Daniel J. Snooks, Attorney
Laurel Williamson 281-998-6184 laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu

261


mailto:laurel.williamson@sjcd.edu

Item “E”
Regular Board Meeting February 5, 2018
Approval of the Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting

RECOMMENDATION

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Trustees will be Monday,
March 5, 2018.

262



	01 Cover Sheet 2-5-18
	02 Board Workshop Agenda 2-5-18
	03 Board Meeting Agenda 2-5-18
	04 Financials Nov 2017
	04.1 November 2017 with monthly and quarterly invest
	November 2017 with monthly invest
	Sept - Nov 2017 Quarterly

	04.2 Financials Dec] 2017
	04.3 December 2017 financials with investments
	December 2017 financials with investments
	December 2017 investments

	05 Foundation Financials Nov 2017
	05.1 Foundation Financials Nov. 2017 FINAL
	Foundation Financials Nov 2017
	Contributions Report - Nov17
	Statement of Financial Position - Nov17

	Statement of Activities - Nov17

	05.2 Foundation Financials Dec 2017
	05.3 Foundation Financials Dec  2017 FINAL
	Foundation Financials Dec 2018
	Contributions Report - Dec17
	Statement of Financial Position - Dec17

	Statement of Activities - Dec17

	06 CIP Reports20180118
	07 Building Committee Minutes 20180123 rev JS
	SAN JACINTO COLLEGE DISTRICT
	Building Committee Meeting
	January 23, 2018

	09 BOARD AGENDA ITEMS FISCAL AFFAIRS FEB 5
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	09.1 Attachment 1- Budget Amendments-02-05-18
	Sheet1

	09.2 Attachment 2-Grant Detail 02-05-18.REVISED
	10 Action Item - Approval of C3 membership  2018-01-18 bdj (00000002) CDS
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport

	11 Action Item -Granting of Easements 2018-01-18 bdj
	11.1 Action Attach 1  Easement - Luella
	11.2 Action Attach 2 Easement - Cunningham
	11.3 Action Attach 3 -Temp.Const.Lic.Agmt-Spencer
	11.4 Action Attach 4 - Temp. Const. Lic. Agmt Cunningham
	12 University of Houston Downtown Articulation Agreement Feb 2018 bh clean
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	12.1 UHD-SJC articulation agreement 22 Jan 2018
	Articulation Agreement
	SAN JACINTO COLLEGE: UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN:

	12.2 UHD-SJC articulation agreement 22 Jan 2018
	Sample San Jacinto College Agreement for Joint Admission
	Application fees will be waived for SAN JACINTO COLLEGE students who apply to UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN within 6 months of earning an Associate's degree.
	SAN JACINTO COLLEGE: UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN:
	________________________________________ _______________________________________


	12.3 UHD-SJC articulation agreement 22 Jan 2018
	San Jacinto College Agreement for Cooperative Advising
	SAN JACINTO COLLEGE: UNIVERSITY OF HOUSTON-DOWNTOWN
	_______________________________________

	13 Policy public relations action item
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	13.1 Policy and Procedures Summary of Changes Public Relations
	13.2 VI-J Policy on Public Relations
	Policy VI-J: Policy on Public Relations

	13.3 Policy on Public Relations New Format TC
	Policy VII.7001.A, Public Relations
	Purpose
	Policy
	Associated Procedures


	13.4 2-18 Public Relations
	Procedure 2-18: Public Relations
	Links to...
	About reporters
	Things for you to know
	Social media is a great way for students to stay connected with fellow students and to find College resources. The following guidelines are designed to help students navigate the social web at San Jacinto College and in life outside the college.



	13.5 Public Relations Procedure New Format TC
	Procedure VII.7001.A.a, Public Relations
	Associated Policy
	Procedures
	About reporters
	Things to know

	Definitions


	14 Policy alcohol action item BH
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	14.1 Alcohol Usage Policy and Procedures Summary of Changes 11.29.17
	14.2 VI-LL Policy on Alcohol Usage
	Policy VI-LL: Policy on Alcohol Usage

	14.3 Alcohol Usage on College Property Policy 11 29 171 BH
	Policy #VII.7002.A, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property
	Purpose
	Policy
	Definitions


	14.4 Alcohol Usage on College Property Policy 11 29 171 BH clean
	Policy VII.7002.A, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property
	Purpose
	Policy
	Definitions


	14.5 Alcohol Usage on College Property Policy _Procedures 11 29 17 bh
	Procedure #VII.7002.A.a, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property
	Associated Policy
	Procedures
	Definitions


	14.6 Alcohol Usage on College Property Policy _Procedures 11 29 17 bh clean
	Procedure VII.7002.A.a, Alcohol Usage at Events on College Property
	Associated Policy
	Procedures
	Definitions


	15 Policy college vehicles first reading 2-5-18 - Copy
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	15.1 00 Policy and Procedures Summary of Changes  VI-T; 2-15
	15.2 01 VI-T Policy on Use of College Vehicles
	Policy VI-T: Policy on Use of College Vehicles

	15.3 02 Policy VI-T Policy Rewrite DRAFT  New Form BH
	Policy III.3008.A, Use of College Owned or Leased Vehicles
	Purpose
	Policy
	Associated Procedures


	15.4 03 2-15 Use of College Vehicles
	Procedure 2-15: Use of College Vehicles

	15.5 Policy VI-T Procedures Rewrite DRAFT New Form (vaw revision) bh
	Procedure III.3008.A.a, Use of College-Owned or Leased Vehicles
	Associated Policy
	Procedures


	16 00 Policy recommend to rescind 2-5-18
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	16 01 Summary of Changes for IV-C-13 Policy on Professional Trips
	16 01.1 IV-C-13 Policy on Professional Trips original
	IV-C-3 Policy on Professional Trips

	16 01.2 3-8 Professional Trips
	Procedure 3-8: Professional Trips

	16 02 Summary of Changes for Policy VI-D Policy on Professional Growth and Development
	16 02.1 VI-D Policy on Professional Growth and Development
	Policy VI-D: Policy on Professional Growth and Development

	16 03 Summary of Changes VII
	16 03.1 Procedure VII
	Procedure VII: Curriculum Development Manual

	16 04 Summary of Changes 6-3-a
	16 04.1 Procedure 6-3-a
	Procedure 6-3-a: Excessive Absence
	Failure, Excessive Absences (FX)

	16 05 Summary of Changes 6-2-a
	16 05.1 Procedure 6-2-a Course Syllabus and Curriculum Guide
	Procedure 6-2-a: Course Syllabus / Curriculum Guide

	16 06 Policy and Procedures Summary of Changes 6-2-b
	16 06.1 Procedure 6-2-b
	Procedure 6-2-b: Beginning of Class Information

	16 07 Summary of Changes Procedure5-19 Curriculum Design and Instructional Effectiveness
	16 07.1 Procedure 5-19 Curriculum Design and Instructional Effectiveness
	Procedure 5-19: Curriculum Design and Instructional Effectiveness
	Elements of a Course Syllabus
	Title Page
	Heading for the Syllabus
	Purpose Statement
	Course Description
	Student Learning Outcomes
	Learning Activities
	Grading System
	Outcomes Inventory
	Calendar
	Materials

	Curriculum Changes
	Syllabus Review
	Syllabus Revision
	Steps in the Process:

	Textbook Adoption
	Guidelines for Courses Offered on All Three Campuses
	Definitions
	District Required Books:
	Special Required Books:
	Non-required Books:



	17 Policy HR employment first reading 2-5-18
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	17.1 1 - Policy and Procedures Summary of Changes - Job Vacancies 20180130
	17.2 2 - Policy for Filling Vacancies Current Policy 2008
	Policy IV-C-3: Policy for Filling Vacancies (Current Policy)

	17.3 3 - Policy - Filling Vacancies IV-C-3- new template 20180130
	Policy IV.4003.A, Filling Vacancies
	Purpose
	Policy
	Part-time and temporary employees may be employed without a formal posting as long as fair non-discriminatory employment practices are followed
	Definitions
	Associated Procedures


	17.4 4 - 4-1 Procedure Job Vacancies Current Procedure 2008
	17.5 5 - 4-1 Procedure Job Vacancies Recommended new template 20180122
	Procedure IV.4003.A.a, Job Vacancies
	Associated Policy
	Procedures


	17.6 6 - 4-1a  Procedure Screening Committee Current  Procedure 2008
	17.7 7 - 4-1a Procedure on Screening Committee Recommended- new template 20180122
	Procedure IV.4003.A.b, Screening Committee
	Associated Policy
	Procedures
	Definitions


	17.8 HR rescind
	18 Purchasing Package 2-5-18
	00 Bid Recap Rev.1.19.18
	Sheet1

	01 CSP 18-13 South Campus Softball Training Facility 2018-01-18 BDJ
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS

	01.1 CSP 18-13 Attachment No. 1 AK DRAFT
	Board Book

	02 RFP 18-21 Backbone Circuits -Rev.1.29.18
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	02.1 RFP 18-21 Attachment No. 1 -
	Board Book

	PR1 - NC Spencer-Brightwell-Wheeler HKS - Programming 2018-01-18 BDJ
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS

	PR2 - SC HVAC Tech Architect Services - Huitt Zollars 2018-01-18 BDJ
	PR3 - Method SC HVAC Tech Building Repairs 2018-01-19 BDJ
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	PR4 - Contractor SC HVAC Tech Building Repairs 2018-01-19 BDJ
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	PR5 - Method SC Longenecker 2018-01-19 BDJ
	PR6 - Contractor SC Longenecker Architect 2018-01-31 BDJ
	PR7- Transcript Evaluation Software 2018-01-18-BDJ Rev  2
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	PR8 - Architect Services for ECHS 2018-01-31 BDJ
	PR9 - Method A1 ADA Renovations 2018-01-24 AKT
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the Job Order Contracting (JOC) method of procurement for renovations required at the College Administration East (A1) Building.
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL


	PR10 - Contractor A1 ADA Renovations 2018-01-24 AKT
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	The administration recommends that the Board of Trustees approve a contract with Construction Masters of Houston (Construction Masters) for renovations required at the College Administration East (A1) Building.
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL



	21 Item A
	21.1 Board Workshop minutes 12-11-17
	21.2 Board Meeting Minutes 12-11-17
	22 20180207 Board Meeting
	ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION/REport
	BACKGROUND
	IMPACT OF THIS ACTION
	BUDGET INFORMATION (including any staffing implications)
	MONITORING AND REPORTING TIMELINE
	ATTACHMENTS
	RESOURCE PERSONNEL

	22.1 Budget Transfers Element of Cost Feb 2018
	Elements of Cost

	26 Item D
	RECOMMENDATION
	FISCAL IMPLICATIONS TO THE COLLEGE
	CONTACT PERSONNEL

	27 Item E
	RECOMMENDATION




